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| “We're driven by two things: passion for A 12311
aviation and a pride in serving passengers. BB AVIat' U
When we have the opportunity we go
beyond the call of duty.”

-

BEST AVALABLE COpy
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Aviation is a buoyant market. More people are
flying privately than ever before. Major airports
are undergoing significant redevelopments.
The breadth of our experience and the quality
of the businesses we own puts us in a strong
position to benefit.

The contract to carry out the full range
of ground services at the new JFK Terminal 1,
the design and manufacture of landing gear for
the new Eurocopter in the UK, an ever-expanding
global network of quality FBO locations and a
rapidly developing component overhaul business:
we owe these successes to a combination of timely
investment, committed individuals and a core
of consistently upheld values.

There’s no substitute for seeing these
businesses first hand, but the pictures in this
report do reveal our mostimportant asset: the
people driving BBA Aviation into the future.




Financial Highlights

Revenue Underlying operating profit® Earnings per share’

£9794. £105.7. 154,

'E.n;k:tpe: rhan-nerce-nla.gehand p-e: shéreér;mums';\oen(g:_ C ] T - ’ C 2006  change
Revenue ) ’ h T T T T
Continuing operations 950.1 3%
Underlying operating profit* i

Continuing operations 1028
Operating profit from continuing operations 948
Underlying operating margin

Continu'ng operaticns 108%

Net interest {24.6)
Underlying profit before tax from continuing operations 782
Restructuring casts and amortisation of acquired

intangibles net of gains on disposat of businesses {80

Profit before tax from continuing operations 70.2

Loss after tax from discontinued operations (76.2)

Profit on disposal after tax 165
Profitf{loss) for the period {10.2)  955%
Earnings per ordinary share

Basic

Continuing and discontinued operations:

Adjusted” 149p 3%
Unadjusied . (2.2)p 1064%
Continuing operations:

Adjusted” 114p  35%
Unadjusted 103p 106%
Diluted

Continuing and discontinued operations:

Adjusied’ 149p 3%
Unadjusied {21)p 1105%
Continuing operations:

Adjusted” 114p  34%
Unadjusted 103p 105%
Dividends per erdinary share BSp (it)%h
Cash generated by operations {continuing operations) 1221 (16)%
Cash generated by operations {total) 1283 (25)%
Free cash flow {continuing operations)** 4840 (13)%
Free cash flow {total)** 31 4B4%
Net debt 3569

Net debt to EBITDA*** 2.7x

opetaing profil before restructunng costs and amorusation of acquired intang. bies net of gains on disoosal of businessas
cash generateq by operations plus dividends from associazes, less tax, inieresy, prefetence dividends and net capital expend ture
£81TDA baing undeslying profit* before depreciation and amortisation
1 basic earmngs per share from continuing operations before restructunng costs and amartisasion of acquired intang bles
net of gains on dispesal of businesses
The defin.ions as outlined above are consistenily apphed throughaout the financial staterments.




%

Seles and underlying aperating profit increased by 3% as reported
but by 109 on a constant exchange rate basis. Organic sales growth was 89%.

£8/.2.

Prafit for the period recovered sharply from a loss of £010.2)m in 2006.




Director’s Report
Chairman’s Statement

2007 was another year of good progress
for BBA Aviation in its first year as a focused
Aviation Services and Systems Support Group.
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Directors’ Report
Business Review: Our Business

We focus on:
« Providing flight support to business
and commercial aircraft at almost 150
locations worldwide |
 Overhauling turbine engines together with
the supply and repair of related components
« Licensing components from OEMs and
assuming responsibility for their support
in the aftermarket
Designing, manufacturing and repairing
aircraftlanding gear and hydraulic systems

[
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Results
lam pleased 10 say that this was another good set of results for our
Group. Despite the weaker US dollar, revenue and underlying cperating
profit from continuing operations increased by 3% to £979.4 million
{2006: £950.1 million) and £105.7 million (2006: £102.8 million} respectively.
At constant exchange rates the increase in sales and underlying operating
profit was 10%. Organic sales growth was 8% reflecting the strong market
conditions experienced during the year and market share gains. Operating
margins for the Group were maintained at 10.8%.

There was a significant increase in profit before tax which rose by
58% to £110.8 million from £70.2 millien principally as a result of the
profit on disposal of the businesses at Oxford Airport of £38.4 million,
Adjusted earnings per share increased 35% to 15.4p (2006: 11.4p).

In the prior period there was a significant after tax loss from
discontinued operations of £(76.2) million and this related 1o the results
of Fiberweb prior 1o its demerger on 17 November 2006. Consequently
there was a sharp recovery in the overall profit for the period which
increased to £87.2 million compared to a loss in 2006 of £{10.2) million,

We continued to deliver strong free cash flow from continuing
operations of £41.8 million (2006: £48.1 million} after investing £39.8
million on capital expenditure for internal projects. We continued to
execute our strategy and in the year invested £76.0 million, principally
to extend the Signature network. These acquisitions were funded
through free cash flow and by reinvesting the proceeds of the disposal
of cur businesses at Oxford airport for £71.1 million,

There was a small net cash cutflow of £19.3 million after paying
a dividend of £299 million and pension/other costs associated with
the demerger of £23.7 mifiion. As a result net debt increased to
£375.2 million (2006: £356.9 million) and net debt to EBITDA was
2.8x (2006: 2.7x).

Dividend

The Board is recommending a final dividend of 5.35p bringing the

total for the year (o 76p (2006 8.5p). If Fiherweb had been demerged

at the beginning of 2006 and if BBA Aviation had been operating as an
independent company from that time it is anticipated that the full year
dividend would have been 71p, Against this rebased full year dividend
the recommended 2007 dividend represents an increase of 7% reflecting
the good progress in underlying earnings and our confidence in the
future prospects for our Group.

Board

We were pleased 10 secure the services of Simon Pryce who was appainted
Group Chief Executive on 11 June 2007. Simon joined us from GKN where
he spent nine years in senior financial and international operational roles.
Immediately prior to joining our company Sirmon was Chief Executive of
GKN's Diversified Business Group. He brings Executive Board experience
as welk as a wealth of strategic and operational skills and we are confident
that we have found the right person to drive the company forward in the
next phase of its development. His influence on the Group is already
yielding results. Following Simon's appointment | became non-executive
Chairman as planned.

Hansel Tookes joined the Board as a non-executive director in
February 2007 and David Rough and Bob Phillips both retired from the
Board after our AGM in April 2607 We welcome Hansel and thank David
and Bob for their contribution.

Qur employees

In this report you can see some of what our employees do on a daily basis
1o deliver services to our customers. We are very appreciative of the hard
work and commitment of all of our employees and thank them for the
vital part they play in the success of BBA Aviation.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As BBA Aviation strives to meet the ever-increasing expectations of

our stakehalders, we ate mindful of balancing our efforts to meet those
expectations with our commitment to the fundamentals of Corporate
Social Responsibility. Satisfying the highest ethical standards, compliance
with the law, exercising appropriate sensitivity to the needs of our
employees, the communities in which we work, and the environment
must be integrated with our business goals in a complementary manner.
This balance cannot be achieved unless all of our employees are engaged-
in this effort.

We have made some further progress towards improving the safety
performance of our companies but we know there is much still to do 1o
attain our goal of achieving an industry leadership role in safety practices
and performance, .

Outlook

itis too early to assess the impact of slower economic growth on our
businesses although, in the first few weeks of trading in the current year,
we have seen softer fuel volumes in Signature North America than in the
same period in 2007 when we experienced strong growth. All of our other
businesses are performing well and in line with our expectations. Assisted
by the significant developments in 2007 and the year to date, we still
expect to make good overall progress in 2008, Looking further out our
long term prospects are exciting,

Michael Harper
Chairman




Our Business

Total Revenue

£9794.

Flight Support Revenue

7 Signature £394.7m
£ 5 9. 5 m ASIG £184.8m

Aftermarket Services and Systems Revenue

Engine Repair £272.5m
£ 3 9 9 9 Compaonent Repair £43.6m
Landing Gear £62.8m
e M Oxford £210m

Industry acronyms

AC) airbus Corporate Jetliner  AWARS Authorised Warranty and

Repair Station  APUs Auxilliary Power Units  BBJ Boeing Business Jet
B&GA Business and General Avistion CRO Component Repair and
Overhaui  ERO Engine Repair and Overhau!  FBO Fixed Base Operation
GSE Ground Support Equipment  ITS lniernational Turbine Services
QEM Original Equipment Manufacturer  RIR Recordable Incident Rate
RTC Regicnal Turbine Centres  VLJ Very Light Jet




39

59% of our revenue relates to Flight Support activities

41,

4196 1o Aftermarket Services and Systems
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Directors’ Report
Business Review: Our Marketplace

ST
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BBA Aviation is a focused aviation services
and systems support group operating mainly
but not exclusively in the Business and General

Aviation market.

BBA Aviation plc

Business aviation

Commercial aviation

2 f /
30%
Miliiary

5%

Flight Support

Busiress avation

Commercial avi

32

Aftermarkets Services and Systems

Business aviation

Commercial avation

22%

Mlary




BBA Aviation critical success factors
BBA Awviation is ideally placed to exploit these attractive market
opportunities:

Anindustry record of over 1,000 turbine powered business aircraft
were delivered in 2007 and despite a continuing increase in fuel
prices, business aircraft flying hours remained strong throughout

the year.

Worldwide Fixed Wing Turbine - Powered Business Aircraft

s Turboprops Total %
Narth America 11,103 &1i0 19,213 74
Europe 1,899 983 2,882 n
South America 602 1,118 1,720 7
Asia 540 439 979
Africa/ME 247 534 781 3
Australia/Oceania ’ 125 71 396 1
Total 14,538 11,482 26,020 100

* BBJand AC) included; excludes other executive-confiqured airlines.
Source: Avdata/JetNet, July 2007

The market for new business jet aircraft has expanded globally, especially
in Asia and the Middte East, with buyers attracted to new engine, avionics
and airframe technologies that provide greater range and cabin size to
accommodate longer internaticnal flights, Pre-owned inventories of
business jet and turboprop aircraft fell to tess than 10% of the total active
business jet fleet.

Cormmercial airlines achieved significant improvements in overalt
operating efficiency on the strength of systerns and process improvements,
equipment upgrades and cooperative outsourcing, which provided
opportunities for ASIG both in 2007 and longer term.

Forward looking market projections continue ta predict robust
conditions in both the Business & Generat Aviation (B&GA} and
Commercial markets.

Forecasts from leading business and general aviation sector OEMs
anticipate more than 14,000 new business jets will enter service globally
over the next 10 years. Primary market drivers incfude the continued
growth of both fractional programmes and traditional corporate flight
department operations and increased derand cutside the USA, with
international buyers estimated 1o account for as much as 50% of projected
new aircraft deliveries over the next five years. Although the Very Light Jet
{VLJ) market remains nascent (and the air taxi model has yet to develop as
projected), the segment is expected to enjoy success going forward and
will cantribute to the overall growth in the market. Overall we anticipate
that the B&GA market will grow 4% to 6% through the cycle.

Over the period 2007 ~ 2020, the commercial aircraft fleet is expected
to grow about 3% p.a., led by the continuing growth of regional'and low
cost carriers, strong demnand in Asia-Pacific markets and airline requirements
forincreased aircraft range, capacity and operating efficiency.

We are market leaders in the markets in which we operate

—  Signature is the worid's leading FBO network with 78 wholly
owned worldwide locations and 14 additional locations in
which we have equity interests

- ASIGis the largest independent refueller in the USA and
the UK and number two globally

- The ERQ business has market leading positions in the
programmes in which it participates

Barriers to entry include

- You need to have a lease from an airport authority to operate
an FBO: the average lease term of our FBO network in the
USAis 17 years

—  You need a licence from an OEM to service its engines:
we are authorised by the OEMs for engine overhauls on 80%
of business and general aviation engines now in service

- You need a licence from an OEM to carry out legacy support:
we license from OEMs over 3,500 parts and assemblies

We have a successful record of acquiring and integrating new

businesses. In the last five years BBA Aviation has spent £244 million

on 25 businesses. The markets in which we operate are highly

fragrnented and ripe for further consolidation

We have a strong and capable management team with many

years' experience in the industry



Directors’ Report
Business Review: Qur Strategy

Our Strategy

LN e

ey

opportunities for value creative growth,

The key elements of our strategy as it relates to each
of the businesses are as follows:

Flight Support

Signature

Strong organic growth
Acquisitive netwark expansion

ASIG
Organic growth whilst exiting from uneconomic lines of business
Continued operational improvernent

Aftermarket Services and Systems
Engine Repair and Overhaul (ERO)
Organic growth -

Operational and productivity improvement

Legacy Support
Organic and acquisitive growth

APPH
Organic and acquisitive growth
Coentinued operational improvernent

Our objective is to create long-term sustainable value for all our shareholders.
We are a focused aviation services and systemns suppart group, operating
mainly, but not exclusively, in the Business and General Aviation market.

We have five businesses with leading market positions and continuing

BRA Aviation Annuat Report 2007




Group

Group - Financial Summary

‘r“ S T e e e
{Em 2007 A5
;la_::herthar) perceniages and persha[e_amﬂuntsin pence) . Actual Rgnafted _
Co-ntinuing U ‘

- Sales 979.4 9501

- Underlying operating profit 1057 1028

- Operating profit margin 10.8% 108%
Tozal operating profit 130, 948 37%
Profit before tax 110.8 70.2 58%
Adjusied earnings per share 154p 1l4p 35%
Profit for the period 87.2 (10.2) 955%
Free cash flow {continuing) 41,8 481 [13)%
Free cash flow {total) 18.1 31 4B4%
Netdebt ) : 3752 3569 5%

In 2007 the US dollar depreciated agatnst steriing by some 99 which has resulied in a significant
reduction in the translated sterling value of our US do'lar earnings. In 2006 the average dollar rate
used in the Group was $1.84 and in 2007 was $2.00 end this has distorted the comparison with the
financial results of the prior period. On the table above the key Ainancial data is shown as reported
and also on a consiant currency basis.

This was ancther set of sirong resu'ss for B8A Aviation, Despite the exchange rate headwing,
revenue and underlying operating profit from continuing cperations increased by 3% 1o £9794
million and £105.7 million respectuvely. A; consiant exchange ates the increase in sales and operating
profit was 10%. Organic sales growth was 83 reflecting the strong market conditions experienced
during the year and market share gains.

Total operaung profit increased by 37% (o £130.i million principally as a resu't of the profit
recorded on the sale of the Oxford businesses of £38.4 mllon.

Profit before tax increased significantly to £110.8 million {2006; £70.2 million} and adjusted
earnings per share rose 1o 15.4p fram 11.4pin 2005, an increase of 35%. At constant exchange rates
and also assuming that Fiberweb had been demerged from 1 January 2006 the eps increase would
hava been 12%%.

In the prior pericd there was a significant after tax loss from discontinued operations of
£(76.2} million and this related to the results of Fiberweb prior 10 its demerger on 17 Novernber 20086.
Consequently there was a sharp recovery in the overa'l profit for the period of £87.2 million
compared t¢ a loss in 2006 of £(10.2) mil ion.

Free cash flow fram continuing operations was £41.8 milion {2006: £48.1 million} with tower
capital expenditure of £39.8 mitlion beng offsst by higher cash tax payments and an outflow in
working capital. The Group invesied £76.0 million on acquisitions, principally o exiend the Signature
network, and raised £71.1 millior: from the szle of 1ts businesses at Oxford airport, There was 2 small
net cash outflow of £19.3 million after paying 2 dividend of £299 mullion and pensicn/other costs
associated with the demerger of £23.7 million. As a rasult net debt increased to £375.2 million
{2006: £356.9 million).




Directors’ Report
Business Review: Principal Risks and Uncertainties
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BBA Aviation is ultimately exposed to the amount of flying activity

undertaken principally by business and general aviation aircraft and to

a lesser extent by cornmercial and military aircraft. The number of hours

flown directly impacts our flight support organisation but also, over the

longer term, our aftermarket services businesses. The key risks that impact |

the level of Rying activity are:

- Terrorist attacks and threats of attacks together with recent
international conflicts have impacted regional and international air
travel, There can be no absolute assurance that we will avoid adverse
consequences of any future attacks or threats, notwithstanding the
preventative measures that we undertake in co-operation with airport
authorities and other government agencies

- Avery high price per barrel for crude and a corresponding rise in jet
fuel prices for a prolonged period

+  General economic conditions and business and consumer confidence

+  Legislation impacting air travel

The Group has significant operations in the USA with approximately 74%

of pre tax profits being denominated in US dollars. Although we are

seeking to expand our operations in Europe and the rest of the world the
majority of alt business and general aviation aircraft are located in MNorth

America and it will remain the dominant market in the years ahead.

Consequently our financial performance in sterling terms is subject to the

effects of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, in particular the rate of

exchange between US dollar and sterling.

The Group has a number of contingent liabilities that might impact
its future performance. These are analysed in note 28 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Retaining our key managernent is of critical importance to the Group.
To aid this, work is in hand to improve our performance and talent
management processes and give sharper focus to ensuring that our
compensation and benefits offerings remain competitive.
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Directors’ Report
Business Review: Flight Support

Flight Support

In aviation, what happens on the ground
matters as much as pilot decision or flying
conditions. Our two flight support businesses,
ASIG and Signature, play different but essential
roles in ensuring the security and comfort

of passengers, pilots, and crew right around
the world.

ASIG and Signature Flight Support

Signature Flight Support is the world’s largest fixed base operation (FBO)
and distribution network for business aviation services. Its products and
services include fuelling. hangar and office rentals, ground handiing,
passenger services, maintenance, fuel purchasing and de-icing at strategic
domestic and internaticnal locations. Headguartered in Orlando, Florida,
Signature currently operates in mere than 75 locations throughout the
United States, Europe, South America, Africa and in Asia.

Commercial airline aircraft landing at more than 60 major airporis
worldwide rely on ASIG to carry out the full range of ground services.
Re-fuelling, baggage and cargo handling, systems maintenance, cabin
cleaning, worldwide ramp services and more are handled with
consummate professionalism by highly-trained ASIG people,

] BBA Aviation Annual Repert 2007




Flight Support

Flight Support - Financial Summary

r P e e o e
2007 2006 {Deg)

Sales ’ 579.5 5564

Organic growth 6% 2%

Underlying operating profit 72.2 65.5

Operating profit margin 12.5 11.8

Operating cash flow 65.2 585

Cash conversion ratio 90% 89%%

ROIC _139%  130%

1 Aiconsiant exchange rates

Flight Support operations showed good progress overall with sales and operating profits well ahead
of the prior year on an as reported and consiant currancy basis. Total sales grew 1o £579.5 million, a
1235 increase over 2006 on a constant currency basis with organic growih accounting for half of the
increase. Underlying operating profit increased by 18% 1o £72.2 million (constant currenzy) and
operating margins improved (0 12.586 assisied by the strong de-icing s2ason at the start and end

of the year in ASIG. Increased fuel costs inflated sales by approximazely £10 milion and reduced
operating margins by 0.2%. Strang operating cash flow of £65.2 million was generated and 90%

of operating profit was converied inwo cash. The return on invested capital improved over the year
o 13.9% (13.0%).




Organic sales growth of 6% and increased underlying
operating proefit of 18% on a constant currrency basis.

12.5

Operating margins impraved from 11.8% in 2006.




Signature has one aim: to smooth any
turbulence from business aviation. Passengers,
pilots and planes passing through one of their
FBOs look forward to safe, seamless transitions:
from landing to our terminal, from plane to
limousine, through customs and security.

At major international airports and smaller
transit hubs, Signature people work day and
night with this single aim in mind.




Tight-knit teams

Changes to a flight ptan have an immediate effect on ground schedules.
Faced with rapidly shifting priorities, Signature workers at Boston's Logan
International Airport understand that there is no substitute for constant,
cfear communication,

Essential services
Re-fuelling is a skilled and carefully planned procedure. There is an acute
awareness among Signature’s people that the care and attention they
investin their smaflest action pays dividends for our customers and can
o be ¢critically important.
U
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Signature

Signature - Sales

oo . . ‘ - - — -
- 2007 2006
) . ] £m im
us4 316.3 2911
Europe & ROW 78.4 699

Touzl R ) o 3945 3610

I Atconsiant exchangs rates

Despite historically high crude oil cosis and a commensurate rise in average retail jet fuet prices
1o more than $6.00 per gallon in some areas, BEGA flight activity remained strang and Signaiure
locations both in the USA and Europe performed very well in 2007,

The revenue increased by 179 to £394.7 million at constant exchange rates. Qrganic growth
was 9% with the balance being accounted for by higher fuel prices 335 and acquis tions 53b. We
contirusd to see good growth of 1194 from fractional operators and they now account for 2595
of 1o12' revenue. Our non-fractional revenue grew organ:cally by 8% during the year.

Cur businesses cutside North Americe, which now account for some 2054 of totat revenue,
haa a particularly strong year growing their revenues by 12%.

Signature continued to add new price volume incentive programmes which were successful
in adding new customers and increasing volume at all levels within its existing customer base.

Such programmes have been highly effective in employing the depih and legistical quality of
Signature’s network 1o create differentiating competitive price advantages.

New facilisies were completed in Tetarboro, New Jarsay, which added over 60,000 square feet
of hangar and related office space. Major expansion and renovations were also compleied at the
Signzture FBO terminat at Paris Le Bourget, creating the largest FBO complex on the airpori.

Work began on a new hangar and terminat renovation at San Francisco International Airport
(total investment $15 mitlion) follawing the award 1o Signature of a 10 year lease extension by the
airport authorities, In addition 1o significantly expanding capacity at one of the world’s busies:
alrporis, the new facilities and on-going business operations will alse be designed w meet LEED
{Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) certification, includng the intraduction of all new,
environmentally friendly ramp and ground support equipment that use alternative energy sources.

Signature continued to place emphasis on Health, Safety and Environmental improvements,
introducing new safety training programrnes and additional resources to facilitate on-going safety
audit and compliance,

Signature has followed a strategy of acquiring FBOs positioned in rajor business centres,
rasort destinations and more recently, key reliever airports, During 2007 Signature added 10 new
FBO locations o its global network of which 8 were acquired in the USA, 1 acquired in Greece and
anew operation was staried up at Liege in Belgium. These new locations will generate incremental
revenue of approximately £53 million per annum in the first fuli year of operation. In 2007 they
contributed sales of approximately £18 million.

B3A Aviation announced on 22 February 2008 that it had agreed to acquire the assets of Hawker
Beecherait Services Inc's Line Service Operations for a cash consideration of $128.5 millionona
debt and cash free basis, The acguisition consists of 7 geographically diverse FBOs in strategically
important grawth markets in the USA. Each location is an impartant corporate aircraft destination
and the assets represent a good rix of major business aviation, commercial and key reliever airports.
In 2007 Hawker Beecheraft's Line Service Operations had sales of $73 million, EBITDA margins of 129
and agross assets of approximately 516 million. It is expected that the acquisition will be immediately
earnings enhancing and returns should be in excess of BBA Aviation’s cost of capital by 2010. The
bases are highly camplementary to Signature in terms of location, service repustation and quality
of facifities. The acquisition will significantly strengthen Signature's network and provide an
opportunity for real value creation through benefits associated with network fuel volume, price,
cast and real estate, which are expected to be fully realised by 2010 with limitad investment,

Including the Hawker Beechcraft FBOs BBA Aviation now has a total of B4 wholly owned locations
worldwide, of which 61 are located in the USA. These cover 47 of the top 50 US Metrcpolitan Areas,

18 of top 30 US hub airporis, as well as 27 of the top 50 fractional operations airports. In addition
Signaiure has 2 minority interest in 14 cther FBO locations in Brazil and Hong Kong.

Outlook
The surge in business jet deliveries continues 1o create a growing demand for airside infrastructure
support - ramp, hangar and maintenance space - which Signature’s unrivaled quality of network
locations and portfolic of long-term lease agreements leave it ideally positioned to supportin 2008
and beyond.

The strong growth of business and general aviation outside of North America should create
continuing opportunities to expand Signature's FBO netwaork in Europe and facilitate new business
development activities in Asia and the Middle East.
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Sharon Morris has worked in aviation for more
than 20 years. “Operations tend to change and
we need to be ready to respond quickly to keep
everything on schedule. Private aircraft aren’t
required to give us much notification, different
sizes of aircraft require different staffing
numbers and the amount of traffic we seeina
day varies a lot. To give every passenger passing
through our FBO the same, effortless, smooth
experience we need to think on our feet, keep
communicating and rely on each other.”
Sharon Morris, Operations Mariager
Signature Flight Support, Boston




Early evening in Boston
Preparing a private jet for take off.

Arriving in Paris s
Airside expertise in Le'Bolrget]

\

R
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Turnaround

Fuel re-stocked, interior ¢leaned and vacuumed, a plane prepares for departure
from Boston. Soon, baggage will be loaded and pilot and crew will board ©
begin their pre-flight preprations. At precisely the right mi ntits passengers
will be ushered carefully across the tarmac and setile into their seats. Landing at
Paris Le Bourget it meets the same level of service. Although the procedures and
paperwork are very different, its crew and passengers will experience discretion,
care and comfortin equal rieasure. tnvestment in Signature’s infrastructure at

Le Bourget allows their terrminal to process aircraft as large: as 2475 and provide
customers with a comfortable lounge environment.
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Directors’ Report
Business Review: Flight Support

ASIG

JFK's Terminal 1 is one of a handful of majorg]
airport developments that take place arouna
the world at any one time. In 2007 ASIG won
a contract to handle every aspect of ground - j
operations - from re-fuelling, baggage
handling and cleaning to the de-icing of
inbound and outbound jets. :
This contract is a vote of trust from the .
world’s leading carriers in ASIG’s ability to; 5.,
deliver a diverse integrated level of support
in a complex environment. By investing ,,/
consistently and carefully in technology,
people and their training, we ensure that
ASIG retains that trust. :




“We're the only truly international chain of

FBOs, and we're expanding fast. The goal is to
sustain the same consistently high standards of
service and staff experience as we grow. Careful
emphasis on training, facilities, uniforms and -
the fabric of the buildings brings new operations
into line with the rest of our sites. It’s a challenge
but we're getting it right.”




ASIG

ASIG - Sales

| ) C ’ - e/

) 2007 2006 (Dect 2006
e ) ) . . £m im % . im
USA 156.4 1674 (7) 1540
Europe & ROW 284 280 1 280

Total R B 1848 1954 (5 1820

I Atconstan: exchange rates

Total revenue at ASIG increased slightly by 295 at constant exchange rates to £184.8 million. Much
improved de-icing seasons at the start and end of 2007 added £5.0 mi'lion of revenue compared
to the prior year and net new business amounied to £3.0 miltion but this was largely offset by
continued withdrawal from unecanornic locations. Overall there was a significant improvement
in profitability and margins compared 10 the pravious year.

The commercial flight support marke: continued its steady recavery in 2007, Airlines
overcame the effect of historically high fuel prices with an emphasis on improved systems and
supply chain efficiency which created new outsourcing opportunities for ASIG in higher skill/higher
margin aciivities. ASIG was also successful in winning rate increases on a number of major contract
renewals as prices continued o fium in the wake of strong demand and ASIG's ability o leverage
its increasingly diiferentiated level of service and guality. Despite the improvement in overall
market conditions and operating efficiency, the commercial airline services market remains
highly price sensitive.

ASIG continues to seek opportunities 1o expand its businass by leveraging its network scale
and growing experiise as an inlegraied systems and servicas provider to the airlines, both airside
and landside.

ASIG was awarded a seven year, $150.0 millian coniract by Terminal One Group Assaciation
(TOGA), comprised of four of the world's leading airlines - Air France, Japan Alrlines, Korean Air and
Lufthansa - 1o provide full ground handling services to all 16 airlines aperating at New York’s JFK
International Alrport’s Terminal One, ASIG will handle aver 10,000 flights and 4 miflien passengers
annually at Terminal One with services starting on 1 February 2008, To suppart ihes contract ASIG
willinvest $16.0 million in ground support and other equipment.

ASIG introduced a series of new Health, Safety and Environmental programmes and training
initiatives in 2007 which contributed to a 4% year on year improvement in RIR.

ASIG was named the “Best Airport Fuel Operator” for an unprecedenied third consecutive
year in an annual survey of the world's major airlines conducted by Armbrust, a leading industry
trade organization.

Outlook

Aitline consolidation in North Ame-ica looks mare likely than ever. ASIG is monitaring this situation
closely and will seek 1o leverage its network and existing refationships to maximize any opporiunities
that may arise.




Sales Product Mix

GSE/Tech Services

18%
Cargo Services
4%

Fuel Services

48%

Ground Handling

30%




Thorough airside training
When the first planes taxied to the terminal on 1 February 2008,

they were met by expert ground crew, technically adept re-fuellers
and efficient baggage handlers.

“Training needs to be first hand, especialily

for those new to the aviation business. You have
to take people airside and expose them to the
complexities of the working environment.”




“Thanks to the quality of our people and
training, we have a safety record that our
customers rely on. It’s as simple as that.”

“When we were preparing for the Terminal 1)’
opening we focused our training to ensure
even the seasoned aviation workers we took
on did things the correct ASIG way.”




Winning a contract on the scale of Terminal 1 set off a sequence of
events: intensive focal recruitment, opening an ASIG “school” in a disused
passengerlounge and getting the new employees 100% up to speed with
values, culture and health and safety practices.

Handing the respensibility for health and safety training to a man of Dennis
Duncan’s experience and calibre is vital if ASIG is 10 maintain and enhance its
reputation among the world's airport authorities and airlines. Increasingly, airports
would rather see ASIG's trucks and personnel on their tarmac than any other
service provider. Luis Anchondo is a similatly reassuring figure; “25 years ago
I started out working on the ramps in Minneapolis. | worked my way up to manage
a department. Ten years later, | got into training and | still have the passion for
showing people the right way te do things. Aviation may be global but it's a
very close-knit family. Most of the managers are deeply rooted in the business.”

A 526 million investment in a brand new fleet of service trucks was
essential to ASIG meeting the demands of the Terminal 1 contract.
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Business Review: Aftermarket Services and Systems

Aftermarket Services and Systems

The Aftermarkets sector is made up of
companies that maintain and manufacture
aircraft hardware. Our businesses in this
sector are thriving thanks to their people:
highly specialised, totally committed
individuals, many of whom have a

life-long fascination for aviation.

Aftermarket Services and Systems are split intc three areas: Engine Repair
and Cverhaul (ERO), Legacy Support {formerly Component Repair and
Overhaul) and APPH, our landing gear companies.

H+5 Aviation and 1GS belong within Engine Repair and Overhaul
and Legacy Support respectively,

H+5 Aviation

H+5 Aviation is an engine overhaul business. It's made up of seven
autencmous business units, each focusing on a specific product range.
it also incorporates a separate component repair facility, More than 350
employees work in 220,000 sq ft of modern workshops within two sites
in Portsmouth, UK. The site processed 500 engines in 2007.

1GS

Based in Denver, Colorado, IGS is a world-class overhaul and repair facility
for engine control components, The facility covers more than 17,000
sqft and houses more than 30 employees. We acquired the business

in July 2005,

APPH

The APPH Group operates & worldwide landing gear and hydraulics

systerns business from the UK and US. Its specialist service covers everything
from design and development to manufacture, assembly and testing of
landing equipment for all types of aircraft. Its site in Runcorn, UK is currently
designing and building nose and main landing gear systems for the new
Eurccopter EC175 helicopter and for the MK3 Saab Grippen Fighter.

20 BBA Aviation Annual Report 2007




Aftermarket Services and Systems

Aftermarket Services and Systems - Financial Summary

2007
\ £m
Seles ’ 399.9
Organic growth 10%
Underlying operating profit 43.2
Operating profit margin 10.8
Operating cash flow 34.8
Cash conversion ratio 81%
ROIC 8.9%

| Atconsiant exchange raies

Sales in our Aftermarket Services and Systems businesses grew by 735 on a constant currency basis,
Organic growth was 1096 after taking inio account the sale of the businesses at Oxford sirporiin the
micdle of the year.

Qperating profits reduced 10 £43.2 million (2006: £44.6 miilion) an an as reporied basis but
increased by almost 4% at constant exchange rates. Whilst margins in our ERD business continued
0 improve there was a slight reduction overall 1o 10.8% (2006: 11.3%5) due to the previously anticipated
fallin profirability in our parts distribution businesses (see Legaty SUppOIt section).

The division generatad operating cash flow of £34.8 million (2006: £42.6 million) with a significant
improvernent during the second half of the year as anticipated at the time of the interim results.

Qur return on invested capital over the year (including goodwiil previously written off to reserves
and excluding the impact of the Oxford businesses disposed duning the year) Improved 10 9.5%
{20006: §.69%).




Qrganic revenue growth of




Directors’ Report
Business Review: Aftermarket Services and Systems — Engine Repair and Overhaul

H+S Aviation

';,..";-..1- -

Overhaul is a forensic process demanding a .
surgeon’s eye for detail, so the prevailing culture A
at H+S is one of its most valuable assets. It'sa family ~- "~
business that'’s only had three Managing Directors

since 1947 and one where there’s an intense pride

in the nature and quality of the work. H+S act

as consultants as well engineers; advising their

clients on engine performance and reducing costs.




“Engine overhaul is defined by a law of physics.
Due to their nature, engine materials will
ultimately wear out and fail, so our business
has a natural driver.”




Engine Repair and Qverhaul

Engine repair and overhaul (ERC) - Sales
S oo o o T oy T 2
i : 2007 2006 Cec) 2008 {Decy
e . S £m = Em %‘.., qi..l. :%_
USA 223.6 2122 5 195.2 15
Europe & ROW 48,9 48.2 ] 482 1
ToLaL _ 2725 2504 5 2434 12
1 Arconsiant excharge ratas

Engine Repair anc! Ovarhaut (ERO) had another good year in 2007 against a backdtop of strong
market conditions. Sales increased by 5% on a reported basis 10 £272.5 million {2006: £260.4 millicn)
and by 12% on a constant currency basis with all of the growth being organic.

Business and Genaeral Aviation aircraft use provides over 759% of ERO's revenue and all major
programmes experienced solid growth. Revenus increased almost two-fold on our newest
authorisation in the PW300/500 as demand continued for field service and hot section inspection
waork. The PT6/T15D business delivered good growih during the year despiie challenges due to
changing market dynamics. Rolls-Royce Tay and Spey are a key component of our BRGA sector
and experienced significant growth driven partially by our introduction into the Tay 611-8C and
Rolls-Royce CorporateCare® programmes, The TFE731 is our single largest source of revenue and
grew well,

Cuwil rotor-wing operations present a large opportunity for ERO across the world with growth
rate projections anticipated to outpace all other market sectors over the next ten years. In 2007,
our Rolls-Royce 250 helicopter engine programme saw strong growih in revanue over 2006, We
have added additional resources and repair services 1o this business that will benefit 2008 and
beyond. We signed long-term agreements with several large fleet and medical service operators
and will continue to focus on strategic growth opporiunities. We are well positioned to assume
new rotorcrait engine authorisations that will round out our service offerings within the transport
and utility heficopter markets.

ERO continues to make improvernents in its operations and supply chain structure to facilitate
profitable organic growth. At the end of 2007, a strategic decision was made to incorporate the
activities of the two BBA Aviation parts distribution companies - International Turbine Services (iTS)
and the Barrett Turbine Engine Company (BTEC) — under ERQ Ieadership going forward.

Outlook

Mainiaining strong relationships with both engine and airframe Original Equipment Manufacturers
(OEMs) remains a central element of ERO strategy. Growing acceptance by operators of OEM
sponsored pay-by-the-hour programmes makes close ties with QEMs important in order for ERO
to have access to these sources of revenue.

Competitively, ERO continues to enjay strong and growing market share positions across its full
range of product line offerings. Whilst some competition continues from OFM aftermarket support
services, the trend has been for OEMs 1o diminish their internal capacity for {egacy engine suppart
favouring greater roles for the independent providers. Consolidation among the independent engine
praviders continues leaving a small number of large multi-programme glebal competitors including
BBA Aviation.




Pratt &Whitney

41%

QOther

3%
6%

Rolls-Royce

23%

Honeywell

27%

Sales by OEM
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H+5 specialises in the total overhaul of APUs, the auxiliary engines that
power an aircraft’s systems.

Because of the unusuat and entirely unpredictable stresses that components
undergo between overhauls, aircraft aftermarket services remain the realm of
highly skilled mechanics. Computers have made fewer inroads here than they
have into most other engineering environments. Mechanical dexterity is a
pre-requisite for working on even the most modern engines.

Every APU or turbine engine that arrives at the Portsmouth facility passes
through a "gate” system, Wear is carefully assessed, tolerances tested, parts
recalibrated and performance rigorously monitored.

Reassembled engines are subjected to a “flight” test. H+5 technicians
monitor performance using software designed to mimic an aircraft's systems.




General Manager at IGS in Denver, Randy
Onysko took on a successful business with
evolved processes and a well balanced
workforce. He's clear on what marks out
the firm: “It’s the passion of the people
here, the trust we've built up with clients
and our flexibility. Aviation never stands
still, a successful business listens closely to
its clients, communicates constantly with
them and responds efficiently to their needs.

M




Legacy Support
(formerly Component Repair and Overhaul)

Sales
I o e

2007 2006 ®ec) 2006
. e . - L L %o im
USA_ ) e o ‘513‘.6 {rS,? N (5) 42.707 ]

1 Atconsiant exchange rates

Total revenue was £43.6 million, 3 4% increase over 2006 at constant exchange rates with all of
the growth relating 1o the impact of full year sales from Ontic which was acquired in early 2006.

Overall market conditions for the component companies conzinue to ba very robust with
strong inputs and orders for both Ontic and IGS. Commercial backlog and waorkload at the OEMs
and customers served by these businesses remains extremety high and the continued use of a
large number of military aircraft around the world results in 2 sieady demand for parts and
support of those legacy aircraft.

We continue 10 see no major cornpetition for Ontic’s core licensing model 1o support the OEMs
beyond the OEMs reluctance to let go of legacy products and focus their resources on thedr current
and new products. Ontic's broad product portfclio and decades of experience supperting these
types of products is unsurpassed in the aviation marketplace.

IG5 excels relative to their competition through best-in-class customer service and product
turn around time that its cusiomer base has grown to depend on to meet their service needs.

In the second half of 2007 Ontic signed licences for new products which will generate sales of
over £6.0 million per year over the next five years for a variety of products including Milizary Landing
Gear and Fuel Controls and Gas Compressors/Generators. Order intake for existing licensed products
was over £22.0 million which resulted in the largest order backlog in the company's history at the
end of 2007. The pipeline of new licence opportunities continues to be very robust locking forward
into 2008.

Market conditions for the parts distribution companies (ITS and Barrett), which focus primanly
on Business and Ganeral Aviation aircraft, were not as rabust in 2007 as prior years. OEM driven
engine exchange and upgrade programmes have supplemented the need far serviceable engines
and compenents and have had a negative effect on the economics of these sarviceable product
offerings. Actions are in place to address the changing market dynamics and reverse the negative
trend in 2008 which include an overall reduction in workforce whilst increasing the resources in sales
and marketing. Given the ongoing market conditions for these businesses and BBA Aviation's strong
B&GA engine market presence through our ERC companies, we will be aligning ITS and Barrett with
ERO 10 better exploit the inherent synergy between those businesses while still providing the same
products, service and value to customers that we serve.

Qutlook
The legacy support market presents a major opporiunity for B3A Aviation which our businesses are
ideally positioned to exploit.




IGS are the only vendors we now use. We had
turn-time and communication problems with
everyone else, IGS respond immediately to
our problems.
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The overhaul of engine control components is a delicate and precisely
managed process.
The working environment is kept immaculately: each component, part, screw,
bett, pin and wire is logged, tracked, checked and tested. Everyone involved
at IGS develops a keen eye for detail,

IGS engineers develop a detaited understanding of the components
they work on. The expertise they accrue becomes a valuable asset for the
business and its clients.




Herman Chacon has been with IGS since 2000.
He supervises the workshop, orders parts and
conducts final audits and inspections. He’s
also involved in training and selecting recruits.
“Training is lengthy and demanding. Selected
recruits start on safety wire and cleaning.

We then give them three months’ exposure

to tear-down and cleaning before they move
to inspection. They inspect continually for
two to three months, then repeat the process
with assembly.”

Herman Chacan, Shep Supervisor,

1G5, Denver

L




Keeping the right people in place,
One of the priorities since acquiring IGS has been to sustain the cultuse that made
it so successfi, retain the balance that's in place and continue to recruit the best
and brightest from tocal schools and colleges. Punctuality, a high leved of manual
dexterity, 8 mechanical inclination and a good dose of common sense are the
prized attributes among potential recruits.

Those that meet these criteria find a working environment in which they
can grow personally and professionally. This is one way in which we are ensuring
a successful future for 1GS.
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Business Review: Aftermarket Services and Syste

APPH Runcorn

nis - APPH Group

APPH manufacture landing gear'ggstems for the
world leading airframe manufactUifigs: Boeing,
Airbus, British Aerospace, Aqgusta Westland,
Saab, Hawker Beech and Cessna. Their Runcorn
facility provides a fully integrated service from
conceptual design and performance testing
to manufacture and logistics support. Dennis
Charlton’s design role at APPH is the culmination
of more than 20 years working in aviation. The

* time he spent at APPH'’s repair shop, examining
landing gear after its first 3,000 flights has given
him an understanding of the extraordinary stresses
landing gear are subject to.




APPH Group

APPH Group - Landing Gear and Hydraulics - Sales

2007 2006

£m £m

USA M6 13
Europe & ROW 48.2 448
Total 6%.8 56.1

Sales at £62 8 milian were 129% higher than the prior year, with all of the growih baing organic.

The markets that we service remainad strong during 2007, with Orig.nal Equipment for Business
and Miitary applicaiions beng particularly buoyant. These sactors were supporied with increased
demand for bath replacement parts across all seciors, and repair & overhaul services in our
Commercial Aviation segior.

Continuing miliiary activity will resuit in ongoing high demand for Miltary equipmeant, for
boh fixed and rotor wing applications, where APPH has a relatively stiong pasion. 2008 should
see increasing demand in the Business Aviation secior for both conventional ang Very Light fet
apptications, an area where we are regicnally positionad 10 take advantage of thes trand.

Several new coni;acts were won on Sysiem Hydraulics and associated equipment with
Eurccopter on the £CI75-215 (£50.0 midlion), Hindustan Aeronautics on the Advanced Jet Trainer
{AJT) {£2.6 miliion), and Cessna on various aircraft iypes including the CJ4 Throttle Quadrant
{£2.0 million}. Our MRO facility was awarded a contract in support of the Repa.r & Overhaul
of the Landing Gear System for the 8717 worldwide flzet which should generaie sales of circa.
£1.0 million per annum,

On our establishad programmes, L3 Communications announced the selection of the C27)
aircraft for the Joint Cargo Awrcraft programme, in support of the US Army and Airforce, who require
2 minimum of 78 aircraft. APPH, togeiher with its lralian partner, supplias the Landing Gear Sysiem
for this platform (order value £30.0 million)

On 2 February 2007 we acquired Commercial Aircraft Products, based in Wichita and
specialising in the design and manufacture of hydraulic system components, eleciro mechanical
positioning systems and access mechanisms used on a wide range of Bus.ness Aviation and
Light Jet Programmes. CAP's proprietary producis are approved and used by Cessna, Hawker Beech,
Bombardier and Adams, on both mature and embryonic platforms.

Outlook
The markets in which we operate are currently strong and with the Increase in our order book during
2007, APPH s well positioned for continued growth.




Oxford Training and Airport

Oxford - Sales
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Oxford Aviation Training and Oxford Airpor: were sold durning the y=ar for £71.1 miion and the
manies recerved invesied in our core businesses. A small engineering business *CSE Aviation”™ which

was based a1 the airport was closed in early 2008.
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to locate and retrieve parts, The workshop is divided into cells - areas

dedicated to individual products.
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“After a landing gear system has been
rigorously qualification tested our design
department provide the drawings and
production conformance test schedules,
the production engineering department
then plan the manufacturing process.
Tools and fixtures are designed and
incorporated into assembly operation
sheets, which clearly define the build
methodology. All this takes place prior
to launching new jobs to the shop

floor for assembly.”
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Contral boards at APPH reflect the complexity of the work at Runcorn,

For Ken Livingston, this colour-coded display is invaluable. I allows him io assess
the status of every cell at the site with little more than a glance. "The purpose of
this board is 10 highlight issues. Red signifies a problem. Green tefls me everything
is acceptable. | ¢can see what's being done to remedy a problem and ascertain
staffing tevels in a moment.”

APPH's highly specialised staff incorporates a remarkable set of skills, so
designs conceived at the Runcorn site can see their way to completion there.
From the manufacture and fine-tuning of components, ic the stress testing of
hydraulic equipment and the paint spraying of finished gear, expertise in every
aspect of landing gear design and build is in evidence.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Realising our Corporate Social Responsibility
vision depends on many facets of each of our
businesses. People, processes, buildings and
the relationships group companies forge
with the wider community all play a role.

The stories on the facing page are only a
snapshot but they do represent the efforts
the group is making to achieve that vision.




Corporate Social Responsibility

Our Corporate Social Responsibility Vision
BBA Aviation's vision is to create long-tarm sustainable stakeholder value. We aim to impact
positively on society and the environment through the operation of our companies and the conduct
of our personnel. This responsibility includes epan and frequent communications with stakeholders,
amployees and customers, as well as with the communities wheare our companies operate, on
matters of health, safety and environmental protection and preservation, and fair and equitable
competition and employment practices. It is the individual responsibility of &if BBA Aviation
managers 1o ensure that these critical corporate values are reflected in daily business operations.
Supparting this Visicn are six key values tha: underpin the way we ¢o businass:

L~ e
~ IntegD ResponsiD
Pe@ - BBA Aviatic;riuﬂ D
Integrity ‘ -~

We earn the trust and respeci of our stakeholders with honesty, farness, openness and by
honouring our commitments.

Responsibility
Managing our impact on, and contributing positively (o, society and the environment.

Safety
We are dedicated io safety and security, the elimination of hazards and protecting people,
property and our environment.

Service
We strive continually 1o anticipate customer needs, exceeding their expectations,

People
We embrace diversity and equality, investing in and empowaering our people through training,
education and experience.

Performance
We focus on delivery of fong-term and sustainabie value, continuous imarovement and reliability.




Governance of Corporate Social Responsibility at BBA Aviation plc

Board of Directors
" {including Mark Harper* a non-executive diracior and
© BBA Aviation's CSR Responsible Director)

:

Executive Committee
! {including Group HR Director* )

" Group ChiefExecutive

CSR Steering Committee
(including representatives from each of the
aperating businesses)

. Business Executives

- Functional Executives

* Signihcant CSR leadership rofes within BBA Aviation plc.
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In an industry whose enviranmental credentials are under close scrutiny,
Signature's terminal building at Boston’s Logan International Airport
sets new standards for sustainable airport architecture.

Craig Hanson of architects Schenkel Shultz: “Signature's new Boston
terminal makes full use of sustainable materials and low voltage lighting.
Natural light floods the building, reduces the need for electric lights
and improves the working envirenment. The design also works hard
to promote the use of bicycles and public transport; there are showers,
bike racks and parking spaces set aside for pooled cars.”

Father and son Colin and Chad Bichard (above) work together at
H+S and are testament to the loyalty the firm inspires. Colin joined
the business away from the shop floor in a semi-skilled role.

We know that successful working cultures have a positive impact on the
bettern line, so in considering new acquisitions and more established members
of our group of companies, we think very carefully before making any decision
that could affect a well-balanced culture. Chris Head, Managing Director of H+5
{right) has been with the Portsmouth business for 23 years. “its values are very
important to me. There is a real family feeling about the business. Nick, whose
grandfather started the business, still werks here. We have hac people join us
when they were young and leave us when they were old. Fathers are bringing
their sons into be apprentices. It brings strength and trust 1o our business.”
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Satisfying the highest ethical standards, complying with the
law, and exercising appropriate sensitivity to the needs of
our employees, the communities in which we work, and the
environment must be integrated with our business goals in a
complementary manner. This balance cannot be achieved
unless all of our employees are engaged in this effort,
Responsibility to the Board for relationships with all our
stakeholders lies with the Group Chief Executive.

Shareholders

We are fully committed to increasing the value of the business to our
shareholders and therefore to communicating with our shareholders to
reassure thern of our focus on enhancing the value of the business. In
addition to publishing our Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) reports
on our website and requesting feedback, we regularly discuss CSR issues
with them. These discussions and the feedback we have received via
other channels offer valuable insights into those areas that we can expand
upon irtour future reports to meet the needs of our shareholders better.

Our people

Itis our obligation as a company to ensure that, regardless of where they
work ar what job they are performing, our employees have a safe, secure
and fulfilling work environment that alfows them to reach their full potential.
In order to be competitive in the marketplace and to ensure that we
are positively impacting the communities in which we do business, we
must first invest in the health and safety of our employees. Pratecting
our employees’ health and safety is therefore our number one priority.
We value the talent that each individual brings o BBA Aviation.
Helping all our employees play to their strengths and impraove their skills,
in both their job functions and their interactions with customers, is a key
area of investment for BBA Aviation. It is our belief that by so doing, we
can continuously improve the calibre of our people, enhance the success
of our business, and positively impact the world around us.
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As BBA Aviation strives to meet the ever increasing
expectations of our stakeholders, we are mindful
of balancing our efforts to meet those expectations
with our commitment to the fundamentals of
Corporate Social Responsibility.

Fair Treatment, Diversity and Business Ethics

Our people form the foundation of each BBA Aviation business. To sustain
a committed, progressive workforce, it is critical that we treat our
employees equitably. A large part of this investment in our employees
involves ensuring that we operate fairly at all times and do not permit
discriminaticn against any employee or applicant for employment on the
basis of race, religion or belief, colour, gender, disability, national origin,
age, military status, veteran status, sexual orientation or marital status. This
includes giving full and fair consideration 10 suitable applications from
disabled persons for employment and making appropriate adjustrments
so that if existing employees become disabled they can continue to be
employed, wherever practicable, in the same job or, if this is not
practicable, making every effort to find suitable alternative employment
and to provide refevant training.

Not just a management philosophy, we believe in instilting this
commitment to faimess in our entire staff, and require that al our employees
abide by the highest standards of ethical conduct, as reflected in the Group's
Corporate Sacial Responsibility and Code of Business Ethics Policy.

Reporting

In October 2007 we issued our sixth annual Corporate Social Responsibility
Report. The report can be found on the Company’s website, We have
continued to gauge the progress of our CSR programme by participation

in the annual Business in the Community Corporate Responsibility Index.
Our index scores from 2002 to 2005 showed continued year to year
improvement. In 2006 the Company did maintain its pasition as a ‘Top 1007
Company in the BitC index, although our score dropped 3.5%. In November
2007 we again completed the Index survey and ook forward to receiving
Business in the Community’s resulis and business rankings in 2008.

BBA Aviation Annual Report 2007
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Health and Safety
Health and Safety risks are assessed through a dedicated team of health
and safety professionals operating at various levels throughout our
organisation. This includes three senior level managers and numerous
site-based managers who employ web-based audit and training tools and
who regularly evaluate site performance. Performance statistics such as
recordable incident data, accident severity, lost work days and workers
compensation ¢laims are compiled on a continuous basis and reported to
the Board, Executive Management Committee and senior line
management. Improvement plans are formulated and performance
targets are set for all our busingss units @n an annuat basis.

In April 2007 we were deéply saddened to report that a fatal accident
occurred at Detroit Metropolitan Airport. We were shocked by this loss of
lifa and have been working with the appropriate authorities to establish
the root cause and to ensure that such an accident does not happen
again. This will be achieved through improved training and
communications, and amendments to processes and systems. OQur
severity index performance has deteriorated in 2007 when compared
with 2006, but at year-end we did record a Company-wide Recordable
Incident Rate of 6.3, which is lower than the industry average of 7.1 and
our RIR performance of 6.6 in 2006. This represents the lowest rate for the
current portfolic of our aviation businesses since we started to compile
statistics some six years ago. We realise that much work still lies ahead.
Our goal is to achieve an industry leadership role in safety practices and
perfarmance. As the safety improvement programmes that are now
embedded in our aviation service businesses continue o mature, we
anticipate further improvement in the months and years to come.

The Environment

Evaluating environmental risks associated with the operation of our
businesses and managing those risks continues to receive senior
management level focus within BBA Aviation. The same audit and
training tools employed to manage health and safety risk are utilised 10
identify issues of environmental cornpliance and risk on a regular basis.
Through annuat self-assessments and site audits, our personnel develop
site improvement plans, which are scrutinised by senior management. tn
addition, we engage external consultants to conduct a semi-annual
‘Erwironmental Index’ of all business sites in order 1o gauge their impacts
on the environment. Finally, through our annual participation in the
Business in the Envisanment Survey, we take stock of our environmental
performance under the scrutiny of external evaluators.

BBA Aviation requires each of our businesses to work towards
reducing our environmental footprint. For a number of years we have
focused on identifying and improving performance in key areas of
environmental impact, which include waste creation, energy and water
consumption. An initiative to improve waste management at APPH
Runcorn through improved segregation and waste compaction led to
a 25% rectuction in 2007 in the total amount of hazardous waste going
to landfill and eliminated over 1,000 road transport miles (0.25 t/COq).

In addition ta focusing our attention on these three key impacts,
we continue to encourage our businesses te become certificated to 150
14001: Environmental Management Systems, APPH Runcorn achieved
certification in September 2007. APPH Basingstoke and Bolton are also
working towards certification and the remaining APPH businesses have
set themnselves a 2010 deadline for achieving 150 14001 certification.

Under the guidance of the CSR Steering Committee whose membership
is committed to driving operational C5R leadership within the operating
businesses, we are developing a strategy for carbon management. This
plan to measure accurately greenhouse gas emissions will form an integral
part of our long-term sustainability prograrme. Significant Anancial
investment has already been made by several of our businesses to reduce
the amount of harmful solvents consumed in their process, Emissions of
solvent vapour to the atmasphere have been reduced significantly at the
APPH UK sites through substituting the chemical and through investment
in and use of the latest technology. Of equal importance our airport
operations are also looking for opportunities for improvement: the latest
generation of fued hydrant trucks coming online at ASIG at London
Gatwick are compliant with the Euro 5 emissions standard, reducing the
amount of particulate emissions considered harmful 1o human health,
Supporting our local communities and improving our surrounding
environment remains a priority for BBA Aviation companies. We continue
to demonstrate our commitrnent to the environment through many
activities and initiatives. In keeping with Signature’s commitment to
environmental responsibility and consistent for a greener airport, Boston's
Logan International Airpart (BOS) is expected to be Leadership in Energy
and Environmental Design (LEED) certified in early 2008 as the first ever
green general aviation facility. LEED is a rating system developed by
the US Green Building Council. Projects that achieve LEED certification .
incorporate sustainable, green architectural design; make use of
environmentally friendly building products and energy efficient
electrical and mechanical systems; and utilise environmentally sensitive
construction practices to provide for high building performance and
to minifnise environmental impact.

Suppliers
Centralised procurenent is one method that BBA Aviation uses to promote
our C5R principles through the supply chain, We encourage each of our
businesses to centralise their procurement processes when feasible, and
source materials and services locally when ceniralised procurement is
impractical.

We continue to work actively with suppliers and customers to design
and develop products that do notimpact adversely on the environment,
health or safety of our broader communiiies.

Local Communities and Charities

Supporting the local communities in which we work and improving our
surrounding environment is of paramount importance to BBA companies
around the world. We recognise that we form part of the broader globat
community. It is our responsibility, as a good neighbour, 1o contribute to
those locations where we are resident. In addition to providing support 1o
our surrounding communities through our practices of local employment,
local training and, where appropriate, the purchase of local goods and
services, we are proud to play an active role in a variety of local activities
and charities. We continue to demonstrate our commitrnent to our
communities through many activities and initiatives. In 2007 Hugh McEhroy,
President and CEQ of Dallas Airmative, received the Humanitarian Award
from the Dallas Texas Area Chapter American Red Cross and Dallas
Airmotive was recognised for its employee and corporate donations to
Hurricane Katrina relief efforts, its ongoing support of the ‘Ready When the
Time Comes’ programme and for creating an environment of volunteerism.

A Board Priority
We remain committed to CSR and itis a priority for the Board 1o make further
progress during 2008. We will report on our progress during the year.



Directors’ Report
Business Review: Financial Matters
Exchange Rates

Asignificant proportion of BBA's earnings are generated in US dollars. The
movements in this exchange rate since 2005 are shown in the table below:

2005 2006 2007
us Dollars - Average 182 1.84 2.00
~Spot 172 196 1.99

The spot dollar rate, which is used to translate the dollar assets and liabilities at 31
December 2007, was relatively unchanged but the dollar was weak against sterling
for the whole of 2007 with the result that the average rate which is used to translate
our earnings was significantly higher at $2.00 compared to $1.84 in the prior year.
This had the result of reducing the translated value of pre-tax earnings in the
current year by some £6.0 million compared to 2006.

Share Based Payments

The impact of share based payments for continuing operations during the year
was to reduce profits by £0:9 million compared to a credit of £1.6 million in 2006.
The creditin the prior year was caused by a reduction in the share price impacting
the accounting cost of a share award which was cash settled {US share option
holders). The cost in the current year also benefited from a similar adjustment (circa
£1.1 million) as a number of these shares rernain outstanding. Compared to the
prior year the improverment reduced the results of Flight Support by £1.4 million,
Aftermarket Services and Systems by £09 miltion and central overhead by

£0.2 million.,

Unaltocated central overhead was £9.7 miltion (2006: £7.3 million). This increase
results from the inclusion in the prior year of a profit of £1.6 million relating to a
curtaitment gain in the UK pension scheme relating to the demerger of Fiberweb
and the allocation of £3.7 million of central averhead costs to Fiberweb in 2006
which has been mostly, but not entirely, offset by cost reductions.

Restructuring Costs and Amortisation of Acquired Intangibles
Restructuring costs and amortisation of acquired intangibles for continuing
operations were £6.4 million (2006: £8.0 million), Further details of these amounts
can be found in note 2 to the Consolidated Finandial Statements.
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Acquisitions and Disposals

The Group acquired five businesses during the year for a total consideration of
£76.0 million, We acquired Commercial Aircraft Products (CAP) to strengthen the
presence of APPH in the LSA. All of the other businesses related to Signature

in the USA and in total added another nine locations to our network of bases.
These businesses, which are detailed on page 40 of the Direciors’ Report, have
contributed approximately £20.5 million of twrnover in 2007. The fair market
value of the assets acquired was £38.2 million, and the resulting goodwill was
£40.1 million.

These acquisitions were financed by the disposal of our businesses at Oxford
airport which together raised £71.1 million and generated a profit on disposal of
£38.4 milfion,

Aninvestment in Lider in Brazil was written down by £7.6 million. The decision
to write down the investment was taken after a discussion with other shareholders
regazding our future participation in the venture which led to a reconsideration
of the influence we could exert on future strategy and the carrying value of the
investment.

Interest

The netinterest charge was £19.3 million (2006: £24.6 million) with the reduction
maostly relating 10 lower debt levels due to the transfer of £173.1 million of debt to
Fiberweb at the time of its demerger in Novernber 2006. Interest cover was 5.5
times (2006: 4.2 times). Assuming that Fiberweb had been demerged on 1 January
2006 interest costs would have been approximately £170 million in the prior year
with the increase to £19.3 million in the current year mostly relating to higher
average US dollar interest rates. .

Tax and Dividends

The normalised tax rate for continuing aperations was 27.0% (2006: 29.9%) with
the reduction in the rate reflecting the implementation of a new tax structure
and the release of tax provisions for potential tax exposures in USA and Europe
which were no longer required. The Board is recommending a final dividend of
5.35p bringing the total for the year to 7.6p (2006 8.5p). If Fiberweb had been
demerged at the beginning of 2006 and if BBA Aviation had been aperating as an
independent company from that time it is anticipated that the full year dividend
would have been 7.1p. Against this rebased full year dividend the recommended
2007 dividend represents an increase of 7%.

Pensions

The overall value of our pension scheme assets is unchanged at £478.1 million
(2006: £477.1 million), whilst fiabilities have fallen significantly, due principally to
increased discount rates, to £422.8 million (2006: £498.2 million). The resulting
surplus of £65.6 million in the UK scheme was not recognised as it is not expected
that the surplus wili result in a reduction to the Company's contributions to the
scheme. Excluding the surplus en the UK scheme there was an overall deficit of
£(10.3) miliion (2006: £(21.1) million). Following an actuarial valuation of the UK
schemes in 2004, the Company made a special contribution of £5.0 million during
2005 and 2006 and a further contribution of £3.7 million was made in 2007.

Cash Flow and Debt

Cash flow from operating activities for the Group reduced to £78.7 million (2006:
£118.8 million) and for continuing operations was £102.4 million {(2006: £122.1
million). The reduction for continuing operations resulted from higher tax cash
payrnents and an outflow in working capital caused by a build up in inventory
particulardy in the ERO and APPH businesses. As anticipated there was a working
capital inflow during the second half of £3.9 million and further improvements in
inventory turns are being targeted for 2008. There was a free cash inflow of £18.1
million compared to £3.1 million in 2006.

Net dety was £375.2 mitlion, slightly higher than at the end of 2006 (£3569
million). There was a net cash outflow of £19.3 million in the period which included
cash payments in respect of the demerger of £23.7 million relating to adviser costs
and the settlement of a Section 75 pension obligation.
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Gross capitaf expenditure reduced to £39.8 million (2006: £91.8 million) and
represents .3 times depreciation (2006 1.4 times). Aviation expenditure in 2006

amounted to £470 million and the reduction in expenditure related to Flight Support.

A significant proportion of our debt is held in US dollars as a hedge against
our US dollar assets. The weakening of the US dollar against sterling has had a
significant beneficial impact on the translated value of our dollar debt. A profile
by currency is shown in the table befow:

{Debt)/Cash profile by currency

2007 2006

Em fm

Sterling 355 187
US dollars {616} 4sn
Eurcs (112) (85)
Others (2 (2}
Total {375) {357)

The Group has a syndicated multi-currency loan for £450.0 million that will expire
in20M2, ’

The Group policy with respect to cash deposits is to only have deposits with
pre-approved banks with credit ratings of Al/P1 and with fimits on the amount
depasited with each institution dependent on their credit rating, Deposits are
generally for short-term maturity (less than three months).

Financial Risk Management and Treasury Policies

The main financial risks of the Group relate to funding and liquidity, interest rate
fluctuations and currency exposures, A central Treasury department that reports
directly to the Group Finance Director and operates according to objectives,
policies and authorities approved by the Board, performs the management

of these risks.

The overall policy objective is to use financial instruments to manage financial risks
arising from the underlying business activities and therefore the Group does not
undertake speculative transactions for which there is no underlying financial exposure.
More details are set out in note 18 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Funding and Liquidity

The Group’s operations are financed by a combination of retained profits, equity
and borrowings. Borrowings are generally raised at Group leve! from banks and
then lent to operating subsidiaries on commercial terms. The Group maintains
sufficient available committed borrowing facilities 10 meet any forecasted funding
reguirements.

At the end of 2007, the Group had committed bank facilities of 5900.0 million
of which $777 million was undrawn, In addition, the Graup maintains uncommitted
facilities for daily working capital fluctuation purposes. At the end of 2007, the
undrawn amount of these uncommitted facilities totalled $33.2 million.

Interest Rate Risk Management

The interest rate exposure arising from the Group’s borrowing and deposit activity
is managed by using a combination of fixed and variable rate debt instruments and
interest rate swaps. The Group's policy with respect 1o interest rate is to fix portions
of debst for varying periods based upon our debt maturity profile and an
assessment of interest rate trends. At the end of 2007, approximately 32% of the
Group's total borrowings were fixed at weighted average interest rates of 4.5%

far varying terms up 1o two years.

Currency Risk Management

The Group's poficy is to hedge all significant transactional currency exposures
through the use of forward currency contracts. It is also the Group's policy to hedge
overseas capita! employed, induding recognised goodwill, between 509% and 85%
by means of currency loans and currency swaps.
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Board of Directors
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1. Michael Harper {63) Chairman

He was appointed to the Board in February 2005 as a non-executive Director,
becoming interim CEQ in February 2006. He temporarily assurmed the role

of Executive Chairman with effect from 17 January 2007 and became
non-executive Chairman on 11 June 2007. An engineer by training, he was a
dizector of Wiltiams pl and on the demerger in 2000 became Chief Executive
of Kidde plc. He was appointed Chairman of Whatman plc in Cecember 2007
and is also Chairman of Vitec Group plc and a non-executive director of
Ricardo plc and Catlin Group Limited.

2.5imon Pryce (46) Group Chief Executive

He was appointed to the Board in June 2007. He is a chartered accountant and
was previously with GKN pic for nine years in a variety of roles, most recently
as Chief Executive of GKN's Diversified Businesses Group. Prior @ joining GKN
he held senior positions at JP Morgan and Lazards in London and New York.

3. Andrew Wood (56) Group Finance Director

He was appointed to the Board as Group Finance Director in January 2001.

A chariered management accountant, he was formerly Group Finance Director
of Racal Electronics plc.

4, Bruce Van Allen {52) President Flight Support

He was appointed to the Board in May 2002. He joined Signature in 1993 and has
held various posts since that date, including most recently, CEC of BBA Aviation
North America.

1. Simon Pryce, Group Chief Executive

2. Andrew Wood, Group Finance Director

3. Bruce Van Allen, President Flight Support

4. Gary Fisher, Group HR Director

5. 5arah Shaw, Group Secretary

6. Dave Haslam, Managing Director APPH Group
7.Jim Gerwien, President Legacy Support

8. Hugh McElroy, President Engine Repair & Overhau!
9, lain 5imm, General Counsel

5. Mark Harper {51) Non-executive Director,

Chairman, Remuneration Committee

He was appointed to the Board in December 2006, He is Chief Executive of Filtrona
plc, the international speciality plastic and fibre products supplier which demerged
from Bunzl pic in June 2005, He joined Bunzl in 1986 where he held a number of
general management positions. He is BBA's CSR Responsible Director and became
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee on 27 April 2007,

6. Nick Land {60} Non-executive Director,

Chairman, Audit Committee

He was appointed to the Board in August 2006. He was formerly Chairman of
Emnst & Young LLP and @ member of the Gobal Executive Board of Ermnst & Young,
paositions which he held from 1995 to 2006, He is now a non-executive director
of Royal Dutch Shell plc, Vodafone Group Plc and Ashmore Group plc and a
member of the Advisary Board of Three Delta LLP. He also sits on the Finance and
Audit Committees of the National Gallery and is Chairman of the Practice Advisory
Board of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales and the
Board of Trustees of Farnham Castle. He is a trustee of the Vodafone Group
Foundation. He became Chairman of the Audit Committee on 1 March 2007,

7. John Roques (69) Non-executive Director,

Senior Independent Director,

Chairman, Nomination Committee

He was appointed to the Board in January 1999. He is a non-executive director of
Premier Farnell plc and Henderson Group plc. He was formerly a partner at Deloitte
& Touche, retiring in 1999 as Senior Partner. He became the Senicr Independent
Director and Chairman of the Nomination Cemmittee on 27 April 2007,

8. Hansel Tookes (60} Non-executive Director

He was appointed 1o the Board in February 2007. He is a non-executive director
of Corning, Inc.,, FPL Group, Inc., Harris Corporation and Ryder System, lnc. For
nearly twenty years, he held various positions at United Technologies Group
including as President, Large Military Engines Group, Pratt & Whitney. He retired
in 2002 from Raytheon, Inc, where he had formerly been Chairman and CEO

of Raytheon Aircraft Group.
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Directors’ Report
Additional Disclosures

Group results and dividends

The resulis for the year ended 31 December 2007 are shown in the Consolidated
Income Statement on page 58, The directors recommend the payment of &

final ordinary share dividend for 2007 of 5.35p net per share on 23 May 2008 10
shareholders on the register at the close of business on 25 April 2008, which
together with the interirn dividend paid on 2 November 2007 makes a total

of 7.6p net per ordinary share for the year (2006: 8.5p).

Acquisitions and disposals

1 Acquisitions

i1 On 2 February 2007, the Group purchased the assets of Commercial Aviation
Praducts for an immediate cash consideration of $5.7 million (£2.9 million) and
a deferred contingent cash consideration of up 10 $3.3 miliion (£1.7 million).

1.2 On 19 July 2007, the Group purchased Executive Beechcraft, Inc for an
immediate cash consideration of 575.9 million {(£37.4 million) and a deferred
cash consideration of $2.5 miltion (£1.3 million).

13 On 27 July 2007, the Group acquired Marathon Flight Services for an
immediate cash consideration of $5.4 million (£2.6 million), and a deferred
cash consideration of $0.6 million {£0.3 million).

14 On 31 August 2007, Signature Flight Support Athens S.A. purchased A&T
Aviation Services business for an immediate cash consideration of €0.6 million
(£0.4 million). The business pravides ground handling services in the general
aviation market at Makedania Airport, Greece,

1.5 On 27 September 2007, the Group purchased the assets of Carglina Air Center
of Hilton Head, Inc. for an immediate cash consideration of 316.7 milliors
(£8.2 mitlion).

16 0On9November 2007, the Group announced the acquisition of Regent Aviation
based in 5t. Paul Minnesota for $50.3 million (£24.5 million). Regent Aviation
has operations at St. Paut Downtown Airport and Rochester International
Airport in Rochester Minnescta,

2 Disposals

21 On 6 February 2007, the Group completed the sale of the Signature Flight
Support Corporation facility az Oxnard Municipal Airport, Oxnard, California
to Golden West Air Terminals, Inc. (Note: no cash changed hands on this sale
except for fuel inventory on hand.)

2.2 On 19 June 2007, the Group entered intc a sale agreement to dispose of
Oxford Aviation Training for a consideration of £32.0 million. The disposal
was completed on 29 June 2007, on which date control of Oxford Aviation
Training passed to the acquirer.

2.3 On 19 July 2007, the Group completed the sale of Oxford Aviation Services
Lirnited, trading as Oxford Airport, 1o OA Acquisitions Limited for a debt
free cash free consideration of £39.1 million.

The consideration relating to the various acquisitions and disposals stated above
reflects exchange rates at the date of announcement of the relevant transaction.
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Events after the balance sheet date
Details of post balance sheet events are set out in note 29 to the Zonsolidated
Financial Staterments.

Change in share capital

Changes in share capital ate shown in note 22 to the Consolidate d Financial
Staternents. That note also contains a summary of the rights attaching to each class
of shares and details of the numnber of ordinary shares held in emaloyee benefit
trusts. The Company was given authority 1o purchase up to +4.99% of its existing
ordinary share capital at th= 2007 Annual General Meeting. The a sthority will expire
at the conclusicn of the Arnual General Meeting in April 2008 un'ess renewed.
Accordingly, a special resclution to renew the authority will be praposed at the
forthcoming Annual Genelal Meeting. Details of the rescfution renewing the
authority to purchase ardinary shares are included with the Notic2 of Annual
General Meeting enclosed with this Report.

Substantial shareholdings

The Company has been notified, as at 27 February 2008, under thz provisions of the
Disclosure and Transparenc y Rules that came into force on 20 Jan Jary 2007, of the
fallowing interests in the voting rights of the Company:

%
Aviva plc 797
Standard Life Investments 7.05
Prudential plc 6.53
Schroders plkc 496
Legal & General Group plc 402
Barclays Global Investors 3.22

Research and development

The Group continues to devote considerable effort and rescurces 0 research and
development of new processes and products. Costs are charged against income
as incurred.

Market value of land and buildings

The directors are of the opiréon that the market values of the Group's properties
are not substantially differerit from the values included in the Group’s financia!
statements,

Financial risk management and treasury policies

The financial risk managere 1t and treasury policies of the Group are set out on page
37 andin notes 17 and 18 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Board of directors

The current directors of the Company at the date of this report appear on
pages 38 and 39, They held office throughout the financial year under review
with the exception of Hansel Tookes who was appointed to the Board on

19 February 2007 and Simon Pryce who was appointed 1o the Board on

11 June 2007,

Directors’ interests in shares
Directors’ interests in shares and share options are contained in the Directors’
Remuneration Report.

Directors’ indemnities

On 2 July 2007 the Company entered into a deed of indermnity in favour of Simon
Pryce and on 22 August 2007 the Company entered into a deed of indemnity in
favour of Hansel Tookes under which the Company agreed to indemnify each
director against liabilities incurred by that director in respect of acts or omissions
arising in the course of their office or ctherwise by virtue of their office. The
Company had entered into deeds of indemnity in 2006 in favour of each of its then
directors and on 19 Novernber 2007 these and the deed in favour of Simon Pryce
were amended so that all the deeds of indemnity in favour of the Company's
current directors are in identical terms. In addition the Company has entered into
an indemnity deed pollin substantially similar terms dated 19 March 2007 in favour
of members of the Executive Management Committee and other members of
senior management. Where such deeds are for the benefit of directors they are
qualifying third party indemnity provisions as defined by section 3098 of the
Companies Act 1985 or section 234 of the Companies Act 20086, as applicable.

At the date of this report, these indemnities are therefore in force for the

benefit of all the current directors ¢f the Company and other members of

senior management,

On 1 November 2007 a subsidiary of the Company, BBA Aviation Finance,
entered into qualifying third party indemnity provisions as defined by section 234
of the Companies Act 2006 in favour of its directors under which each director
is indemnified against liabilities incurred by that director in respect of acts or
omissions arising in the course of their office or ctherwise by virtue of their
office and such provisions remain in force as at the date of this report.

Agreements

Under 5992 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company discloses that in the

event of a change of control in the Company (i) its $900m revolving credit facility
dated 7 Septernber 2007 and certain industrial revenue bonds in the amount of
$44.0 million currently guaranteed by the Company could becoma repayable and
(ii} certain authorisations issued to the ERO business to carry out certain works on
the authorising OEM's engines could become terminable by the relevant CEM
(OEMs include Rolls-Royce, Pratt & Whitney Canada and Honeywell). Under 5992
of the Companies Act 2006 the Company also disctoses (in addition to the

clause in Simon Pryce's contract referred 1o in the Direclors’ Rermuneration Report
on page 49 and the potential release of shares awarded to Simon Pryce referred

to in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 50) an amendment to an
employment agreement between a subsidiary company and Greg Murrer entered
into in February 2000 and an amendment to an employment agreement between
a subsidiary company and Sarah Shaw entered into in March 2000, both of which
have provisions such that in certain circumstances relating to a change of control
of the Comparty they coutd receive compensation upon early termination of up
10 two years' remuneration, based on basic salary, bonus, benefits in kind and
pension rights during the notice period.

Employees

There are varicus opportunities to provide employees with infarmation on matters
of concern to them and to improve employees’ awareness of the financial and
economic factors that affect the performance of the Company. These include

“ali hands briefings”, staff forums and meetings with trade unions that take place
throughout the year. Further details about our philosophy in this area are set out
on page 34.

Suppliers payment policy

The Company and Group's policy is ta settle terms of payment with suppliers when
agreeing the terms of each transaction, to ensure that suppliers are made aware of
the terms of payment and to abide by the terms of the payment.

Resolutions at the Annual General Meeting

The Company's Annual General Meeting will be held on 30 April 2008.
Accompanying this report is the Notice of the Annual General Meeting, which
sets out the resolutions to be considered and approved at the meeting. As well as
more routine matiters such as the renewal of authority to allot shares, to disapply
pre-empticn rights and 1o purchase own shares, resolutions are being proposed
to adopt new Articles of Association to update the Company’s current Articles
primarily to take account of changes in English company faw brought about by
the Companies Act 2006. The resolutions are explained in a letter from the
Chairman which accompanies the Notice.

Charitable and political donations

Group donations to charities worldwicde were £95,000 (2006; £223,800) with UK
charities receiving £17500 (2006: £6,000). No donations were made to any political
party in either year,

Auditors

As required by section 2342 A of the Cornpanies Act 1985, each of the directors,

at the date of the approval of this report, confirms that:

(a) sofar as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which
the Company's auditors are unaware; and

(b) the director has taken all the steps that he ought 1o have taken as a director to
make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company's auditors are aware of that information.

Words and phrases used in this confirmation should be interpreted in accordance
with section 234ZA of the Companies Act 1985.

A resolution 1o reappaint Deloitie & Touche LLP as auditors of the Company
will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

Directors’ Report approved by the Board on 27 February 2008 and signed onits
behalf by:

Andrew Wood
Group Finance Director
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1. Compliance
The Board s committed t ensuring high standards of corporate governance are
maintained at BBA Aviation plc.

The Company applies the principles of corporate governance set out in Section 1
of the revised Combined Code issued in June 2006 through its awn behavicur, by
monitoring corporate governance best practice and by adopting appropriate
recommendations of relevant bodies.

The directors can confirm compliance throughaut 2007 with the provisions set
outin Section 1 of the Cembined Code except as follows: the roles of Chairman
and Group Chief Executive were held by the same individual for a period in 2007
{which is explained further in paragraph 3 on this page and paragraph 4 on page
43); there was not a majarity of independent non-executive directors on the
Nomination Committee for two short periods when there were no meetings of the
Committee {which is explained further in paragraph 8b on page 44) and bonuses
and benefits in kind for an executive director (based in the US) are historically
pensianable {(which is explained further in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
on page 56).

The auditors’ report concerning the Company’s compliance with the Combined
Code appears on page 57.

2.The Board's Role

The Board recognises its collective tesponsibility for the success of the Company.

its role includes providing effective leadership and setting the Group's strategic
aims. It assesses business opportunities and seeks to ensure that appropriate
controls are in place to assess and manage risk. it is responsible for reviewing
managemenit’s performance and oversees senior level succession planning within
the Group. The Board is responsible for setting the Company’s values and standards,
ensuring the Company's obligations to its shareholders are met.

There were seven scheduled Board meetings in 2007 which were attended by
all the directors, other than the February meeting which Bob Phillips was not able
10 attend and the April meeting for which David Rough gave his apalogies. These
meetings focus on strategy, financial and business performance, Additional
meetings were called as required to deal with specific matters. The Board agenda
is set by the Chairman in consultation with the Group Chief Executive, the Group
Finance Director and the Group Secretary.

The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved to it for decision including
approval of matters such as:

«  strategy and objectives

Group policies

annual budgets

dividends

acquisivons and disposals of businesses

expenditure over a certain limit

financial results

appointments to the Soard
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The schedule of matters is naviewed by the Board on an annual bas s. Matters outside
the scope of this formal schedule are decided by management in accordance with
delegated authoarities approved by the Board and Audit Commitiee.

The Board's policies and procedures are set out in a Directors’ File which is
provided o all directors on appointment and which is updated routinely.

3.The Board and Independence

At the date of this report, the Board comprises a chairman, four other non-executive
directors and three executive directors who contribute a wide range of
complementary skills and e<perience. A short biography of each current director is
setouton page 39.

Changes during the Year

During the year, Robertc Quarta stepped down from his pesition a; non-executive
Chairman of the Company 2nd on 17 January 2007 Michael Harper was appointed
to the temporary position of Executive Chairman. As reported in lait year's Annual
Report, the Board considered alternative arrangements at the time of Michael
Harper's appointment as Executive Chairman and concluded that the Company's
interests were best served by the appointment, which had the sup sort of its major
shareholders. Michael Harper became non-executive Chairman on the appointment
of Simon Pryce as Group Ch.ef Executive on 11 June 2007. Simon Pr yce will be
seeking election at the forthcoming AGM,

David Rough retired frem the Board at the AGM on 26 April 20)7 and Bob
Phillips retired from the Boaid at the expiry of his term of appointmznt on
5 May 2007. On David Rough's retirement as non-executive directol, John Roques
succeeded him as the Beard's Senior Independent Director and he s available 1o
shareholders if they have concerns which normal channels of contz ct with the
Board would nat resolve or far which such channels would be inap aropriate. John
Roques’ appaintrment as a non-executive director was renewed with effect from
11 January 2008 for a further term until the conclusion of the AGM ta be held in
2009, Mark Harper (who was appointed to the Board on 1 December 2006) took
on the role of Remuneration Committee Chairman on David Rough s retirernent
and is also CSR Responsible Director.

Nick Land {who was appointed to the Board on 1 August 2006 assumed
the chairmanship of the Audit Committee from John Rogues on 1 March 2007

On 19 February 2007 Hz nsel Tookes was appointed to the Board.

The Board has determined that all its non-executive directors ( ncluding John
Roques, who was appointed to the Board in January 1999) are independent in
character and judgernent. The Board believes that Michael Harper vsas ako
independent in character and judgement on appointment as Chainnan (although
he was temporarily Executive Chairman in 2007 and interim CEQ for much of 2006)
and is of the view that he has demonstrated his independence thro ighout his
pericd of office.

At the farthcoming AGM Mark Harper, Nick Land and Andrew Wood retire by
rotation in accordance with the Company's Articles and John Rogues (having served
on the Board for more than nine years) retires in accordance with the provisions of
the Combined Code and each intends 1o seek re-efection at that time. The Board
believes that each of Mark Herper, Nick Land and John Rogues shou d be re-elected
by shareholders as a non-executive director because, as evidenced by Board
perforrmance evaluations, each continues to be effective and demenstrate
commitment to his role. The Board believes that each of them will continue to do so.
The Board fully reviewed the renewal of John Roques’ appointment in the light of
the Board's performance evaluations and additional Board discussio 1 took place.
The Board particularly values the continuity of experience which Jot n Rogues has
provided during a period of substantial change in Board membershia and which
he continues to provide as th= Company moves into its second year as a business
focused on aviation services.
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During the year the Chairman met the other non-executive directors without the
attendance of the executive directors and there was a formal meeting of the Senior
Independent Director and non-executive directors without the Chairman present.
There were several other occasions during the year when discussions between
various directors took place on an informal basis.

Executive directors must obtain the prior consent of the Board before
accepting a non-executive directorship in any other company. Executive directors
may retain the fees from any such directorship. During the peried to 30 June 2007
Michael Harper was paid the following fees from non-executive directarships to
which he had heen appointed prior o his appointment as Group Chief Executive
{and subsequently Executive Chairman) of the Company: Catlin Group Limited
£31,570, Ricardo plc £17,740, Umeco plc £10,000 and Vitec Group plc £47,500.

4. Chairman and Group Chief Executive

On the appointment of Simon Pryce as Group Chief Executive on 11 June 2007
Michael Harper stood down from his temporary role of Executive Chairman and
resumed his position as a non-executive director. During the perlod between

17 January 2007 and 11 June 2007, while Michael Harper was Executive Chairman,
there was no division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Group Chief
Executive. Since 11 june 2007 there has again been a clear divisicn of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Group Chief Executive. This is reinforced by a writien
staternent of the division of responsibilities between the two positions which has
been reviewed and approved by the Board. Michael Harper as Chairman is primarily
responsible for leading the Board and ensuring its effectiveness. He is responsible
for setting the Board agenda and ensuring the directors receive information in an
accurate, clear and timely manner. He is responsible for promoting effective
decision-mazking, ensuring the performance of the Board, its committees and
individual directors are evaluated on an annual basis and that appropriate Board
training and development occurs. Simon Pryce as Group Chief Executive is
responsible for the development and implemenitation of Board strategy and policy,
the running of the Groug’s business, ensuring that the business strategy and
activities are effectively communicated and promoted within and outside the
business and for building positive relationships with the Company’s stakeholders.

5. Board Appointments

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for planned and progressive refreshing of
the Board. It believes that the necessary arrangements to manage succession issues
promptly and effectively are in place, There is a formal and transparent procedure for
the appointrment of new directors to the Board, the prime responsibility for which is
delegated 1o the Nomination Committee. The appoiniment process is initiated by
the Board and a selection procedure established 1o identify suitable external search
consuliants for the vacancy. The process differs in its detail depending on whether
the appointment is for an executive or non-executive pasition, but the essentiak
remain the same. Following the appointment of a suitable external consultant,
details of the role and capabilities required for the appointment are prepared.

The consultant then draws up a list of potential candidates and a shortlist i created
through consultation amongst Nomination Committee members. The Board

as a whole is also regularly updated as to the status of the appointment process.
Meetings as appropriate are arranged with Cornmittee members and the
Committee aims to ensure that each Board member is given the opportunity to
meet the short-listed candidates. The Nomination Committee will then meet 10
finalise a recommendaticn to the Board regarding the appointment. A similar
process was carried out during 2007 for the appointment of Hansel Tookes and
Simon Pryce. This process was alse used for the appointment of Michael Harper

as a non-executive director in 2005, when he was considerad a potential successor
i0 the position of Chairman in due course, and in the circumstances at the time of
his appeintment as Chairman in 2007 the use of external search consultants was
not thought appropriate.

The Board has & written framework for the induction of new directors. This includes
site visits, meetings with senior management and advisers and the provision of
corporate documentation. A personal induction programme is prepared for each
new director tailored 1o the experience and needs of the individual. New direciors
are available to rmeet major shareholders on request.

Appointments of non-executive directors are made by the Board for an initial
term of three years. This term is subject to the usual regulatory provisions and
continued satisfactory performance of duties following the Board's annuat
performance evaluation. Re-appointment for a further term is not automatic but
may be made by mutual agreement. In addition, it is the Company’s practice that
all directars are subject to re-election at least every three years.

The fees of the non-executive directors are determined by the Board as
a whole on the recommendation of the Group Chief Executive. No director s
involved in deciding his own remuneration or fees. Letters of appointment for
the non-executive directors are available for inspection by shareholders at each
AGM and during normal business hours at the Company’s registered office,

6. Information and Professional Development

The Chairman takes responsibility for ensuring the direciors receive accurate,
timely and clear infarrmation with Board and Committee papers being circulated
in advance of the meeting. The Board and its Committees are kept informed of
corporate governance and relevant regulatory developments as they arise and
receive appropriate briefings. For example, in 2007 the Board was updated on
relevant aspects of the new UK Companies Act 2006 whilst the Audit Committee
is routinely briefed on accounting and technical matters by senior management
and the external auditors.

In addition te formal Board meetings, the Chairman maintained regular contact
during the year with other directors to discuss specific issues. Opportunities exist
throughout the year for informal contact between Board members and with members
of the senior managernent team and site visits are arranged for Board members,

The Board believes that, given the experience and skills of its current directors,
the identification of individual development needs is best left to the individuat
director's discretion. If any such needs became evident through the annual
performance evaluation, the director would be encouraged to pursue the necessary
development. The Company will provide the necessary resources for developing
and updating the directors’ knowledge and skills,

All directors have access to the advice and services of the Group Secretary
and the Board has estabiished a procedure whereby directors wishing to do so
in furtherance of their duties may take independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense.

The Company arranges appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal actions
ageinst its directors. The Company has alsc entered into indemnities with its
directors as described on page 41 of this Directors' Report.

7. Performance Evaluation

In the autumn of 2007 the Chairman, in conjunction with the Senior Indepandent
Director, led the performance evaluation and appraisat process for the Board and

its main Cornmittees. The Chairman discussed with each director individually their
replies to a questionnaire they had previcusly completed concerning the Board,

its Commitrees and their operation; any other concerns they had and their own
performance. In addition, the Senior Independent Director, in consultation with the
other non-executive directors and taking into account the views of the executive
directors, reviewed the performance of the Chairman and the performance
evaluation and appraisal process as a whole, Overall the conclusion from the Board
evaluation and appraisal process was positive, with each individual director
contributing actively to the effective performance of the Board and the Committees
of which he is a member. The Board considered the outcomes of the evaluation at
its Novernber meeting and agreed a number of action points, including a more
formally scheduled Board training programme and a more structured timetable of
presentations from each of the businesses within the Groun, and set itself objectives
relating 10 strateqy, succession planning, management development training and
corporate social responsibility to be achieved in the course of 2008,
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8. Board Committees

The Board operates a Rernuneration Committee, a Nomination Committee and
an Audit Committee. Written terms of reference for each Committee are available
on request and are posted on the Company's website,

a. Remuneration Committee

Composition

During 2007 the Remuneration Committee comprised those non-executive
directors set out in the table below. Apart from Hansel Tookes and Michael Harper,
these directors were on the Committee at the time of determining remuneration
for the year ended 31 December 2007 Michael Harper was not a member of the
Committee while he was employed by the Company in an executive capacity, The
members of the Remuneration Committee concluded afier discussion that Michael
Harper had been independent in character and judgement on his appointment as
Chairman and therefore that it was apprepriate for him to become a member of the
Rernuneration Committee after he became a non-executive Chairman.

During Year

01/01/07 Resigned Appointed 07 27/02/08

Mark Harper 4 - v N Ng
as Chairman - - 27/04/07 - -
Michael Harper - - /G707 v v
Nick Land v - - v v
Bob Phillips v 05/05/07 - - -
John Roques v - - ' /
David Rough v 26/04/07 - - -
Hansel Tookes - - 19/02/07 v 4

During 2007 the Remuneration Committee met on seven occasions, These
meetings were atiended by all Committee members save for Bab Phillips in
February. Executive directors and the Group HR Birector may attend these
meetings by invitation,

Role
The Committee has two principal functions: first, making recommendaticns to the
Board on the framework or broad policy for the remuneration of executive directors
and other designated senior executives and second, determining on behalf of
the Board the specific remuneration package for each of the executive directors,
including pension rights and any compensation payments.

The Remuneration Cornmittee is also responsible for discussing and agreeing
a compensation policy for the Group. In conjunction with the Group Chief Executive
and Group HR Director, the Committee is tasked with developing a broad
compensation framework for senior management and for reviewing the
rernuneration for certain senior executives. The specific application of this
policy and framework to each senior executive is the responsibitity of the Group
Chief Executive.

Further details of the work of the Remuneration Cornmittee appear in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report.
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b. Nomination Committee

Composition

The compasition of the Nomination Committee during 2007 is set out in the table
below. The Normination Co mmittee comprised three non-executise directors and
two executive directors for most of the year, apart from two shert periods when the
Committee had a membership of two non-executive directors and two executive
directors, The Committee cid not meet during the periods when shere was not &
majority of independent non-executive diractars on the Commiti 2e.

During Year

01/01/37 Resigned Appointed 3n2/07 17/02/08

Roberto Quarta v 17/01/Q7 - - -
Michael Harper v - - N v/
Simon Pryce - - 110607 v v
Andrew Wood v - - v J
Nick Land - - 17/01/07 v v
John Roques - - 17/01/07 4 v
as Chairman - - 27/04/07 - -
David Rough s 26/04/07 - - -
as Chairman - - 17/01/07 - -

Other directors may attend Nomination Committee meetings by invitation.

The Nominaticn Committee meets as required, During 2007 the Committee

met farmally on three accasions with attendance by all Cormmittee members.

This was supplemented with numerous individual briefings and m 2etings between
Committee members,

Role
The principal role of the Cornmittee is to make recommendations 1o the Board en
the appointment of the Corpany's executive and non-executive cirectors. It is
responsible for identifying and nominating candidates to fill Board vacancies. In
making appointments, the Committee evaluates the balance of skils, knowledge
and experience on the Beard and in the light of this eveluation considers the
capabilities required for the role and, in the case of a non-executive appointment,
the time available to fulfil the role. Use is made of independent seaich consultants
and the final appointment rests with the full Board. More informaticn on the role
of the Nomination Committ 2e is set out in “Board Appointrnents’ above.

Details regarding the Audit Committee are set out in paragraph 9b on page 45.
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9, Audit and Accountability

a. Financial Reporting

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are respensible for preparing the Annual Report, Directors’
Remuneration Repart and the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each
financial year. The directors are required by the IAS Regulation to prepare the Group
financial statements under International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as
adopted by the Eurapean Union, The Group financial statements are alsc required
by law to be properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and
Article 4 of the |AS Regulation.

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that IFRS financial staterments
present fairly for each financial year the Company's financial position, financial
performance and cash flows. This requires the faithful representation of the effects
of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the definitions and
recognition criteria for assets, liabilities, income and expenses set outin the
International Accourting Standards Board's "Framework for the preparation and
nresentation of financial statements”. In virtually all circurnstances, a fair presentation
will be achieved by compliance with all applicabte Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards. However, directors are also reguired to:

- properly select and apply accounting pelicies;

- present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides
relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information; and

- provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements
in [FRSs are Insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular
transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's financial position and
financial performance.

The directors have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements in

accordance with United Kingdom Generaliy Accepted Accounting Practice (United

Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). The parent company financial

staternents are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of

the cornpany. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Cornpany and
enable them ta ensure that the parent company financial statements comply with
the Companies Act 1985, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and cther irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate
and financial information included on the Company's welsite. Legisiation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissernination of financial
staternents may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

A pracedure is in place to enable the directors to provide the confirmation
regarding audit information required under section 23424 of the Companies
Act 1985, This confirmation is set out on page 41 of the Directors’ Report -
Additional Disclosures.

Going Concern

In compliance with corporate governance reguirements, the directors consider
that after a critical review of the Group's 2008 budget and medium-term plans
the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the financial statements have
been prepared on a geing concern basis.

b. Audit Committee

Composition

During 2007 the Audit Committee comprised the independent non-executive
directars as set out in the following table. The Chairman of the Cormmittee uniil
1 March 2007, John Roques, and the replacement in that role with effect from

1 March 2007, Nick Land, each have relevant and recent financial experience and
a professional accountancy gualification as reguired by the Smith Guidance.

In addition the other Committee members all have experience of corporate
financial matters.

During Year

o101/07 Resigred Appeinted 31/32/07 2702/08

Nick Land v - - ' v
as Chairman - - 01/03/07 - -
Mark Harper v - - v v
Bob Phillips < 05/05/07 - - -
John Roques v - - v v
as Chairman - 01/03/07 - - -
David Rough v 26/04/07 - - -

During 2007 the Audit Committee met on four cccasions, generally ceinciding with
key dates in the financial reporting and audit cycle. There was full attendance by alf
the Committee members except that Bob Phillips was unable to attend the February
meeting and David Rough the April meeting. The external auditors and Head of
Group Internal Audit regularly attend these meetings. The Chairman, Group Chief
Executive, Group Finance Director and Group Financial Controller aiso generally join
at least part of Audit Committee meetings by invitation. The Committee Chairman
may call 2 meeting at the request of any director or the Company's external auditors.

Role

The Committee may consider any matter that might have a financialimpact on
the Group. However, its primary role is: first, reviewing the scope and resulis of the
external audit and the internat audit work programme; and second, reviewing the
annual and half yearly reports before they are presented to the Beard. In addition,
the Committee reviews twice yearly reports on the Group’s key business risks.

The Committee assesses compliance with the directors’ responsibility statement.
The Committee also reviews the Group's Disclosure of Unethical Conduct Policy
under which staff may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties
in matters of financial reporting or other matters. The Committee is responsible
for making recommendations to the Beard regarding the remuneration and
appointment of its external auditors. it is the paolicy of the Audit Committee to
review such appointment at least every five years and a review was completed this
year. The Audit Committee discharges its responsibitities through the review of
written reports circuiated in advance of meetings and by discussing these reports
and any other matters with the relevant auditors and management. At least ance
a year the Audit Committee holds a confidential session without management
present with the Head of Group Internal Audit and with the external auditors.
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Auditor Independence and Audit Effectiveness

Central to the Audit Committee’s work is the review and monitering of the external
auditors’ independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process.
The Audit Committee carried out a formal audit service assessment in respect

of work carried out during the year including a review of audit plans and the
qualifications, expertise, resources, effectiveness and independence of the external
auditors. The Audit Committee has also carried out a detailed performance
evatuation and believes that it has satisfied the requirements of the Combined Code
and the Smith Guidance. The Audit Committee has confirmed that during the year
it had formal and transparent arrangemenis for considering financial reporting and
internal control principles and mzintaining an appropriate relationship with the
external auditors.

A key safeguard to ensure auditor objectivity and independence is the
Committee’s policy on the provision of non-audit services by its external auditors.
This poficy is reviewed annualiy. [t prohibits the Graup's external auditors from
carrying out certain additional services far the Group including book-keeping,
internal audit, valuations, actuarial services and financial systems design and
implementation. Services which the external auditors rmay be permitted to carry
out include assurance services such as reporting accountant work and tax
services. The Cornmittee is satisfied that the majority of the tax services supplied
by Dekaitte & Touche LLP are compliance-related and represent a small proportion
of Group tax fees.

As a matter of principle, the Company’s policy is not to use the external auditors
for acquisition and due diligence work. However, where the Group considers it
approprizte or conflicts arise, suppliers other than the preferred supplier may be
asked to tender. Only in exceptional and unusual circumstances will this include the
external auditors.

The Committee Chairman is required 1o pre-approve certain permitted services,
which may exceed set financiz! limits. Non-audit fees paid or due to the external
auditors are regularly reviewed by the Comrittee.

Deloitte & Touche LLP have cenfirmed that all non-audit services they
performed during the year were permitted by APB Ethical Standards and would not
impair theirindependence or objectivity. On the basis of their own review of the
services performed, the requirernent of pre-approval and the auditors’ confirmation,
the Committee is satisfied that the non-audit services currently provided by Deloitte
& Touche LLP do not impair their independence and objectivity.

. Systems of Internal Control
Qverall responsibility for the Group's system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness rests with the directors. Management is accountable to the directors
for monitoring this system and for providing assurance to the directors that it has
done so. The system of internal control is essentially an ongoing process embedded
in the Group's businesses for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant
risks faced by the Group, including social, environmental and ethical risks. The Group
considers that it has adequate information to identify and assess significant risks and
opportunities affecting its long and short-term value.

This pracess has been in place for the year ended 31 December 2007 and up
to 27 February 2008 and the directors can therefore confirm that they have reviewed
the effectiveness in accordance with the internal control requirements of the
Combined Code throughout that period.
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The Group's internal syster of control is reviewed annually by the directors and
accords with the guidance issued by the Financial Reporting Council in Gctober
2005: “Internal Control: Revised Guidance for Directors on the Corbined Code”.
The systern is designed to nanage rather than eliminate the risk ¢f failure to achieve
business objectives. It can srovide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss, to the extent that is appropriate, tat ing account of
costs and benefits.

The key features of the Group's internal control system are listed below.

1. During 2007 the Risk Committee, chaired by the Group Finance Director and
comprising senior executives, met twice to review and analyse how business
risks are being managed. These reviews assessed the following categories

of risk:
+ business;
- financial;

«  compliance; and

+  operaticnal and other including health, safety and enviraonmental.

Central to this process was a detailed written self-assessmenit of risks by
company and divisior: and functional risk assessments, each carried out by the
responsible executive. These were reviewed by the internal audit department
and the Risk Committee. Any significant control issues arising between
meetings can be brought to the attention of senior executives at regularly
scheduted meetings of the Executive Management Committee. In 2007

the gutcome of the work of the Risk Committee was reported to the Audit
Committee, which in turn reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s system

aof internal control on hehalf of the Board. The Audit Committee agreed a
modification of this process in the last quarter of 2007 and going forward into
2008. The detailed written self-assessment of risks by company, division and
function are now plotted on risk maps, with both the assessmients and risk
maps being reviewed by the internal audit department and by senior
management at quarterly operating review meetings held with each business.
The outcome from these reviews will be discussed twice eac 1 year at meetings
of the Executive Manzgernent Cornmittee which has replaced the Risk
Committee. The first such review by the Executive Management Committee
took place in January 2008, with the results being presented o the Audit
Committee in February. In 2008 the Audit Committee will continue to receive a
report at least twice a year from the Group Finance Director ¢'etailing the work
undertaken in managing the risks faced by the Group. Based on these reviews
and reports, the Board recommends action to be taken by th2 Group at both
divisional and company levels to mitigate identified risks and take advantage
of opportunities that may add value to the Group.

2. Angrganisation structure is in place at both head office and divisional level
which clearly defines responsibilities for operational, account ng, taxation,
treasury, legal, company secretarial and insurance functions.

3. Aninternal audit function undertakes a programme of risk-bused reviews of
conirols and business processes. The role of internal audit is ¢ efined in a “Group
Internal Audit Charter’ and this includes its terms of reference, the standards
which it adheres to, the scope and coverage of its work and its reporting
pracesses. The Audit Committee receives a report from internal audit at each
meeting which includzs opinions cn the adequacy and effec tiveness of
cantrols by site, a summary of key issues, work schedules and details of any
action required. In accordance with the Combined Code, the Audit Committee
regularly monitors ancl reviews the effectiveness of internal a sdit utilising
outside specialists and self-assessment techniques.
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A Group Finance Manual details accounting policies and financial controls
applicable 1o all reporting units. The Group accounting policies are aligned
with the latest Imernational Accounting Standards and International Financial
Reporting Standards.

An annual budgeting exergise is carried out to set targets for each of the
Group's reporting units.

Detailed management accounts are submitted monthly to management which

measure actual perfarmance against budget, together with forecasts of sales,

profits and operating cash for the next three rmonths and ta the end of the year.

A monthly report is provided to the Board highlighting key issues and

summarising the detailed financial information provided by the operating units.

Capital expenditure is controlled by means of budgets, authorisation levels
requiring the approval of major projects by the Group directors and by post-
investment appraisals.

Defined procedures are laid down for investrments, currency and commodity
hedging, granting of guarantees and use of treasury products.

A detailed matrix defines the levels of authority for the Group's senior
executives and their direct reports in relation 1o acquisitions, capital
expenditure, commercial and emnployee contracts and treasury matters.
This matrix is authorised by the Audit Committee on behalf of the Board
and is reviewed on an annual basis. Compliance with the authority matrix
is reviewed as part of the intemal audit process.

Al significant acquisitions and disposals of companies or businesses are
approved by the Board.

A Group policies manual sets cut policies and procedures regarding the
following: business ethics, business gifts and gratuities, equal opportunities,
competition Jaw, legal policy, external communications and share dealing.

A bi-annual review of compliance with such policies by Group companies

is carried out and senior executives are also required to confirm annual
compliance with certain policies. Group policies are complernented by
divisional and company-led initiatives, including community policies, and are
supplemented by the Group's Disclosure of Unethical Conduct Policy which
includes a 24 hour "hetline” available to all employees, supported by a forrmal
investigation protocol and regular reporting to the Audit Committee.

A Group Health, Safety and Environmental Manual details policies, standards
and pracedures which are applicable throughout the Group. Further details
about Health and Safety and environmental matters are set out on page 35
under “Corporate Social Respensibility” and on our website. Annual self-
assessments are carried out at company level against Group standards. The
mast recent menthly report on environmental and safety maiters is reviewed
at each meeting of the Executive Management Committee and the Board

also receives regular reports on HSE matters. These reports cover all Group
companies and are prepared by the internal Group HSE functien, with some
assistance from external spedialists. Senior managers’ performance and related
financial incentives are tied in part to their success against selected annuat HSE
improvement objectives.

10. Shareholder Relations
The Board as a whole is routinely kept up to date on corporate governance
developments and the views of BBA Aviation’s major shareholders. This was
achieved in 2007 through regular meetings during the year between the Group
Chief Executive {or the Executive Chairman during the first half of 2007), the Finance
Director and major shareholders, which are then reperted to the Board 2s a whole,
The Board also recelves formal writien reports from its brokers regarding the
views of its principal shareholders following its preliminary and interim results
announcerments and at other times as appropriate. All non-executive directors,
including the Senior Independent Director, are available to meet with major
sharehoiders. The Board considers that its non-executive directors, including
its current Senior Independent Director, John Rogues, have a good level of
understanding of the issues and concerns of major shareholders, as required
by the Combined Code.

A programme of meetings with institutional shareholders, fund managers
and analysts takes place each year. The directors seek 1o encourage a continuing
dialogue. The Cormpany maintains contact as required with its principal shareholders
about directors' remuneration in the same way as for other matters. The Company’s
AGM is used as an opportunity 1o communicate with private investors. It is intended
that notice of the AGM and related papers are sent to shareholders at least
20 working days before the meeting. Michael Harper as Chairman of the Board,
John Rogues as Chairman of the Nomination Committee {and Senior independent
Director), Nick Land as Chatrman of the Audit Committee and Mark Harper as
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee {and CSR Responsible Director) will each
be available to answer questions, as appropriate, at the AGM. Sharehelders are given
the opportunity of voting separately on each proposal. The Company counts all
proxy votes cast in respect of the AGM and makes available the proxy voting figures
{for, against, at discretion and "vote withheld”) on each resolution. The voting results
of the AGM, 10gether with the details of proxy votes cast prior to the meeting, are
also made available on request and on the Company’s website. The results of the
AGM are also announced to the market via a Regulatory News Service.

Directors’ Corporate Governance Report approved by the Board on
27 February 2008 and signed on its behalf by:

Andrew Wood
Group Finance Director
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

This report cavers the remuneration policy for directars and includes specific
disclosures relating to directors’ emoluments, their shares and other interests. It has
been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1985, as
amended by the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002, and the Listing
Rules of the Financial Services Authority. This report is being put to shareholders at
the forthcoming AGM for an advisory vote. As noted on page 42 in the Directors’
Corporate Governance Report, the Company did not comply in 2007 with the
provisions of the June 2006 Combined Code {the "Code”} in respect of the historical
pensionability of boruses and benefits in kind, which is referred to in paragraph 3d
below. Information in this report is unaudited other than that which is required to be
audited and that is stated as such in the relevant table.

1.Remuneration Committee

Although the Board considers itself ultimately responsible for both the framework
and the cost of executive remuneration, it has delegated prime responsibility for
executive remuneration to the Remuneration Commiitee.

The Remuneration Committee is a Committee of the Board consisting
exclusively of non-executive directors. Details of the Committee’s membership
are set out on page 44. it is responsible for determining executive directors’
remuneration and reviewing proposals in respect of other senior executives.

The Committee also determines 1argets for short-term incentive plans and
performance-related share schemes operated by the Company and oversees

any major changes in employee benefit structures throughout the Group. Further
details of the work of the Reruneration Cormmittee are set out on page 44.

In carrying out its responsibilities during 2007 the Reruneration Committee
appointed and was independently advised by New Bridge Street Consultants LLP.
New Bridge Street Consultanis also provided advice to the management in respect
of individuals outside the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee and
provided calculations of total shareholder return in connection with the BBA 2006
Long-Term Incentive Plan.

During 2007, the Committee also consulted with the Executive Chairman
{who was not then a mernber of the Remuneration Committee), the Group Chief
Executive, the Group Secretary and the newly appointed Group HR Director in
connection with its work, although not directly in connection with their own
remunesation. During 2008, it is anticipated that the Committee will wish to consult
with the Group Chief Executive, the Group HR Director and the Group Secretary.
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2. Remuneration Policy

The Group's remuneration policy is 1o ensure that executive directors’' and other
senior executives’ remuneration preperly reflects their duties and responsibilities
and is sufficient to attract, retain and motivate high calibre senior management
capable collectively of delivering the goals of the Company. The Zommittee
recognises the need to remain competitive in the different geog aphic areas in
which the Company operates. The Committee believes that the iemuneration
arrangemnents described belaw remain closely aligned to the creation of shareholder
value and to the business strategy of BBA Aviation. The Committee has also taken
into consideration UK best practice for listed companies, In connection with the

ABI Responsible Investrnent Disclosure Guidelines, the Remuneration Committee
can confirm that it is able to corsider corporate performance on environmental,
social and governance issues when setting the remuneration of éxecutive directors.
Indeed health and safety chjectives are core to the personal ohjectives of Simon
Pryce and Bruce Yan Allen. The Committee alse believes that the ncentive structure
for senior management does not raise environment, social and guvernance risks

by inadvertently motivating irresponsible behaviour, The Commiltee reviews
executive directors’ remur eration at least annually and in reviewing in 2007 the
Group's remuneration polizy into 2008 and beyond, it was clarified that the base pay
portion of an executive’s total remuneration should be set by reference to the local
market whereas in setting short and long-term incentives referen e should be made
to the wider, global market.

The main components of executive directors’ remuneration are set out befow.
Total executive remuneration is structured to deliver potential upyer quartile
rewards for superior performance with a significant proportion of variable pay
subject to stretching performance targets. The Committee believas that the
remuneration packages of Simon Pryce, Andrew Wood and Bruce Van Allen contain
a suitable balance of directly performance-related remuneration which links both
the short-term financial pe formance of the Group and long-term shareholger
returns with the executives” total remuneration. As Michael Harpe s rote as Group
Chief Executive and Executive Chairman was an interim pasition for part of 2007,
he was rewarded on a cash only basis. For an interim executive dir2ctor position,
the Remuneration Committee did not consider it appropriate to offer traditional
benefits in kind or participation in kong-term incentive plans.

a.Salary, Benefits and Service Contract
The policy of the Committee is to provide base salaries that are pesitioned around
mid-market when compared to local salary data, Salary is reviewed by reference to
market conditions, financia. and individual performance. In additicn to basic salary,
executive directors receive traditional benefits in kind, principally ¢ company car
allowance, private medical nsurance and death in service benefits.

The policy of the Committee is to make new executive direcior appointments
with a rolling service agreement which can be terminated by the Company on
giving 12 months’ notice.
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b.Bonus
Annual cash bonuses for executive directors and senior management are based
on financial performance and personal objectives which are set annually. Details
of the 2007 bonus arrangements are set out on page 50.

The Remuneration Commitiee carried out a review of remuneration
arrangements in connaction with the demerger in 2006. As part of that review,
the Committee decided to Increase the maximum bonus potential for executive
directors during 2007 from 65% to 1009 of salary with more stretching performance
targets at entry level and above target. Approximately 85% of the maximum banus
is based on financial objectives. For 2007, 25% of this bonus was subject to
compulsory deferral into BBA Aviation shares and a further 25% may be voluntarily
deferred under the BBA Deferred Banus Plan. This structure remains unchanged for
the 2008 bonus arrangements. The Commitiee believes that the changes made
brought the Company's arrangements more closely into line with market practice,
providing 2 greater proportion of variable pay subject to stretching performance
argets which are linked to shareholder returns, The deferral into shares also provides
a direct linkage with shareholders' interests, The detail of the plan is provided in
paragraph 3b below.

¢.Long-Term Incentives
The Remuneration Committee believes that a significant element of executive
directors' remuneration should be linked 1o performance-related long-term
incentives. The Company’s schemes were reviewed in 2006 as part of the demerger
and shareholder approval was given to three new share schemes, details of which
are set out in paragraph 3¢ below. The schemes were developed to take due
account of market and best practice and provide long-term management focus and
mativation. The Committee has alse recognised the need for flexibility in this area
to allow them to respond to changing market practices and different gecgraphic
norms. Specifically, incentive plan limits rernain set at relatively high levels to
accommodate the US market, where the largest concentration of BBA Aviation's
businesses is found. There are na current proposals 1o change this arrangement
for awards to be made in 2008.

As part of its strategy to align shareholders’ and divectors’ interests, the
Remuneration Committee expects all executive directors to build and maintain
a holding of shares with a value at least equal to their base salary.

d.Pension
Pension provision for the executive directors varies and reflects differing UK and US
practice. Further details are set out on pages 55 and 56.

3. Policy implementation: Directors’ Remuneration

a, Salary, Benefits and Service Contracts

Base salaries are reviewed annually by reference to comparater groups selected on
the basis of comparable size, geographic spread and business focus. Individual salary
decisions take into account persanal contribution, business performance and the
level of pay awards elsewhere in the Group. Following a review at the end of 2007
the Remuneration Committee approved {with effect from 1 January 2008) a base
salary of £500,000 for Siman Pryce, of £333,275 for Andrew Wood and of $554,500
for Bruce Van Allen.

Set out below are the contractual notice periods for executive directors who served
during the year.

Months’ Notice

ContractDate  ByCompany  ToCompany
Michael Harper® 04/04/06 \ 1
STmon Pryce** 23/04/07 12 12
Andrew Wood 13/02/0 12 6
Bruce Van Allen 01/01/04 12 12

* appointed as interim CEQ in February 2006 and as Executive Chairman from 17 January 2007,
Resumed position as non-executive director on #1 June 2007,
** appointed 11 June 2007,

In the event of early termination, the Remuneration Committee will, within legal
constraints, determine the approach to be taken according to the circurnstances
of each individuai case, 1aking acgount of the departing director’s obligation to
mitigate his loss, In certain circumstances, and other than for termination for
non-performance, the executive directors may receive compensation upon early
termination of a contract which could amount to up to one year's femuneration
based on basic salary, boenus, benefits in kind and pension rights during the notice
period. For the first year after his appointment Simon Pryce may, in certain
circumstances relating to a change in control, receive compensation upon early
termination of his contract of up to twa years’ remuneration. This reduces during
ihe second year after his appointment and after this initial two-year period any
such compensation could only amount 1o up to one year's remuneration.

Table 1 (page 53) sets out details of the executive directors’ salaries and
non-executive directors’ fees. The salary of Michael Harper as interim Group Chief
Executive and as Executive Chairman was calculated on a cash basis, including
cash elements attributable to bonus, pension and car allowance.
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b. Bonus

Bonus payments made in respect of 2007 for Simon Pryce, Andrew Wood and
Michael Harper were calculated on the basis of the Group's adjusted earnings per
share and Group free cash flow and, in the case of Simon Pryce and Andrew Wood,
the achievemeni of measurable personal objectives, $imon Pryce’s bonus was
prorated for his aciual service in the 2007 financial year. Michael Harper was nat
allccated personat objectives due to the short-term nature cf his executive role
and his bonus was afso prorated. Bruce Van Allen's bonus for 2007 reflected his
operational responsibility for the Flight Support business (being based on the
achievement of budgeted operating profit and operating cash flow), together
with Group adjusted earnings per share and the achievement of measurable
personal objectives.

The benus for 2007 was expressed as a percentage of salary and the potential
payout ranged from zero to 2 maximum of 100% of salary. For Siman Pryce, Andrew
Wood and Bruce Van Allen 85% of the bonus was based on financial targets with the
remaining 15% based on measurable personal objectives. It was also provided that
25% of any bonus paid under this scheme to Simon Pryce, Andrew Wood and Bruce
Van Allen would be compulserily deferred into BBA Aviation shares with a further
25% volunzarily deferred at the director's discretion, Matching will be pravided on
the deferred shares, whether compulsory or valuntary, on a one to one basis subject
o meeting a total shareholder return ("TSR”) pesformance criteria over a three-year
period. The TSR performance condition to be used for the matching shares is the
same as that stated below for the 2006, 2007 and 2008 conditional share awards.
The BBA 2006 Deferred Bonus Plan, details of which are set out below, gaverns the
basis on which such deferzal and matching is made.

in recognition of the forfeiture of potential bonus and other incentive
awards from his previous employer, on Simon Pryce’s joining BBA Aviation plc he
was made an award of 213,700 shares on 18 June 2007. This award {which is neither
pensicnable nor transferable) was made in accordance with the provisions of the
Financial Services Authority’s Listing Rule 9.4.2 which permits a company to enter
into a bespoke kong-term incentive plan arrangement without reguiring formal
shareholder approval in order to facilitate the recruitment, in unusual drcumnstances,
of an individual. The shares subject to this award will be released in tranches subject
o Simon Pryce’s continued employment on the relevant vesting dates. No
conditions other than this service condition apply to this award. In the event of a
change of control of the Company pricr to all shares being released, afl unreleased
shares will be released to him immediately. This award is included in the figures in
Tabte 3 on page 54.

As reported last year the bonus payments in respect of 2006 to each of Michael
Harper, Andrew Wood and Bruce Van Allen were deferred into shares. The number
of shares deferred was increased by 10% and subject to restrictions on sale or
transfer until 1 June 2007 Those shares are now held without restrictions by those
directors and included in the figures in Table 2 on page 53.

Bonus payments to the executive directors in respect of 2008 will be calculated
on a similar basis as payments in respect of 2007, with the potential payout ranging
from zero to a maximum of 100% of salary and with 85% of the bonus being based
on financial targets (based on the Group's adjusted earnings per share and, for
Simon Pryce and Andrew Wood, Group free cash flow, and for Bruce Van Allen, the
budgeted operating profit and operating cash flow of the Flight Support business)
with the remaining 15% based on measurable persenal objectives. Financial
performance argets and appropriate personal chjectives for 2008 have been
approved by the Cornmittee.

The performance measures for the bonuses in respect of 2007 and 2008
were chosen by the Committee because each measure is a factor over which
the individual has a directimpact and each of the measures continue 1o be
collectively good indicators of corporate perfermance that should link to
long-term shareholder reward.

¢. Long-Term Incentives

BBA 2006 Executive Share Option Plan,

BBA 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan and

B8BA 2006 Deferred Bonus Plan (the “2006 Plans”)

In November 2006 sharehalders appraved the 2006 Plans which “ogether replace
the BBA Group 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan and allow the awards of aptions,
conditional shares and matching shares,

Under the BBA 2006 Executive Share Option Plan, the maximurm number of
options which an executive may be granted in any year is limited to three times
basic salary, or four times basic satary if the Rernuneration Committee determines
that an executive will not receive a conditional share award in that year, No options
were awarded in 2007 and there is no immediate intention to operate the BBA 2006
Executive Share Option Plan.

Under the BBA 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan, conditional zwards of shares
are limited to one times th=2 executive’s basic salary or two times basic salary if
the Remuneration Commi’tee determines that the executive will not be granted
options in that year. Conditional awards made to Simon Pryce wh 2n he joined in
June 2007 were two times basic salary, while those made to Andrew Wood and
Bruce Van Allen in 2007 we re limited to one times basic satary. The: Remuneration
Committee considers the award levels appropriate and in line with its policy to
reward superior perfarmarice with potential upper guartile remurnieration,

In 2006 conditional shares were not awarded uniil Novembe - due to the
demerger process. The conditional share awards made in 2006 wi | potentially vest
and be released to participants three years after the time at which awards would
under normal drcurnstanczs have been made. The conditional share awards made
in 2007 will potentially vest and be refeased to participants in Marih 2010. The
awards made in 2006 and those made in 2007 are both subject to two performance
targets. 509 of each award is subject to a performance target that measures the
Company’s TSR against a comparator group of companies. The other 509 is subject
to an adjusted earnings per share {*EPS”) performance target. The “omparater group
of companies chosen in 206 for the T5R element was based on FT5E 350 listed
companies from the industrial transportation, travel and leisure, ar d aerospace and
defence sectors.

The comparator group in respect of the 2006 award of condizional shares is:

Comparator Group 2006 Awards

Arriva Go-Ahead Group Qinetigq

Avis Europe Gond>la Holdings Rank Greup

BAE Systems Greere King Restaurant Group
BBA Aviation Intercontinental Hotels Group Rolls-Royce Group
British Airways Ladbrokes Smiths Group
Carnival Lumirar Stagecoich Group
Chemring Group  Meggitt Ultra Electronics Holdings
Cobham Millennium & Copthorne Hotels VT Group
Compass Group Mitchells & Butlers Wetherspoon JD
Easylet MyTravel Group Whitbrezd
Enterprise Inns National Express William Fill

FirstChoice Hols ~ Northijate Wolverhimpton & Dudley
First Group Partycaming
Forth Ports Punch Taverns
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The Committee reviewed the comparator group used for the 2006 awards in 2007
and focused the selection of comparator companies on those that better reflect
the market in which BBA Aviation operates. The comparator group for the 2007
awards will be used in respect of awards in 2008,

The comparator group in respect of the 2007 award of conditional shares is:
Comparator Group 2007 Awards

Arriva Easylet Northgate

Avis Europe First Choice Hols Qinetig

BAE Systems First Group Rolls-Royce Group

BBA Aviation Forth Ports Srniths Group

British Airways Go-Ahead Group Stagecoach Group
Carnival Meggitt Ultra Electronics Holdings
Chernring Group  MyTravel Group VT Group

Cobham National Express

If median pasition is not achieved in the TSR ranking, the TSR part of the award

will lapse. If EPS growth over the performance period is less than the increase in the
retall price index plus 3% per annum, the EPS part of the award will lapse. In neither
case will there be retesting. In line with the method used to test the satisfaction

of perfarmance conditions under previous awards, the Remuneration Committee
has chasen to have the benefit of the expertise of an independent remuneration
consulting firm, New Bridge Street Consultants LLP, to calculate TSR and the external
auditars will perform certain agreed procedures on the EPS calculation. The EPS
growth is calculated on a constant exchange rate basis. The Remuneration
Committee will seek to take account of the move o International Accounting
Standards and the effect this has on earnings per share-based performance
conditions and will endeavour 10 ensure that performance is measured on a
consistent basis.

Details of awards made to the executive directors under the BBA 2006
Long-Term Incentive Plan during the year are set out in Table 3 on page 54.

The Committee believes that the two performance measures chosen for its
incentive schemes - adjusted earnings per share growth ard comparative total
shareholder return - each represent a reasonable long-term indication of the
financial success of the Company. They are also measures that are acceptable 1o
the majority of the investors in the Company.

Under the BBA 2006 Deferred Bonus Plan, participants who defer part of their
annual bonus may receive a matching award that will be limited to the number
of shares purchased with his or her own money. The Remuneration Cornmittee
required executive directors to defer 25% of any payment received in 2008 under
the 2007 bonus scheme and permitted up 1o a maximum of a further 25% to be
deferred. The Rernuneration Committee is satisfied that the award levels under
both the LTIP and the Deferred Bonus Plan are not excessive and in making these
awards the Remuneration Committee took prevailing remuneration practice and
the wish {or a significant portion of the executive remuneration to be linked to
performange into account.

The vesting of any matching awards made in 2008 under the BBA 2006
Deferred Bonus Plan will be subject to the satisfaction of a performance condition
that will measure the Company's TSR against that of a comparator group over a
three-year performance period. This TSR performance condition will be the same
as the TSR performance condition used for the 2006, 2007 and 2008 conditional
share awards.

The performance conditions in respect of the 2006, 2007 and 2008 awards
of conditional shares will be measured over a three year performance period:

TSR rankingin Percentage of TSR

comparator group parz of award vesting
At or above 75th percentile 1009
Between median and Prarata
75th percentile between 25% and 100%
At median 25%
Below median Nil
EPS growth Percertage of EPS
perannum part of award vesting
At or above RPI 100%
increase plus 7% per annum
Between 3% and 7% per annum  Prorata
between 33% and 100%
At RPlincrease 33%
plus 3% per annum
Less than RPlincrease Nil
plus 3% per annum

BBA Group 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan

and Share Option Schemes prior to 2005

The BRA Group 2004 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “2004 Plan®) pravided for
awards of aptions, conditional shares and mazching shares, Options granted in
2005 under the 2004 Plan are subject to the following performance conditions,
which will be measured from the financial year ending just prior to the grant over
a three-year period:

Average EPS growth Percentage of option

above Inflation exercisable

7% or more per annum 100%

3% to 7% per annum Pro rata between 33% and 100%
3% perannum 33%

Less than 3% per annum Nil
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The Remuneration Committee approved the rebasing of the parformance
condition for the options granted in 2004 and 2005 so that earnings attributable
to the Fiberweb business demerged in November 2006 were excluded from the
calculation, In line with the treatment of performance conditions under earlier
Company share option schemes, the external auditors performed certain agreed
procedures on the earnings per share calculation. The EPS growth is calculated on
a constant exchange rate basis.

All executive options awarded by the Company prior ta 2005 were made under
the BBA Group 1994 Executive Share Option Scheme, which expired in April 2004.
All outstanding aptions granted under the scheme are subjeci to performance
conditions. The performance corditions relating to the options granted in 2004 were
satisfied and the options vested in 2007, Prior to March 2002 the BBA Group 1995
Executive Share Appreciation Rights Plan was used to facilitate the grant of options
o US executives on the same basis as the 1994 Executive Share Option Scheme,

Under the 1994 Executive Share Option Scheme, in any financial year a
participant could be granted options with an exercise price not exceeding two
times annual earnings. Such opticns vested and became exercisable as the growth
in the Company's earnings per share, as adjusted, for any pericd of three consecutive
years was at least 9% greater than the growth in inflation.

BBA Group 2004 Savings-Related Share Option Scheme

Executive directors may be eligible to pariicipate in the BBA Group 2004 Savings-
Related Share Option Scheme, which is open to all eligible UK employees. Options
are granted under three or five year SAYE contvacts at a 20% discount to the stock
market price at the offer date. The maximum overall employee contribution is
£250 per month.
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Performance Charts

The charts below show the Company’s total sharehclder return cver the last five
financial years compared with the equivalent information for the FTSE 350 Industrial
Transportation sector whizh the Committee considers to be 2 su:table broad-based
equity market index of which the Company is a constituent. The irst graph shows
the annual change in tota shareholder return for the Company a1d the index, while
the second graph shows the cumulative change in total shareho der return from
January 2003.

Annualised total shareholder return:
BBA Aviation vs Industrial Transportation sector
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Table 1 - Emoluments and fees (audited)

Basic salary Car Other Annual Total Total

and fees Allowance  emoluments Benefits' bonus 2007 2006

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 E0CO

Michaei Harper 4447 - - - 304" 748 733
Simon Pryce 268° g 54* 2 227 559 -
Andrew Wood 322 14 75° 2 272 685 609
Bruce Van Allen 268 Bl - 12 222 513 509
Mark Harper 47 - - - - 47 3
Nick Land 45 - - - - 45 13
John Roques 43 - - - - 43 38
Hansel Tookes 358 - - - - 35 -
Roberto Quarta 13 - - - - 13 161
Bob Phillips 12¢ - - - - 12 30
David Rough 15° - - - - 15 38
Total 1512 33 129 6 1,025 2,715 2,134

From date of appointment 1) June 2007.

VR Wk —

benefit (£75,312).

From date of appointment 19 February 2007.
To date of resignation 17 January 2007

To date of resignation 5 May 2007.

To date cf resignation 26 April 2007,

- JEE. 3

10 Bonus received as Executive Chairman and interim CEO in respect of January 10 June 2007.

Benefits includes benefits in kind such as life assurance and private medical insurance.
Michael Harper received £358,800 as Executive Chairman and interim CEQ in respect of January ta June 2007, and £85,000 in fees as non-executive Chairman from July to December 2007.

Amount paid by the Company inte Simon Pryce’s Self Invested Personal Pension from date of appointment 11 June 2007,
The Company’s contributions to Andrew Wood's FURBS ceased an § April 2006 and following the change in UK pension law he elected to receive a cash replacement equivalent to the FURBS

Table 2 - Directors’ interests in share capital {includes interests held by a director’s spouse)

Michael Harper
Simon Pryce
Andrew Wood
Bruce Van Allen
Mark Harper
Nick Land

John Rogues
Hanse! Tockes
Roberto Quarta
8¢h Phillips
David Rough

Ordinary 29'%np shares
1 Jan 2007

(or date of
appoimment, if later}
Beneficial

83,154
84,230
77213

4,000
10,000
10,920
31,936

2520
18,669

Ordinary 29"/zp shares

31 Dec 2007
{or date of

resignation, if earliery

Beneficial
92,675
55419

06,177
77.213
4,000
10,000
10,920
5,000
31,936
2,520
18,669

There were no changes in directors’ interests in share capital between 31 Decernber 2007 and 27 February 2008.
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Table 3 - Award of Ordinary and Conditional Shares (audited)

Simon Pryce

Andrew Wood
Bruce Van Allen

Awarg
Ordinary
Conditional
Conditional
Conditianal

1lan
2007

160,800
141,400

Awarded
during
the year

213,700
347500
116,400
100,300

Vested/
lapsed
during

theyear

fward 31 Dec
date 2007

18/06/07 213,700
18/06/07 347900
19/03/07 277200
16/03/07 241,700

i Under the award of shares made to Simon Pryce on 18 June 2007, 36900 ordinary shares will be released to hirn at nil cost in March 2008 and 176,800 ordlinary shares will be released 1o hirp at nil cost in equal

33.3% tranches after one, two and three years of service,

Additional notes

i Canditional awards made in 2006 and made during the year are subject ta the performance conditions set out on page 51.

it The mid-market price of a BBA Aviaticn plc ordinary 29'/ap share on 19 March 2007 was 281p and on 18 June 2007 was 283.75p.

Table 4 - Options to acquire ordinary shares (audited)

Exercised/ Exercise
Granted lapsed price per
1Jan during the during 31 Dec share Exerc sable Expiry
2007 year the year 2007 pence from date
Simon Pryce
4 - 8,316 - 8,316 202.00 0171210 01/06/1
- 8316 - 8,316
Andrew Wood
1 107,400 - - 107,400 288.20 25/C3/05 25/0312
1 552,131 - 162,131 360,000 153.00 13/03/06 13/03/13
1 271,000 - - 271,000 27525 /C3/07 01/03/14
3 199,900 - - 199,900 298.75 23/05/08 23/05/15
4 3,816 - - 3,816 245.00 01/12/08 01/06/09
1,134,247 - 192,131 942,116
Bruce Van Allen
2 36,000 - 36,000 - 34133 21/04/00 21/04/07
2 23,000 - - 23,000 42200 16/C3/00 10/03/08
1 94,350 - - 94,350 288.20  25/C3/05  25/0312
1 585,686 - - 585,686 153.00 13/03/06 13/03/13
1 225,300 - - 225,300 275.25  OWC3/07 01/03/14
3 182,600 - - 182,600 298.75  23/05/08  23/05/15
1,146,936 - 36,000 1,110,936

1 1994 {amended 2001) Executive Share Option Scheme.
2 1995 Executive Share Appreciation Rights Pian.

3 2004 Plan,

4 2004 Savings-Related Share Option Scherne.

Additional notes

i BBA Aviation plc ordinary 20%/xp shaies: mid-market price on 31 December 2007 was 205.25p. Mid-market price for 2007 was in the range 194.75p ta 289.50p.

il There were no changes in the directors’ options to acquire ordinary shares between 31 December 2007 and 27 February 2008,

il Opticns granted under the 1994 {amended 2001) Executive Share Option Scheme vested and became exercisable as the growth in the Cermpany's earnings pes share, as adjusted, for any period of three

consecutive years was 3t least 9% greater than the growth in inflation.

iv Options granted under the 2004 Plan are only exercisable after the third anniversary of the date f grant and if the performance condition: as set out on page 51 are satisfied.
v On 20 March 2007 Andrew Wood exercised 192,131 options at 153p per share and sold 172,131 ordinary shares at 280.6657p per shara.

vi 36,000 unexercised options held by Bruce van Allen lapsed on 21 April 2007, their expiry date.
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d. Pension

UK
Throughout the year urder review, Andrew Wood participated in the Company’s
UK Defined Benefit Plan. it is the Committee’s policy that the bonus of any new
director joining the Company's UX pension plans from April 2000 will not be
pensionable and accordingly pensionable earnings for Andrew Wood comprise
basic salary only.

Andrew Wood's normal retirerment age under the Defined Benefit Plan is
his 62nd birthday in line with that of existing directors who were members of
the Defined Benefit Plan when he joined. In the case of death befare retirement,
a contingent widow's pension equal to two-thirds of the member’s prospective
pension is payable. Other dependants’ pensions may also be paid. The Plan Rules
guarantee pension increases in retirement by RPI up ta 5%. Further discretionary
increases are possible if RP1is above 5%,

All the Cormpany's UK Defined Benefit Plans were closed to new entrants
from April 2002; new employzes from that date have the option to join a Company
sponsored Stakeholder style Qefined Contribution Plan provided through an
external investment manager. The Company matches the empioyee’s contribution

in a range of 3% 1o 75% up to the state defined Earnings Cap (or a notional equivalent),

Andrew Wood was restricted in the level of benefits he could earn under the
Group's pension plan by the state earnings cap (£105,600 for the tax year 2005/2008)
and therefore the Company provided a funded unapproved retirement benefits
scheme ("FURBS") at its discretion for him. The Company’s FURBS was closely related
to the contribution the Company made to the approved Defined Benefits Plan less

Table 5 - UK Defined Contribution Scheme {(audited)

expenses and any special funding. The rate of contribution for Andrew Wood was
36% per annum of pensionable earnings in excess of the earnings cap. On 5 April
2006 the FURBS arrangements ceased as a result of the "Simplification” regulations
under the Finance Act 2004

From 6 April 2006 revised arrangements applied to all the Company’s UK
pension arrangements as a result of both the Finance Acts 2004 and 2005 and the
Pensions Act 2004. The Company and the Plan Trustee in respect of the Defined
Benefit Plan agreed that a “Notional Earnings Cap” should be implemented in place
of the state earnings cap in order to limit the Company’s exposure to increases in
both Defined Benefit liabilities and additional matching Defined Contribution
centributions. Directors and ather employees whose earnings were above the
Notional Earnings Cap were given a choice of receiving either a contribution t¢ the
Defined Centribution Plan or a cash replacement equivalent to the contribution that
wauld have been paid to a FURBS. Andrew Wood elected 1o receive a cash
replacement equivalent,

Simon Pryce does not participate in the Company’s Defined Contribution Plan.
A sum equal to 20% of his base salary is paid by the Company into his Self Invested
Personal Pension.

Although Michael Harper was employed in an executive capacity during
2007 while he was interim Chief Executive and then Executive Chairman, he did
not participate in any of the Company’s pension schernes. instead, his cash
compensation was calculated so that a proportion related to pension benefits
he would have received had it been a permanent appointment,

Company contriputions

2006 2007

£000 £000

Andrew Wood 28 -
Table 6 - UK Defined Benefit Schemes [audited)

Transfer Increase

Accrued Transfer Real value of real transfer Accrued Transfer

Diractor's pension at value at increase Increasein  pension (less values less pension at value at

Director'sage  contribution 31 Dec 31 Dec inaccrued accrued director's dlrector's 31 Dec 31 Dec

at 31 Dec guring year 2006 2006 pension pension contributions}  contributions pi g 007

2007 £000 £000 £000 000 000 £000 £000 £000 £000

AR Wood 56 6 22 368 4 5 63 107 26 481

Additional notes

i The pension entitlement shown i that which would be paid annually on normal retirement based on service ta and penslonable salary at the end of the year,
il The ransfer value has been calculated on the basis of actuarial advice in accordance with Actuarial Guidance Note GN 11, The transfer value represents a liability of the Company/pension scheme not a sum

due or paid 10 a directer.

iii The increase in transfer values between 31 December 2006 and 31 Decernber 2007 is as a result of changes in pensicnable salary, one year's extra service, increase in the age of the director and effects of

changes in market conditions.

Table 7 - US Defined Contribution Scheme (audited)

Bruce Van Allen

Company contributions

2006 2007
1000 £000
5 5
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Table 8 - US Defined Benefit Schemes (audited}

Transfer
value of real Increase

Accrued Transfer Real increasein intransfer Accued Transfer

Director’s pension at value at increase Increasein  pension {less values less pension at value at

Director'sage  contribution 31 Dec 31 Dec inaccrued accrued director's director’s 31 Dec 31 Dec

at3l Dec during year 2006 2006 pension pension  contributions)  contributions 007 2007

2007 £000 £000 £000 £000 £0100 £000 £000 000 £000

Bruce Van Allen 52 10 564 554 62 4 52 74 548 648

Fobertc Quarta 58 - 174 2,535 - - - - 174 2,535
Naotes

i Accrued pension amounts shown for Bruce Yan Allen are lump sums,
i Roberto Quarta cannot receive his pension in lump sum form under the terms of his plan.

il The increase in transfer values between 31 December 2006 and 31 December 2007 is as a result of changes in pensionable salary, ane year'; extra service, increase in the age of the directo s and the change

in the US dollar/sterling exchange rate over the year.

* Roberto Quarta resigned as a non-executive director on 17 January 2007, The accrued pensian and transfer value amounts shown are at his date of resignation.

us

Bruce Van Allen participates in the Group’s Senior Executive Pension Plan for North
America (the *Plan®). The Company has funded projected Plan benefits since January
2004. Benefits under the Plan are based on a five-year averaging of compensation
(including bonus payments), less amounts received from other Company-sponsored
retirement plans in which the executive participates. In the case of death prior to
retirement, the accrued benefit reverts to the beneficiary or beneficiaries designated
by the executive, and is paid in a lump sum.

The Plan provides that upon achieving age 62, Bruce Van Allen is entitled to
receive an unreduced Plan benefit upon his retirement. In addition, he is entitled t©
a reduced benefit under the Plan should he elect 1o take early retirement. Bruce Van
Allen also participates in a retirement savings (401(k)} plan spensored by the Group
company that employs him. Detafls of the Company contributions made to the
401(k) plan to his benefit are set cut atin Table 7 on page 55.

As an executive director of the Group, Roberto Quarta participated in a United
States executive retirernent plan and he retains benefits accrued under that pian
over the period of his employment with the Group, This plan is funded by the Group
and pravides for the commencerment of benefit payments in 2010. Under the terms
of the plan, this benefit is based on the highest three years of Roberto Quarta's
compensation received from the Group, inclusive of bonus payments and taxable
benefits in kind, less amounts received under other Group retirement plans in which
he has participated.

Non-Executive Directors’ Remunetation

The non-executive directors each have a letter of appointment which is available
for inspection by shareholders at each AGM and during normal business hours at
the Company's registered office. No compensation would be payable for the early
termination of the appointment of any non-executive director.

56

The level of fees for non-executive directors is determined by the Board as a whole
on the recommendation of the Group Chief Executive using indeppendent market
surveys. Non-executive diractors' fees were reviewed in 2007 and with effect from
1 March 2007 increased to £40,000 p.a. This is in line with current rarket practice
of comparable organisations. The Chairman of the Audit Commitiee and the
Remuneration Committee each receive an annual supplement of £7,500. The Senior
independent Director receives an annuat supplerent of £5,000 and as from March
2007 the CSR Responsible Director received an annual supplement of £2,560. The
supplements reflect the inzreased commitments and demands p aced upcn each
of the non-executive directors in performing their duties on the Board and its
principal committees.

Details of the non-executive directors’ fees for 2007 are set out in Table 1
(page 53).

The dates of appointrient or subsequent re-appeintment ard unexpired
term of the non-executive directors as at 27 February 2008 are set out below:

Date of appointment/ Unexpired term as at

re-appaintment 27 February 2008
Michaet Harper 01/07/07 28 months
Mark Harper MA12/06 21 months
Nick Land 01/08/06 17 months
John Roques 11/01/08 14 months
Hansel Tookes 19/02/G7 23 months

Directors retiring by rotation and standing for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
are shown on page 42,

The non-executive directars do not participate in the Company’s share option
schemes, long-term incentive plan or pension arrangements. As disclosed in this
report, Roberto Quarta retains an entitlement to a pension which accrued whilst
he was an executive director,

Directors’ Remuneration Report approved by the Board on 27 February 2008
and signed on its behalf by

Mark Harper
Chairman, Remuneration Comrittee
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the members of BBA Aviation plc

We have audited the consclidated financial statements of BBA Aviation pic for the
year ended 31 December 2007 which comprise the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated batance sheet, the consolidated cash flow statement, the
consclidated statement of recognised income and expense and the related notes
110 30. These consclidated financial staterents have been prepared under the
accounting policies set out therein. We have also audited the information in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report that is described as having been audited.

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements
of BBA Aviation plc for the year ended 31 December 2007,

This report is made sclely to the Company’s members, as a bady, in accordance
with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Our audit werk has been undertaken
50 that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to
state 10 them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, of for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors' responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors’
Remuneration Report and the consclidated financial statements in accordance with
appticable law and Intermnational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Unicn are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Respensibilities,
Our responsibility is to audit the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the consolidated financial
staternents give a true and fair view, whether the consolidated financial statements
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and whether the part of the directors’ remuneration
report described as having been audited has been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985. We also report to you whether in our opinion the
information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the consolidated
financial statements.

The information given in the Directors’ Repart includes that specific information
presented in the Business Review that is cross referred from the Business Review
section of the Directors’ Report.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified
by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the
Company's compliance with the nine provisions of the 2006 Combined Code
specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority,
and we report if it does not. We are not required to consider whether the Board’s
statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on
the effectiveness of the group’s corporate governance procedures or its risk and
control procedures.

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report as described
in the contents section and consider whether it is consistent with the audited
consolidated financial statements. We consider the implications for our report if
we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with
the consolidated financial statements. Qur responsibilities do not extend to any
further information outside the Annual Report.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland;} issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination,
on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial staternents and the part of the Directors' Remuneration
Report to be audited. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates

and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate

to the group’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain zll the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient
evidence to give reasonable assurance that the consolidated financia! statements
and the part of the Directors’ Rermuneration Report to be audited are free from
material misstatemnent, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In
forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the consolidated financial staterments and the part of the Directors’
Rernuneration Report 1o be audited.

Opinion

In cur opinion:

- the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the European Unicn, of the state of the group's affairs
as at 31 December 2007 and of its profit for the year then ended;

- the consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation;

+ the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report described as having been
audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Zompanies Act
1985; and

- theinformation given in the Directers' Report is consistent with the
consolidated financial staterments.

Separate opinion in relation to IFRSs
As explained in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the group in
addition to complying with its legal obligation to comply with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Unian, has alse complied with the IFRSs as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board.

In our opinion the consclidated financial statements give a true and fair view,
in accordance with IFRSs, of the state of the group's affairs as at 31 December 2007
and of its profit for the year then ended.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Lonclon, United Kingdom

27 February 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

2007 2006
Underlying* HNotei Total Underlying” Notei Total
Notes £m £m £m fm £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 1 979.4 - 979.4 9501 - 9501
Cost of sales (786.1) - {786.1) (767.4) - {7674}
Gross profit 193.3 - 193.3 182.7 - 182.7
Distribution costs {17.3) - 117.3) (18.8) - {18.8)
Administrative expenses {71.5) (0.8) {72.3) (64.7) 0.6) (65.3)
Other operating income Q.5 - 0.5 35 - 35
Share of profit of associates 1.1 - 1.1 04 - 04
Amounts written-off associates - (7.6) (7.6) - - -
Other operating expenses {0.4) - (0.4) {0.3) - 0.3)
Restructuring costs - {5.6) (5.6) - (74 (7.4
Gain on disposal of businesses - 38.4 384 - - -
Operating profit from continuing operations 1,2 105.7 24.4 130.1 1028 (8.0) 94.8
Investment income 3 44.8 - 44.8 43.5 - 43.5
Finance costs 3 (64.1) - (64.1) {HB.1) - Ba.1)
Profit before tax 86.4 24.4 110.8 78.2 8.0 70.2
Tax 4 (23.3} 0.3} (23.6) (234) 27 (20.7)
Profit for the period from continuing operations 631 241 87.2 548 5.3 495
Profit/(loss) after tax from discontinued operations 5 - - - 16.7 92.9) (76.2)
Profit on disposal after tax 5 - - - - 16.5 165
Profit/{loss) for the period 63.1 24.1 87.2 71.5 (81.7) (10.2)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 63.3 24.1 87.4 714 81.7) (1¢.3)
Minority interest {0.2) - {0.2} 0.1 - 0.1
63.1 24.1 87.2 75 81.7) (10.2)
Adjusted? Unadjusted Adjustad® Unadjusted
Earnings per share
From continuing and discontinued operations:
Basic 7 15.4p 21.2p 14.9p (2.2p
Diluted 7 15.3p i1.1p 149p 2hp
From continuing operations:
Basic 7 15.4p 21.2p 11.4p 10.3p
Diluted 15.3p «1.1p N.4p 10.3p

* Before items described in Note i below.

Note i Restruc turing costs and amortisation of acquired intangibles net of gains on disposal of businesses as set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

t Before restructuring tosts and amortisation of acquired intangibles net of gains on disposal of businesses as set out in note 7 ta the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

2007 2006
Notes £m im
Non-current assets
Intangible assets: Goodwill 9 340.2 314
Licences & other 9 401 209
Property, plant and equipment 10 3104 3164
Interests in associates " 1.6 88
Trade and other receivables 13 16.9 288
709.2 5890
Current assets
Inventories 12 141.9 1313
Trade and other receivables 13 185.7 171.8
Cash and cash equivalents 99.2 156.5
Tax recoverable 34 0.1
430.2 459.7
Total assets 1 1,139.4 1,§48.7
Current liabilities
Trade and cther payables 14 {193.5) (185.5)
Tax liahilities (42.8} {43.0)
Obiligations under finance leases 15 {0.6) (1.0)
Bank cverdrafts and loans 17 (25.6) (27.6)
Provisions 19 (2.0 (3.4
(264.5) (260.5)
Net current assets 165.7 199.2
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans 17 {416.7) {470.7)
Qther payables due after one year 14 (2.7 79
Retirement benefit obligations 20 (10.3} (219
Obligations under finance leases 15 {24.9} (27.5)
Deferred tax liabilities 21 (20.2} (15.7)
Provisions 19 {21.2} (22.8)
{503.0) (565.7)
Total liabilities 1 {767.5) (826.2)
Net assets 3719 3225
Equity
Share capital 22 122.7 1225
Share premium account . 22 346.4 3453
Other reserves 22 3.9 39
Treasury reserve 22 - (1.4)
Capital reserve 22 17.2 155
Hedging and translation reserves 22 (32.5} (270
Retained earnings 22 (86.5) (156.2)
Equity attributable to shareholders of BBA Aviation plc 3n.2 nz
Mingrity interest 0.7 03
Total equity 24 n.e 3225

These financial staternents were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2008 and signed on its behalf by

imon Pryce
Group Chief Executive

Andrew Wood
Group Finance Disector
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

2007 2006
Nates £m £m
Operating activities
Net cash flow from continuing operations 25 102.4 1221
Net cash flow from discontinued operations 25 (23.7) (3.3)
Net cash flow from operating activities 25 78.7 118.8
Investing activities
Dividends received from associates 0.5 03
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (35.3) 90.7)
Purchase of intangible assets (3.5 {i.n
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 2.9 59
Acquisition of subsidiaries 27 (75.9) (52.7)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries and associates 26 68.1 278
Deferred consideration on prior year acquisitions (1.0) {1.5)
Reduction in cash and cash equivalents on demerger - (37.5)
Net cash outflow from investing activities {43.2) (149.5)
Financing activities
Interest received 35.8 419
Interest paid (53.4) 69.9)
Interest elernent of finance leases paid {1.6) 2.1}
Dividends paid (3.0 (577}
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 1.5 58
Purchase of own shares - 09
(Decrease)/increase in loans {53.7) N3
Decrease infinance leases (2.7 (3.1
Decrease in cverdrafts (G X0)] (3.8}
Decrease in other liguid assets 111.6 3.0
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities (3106).5) 345
{Decrease)fincrease in cash and cash equivalents {67.0} 8
Cash and cash equivalents at beg nning of year 156.5 1749
Exchange adjustments 9.7 (22.2)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 99.2 156.5
Net debt at beginning of year {356.9} {527.1)
{Decrease)increase in cash equivalents (67.0) 38
Decrease/(increase) in Yoans 50.7 (121.3)
Decreasein finance leases a7 ER|
Decrease in overdrafts i.0 38
Decrease in other liquid assets (14.6) (3.0)
Bank lozns dispased of on disposal/demerger of subsidiaries - 205.6
Bank loans acquired - 29
Finance leases acquired {01 -
Exchange adjustments ] 771
Net debt at end of year {37:.2) (356.9)
&0 BBA Aviatic 1 Annual Report 2007




Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and Expense

2007 2006
im fm
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations 10.2 (119.5)
(Losses)/gains on net asset hedges (8.7) 829
Exchange differences recycled on disposal of subsidiaries - 44
Fair value movements in foreign exchange cash flow hedges 0.1 4.1
Fair value movements in interest rate cash flow hedges (2.6) 22
Fair value movements in commodity contract cash flow hedges - {0.6)
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes {10.6) (5.6)
Tax on items recognised directly in equity 34 03
Net expense recognised directly in equity (8.2) (31.8)
Transfer to profit or loss from equity on foreign exchange cash flow hedges (2.1) 2.0)
Transfer to profit or loss from equity on interest rate cash flow hedges (1.7) (0.7
Transfer to profit or loss from equity on commodity contract cash flow hedges - 40
Profit/{loss) for the period 87.2 (10.2)
Total recognised income and expense for the period 75.2 41.7)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 75.4 41.8)
Minority interests (0.2) 13}
75.2 (41.7}
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Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost convention
adjusted for the revaluation of certain f.nancial instruments. The principal
accounting policies adopted are set out below.

The financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (iFRS} adopted for use in the European Union and
therefore comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation. They have also been
prepared in accordance with IFRS as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board,

In the current year, the Group has adopted IFRS 7: Financial Instrurnents:
Disclosures which is effective for annual reporting pericds beginning on or after
1 January 2007, and the related amendment to 'AS 1: Presentaticn of Financia
Statements. The impact of the adoption of IFRS 7 and the changes to 1AS 1 has
been to expend the disclosures provided in these financial statements regarding
the Group's financial instruments and management of capital (see note 18). Thiee
interpretations issued by the nternational Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee are effective for the current period. These are: IFRIC 8: Scope of IFRS 2;
IFRIC 9: Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives; and IFRIC 10: interim Financial
Reporting and Impairment. The adoption of these interpretations has not ted to any
changes in the Group’s accounting policies.

[n addition , the Group has elected w0 adopt early the following in advance of
its effective date:

IAS 23 (Revised): Borrowing Costs {effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2009}

IFRIC 14: 1AS 19 - The Limit or: a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Reguirements and thelr Interaction

The revisions made to 1AS 23 have no impact on the Group's accounting
policies. The principal change 1o the Standard, which was to eliminate the previously
available option to expense all borrowing costs as incurred, has no impact on these
financial statements because it has always been the Group's accounting policy to
capitalise borrowing costs incurred on qualifying assets.

The adoption of IFRIC 14 had the effect of dlarifying the extent to which a
surplus on a defined benefit pension scheme can be recognised in the balance
sheet, The impact of this guidance on these financial statements was to limit to nil
the £65.6 million surplus on the UK Income and Protection Plan and not recognise
an assetin the balance sheet, as any econormic benefit or recovery via refund or
reduction in future contributions is not sufficiently certain.

A the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following
Standards and interpretations which have not been applied in these financial
staternents were in issue but not yet effective:

IFRS 8; Cperating Segments
IFRIC 41: IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions
IFRKZ 12: Service Concession Arrangement

The directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and
Interpretations in future periods will have no material impact on the financial
statements of the Group.
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Basis of Consolidation

The Group income staternent, batance sheet and cash flow statement incorporate
the financial statements of all subsidiary underrakings under the acquisition method
of accounting.

The results of subsidiary undertakings acquired or sold during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal as appropriate. Contrclis achieved
where the company has the povser to govern the financial and operatir g policies of
an investee 5o as to obtain benelits from activities.

Goedwill on acquisitions, being the excess of the fair value of the cansideration
paid over the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired, s capitalised
and tested for impairment on an annual basis. Goodwill arising on acgusitions in the
year ended 31 December 1997 and earlier periods was written off to reservesin
accordance with the accounting standards then in force, Goodwill arising on
acquisitions between 1 January 1998 and 31 December 2003 was amoertised on a
straight line basis over its useful economic life, with a maximum life of 20 years, again
in accordance with the accountir g standards then in force. As permittec! by current
accounting standards, the goodw/ill previcusly written off to reserves or amortised
through the profit and loss account has not been reinstated in the balanze sheet.

Associated undertakings are those investments other than subsidia-y
undertakings where the Group is in a position to exercise a significant influence,
typically through participation in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee. The consolidated financ a! statements include the Group's shan: of the
post-acquisition reserves of all such companies.

Investments

In the Group's financial statements, investments in associated undertakir gs are
stated at cost plus the Group's share of post-acquisition reserves less provision
for impairment.

Treasury

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Sterling at the rate o’ exchange
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominate 3 in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing
at that date. Any gain or loss arising from a change in exchange rates subsequent 1o
the date of transaction is recognised in the income staternent.

The income statements of ovirseas operations are translated inta Sterling at
the average exchange rates for the year and their balance sheets are translated inio
Sterling at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. All exchange
differences arising on consolidation are 1aken to equity. All other tzanslaticn
differences are taken to the income: statement, with the exception of differences
on foreign currency borrowings and derivative instruments to the extent *hat they
are used to provide a hedge against the Group's equity investments in overseas
operations, which are taken to equ ty together with the exchange differer ce on
the net investment in those operat ons,

Goodwill and fair value adjustiments arising from the acquisition of a {oreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translate:] at the
closing rate.

Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Accounting

Derivative financial instrumenits util sed by the Group comprise interest rat2s swaps,
cross currency or basis swaps and foreign exchange contracts. All such instruments
are used for hedging purposes to manage the risk profite of an underlying =xposure
of the Group in line with the Group's risk management policies. All derivative
instruments are recorded on the ba ance sheet at fair value. Recognition of gains or
losses on derivative insiruments depends on whether the instrument is designated
a5 a hedge and the type of expasure it is designed to hedge.

The effective portion of gains ¢1 losses on cash flow hedges are defened in
equity until the impact from the hedged item is recognised in the income
statement. The ineffective portion of such gains and losses is recognised inthe
income statement immediately, and is included in the “other gains and lossas” line
of the income statement.
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Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similay to cash
flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument refating to the effective
portion of the hedge is recognised in equity in the foreign currency translation
reserve, The gain or lass fefating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately, and is included in the operating profit line of the income staternent.
Gains anc losses deferred in the foreign currency translation reserve are recognised
in profit or loss on disposal of the foreign cperation.

Changes in the fair value of the derivative financial instruments that do not
qualify for hedge accaunting are recognised in the income staternent as they arise,
and are included in the operating profit line of the incore statement.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Group's balance sheet
when the Group becomes a party to the conitraciua® provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets are accounted for at the trade date.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deemed deposits, and other
shart-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known amount
of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as
reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any coniract
that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the group afier deduciing all of

its liabilities.

Bank barrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recerded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, including premiums payable on
settlement or redempiion and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an accrual
basis to the profit and loss account using effective interest method and are added
10 the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in
the period inwhich they arise,

Trade payables
Trade payahles are notinterest bearing and are stated at their nominal value.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
and represents amounts receivable for goods supplied and services provided by the
Group excluding intercompany transactions, sales by associated undertakings and
sales taxes.

Within the engine overhauls business, turnover and associated profit are
recognised on a perceniage of completion basis once the terms of the contract
have been agreed with the customer and the ultimate profitability of the contract
can be determined with reasonable certainty.

In our pilot training business, turnaver is recagnised evenly over the duration
of each course.

Research and Development Expenditure

Research expenditure is charged against income in the year in which itis incurred.
An internally-generated intangible asset arising from the Group's development
expenditure is recognised only if the asset can be separately identified, it is probable
that the asset will generate fuiure economic benefits and the development costs of
the asset can be measured reliably,

Post-Retirement Benefits
Payments to defined contributien retirement benefit schemes are charged as an
expense as they fall due.

For defined benefit retirement benefit schemes, the cost is determined using
the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out
annually on 31 December. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the
period in which they occur. They are recognised outside profitor loss and presented
in the statement of recognised income and expense.

Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benef ts are
already vested, and otherwise is amortised on a straight-line basis over the average
period until the benefits become vested.

The retirement benefit obtigation recognised in the balance sheet represents
the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecogn sed
past service costs, and reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset
resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value
of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Retirernent benefit scheme contribution levels are determined by valuations
undertaken by independent qualified actuaries.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property. plant and equipment is stated in the balance sheet at cost fess accumulated
depreciation and provision for impairments. Depreciation is provided on the costof
property, plant and equipment less estimated residual value and is calculated on a
straight line basis over the following estimated useful lives of the assets:

Land

Buildings

Plant and machinery (including
essential commissioning costs)

not depreciated
40 years maximum

3-18 years

Tooling, vehicles, computer and office equipment are categorised within plant
and machinery.

Finance costs which are directly attributable 1o the construction of majer iterns
of property, plant and equipment are capitalised as part of those assets. The
commencement of capitalisation pegins when both finance costs and expenditures
for the asset are being incurred and activities that are necessary to get the asset
ready for use are in progress. Capitalisation ceases when substantially all the
activities that are necessary to get the asset ready for use are complete.

Impairment of Assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying value of its tang.ble and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment ioss, If 2ny such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order 10 determine the extent of the impairment lass.
Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independen from other
assets, the Group estimates the recoverable armount of the cash-generating unit 10
which the asset belongs. An intangible asset with an indefinite life is tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may

be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value ess costs to sell and value in use,
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but 5o that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would not have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset or cash-generating unitin prior years, A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revatuation increase.
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Accounting Policies

Intangible Assets
Licences are shown at amortised zost. Amortisation provided on the cost of licences
is calculated on a straight line basis over the useful life of the licences.

Where computer software is not an integral part of a related item of computer
hardware, the software is treated as an intangible asset. Computer software is
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring 1o use the specific
software. Arnortisation is provided on the cost of software and is calculated on a
straight line basis over the useful life of the software.

The Group makes an assessment of the fair value of intangible assets arising on
acquisitions. An intangible asset will be recognised as long as the asset is separable
or arises from contractual or other legal rights, and its fair value can be measured
reliably. Amortisation is pravided on the fair vatue of the asset and is calculated
on a straight line basis over its useful life,

Share-Based Payments

The Group operates a rumber of cash and equity-setiled share-tsased compensation
plans. The fair value of the compensation is recognised in the income statement

as an expense. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is
determined by reference 1o the fair value of the options granted and calcWated
using ihe valuation technique most appropriate 1o each type of award. These
include Black-Scholes cafculations and Monte Carlo simulations. For cash-settled
options, the fair value of the option is revisited at each balance sheet date. For

both cash and equity-settled options, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected 1o become exercisable at each balance sheet date.

Leases
Where assets are financed by lease agreements that give rights similar to ownership
{finance leases), the assets are treated as if they had been purchased and the leasing
commitments are shown as cbligations to the lessors. The capitalisation values of
the assets are written off on a straight fine basis over the shorter of the periods of the
leases or the usefu! lives of the assets concerned, The capital elements of future
leases are recorded as liabilities, while the interest elements are charged to the
Income statement over the period of the leases to produce a constant rate of charge
on the balance of capital payments outstanding.

For all other leases (cperating leases) the rental payments are charged to the
income statement on g straight line basis over the lives of the leases.

Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises the
cost of raw materials and an appropriate proportion of labour and overheads in the
case of workin progress and finished goods. Cost is calculated using the firstin first
out method in the Flight Support segment, and weighted average method in the
Aftermarket Services and Systems segment. Provision is made for slow moving or
obsolete inventory as appropriate.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into account
taxation deferred due to temporary differences between the treatment of certain
items for taxation and accounting purposes. Current tax is calculated at tax rates
which have been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected o be payable or recoverable on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the batance sheet liability method.

No provision is made for temporary differences on urvemitied earnings of
foreign subsidiaries, joint ventures o associates where the Group has control and
the reversal of the temporary difference is not foreseeable,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet
date and reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer protable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax is calculated at tax rates which have been enacted ot substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date and that are expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, Deferred tax is ¢ harged or credited
in the income staternent, except when it relates 1o items charged or credited o
equity, in which case the d=ferred tax s also dealt with in equity.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjusiment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussec below. The jJudgements used by management in the
application of the Group’s accounting policies in respect of these @y areas of
estimation are considered 10 be the most significant,

Impairment of goodwill and tangible fixed assets

Determining whether goodwilf or tangible fixed assets are impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units 1o which the goodwill
has been allocated or the individual assets. The value in use calcul stion requires the
entity to estimate future cash flows expected to arise from the cash generating unit
or asset and a suitable discount rate in order 1o calculate present value. The carrying
amount of goodwill and ta gible fixed assets at the balance sheet date was

£340.2 million and £310.4 mi'lion respectivety. Details regarding the goodwill

and tangible fixed asset carnrying value and assumptions used in Cirrying out

the impairment reviews are provided in notes 9 and 10

Pensions and other post-retirement benefits

Determining the present vz lue of future abligations of pension an 1 other post-
retirement benefit schemes requires an estimation of future mortelity rates, future
changes in employee benefits and length of service. These assumjstions are
determined in association with qualified actuaries, The net pension liability related
to defined benefit type schames at the balance sheet date was £10.3 million. As at
the balance sheet date the ipdate of the actuarial veluation of the UK income and
Protection Plan indicates a wurplus of £65.6 million. In accordance viith 145 19, iFRIC
14 and the Group's accounting policies, the surplus has been restri sted and no asset
has been recognised in the balance sheet, as any economic benefit or recovery via
refund or reduction in future contributions is not sufficiently certain. Details
regarding the carrying value and assumptions used in arriving at the carrying values
are provided in note 20,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Segmental information

Aftermarket

Flight Services Total  Unallocated Total

Support &5ystems Aviation corporate continuing
Business Segments £m £m £m im im
2007
External revenue 579.5 3999 979.4 - 979.4
Underlying operating profit 72,2 43.2 115.4 (9.7) 105.7
Restructuring costs and amortisation of acquired intangibles net of gains on disposal of businesses 9.7) 34.2 24.5 (0.1) 24.4
Segrnent result from continuing aperations* 62.5 77.4 1399 (9.8) 1301
Underlying operating margin 12.5% 10.8% 11.8% - 10.8%
Investment income 44.8
Finance costs {64.1)
Profit before tax 10.8
Tax {23.6)
Profit for the period from continuing operations 87.2
Profit after tax from discontinued gperations -
Profit after tax on disposal -
Profit for the period 87.2
* Segment result includes £1.1m profit of associates within Flight Support.
Other information
Capital additions 20.6 19.0 39.6 0.2 3%.8
Depreciation and amortisation 19.6 10.3 29.9 0.2 30.1
Balance sheet
Assets:
Segment assets 5791 396.2. 975.3 59.9 1,035.2
Investments in associates 1.6 - 1.6 - 1.6
Tax recoverable 3.4
Cash and cash equivalents 99.2
Consolidated total assets 1,139.4
Liabilities:
Segment liabilities {90.5) {51.8) {142.3) (94.4) {236.7)
Tax liabilities (63.0)
Finance lease and foan liabilities (467.8)
Consolidated total liabilities (767.5)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Segmental information continued

Aftermarket
Fligt Services Total  Unallec wed Total
Suppert & Systems Awiation corpc rate continuing
Business Segments En im im im im
2006
External revenue 5564 3937 950.1 - 9501
Underlying operating profit 655 446 1101 (7.3) 102.8
Restructuring cosis and amortisation of acquired intangibles net of gains on disposal of businesses (2.2) (3.5) (5.7) (2.3) 8.0)
Segment result from continuing operations® 633 411 1044 {9.6) 94.8
Underlying operating margin 11.8% 11.3% 11.6% - 10.8%
Investrent incorme 43.5
Finance costs 68.1)
Profit before tax 70.2
Tax (20.7}
Profit for the pericd from continuing operations 49.5
Loss after tax from discontinued operations** (76.2}
Profit after tax on disposat 16.5
Loss for the period (10.2)

* Segment result includes £0.4m profit of asseclates within Flight Support.

*+ Loss after tax from discontinued operations relates 1o the results of Fiberweb and Becorit, further details of which are given in note 5. Becors, our rail friction business, was previously incluc ed as part of the

Aftermarkat Services & Systems segment. Fiberweb previcusly formed the entire Materials Technology segment.

Other information

Capital additions 24 174 468 0.2 470
Depreciation and amoriisation 1 124 5 0.2 3n7
Balance sheet

Assets:

Segmeni assets 4948 4285 9233 130.0 9833
Investments in associates 8.8 - 88 - 88
Taxrecoverable 01

Cash and cash equivalents 156.5

Consolidated total assets 1,148.7

Liabilities:

Segment liabilities (82.5) (56.6) (129.1) (121.6) (240.7)
Tax liabilities {58.7)
Finance lease and loan liabilities {526.8)
Consolidated total liabilities {826.2)
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1. Segmental information continued

Revenue from continuing operations

By By Capital

destination origin additions Assets
Geographical Segments £m £m £m £m
2007
United Kingdom 136.5 197.0 12.2 200.4
Mainland Europe 68.1 24,5 2.6 28.3
Narth America 722.5 754.6 249 799.0
Rest of World 52.3 3.3 0.1 7.5
Totat 979.4 979.4 39.8 1,035.2
2006
United Kingdom 1350 167.3 13.4 2404
Mainland Europe 66.5 215 39 218
North America 6989 7276 278 7140
Rast of Worlc 49.7 37 19 IAl
Total 9501 9501 470 9833

Revenue from the Group's discontinued operations was derived from the United Kingdom (2007 £nil, 2006; £18.3 million), Mainland Europe (2007: £nil, 2006: £239.0 million),

North America (2007: £nil, 2006: £238 4 miilion) and the Rest of the Warld (2007: £nil, 2006; £48.7 million).

An analysis of the Group’s revenue from continuing operations for the year is as follows:

2007 2006

£m £m

Sales of goods 429.2 3948
Revenue from services 550.2 5553
979.4 9501

A portion of the Group's revenue from the sale of goods and services denominated in foreign currencies is cash flow hedged. The amounts disclesed above for revenue
from the sale of goods include the recycling of the effective amount of the foreign currency derivatives that are used to hedge foreign currency revenue. The amount
included in revenue from continuing operations is £2.1 million {2006: £2.0 million) and revenue from discontinued operations is £nil {2006: £nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Profit for the year
Profit for the year has been arrived at afier charging/{crediting):

Restructuring costs, amortisation of intangibles and non-recurring items
Restructuring costs and amortisation of acquired intangibles net of gains on disposal of businesses included within operating profit from continuing oper: tions amounted
to a credit of £24.4 million (2006: charge £8.0 million). The main items included within this are:

2007 Administrative expenses of £0.8 million refating to amortisation of intangible assets acquired and valued in accordance with [FRS 3; restructuring costs of £5.6 million
relating to a number of small aviation restructuring initiztives; an impairment loss on an investrment in an associated company in Brazil of £7.6 million, and; o total gain on the
disposal of Oxford Aviation Training and Oxford Airport of £38.4 million,

2006: Administrative expenses of £0.6 million refating to amortisation of intangible assets acquired and valued in accardance with IFRS 3, and; restructuring costs of
£74 million relating 1o a number of small aviation restructuring initiatives.

Net of ta, restructuring costs and non-recurring items included within discontinued operations amounted to £nil {2006: £92.9 million). The costs in 2006 primarily related to
impairment charges for a number of Fiberweb wipes lines; line impairment charges, severance costs and other closure Costs associated with the rationalisation of Fiberweb
North America Hygiene; and the costs of the demerger of Fiberweb,

Other
Continuing Discorttinued
aperations operations Tatal Total
2007 006 2007 2006 2307 2006
£m £m £m fm £m im
Net foreign exchange {gains)/loszes {0.1) {0.2) - 0.3 {0.1) 0.1
Research and developrment costs 1.5 1.8 - 89 1.5 10.7
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 26.9 285 - 504 25.9 879
Amortisation of intangible assets (included in administration expenses) 2.4 21 - 1.1 2.4 32
Amortisation of intangible assets (included in cost of sa'es) 0.8 11 - - 0.8 11
Total depreciation and amartisation expense 304 nz - 60.5 301 92.2
Total employee costs 257.2 264.0 - 939 257.2 3579
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 502.1 439.8 - 4589 502.1 8987
The analysis of auditors’ remuneraticn is as follows:
Total Total
2007 2006
im im
Fees payable 1o the Company’s auditors for the audit of the Group's annual accounts 1.3 1.2
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and their associates for ather services to the Group
The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 0.1 0.2
Total audit fees 1.4 14
Other services pursuant 1o legislation
Tax services - 01
Recruitment and remuneration services - 04
Reporting accountant services” - 20
- 25
Fees payable to the Compary’s 2uditors and their associates in respect of associated pension schemes
Audit - 0.1
- 01
Total fees payable to the Company’s auditors 1.4 40

*  Primarily comprises the audit of Fiberweb historicat financial information, BBA Aviation plc working capital report and Fiberweb reporting procedures report.
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3. Investment income, finance costs and other gains and losses

Continuing Discontinued
operations opesations Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m im £m fm im
Interest on bank deposits 39.2 388 - 0.6 39.2 394
Net finance income from pension schemes 3.9 30 - [{R)] 3.9 19
Fair value gains on interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges transferred from equity 1.7 17 - - 1.7 17
Totalinvestment income 44.8 435 - 05 44.8 430
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts (62.3) 66.5) - 0.9 (62.3) (67.2)
Interest on ohligations under finance leases (1.6) (1.8) - 0.3 1.6) 2.0
Other finance costs {0.9) 05) - - (0.9) (8]
Total borrowing costs {64.8) 68.8) - (1.0 (64.8) 69.8)
Less amounts included in the cost of qualifying assets 0.7 07 - - 0.7 07
Total finance costs (64.1) (68.1) - (1.0) {64.) {69.1}

Borrowing costs included in the cost of qualifying assets during the year arose on the general borrowing pocl and are calculated by applying a capitafisation rate in the
range of 4.72% 1o 6.45% to expenditure on such assets.

4. Income tax expense

Continuing Discontinued

operations operations Total

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

£m im im £m £m £m

Current tax 16.3 n7 - {5.5) 16.3 6.2
Adjustments in respect of prior years — current tax 0.5 (09) - 0.6 0.5 0.3}
Deferred tax (note 21) 8.3 79 - (16.4) 8.3 (8.5

Adjustments in respect of prior years - deferred tax (1.5) 20 - 19 {1.5} 01
Incorne tax expense for the year 236 207 - (23.2) 23.6 (2.5}

Domestic income tax is calculated at 30% (2006: 30%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation for other jurisdictions is cakculated at the rates prevailing in the
relevant jurisdictions.

In 2006, a current tax charge of £0.3 million was accounted for within the profit on disposal after tax of £16.5 million in the income statement.

The total charge for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

2007 2006
£m £m
Profit before tax:

continuing operations 110.8 70.2
discontinued operations - {99.4)
1108 (29.2)
Tax at the rates prevailing in the relevant tax jurisdictions 35.8% (2006: 34.5%) 39.7 59
Tax effect of share of results of associates - 0.3}
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit (3.6) 1.2
Items on which deferred tax has not been recognised (1.3) (6.2)
Tax rate changes 1.2 29
Capital gains (11.3) -
Adjustments in respect of prior years (1.1 0.2)
Tax expense/icredit) for the year 23.6 (2.5)

The applicable tax rate of 35.8% (2006: 34.0%) represents a blend of the tax rates of the jurisdictions in which taxable profits have arisen. The change on pricr year
is due io a change in the proportion of taxable profits that have arisen in each jurisgiction.

In addition to the income tax expense charged to profit or ksss, a current tax credit of £(2.9) million (2006: £nil) and a deferred tax credit of £(0.5) mitlion
{2006: credit £(0.3) million) has been recognised in equity in the year,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. Discontinued operations

Net cash flow from operating activities - discontinued operations

In 2006, the Group demerged Fiberweb and disposed of Becorit as detailed below, The cash outflow associated with discontinued operations in 2007 relztes to the
payment of accrued costs of the Fiberweb demerger, and 1o the settlement of pension liabilities relating to Becorit and two companies which formed part of Fiberweb.

Fiberweb

On 30 October 2006, the Group entered int an agreement to demerge Fiberwab, which carried out all of the Group's non-waven operations and constituted the entire
Materials Technology segment. The demerger was made effective on 17 November 2006, on which date the business was distributed to the exisiing sharcholders of
BBA Group plc by way of dividend-in-specie.

The income statement and segmenital results of Fiberweb for the period from 1 January 2006 o 16 Novernber 2006 are as follows:

Period ended

16 November 2006

im

Revenue 5274
Cost of sales (432.4)
Distribution costs 40.6)
Adrninistrative expenses (386}
Other opetating incorme 19
Share of profit of associates 04
Other gperating expenses 0.3)
Underlying operating profit 178
Restructuring costs and non-recurring items (note 2} (84.5)
Costs of demerger (33.7)
Operating loss (100.4)
Finance costs {1.4)
Loss before tax (101.8)
Income {ax expense 233
Loss for the year (78.5)

Becorit
Cn 28 Navember 2006, the Group entered into a sale agreement to dispose of Becorit GmbH, which carried out all of the Group's rail friction operations, The disposat was
completed on 1 December 2006, on which date control of Becorit GmbH passed 1o the acquirer.

The rasults of Becorit for the period from 1 January 2006 to 30 Novermnber 2006 are as follows:

Pericd ended

30 November 2006

fm

Revenue 16.8
Cost of sales (1.0
Distribution costs (1.1}
Administrative expenses (2.0
Other operating income 0.2
Underlying operating profit 28
Restructuring costs and non-recusring items {nate 2) 04
Operating profit 25
Finance costs 0.0)
Profit before tax 24
Incomie tax expense (0.1)
Profit for the year 23

Becerit, our rail friction business, was previously included as part of the Aftermarket Services & Systems segment.

A gain of £16.5 mitlion arose on the disposal of Becorit, being the proceeds of disposal less the casrying value of the subsidiary’s net assets and costs of disposal.
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6. Dividends
On 18 May 2007, the 2006 final dividend of 5.00p per share (total dividend £20.6 million) was paid to shareholders. In May 2006, the 2005 final dividend paid was
8.30p per share (total dividend £40.6 million).

Cn 2 November 2007, the 2007 interim dividend of 2.25p per share (total dividend £9.3 million) was paid to shareholders. In November 20086, the 2006 interim dividend paid
was 3.50p per share (total dividend £17.1 million).

On the demerger of Fiberweb on 17 Novernber 2006, a dividend was declared which was satisfied by the issue of shares in Fiberweb plc - a dividend in specie. The dividend
in specie of £320.0 million represented the net assets of the businesses transferred to Fiberweb on demerger. The existing shareholders of BBA Group plc were given shares
in Fiberweb pic on a ratio of one share in Fiberweb plc for every four shares held in BBA Group plc, Immediately after the demerger BBA Group plc changed its name 1o

BBA Aviation ple.

In respect of the current year, the directors propose that a final dividend of 5.35p per share will be paid to shareholders an 23 May 2008, This dividend is subject to approval
by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and in accordance with IAS 10 *Post Belance Sheet Events” has not been incuded as a liability in these financial staterments.
The proposed dividend is payable 1o all sharehalders on the Register of Members on 25 April 2008. The total estimated dividend to be paid is £22.1 million.

Dividend payments to mincrity shareholders during the year totalled £0.1 million (2006: £nil).

7. Earnings per share

Continuing and

Continuing discontinued
operations Operarans
2007 2006 2007 2006
Earnings £m £m £m £m
Basic:
Earnings
Profit/(loss) for the peried 87.2 495 87.2 (10.2)
Minority interests 0.2 {0.) 0.2 0.1)
Basic earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders 87.4 45.4 874 (10.3)
Restructuring costs and amortisation of acquired intangibles net of gains on disposals after 1ax (24.1) 53 (24.1) 98.2
Profit after tax on disposal {discontinued operations) - - - (16.5)
Adjusted earnings 63.3 547 63.3 7i4
Diluted:
Earnings
Basic earnings attributable 1o ordinary shareholders 87.4 494 87.4 (10.3)
Diluted earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders 87.4 494 87.4 (10.3)
Restructuring costs and amortisation of acquired intangibles net of gains on disposals after tax {24.1} 53 (24.1) 98.2
Profit after tax on dispasal (discontinued operations) - - - (16.5)
Adjusted diluted earnings 63.3 54.7 63.3 714
Number of shares
Weighted average number of 29'%: p ordinary shares;
For basic earings per share 412.2 4784 412.2 4784
Exercise of shase options 1.4 2.2 1.4 22
For diluted earnings per share 413.6 480.6 136 480.6
Earnings per share
Basic:
Adjusted 15.4p N.4p 15.4p 1450
Unadjusted 21.2p 10.3p N.2p (2.2
Diluted:
Adjusted 15.3p 114p 15.3p 149p
Unadjusted 21.1p 10.3p 21.1p (2.0p

The 2006 weighted average number of ordinary shares reflects the effect of the 21 for 25 share consolidation which accurred on 16 November 2006,

Adjusted earnings per share is shown calculated on earnings before restructuring costs and amortisation of acquired intangibles net of gains on disposals because the
directors consider that this gives 2 beiter indication of underlying performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7. Earnings per share continued
From discontinued operations:

Unadjusted basic earings per share for the discontinued operations is nil p per share (2006: (12.5)p per share) and diluted earnings per share for the discon:inued cperations
is nil p per share (2006: (124)p per share), based on the loss for the year from the discontinued operations of £nil (2006: loss £59.7 million) and the denominators detailed

above for both basic and diluted earnings per share.

Adjusted basic earnings per share for discontinued operations is mil p per share (2006: 3.5p per share) and diluted eainings per share for discontinued operations is nil p per
share (2006: 3.5p per share), based on the profit for the year from the discontinued operations before restructuring costs and non-recurring itemns of £nil {2006; £16.7 million)

and the denominators detailed above for both basic and diluted earnings per share.

8.Employees
2007 2006
num xer number
Average manthly number {including Executive Directors) - centinuing operations
By segment
Flight Support 8,286 B,266
Aftermarkes Services & Systems 2,334 2,326
10,620 10,592
By region
United Kingdom 2,309 2,295
Mainland Europe 132 129
North America 8,124 8115
Rest of World 55 53
10,620 10,592
tm £m
Employment costs - continuing operations
Wages and salares 2201 2304
Social security costs 20.7 271
Pension costs 4 6.5
252 2640

The average monthly number of employees of discontinued operations was nil (2006: 3,085), The cost incurred in res pect of these employees of discontinued operations

was £nil (2006: £93.9 million).
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9, Intangible assets

Licences Licences
Goodwill & Other Tatal Goodwill & Other Total
2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006
£m £m £m £m £m im
Cost
Beginning of year 314 334 3475 4298 353 465.1
Exchange adjustments {1.7) (0.2) 1.9} (42.8) (2.2) (45.0)
Acquisitions 40.1 18.9 59.0 338 49 337
Additions - 35 35 - 11 1.1
Disposals - (0.2} 0.2) - - -
Disposals/demerger of subsidiaries {13.8) {0.9) (14.7} (108.2) 6.2) (114.4)
Transfers from cther asset categories - 0.5 0.5 - - -
Acquisitions in pricr years 1.5 - 1.5 1.5 0.5 20
End of year 340.2 55.0 395.2 3141 334 3475
Amortisation
Beginning of year - {12.5} (12.5} - (10.8) (10.8)
Exchange adjustrents - 01 [+A] - - -
Amortisation charge for the year - 3.2) {3.2) - 4.3) 4.3)
Disposais - 0.2 0.2 - - -
Disposals/demerger of subsidiaries - 0.5 0.5 - ER 31
Acquisitions in prior years - - - - (0.5) (0.5)
End of year - {14.9) (14.9) - (12.5) (12.5)
Impairment
Beginning of year - - - - - -
Impairment loss recognised in the year - - - (14.3) - {14.3)
Disposals/demerger of subsidiaries - - - 14.3 - 143
Impairment balance at end of year - - - - - -
Carrying amount
End of year 340.2 40.1 380.3 3141 208 3350

Licences are amortised over the period to which they refate, which is on average 18 years. Other intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives which is on

average 10 years.

The £1.5 millicn goodwill on acquisitions in prior years arises as a result of the finalisation of fair value exercises.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash-generating units (CGUs) that are expected 1o benefit from the business combination.

The carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows:

2007 2006
£m £m
Flight Support

ASIGUS 74,2 753
Signature US 109.5 923
Signature UK 13.7 165
Executive Beechcraft 19.2 -
Cther - (several CGUs) 25.0 207

Aftermarket Services & Systems
Dallas Airmotive 40.1 40.7
H&S Awviation 10.7 10.7
Ontic Engineering & Manufacturing 214 213
Oxford Aviation Services - 14.3
Other - {several CGLs) 26.7 223
340.2 3141

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired,

The recoverable emounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use calculations. The key assumgptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct costs during the period. Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and

direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of future changes in the market.

The Group prepares cash flow farecasts derived from the mast recent financial budgets approved by management for the next three years and extrapolates cash flows
for the following years based on an estimated growth rate of 2.5%. This rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets. The rate used to

discount the forecast cash flows is 10.2%.
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10. Property, plant and equipment

Landand Fixtures and Landand  Fixtures and

buildings  equipmert Total buildings equipm ent Total
2007 2007 2007 2006 206 2006
£m En £m £m im £m

Cost or valuation
Beginning of year 285.5 2441 529.9 4167 8647 12814
Exchange adjustments (2.7) {1.5) (4.3} {38.5) {£3.4) {919)
Transfers (to}/from other asset categories {1.4) {2.1) (3.5} 15.2 (16.3) {1y
Acquisition of businesses 15.8 0.5 16.4 44 16 6.0
Additions 14.3 21.9 36.2 351 583 934
Disposals 2.7) (5.7 {7.8) (34) 16.7) {10.1)
Asset write downs (1.0) {1.3) (2.9) 6.4 (100.2) (106.6)
Disposals/dernerger of subsidiaries (19.5) (14.7) (34.2) (1376) (5C3.6) 641.2)
End of year 288.9 240.9 529.8 2855 2444 5209

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Beginning of year 86.8 126.7 213.5 119.8 415.2 5350
Exchange adjustments {0.8} (0.7} (1.5) (12.0) (61 (38.1)
Transfers (to)/from other asset categories - {1.2) (1.2 15.2 {15.7) 0.5)
Depreciation charge for the year 1.9 15.0 269 15.0 74 624
Disposals (1.5} (4.5) {6.1) 1.3 14.4) 57
Impairments - - - 54 301 255
Asset write downs (1.0} 1.4 {2.4) 3.3) (72.6) {759}
Disposals/demerger of subsidiaries (4.5) {5.3) {9.8) {52.0) (257.2) (289.2)
End of year 90.9 128.5 219.4 86.8 1:6.7 2135

Carrying amount
End of year 198.0 112.4 310.4 198.7 177 3164

Certain reclassifications ta the 2006 cost and accumulated depreciation have been made to ensure consistency with the 2007 presentation, These have no impact on the
carrying amount in 2006 or 2007,

2007 2006
£m £m

Capital commitments
Capital expenditure contracted but not provided for 1.4 8.6

The carrying 2mount of the Group's fixtures and eguipment includes an amount of £5.6 million (2006: £5.5 million) in respect of assets held under finance |zases.

Where assets have been impaired the recoverable amount has been determined by reference to its value in use, estimated using a discount rate of 10.2%.

11. Investrnents in associates

2007 2006
£m tm
Cost of investrment in associates 0.6 84
Share of pest acquisition profit, net of dividends received 1.0 04
1.6 88

The Investments in associates relates to a number of small investments within the Flight Support segment.
2007 2006
Aggregated amounts relating to associates £m fm
Total assets 15.1 127
Total liabilities (11.6) (34)
Nez assets 3.5 93
1007 2006
£m im
Revenue 124.9 202
Profit for the year 2.4 16
Group's share of profit for the year 1.1 08

Included within the Graup’s share of profit for the year is £l (2006: £0.4 million} which is reported within discontinued operations on the face of the incorm e statement.

During the year, an investment in Licer in Brazil was written down by £7.6 million after discussions with other sharet olders regarding our future participation led to a
reconsideration of the influence that we could exert on future strategy.
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12.inventories

2007 2006
£m fm
Raw materials 89.0 70.3
Work-in-progress 17.9 27
Finished goods 35.0 339
141.9 1313
13, Other financial assets
Trade and other receivables
2007 2006
Note im £m
Amounts due within one year
Trade receivables 124.8 1210
Other receivables, prepayments and accrued income 52,5 481
Derivative financial instruments 18 8.4 27
Trade and other receivables due within one year 185.7 1718
Amounts due after one year
Trade and other receivables 16.7 1.7
Derivative financial instruments 18 0.2 171
Trade and other receivables due after one year 16.9 238
202.6 2006

Trade receivables

An allowance has been made for estimated irrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods of £2.3 million (2006: £3.4 million). This allowance has been determined by

reference 1o past default experience.

Included in the Group's trade receivables balances are debtors with a carrying amount of £24.0 million {2006; £30.6 million} which are past due at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are stifl considered recoverable. The Group does not held

any collateral over these balances. The average age of these receivables is 65 days {2006: 69 days).

2007 2006
Ageing of past due but not impaired receivables £m im
30-60days 15.4 167
60 ~90days 4.1 3.0
90 - 120 days 1.4 17
over 120 days 3.1 4.2

24.0 306

2007 2005
Maovement in the allowance for doubtful debts £m im
Beginning of year (3.4) 7N
£xchange adjustments - 06
Disposals/demerger of subsidiaries - 26
Amounts written off as uncollectible 23 22
Charged (1.2} (1.7
End of year {2.3) {3.4)

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivable from the date credit was initially ¢ranted
up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated. Accordingly, the directars believe that there is no
further credit provision required in excess of the allowance for doubtful debts. The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates

their fair value.

2007 2006
Ageing of impaired trade receivables £m im
50 - 120 days 1.6 14
over 120 days 0.6 0.8

2.2 22

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. The carrying amount of these

assets approximates their fair value.
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13. Other financial assets continued

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables, finance lease receivatles and investments.

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-

rating agencies.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its rade and finance lease receivables. The amaunts presented in the balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful
receivables. An allowance for impairment is made where there is an identified foss event which, based on previous experience, is evidence of a reduction ¢f the cash flows.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and customers.

14.Trade and other payables

2007 2006
Note Em im

Amounts due within one year
Trade payables 715 728
Other taxation and sociai security 3.6 58
Other payables 474 46.8
Accruals and deferred income 2.0 590
Derivative financial instruments 18 7.3 11
193.5 1855

Amounts due after one year

Trade and cther payables 3.2 77
Derivative financial instruments 18 1.5 0.2
2.7 79
203.2 1634

The directors consider that the carrying amourit of trade and other payables approximates their fair value.
The average age of trade creditors was 34 days (2006: 35 days).

15. Obligations under finance leases

Present value of

Minimum lease

minimum lease

payments payments
2007 2006 2007 2006
£m fm £m fm

Amounts payable under finance leases:
Within one year 1.7 23 0.6 1.0
In the second to fifth years inclusive 6.0 81 1.9 36
After five years 31.0 328 23.0 239
38.7 43.2 25.5 285
Less: future finance charges {13.2) (14.7) HN/A N/AA
Present value of lease obligations 255 28.5 25.5 285
Less: Amount dug for settlement within 12 months {shown under current liabilities) {0.6) (1.0)
249 275

Itis the Group's policy to lease certain of its fixtures and equipment under finance leases. The average lease term is «ix years for equipment and 22 years for FBO leasehold
improvernents. For the year ended 31 December 2007, the average effective borowing rate for continuing operaticns was 5.4% (2006: 6.3%). Interest rates are fixed at the

contract date or vary based on prevailing interest rates.
All of the Group’s finance lease obligations are denominated in US Dolfars.
The fair value of the Group's lease obligations approximates their carrying amount.

The Group's obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors' charges over the leased assets.

7%
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16. Operating lease arrangements
The Group as lessee

2007 2006

im im

Minimurm lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense in the year 33.7 378
At the balance sheet date, the Group has outstanding commitments under non-cancellable aperating leases, which fall due as follows:

2007 2006

£m £m

Within one year 38.9 3.2

In the second tofifth years inclusive 135.0 1090

Adter five years 337 29N9

487.6 4321

Operating lease payments represent amounis payable by the Group far certain of its office properties, planis, FBOs, and equipment. Leases are negotiated for an average
term of eleven years for office properties, seven years for plants and warehouses, twenty-six years for FBOs, and six years far equipment. Rentals are generally fixed or
adjusted based on inflation.

The total future minimum sub-lease payments expected 1o be received under non-cancellable sub-leases at 31 December 2007 were £43.3 million (2006; £38.2 million),

17. 8ank overdraft and loans

2007 2006
£m fm
Bank overdrafts 21.9 260
Bank loans 416.4 4706
Loans other than from banks 4.0 17
442.3 498.3
The borrowings are repayatle as follows:
On demand or within one year 25.6 2756
In the second year 2.0 0.2
In the third 1o fifth years inclusive 414.5 470.2
After five years 0.2 03
442.3 4983
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months {shawn under current liabilities) (25.6) (27.6)
Amount due for seitlement after 12 months 416.7 470.7
The fair value of the Group’s borrowings are not materially different from their carrying values,
The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are dencminated in the following currencies:
Sterling LS dallar Eura Other Total
Im im £m £m fm
31 December 2007
Bank overdrafts 17.8 2.1 1.2 0.8 21.9
Bank loans - 3620 52.2 2.2 416.4
Loans other than from banks 0.2 37 - 0.1 4.0
18.0 367.8 534 31 4423
31 December 2006
Bank overdrafts 126 86 43 05 26.0
Bank loans 2415 1638 331 2.2 4706
Loans other than from banks 0.2 15 - - 1.7
254.3 2039 374 27 498.3
The average interest rates on borrowings are as follows:
2007 2006
Sterling 6.5% 53%
Us Dollar 5.8% 5.5%
Euros 4.3% 33%

All borrowings are arranged at floating rates thus exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk, This cash flow interest sate risk is managed by the use of interest rate
swaps in accordance with pre-agreed policies and authority limits. As at 31 December 2007 323 of the Group's borrowings were fixed at a weighted average interest rate
of 4.5% for a weighted average period of 1.5 years.

Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand. All bank Jeans are unsecured.
The effective interest rates on borrowings are not materially different from thelr nominal interest rates.
The Group has one principal bank loan which is 2 multicurrency revolving credit facility dated 7 September 2007 for $900.0 milion (2006: £550.0 miltion) which is due

to expire in September 2012, This facility Is an unsecured committed bank facility. At 31 December 2007, the group had available $77.7 million (2006: £77.7 million) of
undrawn committed borrowing facilities in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met.
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18. Derivative financial instruments
Categories of financial instruments
The table below details the categories of financial instruments across the Group and the carrying values of each category:

007 2006
Canying Carrying
Value Value
im im

Financial assets
Fair value through profit and loss - held for trading* 79 0.7
Derivative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships 0.7 19.1
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents) 2821 2805
Total 210.7 3003
Financial liabilities
Fair value through profit and loss - held for trading' (0.1 0.7}
Derivative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships 8.7 e
Amortised cost (5€:3.9) (614.0)
Total (572.7) {615.3)

t The amounts detafled above as fair value through profit and loss - held for rading do not relate to speculative transactions, They relate 1o f reign exchange contracts which are not desigr ated in a formal
hedging relationship and are used ta hedge foreign currency flows through the BBA Aviation plc Company bank accounts and to ensure that the Group is not exposed to foreign exchangi: risk through the

management of its international cash management structure,

The foans and receivables carrying value includes cash and cash equivalens and current and non-current irade and other receivables. The amortised cost category includes
carrying values relating to abligations under finance leases, bank overdrafts and loans and current and non-current trade and other payables,

Derivative financial instruments

The fair values of all derivative financiat instrumenits shown in the table below are based on market values of equivalent instruments at the balance sheet ¢ ate and are held
as assets and liabilities within other receivables and ather payables. The notional amounts of the derivative financial instruments detailed in the table belorw are based on

the contractual gross amounts as at the balance sheet date.

2007 2006
Asset Liability Asset Liability
Notional Notional Notional Notional
FairValue Amount Fair Value Amaunt Falr Value Amount Fair Value Amount
Em £m £m £in £m £m £m im
Cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps 0.2 (90.5) (1.2} {100.5) 34 (91.8) 00 0020
Forelgn exchange forward contracts 0.5 (17.3) {0.9) {32.3) 23 (26.4) 10.5) (19
Net investment hedges
Cross currency swaps - - {6.6) {338.9) 134 (338.0) - -
Derivatives notin a formal hedge relationship
Foreign exchange forward contracts 7.9 276.2 {0.1) 2.3 0.7 1303 {2.7) 949
Total 8.6 168.4 (8.8) (470.0) 19.8 (3259} {1.3) 9.0)
The maturity of derivative financial instruments is as follows:
2007 2006
Asset Liabillvy Avset Liability
Falr Value Fair Value Fair Value Fairvalue
£m £m tm fm
Current
Less than T year 8.4 {7.3) 17 1n
Total current 8.4 (7.3) A7 n
Non-current
1 - 2 years - 1.4) 1.7 [(VR]
2-3years 0.2 0.1) - (VR
3-4dyears - - i -
Total non-current 0.2 {1.5) 174 0.2
Total 8.6 (8.8) 198 1.3)
78
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18, Derivative financial instruments continued

Collateral

As part of the Group's management of its insurable risks a proportion of this risk is managed through self insurance programmes aperated by s captive insurance company,
BBA Aviation Insurances Limited, based in the Isle of Man. This Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group and premiums paid are held to meet future claims.
The cash balances held by the Company are reported on the baiance sheet within cash and cash equivalents. As is usual practice for captive insurance companies, sorme
of this cash is used as collateral against cantingent liabilities {standby letters of credit) that have been provided to certain external insurance companies.

The table below details the contractual amount and maturity of the cash balances that have been pledged as collateral for these contingent liabilities:

2007 2006

Us Doltar Sterling Total S Dollar Sterling Tozal

£m £m £m fm fm £m

BBA Aviation Insurances Limited 10.2 6.0 16.2 103 60 16.3

Total 10.2 6.0 16.2 10.3 6.0 6.3
Curreng

Less than 1 year 10.2 6.0 16.2 10.3 60 16.3

Total current 10.2 6.0 16.2 10.3 60 163

The standby letters of credit have been issued via bank facilities that BBA AviationInsurances Limited has in place. The amount of these facilities correspond to the amounts
pledged as detailed in the table above. The amounts pledged are usually for less than one year and are secured by a general counter indemnity and a letter of set-offinthe
bank's standard form over the cash balances of the captive insurance company.

Financial Risk Factors

Qur activities expose us 10 a variety of inanclal risks; market risk {including currency risk and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Overall our risk
rmanagement policies and procedures focus on the uncertainty of financial markets and seeks to manage and minimise potential financial risks through the use of
derivative financial instruments. The Group does not undertake speculative transactions for which there is no undertying financial exposure.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department under policies approved by the Board of Directors of BBA Aviation ple. This department identifies,
evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with our subsidiaries. The treasury policies cover specific areas such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and the investment of excess liquidity. These policies are ouifined further as described on page 37,

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as 2 going concern while maximising the return to sharehoiders through the
optimisation of the debi to equity balance. The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity hoiders of the
parent comprising capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The Group's policy is to borrow centrally to meet anticipated funding requirerments. These barrowings, together with cash generated from the operations, are on-lent
or contributed as equity to subsidiaries at market based interest rates and on commercial terms and conditions.

The Group is subject to certain covenant requirements under its $900 million revolving credit facility. The Group complied with these covenants during the year.

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of adverse financial impact due 1o changes in fair values or future cash flows of finandial instrurnents from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates
and interest rates. The Group has well defined policies for the management of these risks and the management of these risks includes the use of derivative financial instruments.

{i) Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group has significant overseas businesses whose revenues, cash flows, assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in the currency of the countries in which the
operations are located. The Group is, therefore, exposed to foreign currency translasion risk from the translation of these overseas operations financial s1atements into Sterling.
The Group's pelicy is not to hedge the income statement translation exposure since such hedges have only a temporary effect. However, it is Group's policy to maintain the
majority of its debt in the currencies of our operating subsidiaries and it is Group's policy that the foreign currency balance sheet translation risk is hedged between 50% and
85% through the use of foreign currency denorminated loans, cross currency swaps and forward foreign currency contracts.

The wranstation fareign exchange risk is measured by monitoring the value of the overseas net assets (excluding internal group financial loans) which are reporied monthly as
part of the management accounts reporting process and verifying these values against the nei assets reporied by the overseas subsidiaries within their statutory accounts.

2007 2006
UsDollar Euros Sterling Other Total US Dollar Euras Sterling Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m im fm £m £m im
Net assets excluding intercompany
cash/debt 762.5 160.2 (555.7) 4.9 n.e 680.0 1259 (496.2) 128 3225
Bank debt in the UK {360.8) (52.2) 213.0 - - (193.9) (33.) 2270 - -
Derivative effect ~
Cross currency swaps' (276.4) {62.5) 3389 - - (280.6} (574} 3380 - -
Total hedge effect 637.2) {114.7) 751.9 - - (474.5) (90.5) 565.0 - -
Net asset position excluding
intercornpany debt post hedging effect  125.3 45.5 196.2 49 3719 2055 354 68.8 12.8 3225

t1 Excludes the fair value of the cross currency swaps as at the year end.
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18. Derivative financial instruments continued

The fair value of currency derivatives that are designated and effective as net investment hedges amounting 10 a payable of £6,6 million (2006: receivable: £13.4 million) has
been deferred in equity.

The Group manages its transactional foreign currency risk by hedging significant currency exposures in accordance with foreign exchange policies that cur subsidiaries
have in place which have been pre-agreed between Group Treasury and the subsidiary. Each foreign exchange pelicy is individually tailored to the foreign exchange
exposures within the relevant subsidiary. Transaction currency risk is managed through the use of spot and forwand foreign exchange contracts, All comniitted exposures
are fully hedged 1009 but where cash forecasts are uncertain, we generally cover a percentage of the projected foreign currency flows depending on th certainty of the
cash flows.

The transaction foreign exchange risk is measured by each subsidiary submitting monthly reports to Group Treasuy which detail the foreign currency expposure reported
on the balance sheet as committed exposures and, for those subsidiaries with significant foreign exchange transaction exposures, an additional repert detailing the future
projected foreign cuszency cash flows over the life of the policy. The pre-determined policy margin is shown against the projected exposures 10 determir e whether there is
a net exposure which needs 1o be hedged. If this is the case, then foreign exchange spot or forward contraci(s) will be undertaken by Group Treasury on biehalf of the
relevant subsidiary with our relationship banks.

2007 2006

Us Dollar Eures Other Total US Dollar Euros Other Total

£m £m £m im £m im £m im

Net foreign exchange transaction cash flow exposure 48.8 6.8 - 55.6 307 70 - 377

Derivative effect - foreign exchange contracts spot/forwards {48.2) {6.5) - {54.7) (30.8) 69) - (37.7)
Netasset position excluding intercompany debt

post hedging effect 0.6 0.3 - 0.9 {0.) Q.1 - -

The fair value of currency derivatives that are designated and effective as cash flow hedges amounting to £(0.4) million (2006: £1.8 miliion) has been defened in equity
during the year. An amount of £2.1 miffion (2006: £2.0 million) has been transferred to the income statement in resg ect of contracts that matured during the period.

Foreign exchange contracts that are not designated as cash flow hedges are used to hedge foreign currency flows through the BBA Aviaticn ple company bank agcounts
and to ensure that the Group is not exposed to foreign exchange risk through the management of its international cash pooling structure.

Changes in the fair value of foreign exchange coniracts which have not been designated as cash flow hedges amo.inting to £7.8 million (2006: £1.6 milliory) have been
transferred to administrative expenses in the income statement in the year.

(ii} Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk

The majority of the Group’s debt and cash balances are based on floating interest rates which expose the Group 1o cash flow interest rate risk, A very small proportion of the
Group’s borrowings (£3.0 million) 5 issued at fixed interest sates 2nd, therefore, averall the Group is not exposed to fair value interest rate risk. The Group's policy is to use a
combination of debt and derivative instruments 1o fix proportions of the exposure for varying periods based upan the maturity profile and the expectaticn of future interest
rates. The Group uses interest rate swaps to manage its exposure to the movements on these floating interest rates

During 2007 and 2006, net debt was managed using derivative instrurnents 10 hedge cash flow interest rate risk as {oflows:

2007 2006

Fixed Floatirg Net Fixed Flozting Net

Rate Rate Debt Rate late Debt

£m £n £m im fm £m

Cash and cash equivalents - 99.2 99.2 - 1£6.5 156.5
Derivative effect - cross currency swaps - (6.6) (6.6) - ‘34 134
Bank overdrafts - (21.9) 21.9) - (:6.0) (26.0)
Borrowings 3.0 {417.4) {420.4) (39 4¢8.4) {4723)
Finance leases - (25.5) (25.5) - (zB.5) (28.5)
Net Debt (3.0) (372.2) {375.2) (3.9} (353.0) (356.9)
Derivative effect - cash flow interest rate swaps* {191.0) 190.2 {1.0) (1939} 197.2 33
Net debt post derivative effect (194.0) {182.2) {376.2) (197.8) {15.8) (353.6)

* Mark-1o-market gain has been inctuded within the floating rate amount. This is not bocked to net debt but is recorded as a net gain in reserves.

The fair value of interes rate swaps are designated and effective as cash flow hedges and the fair value of £1.0 million (2006: £3.3 million) has been deferred in equity.
An amount of £1.7 million (2006: £°.7 million} has been booked against hedged interest payments made in the pericd.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and depasits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers,
including outstanding receivables and committed transactions. As part of the Group's operations, cash management and risk managernent activities we ale exposed to
counterparty risk arising on the financial assets that we have and the credit risk on outstanding derivative financial ir struments,
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18. Derivative financial instrurmnents continued

Treasury Related Credit Risk

The Group airms 1o reduce counterparty risk by dealing with counterparties of strong credit standing as measured by financial credit ratings. Al Treasury related activity is
concentrated with relationship banks that provide unsecured committed facilities to the Group. Across the subsidiaries, wherever possible and where services can be
provided efficiently and cost effectively, bank accounts, surplus cash and any hedging activity are concentrated and undertaken with relationship banks.

Each counterparty that we use for Treasury relatad activity, bank account activity and the investment of surplus cash is assigned a maximum credit limit dependent upon
the counterparty’s credit rating. This limit gives a maximum permitted amourit of cash and Treasury related activity that can be held or undertaken with each counterparty.
All counterparties must also have a short-term rating of Al/P1. Deposits are generally for shart-term maturity of less than three months.

As at 31 December 2007 and 2006, we had a number of exposures to individual counterparties. These are within the maximum limits permissible under our policy ard these
expasures are continually monitored and reported. No individual exposure is considered significant in the ordinary course of treasury ranagement activity and we do not

expect any significant losses from non-performance by these counterparties.

Commercial Related Credit Risk

The Group's exposure to commercial related credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and finance lease receivables and the amounts presented in the batance sheet
are net of allowances for doubtful receivables. Sales to customers are settled in a number of different ways including cash, credit cards, cheques and electronic payment
rmethods. A customer or potential customer is assessed on a case-by-case basis to determine whether credit terms will be provided. The Group does not expect any

significant losses of receivables that have noi been provided for as shown in note 13.

Liguidity Risk

The Group manages its liquidity requirements through the use of short-term and long-term cash flow forecasts. In addition to strong cash generation in the businesses, the
Group maintains unsecured committed borrowing facilities from a range of highly rated banks to mitigate this risk further. Headroom on our facilisies is regularly eva'uated

and consistently monitored to ensure that the Group has adequate headroom and liquidity. In 2007, the Group refinanced its main borrowing facility in order to put in place
a new five year facility maturing in 2012 on similar or improved terms with a core group of its relationship banks.

The following table provides an analysis of the contractual undiscounted cash flows payable under the financial liabilities as at the balance sheet date:

2007 2006
Bank Flnance Other Trade Bank Finance Cther Trade

loans leases loans creditors Total loans leases loans. creditors Total

£m £m im £m £m im fm £m fm £m

Due within one year 46.0 1.9 2.5 87.9 138.3 523 25 16 80.7 1371

Due between one and two years 22.5 1.8 1.1 23 27.7 245 33 - 03 281

Due between two and three years 1.7 1.8 0.2 Q.5 24.2 484.4 20 - 13 4877

Due between three and four years 21.6 1.7 0.2 Q.2 23.8 07 19 - - 26

Due between four and five years 4279 1.7 0.2 - 429.8 06 20 - - 26

Due in more than five years - 384 0.2 5.1 43.7 - 387 0.2 49 438

Total 539.7 473 4.4 96.1 687.5 5625 50.4 1.8 872 7019
The maturity profile of the Group's financial derivatives using undiscounted cash flows is as follows:

2007 2006

Payable  Receivable Payable Receivable

£m £m £m fm

Due within one year (669.4) 670.5 (2977) 2993

Due between one and two years (8.7) 74 (344.6} 358.2

Due between two and three years {1.8) 1.8 0.7} 06

Due between three and four years - - (1.0 44

Total 1679.9) 679.7 (644.0} 662.5
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18. Derivative financial instruments continued

Sensitivity Analysis as at 31 December 2007

Financial instrurnens affected by market risk are derivative financial instrurnents. The follewing analysis is intended ta illusteate the sensitivity to changes n foreign
exchange rates and interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the basis that the derivative portfolic and the proportion of derivativas hedging foreign exchange risk and cash flow interest
rate risk are all constant and on the basis of hedge designations in place at 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006, respectively. As a consequence, this sensitivity analysis
relates to the position at these dates and is not representative of the year then ended.

The following assumptions were made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

- thebalance sheet sensitivity to interest rates relates only to derivative instruments as cash and debt balances are carried at amortised cost and so their carrying value
does not change as interest rates move;

» changes in the carrying value of derivative financial instruments designated as cash flow hedges or net investiment hedges are assumed to be recorced fully in equity;

- the sensitivity of accrued interest to movements in interest rates is cakculated on net floating rate exposures on debt cash and derivative instrumients,

- changes in the carrying value of derivative financial instruments not in hedging relationships only affect the ircome statement;

- allother changes in the carrying value of derivative financial instruments designated as hedges are fully effect ve with no impact on the income statement;

+ alldebtis flpating rate for the accrued interest part of the calculation;

- thefloating rate leg of any swap or any floating rate debt is treated as not having any interest rate already set, therefore a change in the interest rates siffects a fult
twelve-month period for the accrued interest portion of the sersitivity calculations;

+  the sensitivity of foreign exchange rates only looks at the outstanding foreign exchange forward book and the cusrency bank account balances of pl; company only
as at the bafance sheet date and assumed this is the position for a full twelve-month period;

- thesensitivity of a 10% movement in foreign exchange rates has been used due to the fact that histerically rates can move by approximately 10% per annum; and

- the sensitivity of a 1% movement in interest rates has been used as over the last three years floating $ interest rates have moved by an average 196 per annum,

Using the above assumptions, the following table shows the illustrative effect on the income statement and equity that would result from reasenably possible movemnents
in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates, before the effects of tax.

2007 2006

Income income
Statemnent Equity Statersent Equiy
-+ £m -+ £m -1 £m +Em
£/5 FX rates - £ strengthens 10% 0.2 293 07 275
£/5 FX rates - £ weakens 10% 0.2) (35.5) 0.9} (3349)
£/Euro FX rates - £ strengthens 10% - 6.3 03 59
£/Euro FX rates - £ weakens 10% - {7.7) 04 (7.2
Interest rates +1.00% (3.4} 27 30} 29
Interest rates -1.00% 3.4 (2.8} 30 (3.0}

The fereign exchange analysis in the sensitivity table above illustrates the impact of movements in fareign exchangs rates on foreign currency transactionilf exposuies
and does not include the impact an the translation of the Group's income statement and balance sheet. The translation impact on profit before tax in the Group's income
statement from the movement in exchange rates is approximately £0.35 million for each 1 cent movement in the £/5 exchange rate.

¥} BBA Avlation Annual Report 2007




19. Provisions

On

Exchange acquisition
Beglnning tate Charged Utllised of End
of year adjustments In year inyear subsidiaries of year
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Restructuring provisions 34 {0.1) 08 (2.1 - 20
Discontinued operations 21.2 - 10 (2.0 - 201
Environmental provisions 1.6 - - (1n 06 11
26.2 {0.1) 18 (5.3) 0.6 232

Restructuring provisions represents costs provided in relation to decisions made at the balance sheet date for reorganisations which are expected to occur within ene
year of the balance sheet date. The charges to the restructuring provision refate principally to the closure of a number of commercial cargo handling operations.

Discontinued operations represents a provision for enviranmental liabilities relating to businesses that have been disposed of by the Group in prior years. The liabilities
have been assessed over a remaining periad of 25 years. The provision of £20.1 million is partially offset by expected recoveries from thied parties of £13.3 million
(2006; £13.3 million), which are included within trade and other receivables due after one year in note 13, The charges to the provision relate to businesses which were

disposed during the year.

Environmental provisions relate to enviranmental liabilities within businesses that have been acquired by the Group. The liabilities have an expected life of up to five years.

2007 2036

Analysed as: im £m
Current lizbilities 2.0 34
Neon-current liabilities 21.2 228
23.2 26.2

20. Pensions and other post-retirement benefits

The Group operates a number of plans worldwide, of both the funded defined benefit type and the defined contribution type. The normal pension cost for the Group,
including early retirement costs, was £7.4 million (2006: £10.1 million) of which £3.0 million (2006: £6.1 million) was in respect of foreign schemes. This includes £3.1 million
{2006: £5.4 million) relating to defined contribution schemes. The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries, where
practicable, using a variety of methods and assumptions and otherwise, in respect of certain foreign schemes, in accordance with local reguiations.

The Group’s main UK pension commitments are contained within a final salary defined benefit scheme with assets held in a separate trustee administered fund.

Contributiens to the scheme are made and the pension cost is assessed using the projected unit method. The latest actuarial valuation of the scheme was as at

31 March 2004, A valuation as at 31 March 2007 is currently underway.

The Group’s foreign pension schemes mainly relate 1 a number of funded final satary defined benefit pensian arrangements in North America. Pension costs have been
calculated by independent qualified actuaries, using the projected unit method and assumptions appropriate to the arrangements in place,

The Group also operates a number of plans in North America which principally cover healthcare and life assurance benefits for its retirees. The costs of these other

post-retirement benefits are assessed by independent qualified actuaries.

In accordance with |AS 19, and subject to materiality, the latest actuarial valuations of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes and healthcare plan have been reviewed
and updated as at 31 December 2007. The following weighted average financial assumptions have been adopted:

United Kingdom

pa9%) 2007 2006 2005 2007
Discount rate 5.8 5.1 48 6.0
Rate of increase to pensianable salaries 4.7 44 4.4 4.0
Price inflation 3.2 29 29 2.8
Rate of increase to pensions in payment 3.2 29 28 -

Nerth Amerlca

2006
57
40
28

2005
54
39
28

2006

Rest of World
2005

4.2
23
21
1.2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. Pensions and other post-retirement benefits continued
For the UK plan, the mortality assumptions are based on the recent actual mortality experfence of members within the plan and the assumptions also allow for future
mortality improvemenits, The life expectancy assumptions applying to the UK plan as at 31 December 2007 are as fc llows:

Male Fernale
Life expectancy for a curreni 65 year old {years) WA 219
Life expectancy for a 65 year old in 15 years {years) 230 232

For the US post retirement medical plan, the immediate trend rate for medical benefits was 7%, which is assumed t¢ reduce by 1% per annum to 5% in 2009 onwards.

The fair value of the assets and liabilities of the schemes at each balance sheet date were:

United Kingdom Narth America Rest of Warld Total
2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005
£m fm fm £m £m £m im £m im £m fm fm
Assets
Equities 1394 1288 1234 1.8 120 270 - - 05 151,2 1408 1509
Government bonds 160.0 1590 1624 7.2 6.9 18.8 - - 01 1672 1659 1813
Corporate bonds 20.0 872 781 1.3 1.3 15.6 - - - 91.3 885 937
Property 44.4 56.3 45.1 - - - - - - 44.4 56.3 451
{nsurance policies 2.5 88 88 - - 13 - - - 2.5 88 10.1
Cash 20.3 i2.8 19.0 1.2 40 - - - - 21.5 16.8 ie.0
Total fair value of scheme assets 4566 4529 4368 21.5 24.2 62.7 - - 06 4781 4771 50041
Present value of defined benefit obligations 391.0 4642 4522 31.8 340 1015 - - 1.0 4228 4982 5647
Asset not recognised 65.6 - - - - - - - - 65.6 - -
Asset/(liability) recognised on the balance sheet - (1.3 (154) (10.3) 08 (388 - - 004 (0.3} (21)  (646)

The funding policy for the United Kingdorn and majority of the North American schemes is reviewed on a systernatic basis in consultation with the indepenident scheme
actuary in order to ensure that the funding contributions fram sponsering employers are approprizte to meet the liabilities of the schemes over the long teim.

Included within other receivables in the balance sheet are £3.6 million (2006: £3.2 million) of listed investrments which are held in trust for the benefit of mernbers of the
North American schemes. These amounts are not included within the assets shown above as they are not controlled by the pension schemes in question.

United Kingdom North America
Long Term Expected Return on Assets (%) 2007 200¢ 2005 2007 2006 2005
Equities 8.3 8.8 88 8.3 £8 83
Government Bonds 4.5 45 40 4.5 48 44
Corporate Bonds 5.0 50 45 5.0 L8 5.1
Other 6.8 70 6.5 a7 4.1 4.0

The expected rates of return reflect the Group's best estimate of the investment returns (net of 1ax and expenses) that will be earned on each asset class over the long term.
The long-term rates of reiurn on bonds and other investments are set in line with market yields available at the balan:e sheet date. The long-term rate of retrn on equities
is derived from considering current “risk free” rates of return with the addition of a future *risk premium’, The overall expected return on assets in the analysis of the income
statement is based on weighted average returns using the above rates for each asset ¢lass, and taking into account the asset allocation in each plan.

United Kingdom North America Rest of World Total

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 20606 2007 2006

Analysis of income staternent charge £m £m Em Em £m £m £m im
Current service cost 4.4 4.7 0.3 056 - 07 47 6.0
Interest cost 23.3 21.2 1.7 47 - 03 250 26.2
Expected return on assets {27.6} (24.6} (1.3) (3.5 - - {28.9) (28.1)
(Gain)/loss due 1o settlements/curtzilments and terminations (0.4} (1.6) - 03 - - (0.9) (1.3)
Expense recognised in income statament 0.3) {0.3) 0.7 2.1 - 1.0 0.4 2.8
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20. Pensions and other post-retirement benefits continued
Current and past service costs have been recognised in the income staiernent within administrative expenses. Net interest income has been recognised within investrmen:
incame. Settlernent losses have been recognised within other operating expenses and curtailment gains have been recognised within other operating income.

United Kingdom North America Rest of World Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
fm fm £m £m £m im £m fm
Changes to the present value of the defined
benefit obligation during the year
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year 464.2 452.2 34,0 1015 - 1.0 498.2 564.7
Current service cost 4.4 47 0.3 06 - 07 47 6.0
Interest cost 23.3 212 1.7 47 - 0.3 250 26.2
Contributions by plan participants 0.7 09 - 0l - - 0.7 1.0
Actuarial losses on scheme liabilities* {79.1} 68 1.5 1.5 - Q1) [77.6) 3.2
Net benefits paid out [22.1} (20.0) {1.8) (7.6) - 08 {23.9) {28.4)
Gains due to settlements and curtailments (0.4} (1.6) (3.5) (8.4) - - (3.9) {(10.0}
Termination benefits - - - 0.2 - - - 0.2
Disposals/demerger of subsidiaries - - - (48.8) - (10.9) - (59.7)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes - - 0.4} .8) - 0.2 {0.4) (10.0)
Defined benefit obligation at end of year 391.0 464.2 31.8 340 - - 422.8 498.2
* Includes changes to the actuarial assumptions.
United Kingdom North America Rest of World Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
£m im £m im £m fm £m £m
Changes to the fair value of scheme assets during the year
Fair value of scheme assets at beginning of year 452.9 436.8 24.2 627 - 06 4771 5001
Expected return on assets 276 246 1.3 35 - - 289 281
Actual employer contributions 19.7 9.2 1.9 89 - 0.8 21.6 189
Contributions by plan participants 0.7 09 - 0.1 - - 0.7 10
Net henefits paid out (22.1) (200 1.8 (76) - (0.8) {23.9) (28.4)
Actuarial gains/(losses) on assets (22.2) 14 {0.4) 11 - 0.1 (22.6) 26
Settlemenits - - {3.5) (8.5} - - {3.5) 8.5)
Disposals/demerger of subsidiaries - - - (30.0} - {0.6) - (30.6)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes (if applicable) - - {0.2) (6.0} - (0.1) {0.2) {6.1)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 456.6 4529 21.5 24.2 - - 478.1 4771
United Kingdom North America Rest of World Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Em £m £m f£m tm £m im £m
Actual retuzn on scheme assets 5.4 260 0.9 46 - 1Al 6.3 30.7
United Kingdom North America Rest of World Tatal
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m fm £m £m £m im
Analysis of amounts recognised in SoRIE
Total actuarial gains/(losses) recognised in year 56.9 (54} 1.9} 0.4 - 0.2 55.0 (5.6)
Asset not recognised (65.6) - - - - - (65.6) -
[1: % (5.4} (1.9) 04 - 0.2 [10.6} (5.6
Cumulative amount of gains/{losses) recognised in SORIE 48,4 {8.5) {14.5) {i2.6} {3.8) (3.8 30.1 {24.9)

A 1% increase in assumed medical cost trend rates would increase the aggregate charge in the income statement by £nil and increase the net liability by £0.2 million.
A 1% decrease in assurned medical cost trend rates would reduce the aggregate charge in the income statement by £nil and reduce the net liability by £0.2 millior.
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20. Pensions and other post-retirement benefits continued

History of Asset Values, Defined Benefits Obligation, Surplus/Deficits in Schemes and Experience Gains and Losses

United Kingdom

North America

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2007 2006 2005 1004 2003
£m £m im fm im £m fm £m im im
Fair value of assets 456.6 4529 436.8 Rk 3689 21.5 .2 627 23 501
Defined benefits chligation 391.0 464.2 45232 4153 3880 318 340 1015 £20 754
Surplus/deficit) 65.6 {1+.3) (15.4) (334) {19.1) (10.3) 98 (38.8) (:9.7) {29.3)
Experience gains on scheme assets {22.2) 14 375 54 - 0.4 11 - IR -
Experience losses on scheme liabilities  60.4 0.6} 0.2} 9.0 - {0.5) (1.9 (24 1.6} -
Restof World Total
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2007 2006 2005 2004 2002
£m fm £m £m £m £m fm fm £m im
Fair value of assets - - 06 04 0.3 478.1 4771 500.1 4346 419.3
Defined benefits obligation - - i1.0 7.2 6.7 422.3 498.2 564.7 504.5 4741
Surplus/{deficit) - - (10.4) [6.8) (6.9 55.3 (21.1) 164.6) (£99) (54.8)
Experience gains/(losses) on scheme assets - 0.1 0.1 01 - 22.5) 26 376 56 -
Experience (gains)/losses on scheme liabilities — 0.1 2.8) - - 592 (2.4) {54) {10.6} -
United Kingdom Narth America Rest of World Total
Employer centributions for 2008 are estimated to be as follows: £6.9m £1.3m il £8.2m
21, Deferred tax
Fixed Other  Goodwlltik Taxlosses&  Retirement Sharebaied
assets assets  intangibles tax credits benefits payments Total
im £m £m £&m £m Em £m
Beginning of year (21.6) 164 (18.5) 34 38 29 (15.7)
Charged in year 07 (2.6) (3.2 (19 09 (1.7) (6.8)
Recegnised directly in equity - (23) - - 2.8 - 0.5
Acquisitions/(disposals/demerger) 18 08 (1.m - - - 16
Exchange adjustments 03 0.3) 0.3 - 0.0 - 0.2
End of year (18.8) 120 (22.5) 15 74 1).2 {20.2)
Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax batances {sfter offset) for financial reporting purposes:
207 2006
tm tm
Deferred tax liabilities {2¢.0} (15.7)
Deferred tax assets L8 -
{2012} (15.7)

At the balance sheet date, the Group has unracognised deferred tax assets relating 1o tax losses and ather temporary differences of £5.0 million (2006: £10.1 million) available

for offset against future profits. These assets have not been recognised as the precise incidence of future profits in the relevant countries and legal entities cannot be
accurately predicted at this time. Included in the unrecognised deferred tax asset is £0.1 million (2006: £1.0 million relating to losses due to expire in 2008) which relates to
kxsses which will expire by 2012, Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely under current tax legislaticn.

At the balance sheet date, ihe aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for which defesred tax liatilities have not
bieen recognised was £2.5 million (2006: £13.6 million). No liability has been recognised in respect of these differences because the Group is in a position to -ontrol the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Tempeorary differences arising in connection with interests in asseciates and joint ventures are insignificant.

22.Share capital and reserves

Share capital

Number of shares

Ordinary 29%/xp shares

5% Cumulative preference £1 shares

6.75% Cumulative redeemable convertible preference £1 shares

Allotted, called

up andg fully paid

2007 2006
millions millions
412.4 411.7
0.2 02

2007
millions

504.0
0.2
35.0

Authorised
2006
millions

5040
0.2
85.0
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22._Share capital and reserves continued

Allotted, called
up and fully paid Authorised
Nomina! value of shares £m £m im
Equity shares

Ordinary 29'%/zp shares 1225 150.0 1500
Nan-equity shares

5% Cumulative preference £1 shares 0.2 0.2 0.2

6.75% Cumulative redeemable convertible preference £1 shares - 95.0 95.0

0.2 95.2 95.2

1227 245.2 2452

Issue of share capital

During the year 695,076 ordinary 29%/x»p shares were issued under the BBA Aviation share option schemes. The consideration for shares issued in respect of share opticns

was £1.5 million,

2007 2006
£m £m
Reserves attributable to equity interests
Share premium account
Beginning of year 345.1 340.2
Premium on shares issued 1.3 49
End of year 346.4 3451
Other reserves
Beginning and end of year 3.9 39
Treasury reserve
Beginning of year 1.4} {0.8)
Issue of own shares - 0.1
Purchase of own shares - 09)
Sale/transfer of own shares 0.8 -
Transfer to retained earnings 0.6 -
End of year - 1.4)
Capital reserve
Beginning of year 15.5 158
Creditto equity for equity-settled share-based payments 1.9 04
Transfer to retained earnings on exercise of equity-settled share-based payments 0.2) .7
End of year 17.2 155
Hedging reserve
Beginning of year 5.1 09
{Decrease)/increase in fair value of cash flow hedging derivatives (2.5) 57
Transfer tg income (3.8) 0.3
End of year (1.2) 5.4
Trans!ation reserve
Beginning of year {32.8) {0.6)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 1.5 (36.6)
Exchange differences recycled on disposal/demerger of subsidiaries - 44
End of year (31.3) 32.8)
Total other {1.4) ©n
Retained earnings
Beginning of year {136.2) 2564
Transfer from capital reserve on exercise of equity-settled share-based payments 0.2 o7
Transfer from treasury reserve {0.6) -
Deferred tax on items taken directly to reserves 32 03
Actuarial losses (10.6) (5.6)
Dividends paid {29.9) {57.7)
Dividend in specie - (320.0)
Profit/(loss) for the year 87.4 {10.3}
(86.5) {136.2)

At 31 December 2007 13,882 ordinary 29'%/ap shares (2006; 303,889 shares) with a nominal value of £4,132 (2006: £90,443) and a market value of £28,493 (2006: £831,136) were
held in the BBA Employee Benefit Trust, a trust set up in 2006. Halifax EES Trustees International Limited, the trustees of the BBA Employee Benefit Trust, has agreed to waive

its dividend entitlement in certain circumstances.
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22, Share capital and reserves continued

Rights of non-equity interests

5% Cumulative preference £1 shares:

i.  entitle helders, in priority to holders of all other classes of shares, to a fixed cumulative preferential dividend at « rate of 5.0% per annum per share pay.ble half vearly in
equal amounts on i February and 1 August;

i, onareturn of capital on a winding up, or otherwise, will carry the right ta repayment of capital together with a premium of 12.5p per share and a sum equai to any
arrears or deficiency of dividend; this right is in priority to the rights of the ordinary shareholders;

iil.  carry the right to attend and vote at a general meeting of the Company only if, at the date of the notice convering the meeting, payment of the dividind to which they
are entitled is six months or more in arrears, or if a resolution is to be considered at the meeting for winding-up the Company or reducing its share capital or sanctioning
the sate of the undertakings of the Company ar varying ar abrogating any of the special fights attaching to them,

Rights of equity interests

29%/zp Ordinary shares:

i carry noright to fixed income;

ii. onareturn of capital on & winding up, or ctherwise, will carry the right to repayment of capital; this right is subardinate o the rights of the preference shareholders;
iii. carry the right to attend and vote at a meeting of the Company.

23. Share-based payments

Equity-settled share option scheme

The Group plan provides for a grant price equal to the average of the middle market price of a BBA Awviation share up to five dealing days prior to the date o” grant. The
vesting period is generally three o four years. if the options remain unexercised after a peried of 10 years from the date of grant, the options expire. Furthermore, options
are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group before the options vest.

Details of the share aptions outstanding during the year are as follows;

2007 2006

Welghted Weighted

Number average Num bet average

of share exercise of st are exercise

options price options price

Quistanding at the beginning of the year 16,216,396 275p 26,800,344 224p
Granted during the year 3,640,640 254p 2,660,200 288p
Exercised during the year {1,212,312) 225p (5892492 163p
Lapsed during the vear {3,437,283} 307p (7.351,656) 187p
QOutstanding at the end of the year 15,202,441 226p 16,216,396 275p
Exercisable at the end of the year 6,308,200 171p 6,723,623 263p

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the period was 277p. The options outstanding at 31 December 2007 had
weighted average remaining contractual life of 84 months and an exercise price range of £1.53 to £4.85, The weighted average fair value of options granted Juring the year
was 190p.

The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted and calculated using the valuation technique
most appropriate to each type of award. These include Black-Scholes cakculations and Mente Carlo simulations. The inputs into the models were as follows:

2007 2006
Issuedin Issued in

March 2003 Qthers  March 2013 Others.

Weighted average share price {pence) 153 269 143 280
Weightad average exercise price {pence) 153 247 153 281
Expected volatility (%) 12.9% 20.7% 14.3% 201%
Expected life (monghs} 1 26 14 26
Risk-free rate (36) 4.0% 4.7% 40% 4.5%
Expected dividends (%) 4.6% 3.4% 4.8% 34%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Group's share price over the period of time equivalent to the remaining contractual life of
the option. The expecied life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and
behavioural considerations.

The Groug recognised total expenses of £2.0 million (2006: £0.4 million) related to equity-seitled share-based payment transactions during the year.

Cash-settled share-based payments

The Group issues to ceriain emplayees share appreciation rights (SARs) that require the Group 1o pay the intrinsic valu2 of the SAR 10 the employee at the date of exercise.
The fair value of the SARs is determired using the valuation technigue most appropriate to each type of award. These include Black-Scholes calculations and Monte Carlo
sirmulations and use the assumptions noted in the above 1able. The Group has recorded liabilities of £0.9 million {2006: £2.2 million) and a total credit of £1.1 million

{2006: credit £2.8 million). The total intrinsic value of vested SARs at 31 December 2007 was nil (2006: £0.1 miltion),

Other share-based payment plan

The Company’s savings-related share option scheme is open 1o all eligible UK employees. Options are granted at a price equal to the average three day midd e market
price of a BBA Aviation ordinary share prior to the date of grant, less 209, Options are granted under three r five year SAYE contracis. The maximum overall empicyee
contribution is £250 per manith. Pursuant to this plan, the Group issued 101,219 ordinary shares in 2007 (2006: 703,040 shares).
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24, Reconciliation of movements in total shareholders’ equity

2007 2006
im im
Tonal recognised income and expense for the period 75.2 @.7)
Equity dividends [29.9) {577}
Dividend in specie - (320.0)
Credit to equity for equity-settied share-based payments 19 04
Movement in mingrity interests {0.1) 04
Movement on treasury reserve 0.8 08
Issue of shares 1.5 5.8
Net movement in total shareholders’ equity for the period 49.4 413.6)
Total shareholders' equity at beginning of period 322,85 736.1
Total shareholders’ equity at end of period 3719 3225
25. Cash flow from operating activities
' 2007 2006
£m m
Operating profit from centinuing operations 1301 048
Operating loss from discontinued operations - (97.9)
Share of profit from asscciates {1.1) {0.8)
Profit/{loss) from operations 129.0 (39)
Depreciation of property, plant & equipment 269 624
Amortisation of intangible assets 3.2 43
Loss/(profit} on sale of property, plant & equipment 0.2 14
Share-basedpayment expense 20 -
{Decrease)/increase in provisions {3.5) 1.5
Pension scheme payments nzy (14.3)
Non-cash impairments 9.9 705
Gain on disposal of businesses (38.4) -
Operating cashflows before movements in working capital 112.2 1191
{Increase)/decrease in working capital {15.5) 92
Cash generated by cperations 96.7 1283
Income taxes paid {18.0} (9.5)
Net cash flow from operating activities 78.7 118.8
Analysed as:
Net cash flow from continuing operations 102.4 i22i
Net cash flow from discontinued operations {23.7) (3.3
78.7 188
Dividends received from asscciates 0.5 03
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {36.3) (90.7)
Purchase of intangible assets (3.5 [{R}]
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 29 59
Interest received 35.8 419
Interest paid {58.4) 69.9)
Interest etement of finance leases paid {1.6) 1
Free cash flow 18.1 3
Analysed as:
Free cash inflow from continuing operations 41,8 48.1
Free cash outflow from discontinued operations (23.7) 450
18.1 31

Share of profit from associates above includes discontinued aperations which are included within profit after 1ax from discontinued operations on the face of the
income statement in 2006.

During the year, discontinued operations contributed £(23.7) miffion (2006: £(3.3) million) ta the Group's net aperating cash flows, paid £nit {2006: £43.8 milion} in respect

of investing activities and paid £nit {2006: £7.2 million) in respect of financing activities, The 2007 cash flows are described further in note 5.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26. Disposal of a subsidiary
Oxford Aviation Training and Oxford Airport
On 29 June 2007 the Group disposed of its interest in Oxford Aviation Training and on 19 July 2007 disposed of its interest in Oxford Airport.

The net assets of these businesses at the date of disposal and 31 December 2006 were as follows:

Oxford Aviation Training Oxford Airport
29 june 31 December 1uly 31 December
| 2007 2006 2007 2006
£m £m £m im

Intangible assets 1.8 1.8 2.4 24
Property, plant and equipment 8.1 30 16.3 104
Inventories 0.3 0.3 0.1 01
Trade and other receivables 2.7 10 2.1 05
Trade and other payables {12.%) ©93) (1.0 07)
Tax liabilities {0.4) - (0.6) -
Bank overdrafts and loans - (26.2) - 19

10.4 (14.4) 19.3 108
Disposal costs 1.8 1.2
Gain on disposal 19.8 '18.6

320 39.1
Satisfied by:
Cash 320 394
Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration received 32.0 1391
Bank overdrafts, loans, finance leases and cash and cash equivalents disposed of on demerger/disposal - -

32.0 39

In total, Oxford Aviation Training and Oxford Airport contributed £2.0 million to operating profit in 2007,
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26. Disposal of a subsidiary continued
Fiberweb and Becorit
As referred 1o in note 5, on 17 November 2006 the Group demerged Fiberweb, and on 1 December 2006 disposed of its interest in Becorit GmbH,

The net assets of these businesses at the date of demerger/disposal were as follows:

Fiberweb Becorit
17 Novemnber 1 December
2006 2006
tm £m
Intangible assets 97.3 -
Property, plant and equipment 3434 78
Investmenits in associates 9.0 -
Inventories 823 25
Trade and other receivables 1054 25
Cash and cash equivalents 36.5 1.0
Deferred tax assets - 2.2
Trade and other payables 83.3) (1.7)
Tax liabilities {1.8) -
Bank overdrafts and loans (202.8) -
Provisions (71) -
Obligations under finance leases ©.8) -
Retirement benefit obligations (24.8) 4.3)
Deferred tax liability (31.7) -
356 100
Other effects' 44 13
Gain on disposal - 165
3200 278
Satisfied by:
Dividend in specie 3200 -
Cash - 273
Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration received - 273
Bank overdrafts, loans, finance leases and cash and cash equivalents disposed of on demerger/disposal 1731 (1.0)
1731 268

1 Other effects include costs of disposal, tax and the recycling of foreign currency translation on disposal.

The impact of Fiberweb and Becorit on the Group’s results and cash flows in the current and pricr periods is disclosed in note 5.
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27. Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings
The Group made a number of acquisitions during the year which are detailed in the Directors’ Report on page 40. The directors have performed an exercise to establish the
provisional fair value of the assets and lighilities of these acquisitions. The net assets acquired and the goodwill arising on these acquisitions are as setoul below:

Adjustinents  Provisional

tc align Fair

Book accol nting valueto

Value Revaluations policles  BBA Group

£m £m £m £m

Intangible assets 1.3 17.0 - 18.3
Property, olant and equipment 14.6 1.4 - 16.0
Inventories 4.0 - {0.9) ER]
Receivables 3.2 - - 3.2
Payables {1.6} (1.1) (0.2) {2.9)
Taxation 0.6 - - 0.6
Net borrowings (0.1} - - {0.1)
Net assets/{liabilities) 22.0 17.3 (1.1 38.2

Goadwill 40.1
Total consideration (including ceferred consideration) 78.3
Deferred consideration (2.8)
Net cash consideration paid in 2007 75.5

The fair values set out above are provisional and may be subject to amendment on finalisation of the fair value exercises.
In the period since acquisition to 31 December 2007, the revenue from acquisitions was £20.5 million and profit fo- the vear was £2.1 million.

The acquisitions noted above contributed £0.4 million to the Group's net operating cash flows, paid £nil in respec of net returns on investment and serv cing of finance,
paid £nil in respect of taxation, paid £0.2 million in respect of capital expenditure and utilised £nil for investing activities.

If the acquisitions had been completed on 1 January 2007, total revenue for the period from acquisitions would have been £52.2 million, and profit for th2 vear would have
been £5.2 million.

The goodwlll arfsing on these acquisitions is attributable to the anticipated profitability arising from the expansion of the Group’s FBO network, the integration of new
preducts into our Landing Gear and Hydraulics portfolio, together with anticipated future operating synergies.

28. Contingent assets and liabilities
The Group is party to legal proceedings and claims which arise in the normal course of business, including specific product liability and envirenmental claims in BBA
Nonwovens North America and BBA Aviation respectively. Any liabilities are likely to be mitigated by legal defences, insurance, reserves and third party ir demnities.

Adiditionally, the Group has previcusly owned businesses that manufactured products containing asbestos. No BEA company has manufactured or sold any products or
materials containing asbestos for many years. A small number of former BBA companies have been named as defzndants to asbestos related claims. Wh=n these companies
were sold, BBA retained certain obligations to indeminify the purchasers against such claims. Notwithstanding such indemnity arrangemenits, the costs incurred by BBA in
dealing with claims made against these former BBA companies have been immateria! to BBA. During the period 1389 to 31 December 2007, BBA's costs cf defending and
disposing of all asbestos related claims, net of insurance coverage, were approximately £5.0 million. BBA maintains a portfolio of insurance coverage in respect of the
majority of such claims, including legal defence costs and liability cover. State operated compensation programmes have also provided coverage. On th2 basis of its past
claims experience, BBA does not anticipate any material increase in the cost to it of resolving such claims.

Whilst the cutcome of these claims are, by their nature uncertain, the directors do not currently anticipate that the outcome of the proceedings and clairs set out above
either individually, or in aggregate, will materially exceed the insurance coverage or ameunts provided as shown i note 19, and are not expected to have: a material adverse
effect upon the Group’s financial position.

Following the authorisation of the US Departrent of Transport 1o pravide reimbursernent of up te £8 million 1o fixed-based general aviation operators and cthers at five
metropoelitan Washington DC area airports and the issue of the proposed rules of eligibikity for reimbursement in (ctober 2007, management consider that the receiptin
2008 of compensation following the closure of Washington Reagan Naticnal Airport in 2001 is probable. Whilst we befieve that a significant proportien < f the £8 million
compensation should be due to BBA, as our base at Washington Reagan took the majority of business aviation traffic in the Washington DC area, it is not practicable to
estimate accurately a specific amount.

922 BBA Aviation Annual Repaort 2007




29, Events after the balance sheet date

On 18 January 2008 the Group announced the closure of CSE Engineering, an engineering business based at Oxford Airport. The expected losses related to the liguidation
of the assets and liabilities of this business have been reflected in the results for the year ended 31 December 2007. Since the Group was not irrevocably committed to the
closure at the balance sheet date, the cash costs of closure have not been accrued in 2007 in accordance with IAS 10 *Pest Balance Sheet Events”. These cash costs will be
expensed in 2008 when incurred, and are expected to amount to approximately £2 million. -

On 22 February 2008 the Group announced that it had agreed to purchase the assets of Hawker Beechcraft Services Inc’s Line Service Operaticns for a cash consideration of
$128.5 millior: (£64.9 million) on a debt and cash free basis. Closing of the deal is expected in May 2008 and is subject to Hart-Scott Roding and other third party approvals.

30. Related party transactions
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note, Details of
transactions between the Group and other related parties are detailed below.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year was as follows:

2007 2006

£m fm

Short-term benefits 4.7 46
Post-employment benefits 1.1 0.5
Termination benefits 0.4 0.8
Share-based payments 0.2) (0.5)
6.0 54

Post-employment benefits include contributions of £0.9 million (2006: £0.3 million) in relation to defined contribution schemes.

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by the Remuneration Committee having regard to the performance of the individuals and market trends.
Other related party transactions

During the year a subsidiary provided services to a company controlled by a person who is a close family mermber of Roberto Quarta, a director of BBA Aviation plc in 2007,
These were pravided in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and amounted to £3,558 (2006: £9.434). At 31 December 2007 £nil remained unpaid
{2006: £nil).

Ouring the year, Group companies ertered into the following transactions with related parties who are not rmembers of the Group:

Amounts owed

Purchases of Goods ta refated parties

2007 2006 2007 2006

£m £m £m fm

Associates 311 781 8.0 66

Purchases were made at market price discounted to reflect the quantity of goods purchased and the relationships between the parties.
The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash, No guarantees have been given or received.

At the balance sheet date, Group companies had loan receivables from an associated undertaking of £1.3 million (2006: £1.3 million). The loans are unsecured and wilt be
settled in cash, and were made on terms which reflect the relationships between the parties.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the members of BBA Aviation plc

We have audited the parent company financial staternents of BBA Aviation plc for
the year ended 31 Decemnber 2007 which comprise the Balance Sheet and the
related notes 1 to 12. These parent company financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of BBA Aviation
plc for the year ended 31 December 2007 and on the information in the directors’
remuneration report that is described as having been audited

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance
with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Our audit work has been undertaken
50 that we might state to the Ccmpeny’s members those matters we are required to
state to thern in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we Go not accept or assurne responsibility 10 anyone other than
the company and the company’s members as a body, far cur audit work, far this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the parent
company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generalty Accepted Accounting
Practice) are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities.

Qur responsibility is to audit the parent company financial statements in
accordance with reevant legal and regutatory requirerents and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent company financial
statemanits give a true and fair view and whether the parent company financial
statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
1985. We alsc report to you whether in our opinion the Directors’ Report is
consistent with the parent company financial statements, The information given
in the Directors’ Report includes that specific information presented in the
Business Review that is cross referred from the Business Review section of the
Directors’ Repaort.

!n addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper
accounting records, if we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directoss’
remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report as described in
the contents section and consider whether it is consisient with the audited parent
company financial statements. We consider the implications for our report if we
become aware of any apparent misstatements or materiad inconsisiencies with the
parent company financial stazements. Our respensibilities de not extend to any
further information outside the Annual Report.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit n accordance with Internationat Standiirds on Auditing
(UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amount; and disclosures
in the parent company financial statements, It alsc includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation
of the parent company financial statements, and of whether the accounting
polidies are appropriate to the Company's circumstances, consis ently applied
and adequately disclosed!.

We planned and petformed our audit 50 as to obtain afl the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient
evidence to give reasonadle assurance that the parent company financial statements
are free from material misstaternent, whether caused by fraud o~ other irregularity or
error, In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of informatian in the parent company financial statements.

Opinion

In qur gpinion:

«  the parent company financial staternents give a true and far view, in
accordance with Un ted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2007,

+  the parent company financial statements have been prope ty prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1985; and

- theinformation given in the Directors’ Report is consistent 'with the parent
company financial staterments.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants ad Registered Auditors
London, United Kingdorm:

27 February 2008
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Company Balance Sheet

2007 2006
Notes £m fm
Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Land and buildings 3 0.3 0.2
Plant and machinery 3 0.1 02
Investiments 4 2,219.6 18186
2,220.0 1,.8190
Current assets
Debtors due after one year 5 - 134
Debtors due within one year 5 667.4 8849
Cash at bank and in hand 12.3 624
679.7 960.7
Current liabilities
Creditors; amounts falling due within one year
Borrowings and finance leases 6 {12.2) &9
QOthers 6  {1,334.3) (1)67.3)
Net current assets/{liabilities) (671.8) (214.0)
Totat assets less current liabilities 1,548.2 1,605.0
Long-term liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowings and finance leases 78 (413.2) (468.0)
Others 8 - 01
Total net assets 1,135.0 1,1369
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 10 122.7 122.5
Share premiurm account 10 346.4 3451
Revaluation reserve ¢ 3.5 35
Other 10 248.2 2494
Profit and loss account 10 414.2 4164
Shareholders’ funds 1,135.0 11369

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2008 and signed en its behalf by

Simon Pryce
Group Chief Executive

Andrew Wood
Group Finance Director

In accordance with the exemptions perrmitted by 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the profit and loss account of the Company has not been presented, The profit for the
financial year in the accounts of the Company, after dividends from subsidiary undertakings, amounted to £28.0 million (2006: £693.6 million).

The auditars' remuneration for audit and other services is disclosed in note 2 to the Consclidated Financial Statements.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this balance sheet.
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Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting
The financial siatements have heen prepared using the historical cost convention
adjusted for the revaluation of certain fixed assets and in accordance with applicable
United Kingdom accouniting standards.

The principal accounting palicies are set out below. They have all been applied
consistently throughout the yvear and preceding year.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contained in FRS 1
“Cash Flow Staternents” and has not produced a cash flow statement.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contained in FRS 8
“Related Party Transactions” and has not reported transactions with fellow
Group undertakings.

Investments
tn the Company’s financial statements, investments in subsidiary and associated
underiakings are stated at cost less provision for impairment.

Treasury

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated inio Sterling at the rate of exchange
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing
at that date. Any gain or loss arising from a change in exchange rates subsequent to

the date of transaction is recognised in the income statement.

Derivative financial instruments utilised by the Group comprise interest rates
swaps, Cross currency or basis swaps and foreign exchange contracts. All such
instrumenits are used for hedging purposes to manage the risk profile of an
underlying exposure of the Groug in line with the Group's risk management policies.
All derivative insiruments are recorded on the balance sheet 2t fair value.
Recognition of gains or losses on derivative instruments depends on whether
the instrument is designated as a hedge and the type of exposure it is designed
to hedge,

The effective portion of gains or losses on cash fiow hedges are deferred in
equity until the impact from the hedged item is recognised in the income
statement. The ineffective portion of such gains and losses is recognised in the
income statement immediately.

Gains or losses on the qualifying part of net investment hedges are recognised
in equity together with the gains and losses on the underlying net investment. The
ineffective portion of such gains and losses is recognised in the income statement
Immediately.

Changes in the fair value of the derivative financial instruments that do not
qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the income statement as they arise.

Pensions and other Post-Retirement Benefits

The Company provides pension arrangements to majority of full time employees
through the Company’s defined benefit scheme. Itis nat possible toidentify the
share of underlying assets and liabilities in this scheme which is attributable to
the company on a consistent and reasonable basis. Therefore the Company has
applied the provisians in FRS 17 to account for the scheme as if it was a defined
centribution scheme.

The costs of pension plans and other post-retirement benefits are charged to
the profit and loss account so as to spread the costs over employees’ working lives
within the Company. The centribution levels are determined by vatuations
undertaken by independent qualified actuaries.

Share-Based Payments

The Company operates a number of cash and equity-settled share-based
compensation plans. The fair value of the compensation is recognised in the income
statement as an expense. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted and <alculated
using the valuation techn que most appropriate 1 each type of uward. These
include Black-Schotes cak ulations and Monte Carlo simulations. |‘or cash-settled
options, the fair value of the option is revisited at each balance st eet date, For both
cash and equity-settled oations, the Company revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected 1o become exercisable at each balance: sheet date.

Tangible Fixed Assets

Plant and machinery, with the exception of tooling and motor vehicles, was
professionally valued at 31 December 1988 on an existing use basis. Additions after
that date are stated in the balance sheet at cost. Land and buildir gs are stated at
cost or valuation (performed in 1988). Other tangible fixed assets are stated in the
balance sheet at cost. Degreciation is provided on the cost or vat.ation of tangible
fixed assets less estimated residual value and is calculated on a st-aight line basis
over the following estimated useful lives of the assets:

Land

Buildings

Plant and machinery
{including essential
commissicning costs)

not depreciated
40 years maximum

3-1Byears

Tooling, vehicles, computer and office equipment are categorised within plant and
machinery in note 3 of the accounts.

The revaluation reserve consists of the surpluses on the reva uation of land and
buildings to their market value for existing use and on the revaluztion of plant and
machinery to net current raplacement cost. The Directors are not aware of any
material change o the value of these assets since the last revalua jon.

Leases
Where assets are financed by lease agreemenis that give rights siinilar to ownership
(finance leases). the assets are treated as if they had been purchas2d and the feasing
commitments are shown as obligations 1o the lessors. The capital'sation values of
the assets are written off on a straight iine basis over the shorter ¢f the periods of the
leases or the useful lives of the assets concerned. The capital eler ents of future
lease obligations are recorded as liabilities, while the interest elerr ents are charged
to the profit and loss account aver the pericd of the leases 1o produce a constant
rate of charge on the balar ce of capital payments outstanding,

For all other leases (operating leases) the rental payments aré charged to the
profit and loss account on 3 straight line basis over the lives of the leases.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and take s into account
taxation deferred due to timing differences between the treatment of certain items
for taxation and accounting purposes. Deferred tax is pravided in ful! on all liabilities.
In accordance with FRS 19, deferred tax assets are recognised to th e extent itis
regarded that it is mare likely than not that they will be recovered, Deferred tax
assets and liabilities have not been discounted,

Deferred tax is not previded on timing differences arising from the sale or
revaluation of fixed assets unless, at the balance sheet date, a bincing commitment
to sell the asset has been eqtered into and it is unlikely that any gain will qualify for
rollover relief.
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

1. Dividends
On 18 May 2007, the 2006 final dividend of 5.0p per share (total dividend £20.6 million) was paid to shareholders.

0On 2 November 2007, the 2007 interim dividend of 2,.25p per share {total dividend £9.3 million) was paid to shareholders. In November 2006, the 2006 interim dividend paid
was 3.50p per share (total dividend £171 million).

On the demerger of Fiberweb on 17 November 2006, a dividend was declared which was satisfied by theissue of shares in Fiberweb plc - a dividend in specie. The dividend
in specie of £275.0 million represented the Company’s investment in Fiberweb transferred 1o Fiberweb on demerger and debt owed by Fiberweb forgiven on demerger.
The existing shareholders of BBA Group ple were given shares in Fiberweb ple on a ratio of one share in Fiberweb plc for every four shares held in BBA Group plc.
Immediately after the demerger BBA Group plc changed its name to BBA Aviation plc.

In respect of the current year, the Directors propose that a fina! dividend of 5.35p per share wilk be paid to shareholders on 23 May 2008. This dividend is subject to approval
by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and in accordance with FRS 21 *Events after the Balance Sheet Date” has not been included as a liability in these financial
statements. The proposed dividend is payable to all shareholders on the Register of Members on 25 April 2008. The total estimated dividend 1o be paid is £22.1 million.

2. Directors
Emoluments and interests
Detaifs of Directors’ emeluments and interests are provided within the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 48 1o 56.

2007 2006
Number Number
Employees

Average menthly number (including Executive Directors) 33 33
£Em fm

Employment costs
Wages and Salaries 4.2 64
Social security Costs 0.5 09
Pension costs 1.2 0.5
5.9 78

3.Tangible fixed assets

Land and Plant and
buildings  machinery

£m £m
Cost or valuation
Beginning of year 0.4 0.8
Addidons 0.1 0.3
End of year 0.5 0.9
Accumutated depreciation
Beginning of year 0.2 0.6
Provided during the year - 0.2
End of year 0.2 0.8
Net book value end of year
Owned assets - 0.1
Leased assets 0.3 -
0.3 0.1
2007 2006
£m £m
t.and and buildings
Freehold - -
Short leasehold 0.3 0.2
0.3 0.2
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

4, Fixed asset Investments

2007 2006
£m £m
Subsidiary undertakings
Cost of shares
Beginning of year 1,759.5 1,487.8
Additions 513.3 46589
Disposals (112.3) (184.2)
End of year 2,170.5 1,769.5
Provisions
Beginning of year (34.3) (54.3)
End of year (54.3) {54.3)
Net book value end of year 2,116,2 17i5.2
Loans to subsidiary undertakings
Beginning of year 13.4 164
Disposals - (13.0)
End of year 3.4 103.4
Total
Fixed asset investments 2,219.6 1818.6
5. Debtors
1007 2006
£m im
Trade debtors
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 6413.0 868.0
Other debtors, prepaymenits and accrued income 4.4 169
Debtors due within one year 6137.4 8849
Other debrors due after one year - 134
Debtors due after one year - 13.4
6437.4 8983
6. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
1007 2006
£m £m
Borrowings (note 7)
Bank loans and overdrafts "2 6.9
‘7.2 69
QOthers
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 1,3(1.2 1,139
Corparate Tax - United Kingdom 49 49
Ozher taxation and social security 0.2 08
Other creditors 9.4 14.2
Accruals and deferred income 18.6 88
1,334.3 1,167.8

Creditor days for the Company for the year were an average of 62 days (2006: 15 days).
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7. Borrowings

2007 2006
im im
Borrowings summary
Medium-term loans
Repayable between two and five years 413.2 468.0
413.2 468.0
Short-term
Overdrafts, borrowings and finance leases repayable within one year 17.2 6.9
Total borrowings and finance leases 430.4 4749
Cash at bank and in hand (12.3 624
Other liquid assets within other debtors - {13.4)
Other liquid assets within other creditors 6.6 0.1
Net borrowings and finance leases 424.7 399.2
Borrowings analysis:
Unsecured
Bank loans and overdrafts
Sterling 14.9 2411
US dollar 361.9 196.9
Euro 53.2 369
Canadian dollar 0.4 -
Total borrowings and finance leases 430.4 4749
Cash at bank and in hand (12.3) {62.4)
Other fiquid assets within other debtors - (13.4)
Other liguid assets within other creditors 6.5 01
Net borrowings and finance leases 424.7 39%.2
The interest rates onunsecused loans range fram 3.9% to 5.9% per annum and repayments are due at varying dates up to 2009.
Operating Lease Commitments
Land and buildings
Within one year 0.3 02
One to five years 1.2 1.1
1.5 1.3
Contingent liabilities
Guarantees of subsidiary undertakings’ overdrafts or loans and other guarantees 32.6 24

Additional detail of Contingent Liabilities are provided within note 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statement.

Foreign currency contracts
AL 31 Decernber 2007, the Group had £347.5 million (2006: £306.2 miltion) of forward contracts to buy/sell foreign currency.




Notes to the Company Financial Statements

8. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

2007 2006
im tm
Borrowings (note 7)
Bank loans 413.2 468.0
Others
QOther creditors - (R ]
413.2 468.1
9. Reconciliation of movements in shareholders' funds
1007 2006
£m fm
Profit for the period 8.0 6936
Equity dividends (19.9) {57.7)
Dividend in specie - (275.0)
1.9} 360.9
Fair value movements in interest rate cash flow hedges (2.5) 21
Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payments 2.0 04
Movemnent on treasury reserve 0.9 0.8)
Transfer to profit or loss from equity on interest rate hedges {1.8) (1.7
Issue of shares 1.5 5.8
Net movement in shareholders’ funds for the period {1.9) 68.7
Shareholders’ funds at beginning of period 1,116.9 770.2
Shareholders’ funds at end of period 1,145.0 11369
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10. Capital and Reserves
Details of Company Share Capital are provided within note 22 1o the consalidated financial statements.

2007 2006
fm fm
Reserves attributable to equity interests
Share premium account
Beginning of year 3451 3402
Premium on shares issued 1.3 49
End of year 346.4 345)
Revaluation reserve
Beginning and end of year 3.5 35
Other
Mergerreserve
Beginning and end of year 99.3 993
Capital reserve
Beginning and end of year 148.2 1485
Credit to equity for equity-setiled share-based payments 2.0 04
Transfer to retained earnings on exercise of equity-settled share-based payments (0.2) 0.7
End of year 150.0 148.2
Treasury reserve
Beqginning of year 1.4} (0.6)
Issue of own shares 09 a1
Purchase of own shares - {09
Transferred to Profit and Loss account 0.5 -
End of year - (1.9)
Hedging reserves
Beginning of year 3.3 29
Increase in fair value of interest rate cash flow hedges 2.6) 21
Transfer toincome (1.8} 1.7
End of year 1.9 13
Total other 248.2 2494
Profit and foss account
Beginning of year 416.4 54.8
Transfer from capital reserve on exergise of equity-settled share-based payments 0.2 07
Transfer from treasury reserve (0.5) -
Profiz for the period 28.0 693.6
Equity dividends (29.9) (57.7)
Dividend in specie - {275.0)
End of year 414.2 4164

At 31 December 2007 13,882 ordinary 29'%/ap shares (2006: 303,889 shares) with a nominal value of £4,132 (2006: £90,443) and a market value of £28,493 (2006; £831,136) were
held in the BBA Employee Benefit Trust, a trust set up in 2006. Halifax EES Trustees International Limited, the trustees of the BBA Employee Benefit Trust, has agreed to waive
its dividend entitlernent in certain circumstances.

11. Share-based payments
Details of share-based payments ase pravided within note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

12. Pension and other post retirement benefits
The Company operates a defined benefit pension scherne in the United Kingdom, assets are held in a separate trustee-administered fund. Contributions to the scheme
are made and pension cost is assessed using the projected unit method.

Details of the UK Scheme are provided within note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

L]l




Principal Subsidiary Undertakings

The following is a list of the principal subsidiary undertakings of the Group at 31 December 2007, each of which is wholly-owned unless otherwise stated.

Signature Flight Support Paris SA

APPH Limited

APPH Aviation Services Limited

ASIG Limited

H+S Aviation Limited®

Signature Flight Support Londen Luton Limited
Signature Flight Support Heathrow Limited
Signature Flight Support UK Regions Limited
Aircraft Service International Group Incorporated
APPH Wichita Incorporated

APPH Houston Incorporated

Barrett Turbine Engine Company

Dallas Airmotive Incorporated

Executive Beechcraft Incerporated

International Governor Servigces LLC

Ontic Engineering and Manufacturing incorporated
Signature Flight Support Corporation

Country of incorporation
an 1 principal operation

France

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
USA

USA

USA

USA

USA

USA

USA

UsSA

UsSA

* Shares held by 8BA Aviation plc.
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Five Year Summary

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS UKGAAP
£m £m &m £m fm
Income Statement
Revenue 979.4 9501 875.1 13738 1,3306
Undertying operating profit {continuing operations}® 105,7 102.8 B3.0 1270 144.7
Restructuring costs, amortisation of acquired intangibles and non-recurring iterns 24,4 (8.0) (23.9) (28.6) (12.7)
Goodwill amortisation - - - - (48.1)
Interest {net) {19.3}) {24.6) {20.9) (11.9) (16.7)
Profit before tax 1108 70.2 383 86.5 67.2
Tax (23.6) (20.7) (7) (22.3) (26.4)
Profit for the period from continuing cperaticns §7.2 495 31.2 64.3 40.8
{Loss)/profit after tax from discontinued operations - (76.2) 226 64 -
Profit/(loss) on disposal of disposed businesses - 16.5 215 (2.8) (12.0)
Profit/(loss) for the period 87.2 (10.2) 75.3 679 288
Minority interests 0.2 [(A}] 0.2) [{(13}] -
Prefarence dividends - - - - (3.8)
Profit/{loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders 87.4 (10.3) 75.1 67.8 25.0
Earnings per share
Basic:
Adjusted 15.4p 149p 18.4p 19.7p 19.7p
Unadjusted 21.2p 2.2p 159p 14.3p 5.5p
Diluted:
Adjusted 15.3p 149p 18.2p 19.0p 19.6p
Unadjusted 21.1p 2.9)p 15.8p 140p 5.5p
Dividends
Dividends per ordinary share 7.6p 8.5p 1.8p 1.3p 10.8p
Balance sheet
Employment of capital
Non-current assets 709.2 689.0 1.2333 11615 1,120.2
Net current assets 165.7 199.2 3186 3336 2934
Total assets less current liabilities 8749 B838.2 1.5519 14951 14136
Non-current liabilities {461.6) (527.2) {652.9) (697.0} {617.1)
Provisions for liabitities and charges 41.4) (385) (122.9) (126.8; (115.9)
3719 3225 736.1 6713 68046
Capital employed
Called up share capital 122.7 1225 1216 169.0 169.1
Reserves 248.5 199.2 614.2 502.2 5115
Shareholders’ funds 371.2 nz 7358 671.2 6806
Minority interests 0.7 08 03 0.1 -
3”9 3225 7361 6713 6806
Capital expenditure 39.8 G1.8 73.3 569 750
Number of employees, end of year 10,317 10,757 14,070 13674 12,311

* For 2003, which is under UCGAAP this item fepresents total operating profit from continuing and discontinued aperations,
2004 and prior have not been restated 1o reflect the rectassification of the results of Becorit and Fiberweb as discontinued.
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Shareholder information

Analysis of shareholdings

% of
Number of %of Number of share
shareholders totat shares capitat
Size of holding
Ordinary shareholdings
at 31 December 2007
1-1,000 2,224 43.01 913,668 0.22
1,001-5,000 2,023 39.12 4,585,615 11
5,001-10,000 324 6.27 2,264,104 Q.55
10,001-50,000 269 5.20 5,826,09 1.41
50,001-100,000 79 153 5881461 143
100,001 -upwards 252 487 392939220 95.28
5171 100.00 412,420,159 100.00
Holders
Individuals 3633 70.26 21,681,822 5.25
Pension funds 9 617 36,558 0.01
Nominee and
other companies 1474 28.51 387,864,453 9405
Qthers 55 106 2,837,326 069
5171 160.00 412,420,159 100.00

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

A Dividend Reinvestment Plan is available, giving ordinary shareholders the option
to buy shares in lieu of a cash dividend. Please contact the Company's registrars for
further details.

Share dealing service

Ashare dealing service is available for UK shareholders from Capita Share Dealing
Services to either sell or buy BBA Aviation plc shares. For further information on

this service, please contact: www.capitadeal.com (on-line dealing) or 0871 664 0445
(telephone dealing). Calls cost 10p per minute plus network charges.

ShareGift

Shareholders with a small number of shares, the value of which makes it
uneconomical to sefl, may wish to cansider donating them to charity through
ShareGift a registered charity (charity no. 1052686). Further information fs available
by visiting www.sharegift.org or by telephoning ShareGift on 020 7930 3737,

Individual Savings Accounts
The Company offers an Individua) Savings Account (I5A) through Barclays
Stockbrokers Limited for BBA shzres and other qualifying shares and cash, In the tax
year ending 5 April 2008, the annual subscription allowance is £7,000 of which a
maximum of £3,000 can be held as cash. In the tax year beginning 6 Aprit 2008, the
annual subscription allowance will be £7.200 of which a maximum of £3,600 can be
held in cash. To register and receive an information pack, please call 0845 6013000.
Calls are charged at local rates; you can only use this number if you are calling from
the UK. For clients’ security, calls may be recorded and randomly monitored.
Barclays Stockbrokers is the Group name for the business of: Barclays
Stackbrokers Limited, a member of the London Stock Exchange and PLUS,
Registered No 1986161; Barclays Sharedealing, Registered No 2092410; Barclays Bank
Trust Company Limited, Registerad No 920880. Registered VAT no 243 8522 62,
All companies are registered in England and the registered address is: 1 Churchill
Place, London E14 SHP. All companies are authorised and regulated by the Financial
Services Authority.

Key dates Date payable
Financlal calendar
Dividend and interest pavmentis
Ordinary shares:
final 2007 23 May
interirm 2008 7 November
5% cumulative preference shares 1 February and 1 Augusi
Date announced
Announcement of Grou s results
Half year result September
Annual results February
Report and accounts Posted March

Interim Management Statements April and Novernber

Share price information
The price of the Comparn's shares is available from the Financial Times Cityline
Service: BBA Aviation ordinary shares - ielephone: 090 6843 Q00 then enter
option 2 followed by 1778, Calls are charged at 60p per minute ¢n a per second
basis from a BT landline. Charges from other netwaorks may vary,

For the purpose of Capital Gains Tax calculations, the base cost of the old BBA
Group plc shares held imunediately before the dernerger on 17 hovember 2006
has 1o be apportioned between BBA Aviation plc shares and Fiberweb pic shares.
The ratio is BBA Aviation plc shares 84.73%: Fiberweb plc shares *5.27%. This is based
on the respective market values on 17 November 2006, determinied according
to CGT rules at that time, of 281.155p for BBA Aviation plc shares znd 170.5p for
Fiberweb plc shares. This infermation is provided as indicative guidance. Any person
wishing to calculate their Capital Gains Tax should take their owr firancial advice
from their accountant or ather authorised financial adviser and if they are in any
doubt about their taxatio 1 position they should obtain professicnal advice.

Registered office

20 Balderton Street, Londan WIK 67L
Telephone: 020 7514 3995 Fax: 620 7408 2318
http/www bbaaviation.com

web enquiries to: info@bbiaaviation.com
Registered in England

Company number: 53688

Company registrar

Capita Regjstrars, Northern House, Woodsome Park,

Fenay Bridge, Huddersfield HD8 OLA

Telephone: 0871 664 0300 {calls cost 10p per minute plus netwoik charges)
From outside the UK: +44 20 8639 3399

e-mail shareholderservices@capitaregistrars.com
hiip//www.capitaregistrz rs.com

Please contact the reglstrars directly if you wish to advise a change of name,
address, dividend mandate or wish to participate in the Dividenc Reinvestment Plan.

You can access general shareholder information and persoral shareholding
details from our registrars’ website. Our registrars provide a share portal through
which you can view up to date information and manage your shareholding, You can
register for this service via www.capitashareportal. com. You will reguire your unigue
helder code, which can be found an your share certificate or dividend tax voucher,
to register for the share portal service or to access other informat on from the
registrar’s website,

Beneficial owners of shares who have been nominated by the registered holder
of those shares to receive nformation rights under section 146 oi’the Companies
Act 2006 are required to direct all communications to the registe ed holder of their
shares, not to the Compary’s registrar, Capita Registrars, or to the Company.
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This Annual Report 15 addressed solely 10 members of BBA
Aviation plc 45 a body. Neither the Company nos its directors
accept of assume rgsponsibility 10 any person for this Annual
Repor? beyond the responsibilities ansing from the production
of this Annual Report under the requitements of applicable
English company law. Sectians of this Annual Report, including
the Chairman's Statement, Directors’ Report and Directors'
Remuneration Report caniain forward-looking statements
including, without limitation, statements relating to: future
demand and markets of the Group’s products and services;
research and development relating to new products and services;
liquidity and capital; and implementauon of restructuring plans
and efficiencies. These forward-looking statements involve nsks
and uncertainties because they relate to events and depend on
circumnstances that will or may occur in the future,

Accordingly, actual results may differ materially from those set
out in the forward-laoking statements as a result of a variety

of factors including, without timitation: changes ininterest

and exchange rates, commaodity prices and other economic
canditions; negotiations with customers felating 1o renewa!

of contracts and future volumes and prices; events affecting
international security, including global health issues and
terrorism; changes in regulatory envitonment; and the oulcome
of lmgation. The Campany undertakes no obligation to publicly
update o revise any forward-looking statement, whetheras a
result of new information, future events or otherwise. Pages 2
10 56 inclusive consist of a direc tors’ report and directors’
remuneration report that bave been drawn up and presented
in accordance with and in reliance upen applicable English
company law and the liabilities of the duectors in connection
with that report shall be subject to the limiations and
restrictions provided by such law.

Designed by sasdesign couk

Photography by © Gueorgui Pinkhassav/Magnum Photos
Board Photography by © George Brooks

Printed by 5t. ives Westerham Press

This Annual Report is printed on Censen Royal Silk paper and
Challenger Offsel, which carries FSC (F orest Stewardship Council
cerufication. It 15 made with ECF pulp [Elemental Chiorine-free),
15 a0 free, has a natural pH and is fully recyclzble,
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FSC

Mixed Scurces

Product group from well-managed
forests and other controlled sources
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BBA Aviation plc

Registered Office

20Balderton Street
London, WIK 6T,

Telephone. +44 (0)2( 7514 3959
Facsimilie. +44 [0)20 7408 2318

Registered in England
Company number: 53688
www.bbaaviation.com
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If you are in any doubt about the action to be taken, you should immediately consult your independent financial adviser authorised
pursuant to the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000. If you have sold your shares in BBA Aviation plc (the “Company”), please
hand this document and the accompanying form of proxy to the purchaser, stockbroker or other agent through whom the sale was
effected, for transmission to the purchaser.

i nECEIYE

i&-a‘ - Mr——

DR sAY -7 B B9

{HT
A

-
4

" BBA Aviation

o -u

i:t OF IHT
ORPORATE

AN R o

Notice of Annual General Meeting

26 March 2008
Dear Shareholder,
Chairman’s Explanatory Letter and Notice of Annual General Meeting

I am writing to inform you that the annual general meeting of the Company will be held at 11.30am on Wednesday 30 April
2008 at No. 4 Hamilton Place, London W1 7BQ. The notice of annual general meeting is set out on pages 4, 5 and 6 of this
document. The ordinary business of the meeting includes the consideration and approval of the 2007 Report and Accounts,
the declaration of a dividend and the reappointment of the auditors and approval of their fees. In accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Assaciation and the Combined Code, all directors are required to submit themselves for re-election at
reqgular intervals and directors appointed since the last AGM are required to stand for election at this AGM. Further details are
contained in the Directors Corporate Governance Report on page 42 of the 2007 Report and Accounts. Directors’ biographical
details are set out on page 39 of the 2007 Report and Accounts. | would also like to explain a number of special matters to be
dealt with.

Resolution 10 - Authority to allot shares

In accordance with current investor protection guidelines, resolution 10 seeks to renew the directors’ authority 10 issue
relevant securities up to an aggregate nominal amount not exceeding £40,877,018 representing 137,346,802 ordinary shares,
being approximately 33 per cent of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at 26 March 2008, until the next
annua! general meeting or 30 June 2009, whichever is the earlier. As at the date of this letter, there are no ordinary shares held
in treasury.

Resolution 11 - Disapplication of pre-emption rights

Resolution 11 seeks to renew the directors’ authority 1o allot shares for cash or as a sale of treasury shares without first offering
them {0 existing shareholders on a pro-rata basis until the next annual general meeting or 30 June 2009, whichever is the
earlier. The resolution accommodates the possibility that shares bought back by the Company may be held in treasury, as
further explained in paragraph 3 below ‘Autharity to purchase cwn shares, and re-issued at a future date, The authority
sought is limited to the issue of erdinary shares or sale of treasury shares up ta a maximum nominal value of £6,137,6%90
representing 5 per cent of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital as at 26 March 2008.

There are no current plans to exercise the above authorities in resolutions 10 and 11 other than in respect of shares which
may be issued pursuant to share incentive schemes.

Resolution 12 - Authaority to purchase own shares

Resolution 12 deals with the directors recommendation that the shareholders authorise the Company to make market
purchases of up to 14.99 per cent of the existing issued ordinary share capital at prices of no less than 29'%xp and not more
than S per cent above the average of the middle market quotations for the ordinary shares as derived from the London Stock
Exchange Daily Official List for the five business days before purchase.

Having the authority to buy back some of its shares provides the Company with flexibility in managing its capital base, The
Company seeks to renew the current authority, which will expire at the conclusion of this year's annual general meeting
uniess renewed. Accordingly, a special resolution will be proposed to the forthcoming annuai general meeting. The directors
intend to keep under review the potential to buy back ordinary shares, taking into account other invesiment and funding
opportunities. The directors will only make purchases of the Company’s own shares if it will result in an increase in the
earnings per share and when it is considered in the best interests of the shareholders generally.



of Own Shares} (Treasury Shares) Regulations 2003 {the ‘Regulations’. The Regulations allow companies to retain any of their
own shares which they have purchased as treasury stock with a view to possible re-issue at a fuiure date, rather than
cancelling themn as had previously been required. If the Company were to purchase any of its own shares pursuant to
resolution 12, it would consider holding themn as treasury stock, pursuant to the authorisations conferred by this resolution.
This would give the Company the ability to re-issue ireasury shares quickly and cost-effectively, and would provide the
Company with additional flexibility in the management of its capital base.

The total number of options to subscribe for ordinary shares outstanding at 13 March 2008 (being the latest practicable date
prior to the publication of this document) was 9,872,828. This represents 2.39 per cent of the issued ordinary share casital at
that date. If the Company was to buy back the maximum number of ordinary shares permitted pursuant to the passing of this
resolution, then the total number of options 10 subscribe for shares outstanding at 13 March 2008 would represent 2.32 per
cent of the reduced issued ordinary share capital.

. Resolution 13 - Approva! of Directors’ Remuneration Report

In accardance with the requirements of the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002, resolution number 13 i3 an
ordinary resolution which asks the shareholders to approve the Directors’ Remuneration Repori as set out on pages 43 to 56
of the 2007 Report and Accounts. As menticned in such repart, this is an advisory vote.

. Resolutions 14 and 15 - Simplification of Share Capital and New Articles of Association

It is proposed in resolution 15 to adopt new articles of association (the “New Articles”) in order to update the Compary’s
current articles of association (the *Current Articles” primarily to take account of changes in English company faw broaght
about by the Companies Act 2006,

In connection with the adoption of new articles of association, it is proposed in resolution 14 that the authorised share capital
of the Cornpany be simplified now that all the 6.75 per cent Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preference Shares (the
*Convertible Preference Shares”) that had beenissued in the past have been redeemed. It is proposed that the autho-ised but
unissued share capital of the Company representing the Convertible Preference Shares be cancelled.

The principal changes introduced in the New Articles are summarised in the Appendix 10 this letter. Other changes,

which are of a minor, technical or clarifying nature and also some more minor changes which merely reflect changes made
by the Companies Act 2006 have not been noted in the Appendix. A copy of the New Articles and of the current Articles
marked to show proposed changes are available for inspection, as noted in the notes tc the notice of meeting at the end
of this document,

Action to be taken

Shareholders will find enclosed with this letter a form of proxy for use in relation to the annual general meeting. Forms of
proxy should be completed and returned in accordance with the instructions printed on the forms so that they arrive at the
Company's Registrars, Capita Registrars, as soon as possible and in any event not later than 48 hours before the meeting.
Completion and return of a form of proxy will not prevent shareholders from attending and voting at the annual general
meeting. Alternatively, you may appoint a proxy or proxies and record your voie electronically either by utilising the web-
based voting facility or the CREST electronic appointment service; full details of how to do so are set out in the notes :o the
notice of meeting at the end of this document.

Recommendation
Your directors believe that the proposed resolutions in the notice of meeting are in the best interests of the Company and its

shareholders and recommend that you vote in favour as the directors intend 1o do in respect of their own beneficial holdings.

Yours sincerely,

Michael Harper
Chairman
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Niis APPENDIX

e EXPLANATORY NOTES OF PROPOSED PRINCIPAL CHANGES TO THE
1 COMPANY'S ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

=

1. Articles which duplicate statutory provisions
Provisions in the Current Articles which replicate provisions contatned in the Companies Act 2006 are in the main 10 be removed in the New
Articles. This is in ine with the approach advocated by the Government that statutory provisions should not be duplicated in a company’s
constitution. Examples of such provisions include provisions as to the requirement to keep accounting records and minutes and provisions
regarding the period of notice required to convene general meetings. The main changes made to reflect this approach are detailed below.

2. Convening extraordinary and annual general meetings
The provisions in the Current Articles dealing with the convening of general meetings and the lengih of notice required to convene
general meetings are being removed in the New Articles because the relevant matters are provided for in the Companies Act 2006. In
paiticular an extraordinary general meeting ta consider a special resolution can be convened on 14 days notice whereas previously
21 days'notice was required. ’

3. Votes of members
Uinder the Companies Act 2006 proxies are entitled to vote on a show of hands whereas under the Curent Articles proxies are only entitled
to vote on a poll. The time limits for the appointment of termination of a proxy 2ppointment have been aliesed by the Companies Act 2006
50 that the artidles cannat provide that they shauld be received maorve than 48 hours before the meeting or, in the case of a poll taken more
than 48 hours after the meeting, mare than 24 hours before the time for the taking of a poll, with weekends and bank holidays being
permitted to be excluded for this purpose. The New Articles give the directors discretion, when calculating the time limits, to exclude
weekend and hank holicays. Multiple proxies may be appointed provided that each proxy i appointed to exercise the rights attached 10 a
different share held by the shareholder, The New Articles reflect all of these new provisions.

4. Age of directors on appointment
The Current Articles contain a provision limiting the age at which a director can be appointed. Such provision coutd now £l foal of the
Employment Equality (Age) Reguiations 2006 and so has been removed from the New Anticles.

5. Conflicts of interest
The Companies Act 2006 sets out directors’ general duties which largely cadify the existing faw but with some changes. Under the
Companies AQ, from 1 Octeber 2008 a director must avoid a situation whese he has, or can have, a direct or indirect interest that conflicts or
possibly may conflict with the company’ interests. The requirement is very broad and could apply, for example, if a director becomes a
ditector of another company or a trustee of another organisation. The Companies Act 2006 allows directors of public companies to
authorise conflicts and potential contlicts, where appropriate, where the articles of assoclation contain a provision to this effect. The
Companies Act 2006 also allows the articles of association to contain other provisions for dealing with directors’ conflicts of interest 1o avoid
a breach of duty. The New Artides ghve the directors authority 10 approve such situations and 1o include other provisions to allow conflicts
of interest to be dealt with in a similar way 10 the current position.

There are safeguards which will apply when directors decide whether 1o autharise a conflici or potential conflict, First, only direcions who
have no interest in the matter being considered will be able 1o take the relevant deasion, and secondly, in taking the deision the direciors
must act in a way they consider, in good faith, will be most likely to promote the company's success. The diregtors will be able 1o impose
limits or conditions when giving authorisation if they think this is appropriate.

r;‘,:y,
f It is alsa proposed that the New Articles should contain provisions relating to confidential information, attendance at board meetings and
Fired avaitability of board papers (o protect a director being in breach of duty if a conflict of interest or potentiat conflict of interest arises. These
ok provisions will only apply where the position giving rise to the potential conflict has previously been authorised by the directoss. ILis the

2. “‘;

Board's intention 1o repart annually on the Company's procedutes for ensuring that the Board's powers ta authorise conflicts are operated
effectively and that the procedures have been followed.

6. MNotice of board meetings
Under the Current Articles, when a director is abroad he can request that notice of directars' meetings are sent to him at a specifiect address
and if he does not do so he is not entitled 10 receive notice while he is away. This provision has been removed, as modern communications
rean that there may be no particutar obstacle to giving natice to a director who is abioad.

7. Records to be kept
The provision in the Current Articles requiring the Board 10 keep accounting records and minute books has been removed as this
requirement is contained in the Companies Act 2006.

8. Distribution of assets otherwise than in cash
The Current Articles contain provisions dealing with the distribution of assets in kind in the event of the Company going into liquidation.
These provisions have been removed in the New Articles on the grounds that a provision about the powers of liquidators is a maner for
insolvency law rather than the articles and that the Insolvency Act 1986 confers powers on the liquidator which would enable it to do what
is envisaged by the Current Articles.

9. General
Generally the opportunity has been taken to bring clearer language into the New Articles and 1o remave any historic provisions in the
Current Articles which are no longer relevant, such as the sections relating 10 the 6.75 per cent Cumulative Redeematle Convertible
Preference Shares, which are no longer in issue.




Notice of Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the annual general meeting of the Company will be held &t 11.30am on Wednesday 30 April 2008 at No. 4 Hamilion
Place, London W1} 78Q to transact the following business:

1. Toreceive and adopt the audited financial s!alemen(s of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2007 together with the reports of
the directors and auditors thereon

To declare a final dividend of 5.35p per share on the ordinary shares of the Company

To elect as a director Simon Pryce

To re-elect as a director Mark Harper

To re-elect as a director Nick Land

To re-elect as a director Andrew Wood

To re-elect as a director John Roques

To re-appoint Deloitte & Touche LLP as auditors

To authorise the directors to fix the auditors’remuneration

WP NN R W

To consider, and if thought fit, pass resolutions 10,13 and 14 as ordinary resolutions and fesolutions 11, 12.and 15 as special resolutions:

10. That the directors be and are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised pursuant 1o section 80 of the Companies Act * 985 to exercise
for the period ending on the date of the next annual general meeting or on 30 June 2009, whichever is the earlier, all the powvers of the
Company to allot relevant securities up to the aggregate nominal amount of £40.877,018 provided that the authority hereby conferred shalt
allow the directors to make an offer or agreement before the expiry of such authoity which would or might require relevant securities to be
allotted after such expiry as if the power confered hereby had not expired.

. That, subject 1o the passing of resolution 10, the directors be and are hereby empcwered pursuant to section 95 of the Companies Act 1985
for the period commencing on and with elfect from the date of adoption of this resolution and expiring on the date of the n>xt annual
general meeting or on 30 June 2009, whicheves is the earier, to allot equity securities (within the meaning of section %4 of the Companies
Act 1985) for cash pursuant to resohtion 10 of as a sale of treasury shares as if sect &n 8(1) of that Act did not apply to any such allotmem
provided that the power hereby conferred shafl be fimited to:

{2) the allotment of equity securities in connection with or pursuant 10 an offer by way of rights to the holders of shares in the Company
{excluding any holder holding shares as treasury shares) and other persons entitled to participate therein in the proporticn (as nearly as
may be) to such holders’holdings of such shares (or, as appropriate, 10 the number of shares which such other persons ar 2 for these
purposes deemed to hold) subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors may deem necessary of expedient in
retation to fractional entitlernents o¢ legal problems under the laws of any terri-ory or the requirements of any recognised regutatory
body or stock exchange; and

{b) the allotment of equity secufities (otherwise than pursuant to paragraph {a} hereof} up to a maximum nominal value of £6,137,690. The
foregoing power shall allow and enable the directors ta make an offer or agreement before the expiry of that power which would or
might require securities to be allotted after such expiry as if the power conferred hereby had not expired.

12. That the Company is hereby generally and unconditionally authorised for the purposes of section 166 of the Companies Act 1985 to make
market purchases (within the meaning of section 163 of such Act) on the London Stock Exchange of ordinary shares of 20%/n)> each in the
capitaf of the Company (ordinary shares’} provided that
fal the maximum aggregate number of ordinary shares authosised 1o be purchased is 61,826,684 (repfe‘sentlng approximate y 14.99 per

cent of the present issued ordinary share capital of the Company);

(B) the minimum price (axcluding stamp duty and expenses) which may be paid for an ordinary share so purchased is 29%/nq;

fc) the maximum price (excluding stamp duty and expenses) which may be paid fixr an ordinary share so purchased is an amount equal to

5 per cent above the average of the middle market quotations shown for an ondinary share in the London Stock Exchanger Daity Official

List on the five business days immediately preceding the day on which that orcinary share is contracted to be purchased;

the authority hereby conferred shall expire at the condusion of the annual gencral meeting to be held in 2009, unless such authoriry is

renewed, varied or revoked prior to such time;

{2} the Company may pricr 1o the expiry of such authority make a contract to purchase ordinary shares under the autharity hereby
conferred which will or may be executed wholly or partly after the expiry of such autherity, and may make a purchase of crdinary shares
in pursuance of any such contract; and

(f} atordinary shares purchased pursuant to the said asthority shall either:

() be cancelled immediately upon completion of the purchase; or
(i) be held, sold, transferred or otherwise dealt with as freasury shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companics Act 1985.

13, That the Directors’ Remuneration Report as set out on pages 48 1o 56 of the 2007 Report and Accounts be approved. .

14. That the authorised share capital representing the 95,000,000 6.75 per cent Cumnulalive Redeemable Convertible Preference Stares of the
Company which have not been issued or agreed ta be issued to any person be and are hereby cancelled and that accordingly the
authorised share capital of the Company be diminished by £95,000,000.

15. That the Articles of Association produced to the meeting and initialled by the chairman of the meeting for the purpose of ider tification be
adopted as the Articles of Asscciation of the Company in substitution for, and 1o the exclusion of, the existing Articies of Assog ation,

{d

By order of the Board

Andrew Wood

Group Finance Director Registered Office; 20 Balderton Street, London WK 6TL
26 March 2008 Registered in England Company number: 53688




MNotes

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to exercise all or any of their rights to
attend and to speak and vote on their behalf at the meeting. A shareholder may appoint more than one proxy in relation to the annual
general meeting provided that each proxy is appointed to exercise the rights aitached to a different share or shares held by that shareholder.
A proxy need not be a member of the Company. Forms of proxy, if used, must be lodged at Capita Registrars, The Registry, 34 Beckenham
Road, Beckenharn, Kent BR3 4TU not later than 11.30am on 28 April 2008. Altesnatively, you may record your proxy vote electronically either
by utilising the web-based voting facility or the CREST electronic appointment service. The return of a completed proxy form or any CREST
Proxy Instruction {as described in paragraph X below) will not prevent a shareholder attending the annual general meeting and voting in
person if he/she wishes to do so.

If you would like to submit your form of proxy using the web-based voting facility go 10 wwwcapitaregistrars.com and choose the
shareholders page. You will be asked to enter your unique investor code from the proxy card senit to you before you can lodge your vote.
CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy of proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appointment service rmay do so for the annuyal
general meeting and any adjournment(s) thereof by using the procedures described in the CREST manual. CREST Personal Members or other
CREST sponsored members, and those CREST mermbers who have appointed a voting service provider(s), should refer to their CREST sponsor
of voting service provider(s), who will be abie 1o take the appropriate action on their behalf,

Inorder for a proxy appaintrment or instruction made using the CREST service to be valid, the appropriate CREST message (a “(REST Proxy
Instruction™} must be property authenticated in accordance with CREST Covs specifications and must contain the information requited for
such instructions, as described in the CREST Manual. The message, regardless of whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy or an
amendment to the instruction given ta a previcusty appointed proxy musy, in order 1o be valid, be transmitted so as to be received by the
issuer’s agent (ID RA 10} by the latest time(s) for receipt of proxy appointments specified in the notice of meeting. For this purpose, the time
of receipt will be taken ta be the time (as determined by the timestamp applied to the message by the CREST Applications Host) from which
the issuer's agent is able to retrieve the message by enquiry 1o CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST. After this time any change of
instructions to proxies appoinied through CREST should be communicated 10 the appointee through other means.

CREST mernbers and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service providers shoukd note that CREST Co does not make avattable
special procedures in CREST for any particular messages. Normal systemn timings and limitations will therefore apply in relation to the input
of CREST Praxy Instructions. I1is the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take {or, if the CREST memiber is a CREST personal
member or sponsored mermber or has appainted a voting service provider(s), to procure that his CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s)
fake(s)) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message is transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular time, In
this connectian, CREST merbers and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors ar voting senice providers are refered, in pacticular, 1o those
sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical limitations of the CREST systemn and timings.

The Company may treat as irwalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in fegulation 35(5)(a) of the Uncertificated
Securities Regulations 2001.

Only ordinary shareholders and their proxies are entitied to attend and vote at the annual general meeting.

In order to facilitate voting by corporate representatives at the meeting, arrangernents will be put in place at the meeting so that (i} if a
corporate shareholder has appointed the Chairman of the meeting as its cofporate representative with instructions to vote on a poll in
accordance with the directions of all of the other corporate representatives kor that shareholder ax the meeting, then on a poll those
corporate feprasentatives will give voting directions to the Chairman and the Chairman will vote (or withhold a vote) as corporate
representative in accordance with those directions; and (W} if more than one corporate representative for the same corporate shareholder
attends the meeting but the comporate shareholder has not appointed the Chairman of the meeting a3 its corporate representative, a
designated corporate representative will be nominated, from those corporate representatives who attend, who will vate on a poll and the
other colporate representatives wit give voting directions 1o that designated Cotporate represerative, Cofporate shareholders are referred
to the guidance issued by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators on proxies and corporate representatives
(wwwiicsa.orguk) for further details of this procedure. The guidance includes a sample form of appointment letter if the Chairman is being
appointed as described in (i) above.

Any person to whom this notice is sent who is a person nominated under section 146 of the Companies Act 2006 to enjoy information
rights {a "Nominated Person’} may, under an agreement between them and the shareholder by whom they were nominated, have a right to
be appointed {or to have someone else appointed) as a proxy for the annual general meeting. IF a Nominated Persen has no such proxy
appointrment right or does not wish to exercise it, they may, under any such agreement, have a right to give instructions to the shareholder
as to the exercise of voring rights.

Nominated Persons should contact the shareholder by whom they were nominated if they have any questions in respect of these
arangements,

The statement of the righits of ordinary shareholders in relation to the appointment of proxies above does not apply to Nominated Persons.
The rights described in these paragraphs can only be exercised by ordinary shareholders of the Company.

The Company, pursuant to Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001, specifies thar only those shareholders registered
in the register of members of the Company as at 6.00pm on 28 April 2008 or, in the event the annuat general meeting is adjourned, in the
register of mernters 48 hours before the time of any adjoumead meeting, shall be entitled 10 attend and vote at the annual general mesting
in respect of the number of shares registered in their name at that time, Changes to entries on the relevant register of securities after 6.00pm
on 28 Aprdf 2008, ar in the event that the annual general meeling is adjourned less than 48 hours before the time of any agjourned meeting,
shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any persen to attend or vote at the annual general meeting.
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8. The lollowing docurnents will be available for inspection at BBA Aviation plc's re gistered office at 20 Balderton Street, Londen WIK 6TL from
26 March 2008 until the time of the AGM and at No. 4 Hamilten Place, London \W1J 78Q from 15 minutes before the AGM until i1 ends:

- Copies of the executive directors’service contracts and of the letter relatir g to Simon Pryce’s award of shares on 18 June 2007
. Copies of letters of appointment of the non-executive dizectors

. A copy of the proposed new articles of association of the Company

- A copy of the existing anicles of association marked to show the changes being proposed in resolution 15.

9. As 2113 March 2008 (being the latest practicable date pricr to the publication o7 this document) the Company's issued shire ¢capital consists
of 412,452859 ordinary shares with one vote each and 199,332 5 per cent Cumulative Preference Shares, with no right to vote at the above
meeting. No shares are held by the Company in treasury. The total number of vcting fights in the Cornpany is 412,452,855,



You may submit your proxy electronically using the share portal service at www.capitaregistrars.com/shareholders.

If not already registered for the share portal, you will need your Investor Code below.
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AGM to be held at 11.30am on Wednesday 30 April 2008 at No. 4 Hamilton Place, London W1) 78Q
If you wish to attend this meeting in your capacity as a holder of Ordinary Shares, please sign this card

and on arrival hand it in.

Signature of

. Barcode:
person attending

Investor Code:

Registered office: 20 Balderton Street, Londan W1 K 6TL Registered in England. Company number. 53688.

FORM OF PROXY for use of ordinary shareholders
BBA AVIATION PLC - ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notes

To appoint as a proxy a person other than the Chairman of the meeting
insert their full name and address in the space provided. The alteration
must be initialted. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

A duty appointed proxy may attend the meeting, speak, vote on a show of

hands and vote on a poll. To appoint more than ane proxy, complete a

photocopy of this praxy form or obtain additional forms from Capita

Regjstrars, Northern House, Woodsome Park, Fenay Bridge, Huddersfield

HDB OLA Telephone: 0871 664 0300 {calls cost 10p per minute plus

netwark charges) Please also indicate by ticking the relevant box if the |
proxy appointment is one of multiple appaintments being made. Multiple

proxy appointments should be retumed together in the same envelape.

Enter in the box provided the number of shares in relation to which your
proxy is authorised or leave box blank to authorise your proxy to act in
relation to your full vating entitlement. |

In the case of a corporation, the proxy must be executed under its seat or
under the hand of its duty authorised representatives or attomey,

Iri the case of joint hotders, the vote of the senior who tenders the vate
whether in person or by proxy will be accepted to the exclusion of all other
joint holders. For this purpese, seniority will be determined by the order in
which the names stand in the register of members.

The form of praxy below {together with any power of attomey or other
authority under which it is signed) must amive not later than13.30am on
28 April 2008 at Capita Registrars, The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road,
Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU), You may also deliver by hand to The Registry,
34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU during usual business
haours.

The form of proxy is for use in respect of the shareholder account specified
above only and should not be amended or subrmitted in respect of a
different account,

Completion and return of the form of praxy will not preclude ordinary
shareholders attending and voting at the mesting should they
subsequently wish to do so.

Shares held in uncertified form (i.e. in CREST) may be voted through the
CREST Proxy Voting Service in accordance with the procedures set out in
the CREST manual and shareholders should refer to note 2 in the Notice of

AGM.

Bar Code:

Investor Code:

1/\We being a member of BBA Aviation plc entitled to attend and vote at the AGM hereby appoint

the Chairman of the meeting or (see note 1)

(see note 3)

Event Code:

at any adjournment thereof. If you want your proxy to vote in a certain way on the resolutions specified, please place a mark in the relevant boxes, If you select

as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/four behalf in the manner indicated below at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 30 April 2008 and ‘

‘discretionary’ or fail to select any of the given options, your proxy can vote as he or she chooses or can decide not ta vote at all. The vote withheld option is provided
to enable you to instruct your proxy not to vote on any particular resolution, However it should be noted that a vote withheld in this way is not a‘vote’in taw and
will not be counted in the calculation of the proportion of the votes ‘for’ and 'against” a resclution.

a Please tick here if this proxy is one of multipte appointments being made (see note 2)
Pl ark ‘X to indi % & Pl ric ‘X’ to indicat % g
ease m to indicate s ease ma to indicate
RESOLUTIONS how you wish to vote B i ‘E RESOLUTIONS how you wish to vote B = E
g 2 2 3 E 2=
1 To receive and adopt the 2007 Report 9  To authorise the directors to fix the
and Accounts auditors’ remuneration
2 Todeclare a final dividend 10 To grant the directors authority to allot
relevant securities
3 To elect Simon Pryce as a director 11 To approve the disapplication of
pre-emption rights
4  To re-elect Mark Harper as a director 12 To authorise the Company to make market
purchases of ordinary shares
5 To re-elect Nick Land as a director 13 To approve the Directors’ Remuneration
Report
6  To re-elect Andrew Wood as a director 14 To approve simplification of share
capital
7 Tore-elect John Roques as a director 15 To approve new Articles of Association

8 To re-appoint Deloitte & Touche LLP
as auditors

Signature

Date

You may submit your proxy
electronically at

www.capitaregistrars.com +



Business Reply
Licence Number
MB 122

Capita Registrars
Proxies Department
PO Box 25
Beckenham

Kent

BR3 4BR

1
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Articles of Association

Preliminary

Exclusion of Table A

1. No regulations set out in any statute, or in any statutory instrument or other subordinate legislation
made under stalute, concerning companies shall apply as the regulations or articles of the Company.

Interpretation Article

2. In these Articles, if not inconsistent with the context, the following words in the first column of the table
next hereinafter contained shall have the following meanings:-

Words

Meanings

“Address”

includes any number or address used for the purposes of sending or receiving
documents or information by electronic means.

“these Articles”

these Articles of Association, as altered from time to time.

“Auditors”

the auditors from time to time of the Company or, in the case of joint auditors, any
one of them.

“Board”

the board of Directors from time to time of the Company or the Directors present at
a meeting of the Directors at which a quorum is present.

“Certificated Share”

a share which is not an Uncertificated Share.

“Chairman”

the chaiman of the Company from time to time.

“Directors”

the directors of the Company from time to time, and “Director” means any one of
them.

“Entitled by Transmission

entitled to a Certificated Share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of a
Member or of any other event giving rise lo its transmission by operation of law
which has been noted in the register.

“Listing Rules”

the rutes which are made from time {o time by the relevant competent authority for
the purpose of the regulation of the official listing of the Company's securities.

“London Stock Exchange”

the London Stock Exchange plc.

“Member” a member of the Company.

“Month” calendar month.

“Office” the registered office of the Company from time to time.

“Official List” the meaning given to such term in the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000.

“Operator” operator of a relevant system as defined in the Uncertificated Securities
Regulations.

“Participating Class” a class of shares title to which is permitted by an Operator to be transferred by
means of a relevant system.

“Register” the register of Members of the Company.

“Seal” the common seal of the Company and, as appropriate, any official seal kept by the
Company by virtue of the Statutes.

“Secretary” the secretary of the Company from time to time appointed by the Diractors pursuant
to these Articles.

“Statutes” the Companies Act 1985 and the Companies Act 2006, including every statutory
modification or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force and every other
statute or statutory instrument for the time being in force conceming companies and
affecting the Company.

“Subsidiary” a subsidiary within the meaning contained in Section 736 of the Companies Act
1985 or, as the case may be, Section 1159 of the Companies Act 2006.

“Uncertificated Securities  the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001 as amended from time to time and

Regulations™

any provisions of or under the Statutes which supplement or replace such
Regulations.

“Uncertificated Share”

a share of a class which is at the relevant time a Parlicipating Class title to which is
recorded on the Register as being held in uncertificated form.

“United Kingdom”™

Great Britain and Northern Ireland.

“UK Listing Authority"

the meaning given to such term in the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000.

“Writing”

written or produced by any substitute for writing or partly one and partly another
including by electronic means where specifically provided in a particular Article or
where permitted by the Board in its absolute discretion.

Words impoarting the masculine gender shall include the feminine gender and vice versa.

Words importing the singular number sha!l include the plural number and vice versa.

References to any statute or statutory provision or subordinate Jegisiation shall be construed as relating to any modification or re-enactment

thereof for the time being in force.

Wonrds or expressions which are not defined in these Articles but which are defined in the Statutes shall, if not inconsistent with the subject or
context, bear the same meaning in these Articles.

References 1o a docurmnent being signed or to signature include reference to it being executed under hand or under seal or by any other
method and, in the case of a communication in electronic form, such references are to its being authenticated as specified by the Statutes.




Share Capital

Capital

3.1

3.2

33

3.4

The authorised share capital of the Company at the date of adoption of these Articles is
£150,250,000 divided into 250,000 5 per cent, Cumulative Preference Shares of £1 each and
504,000,000 Ordinary Shares of 29 16/21 pence each.

The said Cumulative Preference Shares shall confer on the holders thereof the right to receive in
priority to all other shares in the capital of the Company out of the profits of the Company which it
shall be resolved to distribute a cumulative preferential dividend at the rate of 3.5 per cent. per
annum on the capital for the time being paid up thereon.?

The said preferential dividend on the 5 per cent. Cumulative Preference Shares shall, for the
purposes of Article 121, be deemed to be payable half yearly on 1 February and 1 August in
every year. Subject thereto and to any special rights which may be attached to any other class of
shares, the profits of the Company available for dividend and resolved to be distributed shall be
distributed by way of dividend among the helders of the Ordinary Shares.

On a return of assets on a winding-up the assets of the Company available for distribution among
the Members shall (subject to any provision made under Section 719 of the Companies Act
1985) be applied first in repaying to the holders of the 5 per cent. Cumulative Preference Shares
the amounts paid up on such shares together with a premium of 12' p per share and also a sum
equal to any arrears or deficiency of the fixed dividend thereon, to be calculated down to the date
of the retumn of capital and to be payable irrespective of whether or not such dividend has been
declared or eamed. The balance of such assets, subject to any special rights which may be
attached to any other class of shares, shall be applied in repaying to the holders of the Ordinary
Shares the amounts paid up on such shares and subject thereto shall belong to and be
distributed among such holders rateably according to the number of such shares held by them
respectively.

Rights attached to new shares

4. Without prejudice to any special rights, privileges or restrictions previously conferred on the holders of
any existing shares or class of shares (which special rights or privileges or restrictions shall not be
affected, modified, abrogated or varled except in accordance with Article 46), any shares in the
Company may be issued with or have attached thereto such rights, including such preferred, deferred
or other special rights or privileges or such restrictions, whether in regard to dividend, retum of capital,
voting or otherwise, as the Company may from time to time by ordinary resolution determine.

Provisions relating to Shares

51

5.2

53

Subject to the provisions of the Statutes and to any rights conferred on the holders of any other
shares any shares may be issued on terms that they are or are liable to be redeemed at the
option of the Company or the shareholder on such terms and in such manner as these Articles
or the rights attaching to those shares may from time to time provide.

Subject to the provisions of the Statutes, the Company may purchase its own shares (including
any redeemable shares).

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in these Articles, but subject to any rights
specifically attached to any class of shares from time to time, the rights attached to any class of
shares shall be deemed not be varied or abrogated by anything done by the Company pursuant
to this Article 5.

Control of Directors over Shares

6. Subject to the provisions of these Articles and of the Statutes, any unissued shares shall be under the
control of the Directors, who may allot and dispose of or grant options over the same to such persons,
at such time and on such terms and in such manner as they think fit.

Underwriting commission and brokerages

7. The Company (or the Directors on behalf of the Company) may exercise the powers of paying
commissions conferred by the Statutes (whether in the form of shares or otherwise}. The Company (or
the Directors on behalf of the Company) may alsc on any issue of shares pay such brokerage as may
be lawful.

? The right of the holders of the 5 per cent. Cumulative Shares 1o recelve a cumulative preferential dividend at the rate of 5 per cent. per annum was madified as from
8 April 1973 by the aperation of paragraph 19 of Schedule 23 of the Finance Act.1972 (as modified by the Finance Act 1976) in consequence whereof such dividend
is payabte at the rate of 3.5 per cent, per annum after taking into account advance corporalion tax at the rate of ¥7ths (being the rate in force on 6 April 1973),

7




Trusts not recognised

8 Except as ordered by a court or as required by law, the Company shall be entitied to treat the person
whose name appears upon the Register in respect of any share as the absolute owner of that share,
and shall not (save as aforesaid) be under any obligation to recognise any trust or equity or equitable
claim to or partial interest in such share, whether or not it shalt have express or other notice thereof.

Share Certificates
Certificates

9.4 Every Member whose name is entered in the register as a holder of any Certificated Shares
{except a person in respect of whom the Company is not by law required to complete and have
ready for delivery a certificate) shall be entitled without payment to one certificate for all the
shares registered in his name or, in the case of shares of more than one class being registered
in his name, to a separate certificate for each class of such shares so registered. Every
certificate shall specify the number and class of shares in respect of which it is issued and the
distinctive numbers, if any, of such shares and the amounts paid up thereon respectively. Every
such certificate shall be delivered to the Member within two manths after the allotment or, as the
case may be, the lodging with the Company of the transfer, of the shares comprised therein.
Every cerlificate for shares, debenture stock or other form of security {other than letters of
allotment or scrip certificates) shall be issued under the Seal or in such other manner as the
Directors having regard to the terms of issue and the requirements of the Financial Services
Authority and the London Stock Exchange may by resolution authorise (including bearing an
imprint or representation of the Seal) and (subject as hereinafter provided) shall bear the
autographic signatures of one or more of the Directors and the Secretary provided that the
Directors may by resolution determine that such signatures or any of them may be affixed
thereto by some mechanical means or may be printed thereon by any means whatsoever or that
the certificate need not bear a signature in any form whatsoever.

9.2 Where some only of the shares comprised in a share cerlificate are transferred, the old
certificate shall be cancelled and a new certificate for the balance of the shares issued in lieu

without charge.
Additional certificates

10.  Subject as provided in Article 11, if any Member shall require additional certificates he shall pay for
each additional certificate such reasonable out of pocket expenses as the Directors shall determine.

Renewal of certificates

11.  If any certificate is defaced, worn out, lost, or destroyed, a new certificate may be issued without charge
{other than exceptional out-of-pocket expenses) and the person requiring the new cerificate shall
surrender the defaced or worn-out certificate, or give such evidence of the loss or destruction of the
certificate and such indemnity to the Company as the Birectors shall determine.

Uncertificated Shares

12.1 Pursuant to the Uncertificated Securities Regulations, the Board may permit tile to shares of
any class to be evidenced otherwise than by a certificate and title to shares of such a class to be
transferred by means of a relevant system and may make arrangements for a class of shares (if
all shares of that class are in all respects identical) to become a Participating Class. Title to
shares of a particular class may only be evidenced otherwise than by a certificate where that
class of shares is at the relevant time a Participating Class. The Board may also, subject to
compliance with the Uncertificated Securities Regulations and the rules of any relevant system,
determine at any time that title to any class of shares may from a date specified by the Board no
longer be evidenced otherwise than by a cerlificate or that title to such a class shall cease to be
transferred by means of any particular relevant system. For the avoidance of doubt, shares
which are Uncertificated Shares shall not be treated as forming a class which is separate from
Certificated Shares with the same rights.

12.2 In relation to a class of shares which is a Participating Class and for so long as it remains a
Participating Class, subject to Article 33 no provision of these Articles shall apply or have effect
to the extent that it is inconsistent in any respect with:

12.2.1 the holding of shares of that class in uncertificated form;

12.2.2 the transfer of title to shares of that class by means of a relevant system;




12.2.3 any provision of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations; and,

subject to Aricle 33, without prejudice to the generality of this Article, no provision of these
Articles shall apply or have effect to the extent that it is in any respect inconsistent with the
maintenance, keeping or entering up by the Operator, so long as that Is permitted or required
by the Uncertificated Securities Regulations, of an Operator register of securities in respect of
that class of shares in uncertificated form.

12.3 Shares of a c¢lass which is at the relevant time a Participating Class may be changed from
uncertificated to certificated form, and from certificated to uncertificated form, in accordance with
and subject as provided in the Uncertificated Securities Regulations and the rules of any relevant
system.

Joint Holders of Shares

Joint Holders

13.  Where two or more persons are registered as the holders of any share they shall be deemed to hold
the same as joint tenants with benefit of survivorship, subject to the following:-

13.1 The Company shall not be bound to register more than four persons as the holders of any share.

13.2 The joint holders of any share shall be liable, severally as well as jointly, in respect of all
payments which are to be made in respect of such share.

13.3 On the death of any one of such joint holders the survivor or survivors shall be the only person or
persons recognised by the Company as having any title to such share; but the estate of a
deceased joint holder shall not be released from any liability in respect of any share which had
been jointly held by him.

13.4 Any one of such joint holders may give effectual receipts for any dividend, bonus or retum of
capital payable to such joint holders.

13.5 Only the person whose name stands first in the Register as one of the joint holders of any share
shall be entitled to delivery of the certificate relating to such share, or to receive notices from the
Company, and any notice given to such person shall be deemed notice to all the joint holders.

13.6 Any one of the joint holders of any share for the time being conferring a right to vote may vote
either personally or by proxy at any meeting in respect of such share as if he were the sole
holder, provided that if more than one of such joint holders be present at any meeting, either
personally or by proxy, the person whose name stands first in the register as one of such
holders, and no other, shall be entitled to vote in respect of the share.

13.7 In relation to documents or information to be sent or supplied to joint holders of a share,
anything to be agreed or specified by the holder shall only be required to be agreed or specified
by the person whose name appears first in the Register as one of the joint holders of that share,
in which cassg it shall be deemed to have been agreed or specified by all the joint holders of that
share for all such purposes.

Calls on Shares

Calls, how made

14,  The Directors may from time to time make calls upon the Members in respect of all moneys unpaid on
their shares (whether on account of the nominal amount of the shares or by way of premium) and not
by the conditions of allotment thereof made payable at any fixed time; and each Member shall, subject
to receiving fourteen days' notice at least, specifying the time and place for payment, pay the amount
called on his shares to the persons and at the times and places appointed by the Directors.

When call deemed to be made

15. A call shall be deemed to have been made at the time when the resolution of the Directors authorising
such call was passed and may be payable by instalments or postponed or revoked either wholly or in
part as the Directors may determine.

Differences in amounts paid on shares

16. On the issue of shares the Directors may differentiate between the heolders of such shares in the
amount of calls to be paid and in the time of payment of such calls.




Interest on calls in arrear

17.

If a call payable in respect of any share or any instalment of a call is not paid before or on the day
appointed for payment thereof, the holder for the time being of such share shall be liable to pay interest
on the same at such rate, not exceeding 20 per cent. per annum, as the Directors determine from the
day appointed for the payment of such call or instalment to the time of actual payment; but the
Directors may, if they shall think fit, waive the payment of such interest or any pant thereof. No dividend
or other payment or distribution in respect of any such share shall be paid or distributed and no other
rights which would otherwise normally be exercisable in accordance with these Articles may be
exercised by a holder of any such share so long as any such sum or any interest or expenses payable
in accordance with this Article in relation thereto remains due.

Instalments to be treated as calls

18.

If by the conditions of allotment of any shares, or otherwise, any amount is made payable at any fixed
time, whether on account of the nominal amount of the shares or by way of premium, every such
amount shall be payable as if it were a call duly made by the Directors, of which due notice had been
given; and all the provisions hereof with respect to the payment of calls and interest thereon, or to the
forfeiture of shares for non-payment of calls, shall apply to every such amount and the shares in
respect of which it is payable.

Payment in advance of calls

19

The Directors may, if they think fit, receive from any Member willing to advance the same all or any
part of the moneys uncalled and unpaid upon any shares held by him; and upon all or any of the
moneys so paid In advance the Directors may (until the same would, but for such advance, become
presently payable) pay interest at such rate (not exceeding, without the sanction of the Company in
general meeting, 6 per cent. per annum) as may be agreed upon between the Member paying the
moneys in advance and the Directors. Any such payment in advance shall not entitle the Member
concerned to participate in respect of the amount of such payment in any dividend declared or paid on
such shares.

Forfeiture of Shares and Lien

Notice requiring payment of call or instalmant

20.

If any Member fails to pay any call or instalment of a call on the day appointed for payment thereof the
Directors may, at any time thereafter during such time as any part of the call or instalment remains
unpaid, serve a notice on him requiring him to pay so much of the call or instalment as is unpaid,
together with interest accrued and any expenses incurred by reason of such non payment.

What the notice is to state

21.

The notice shall name a further day {not being earlier than the expiration of fourteen days from the date
of the notice) on or before which such call or instalment and all interest accrued and expenses incurred
by reason of such non-payment are to be paid, and it shall also name the place where payment is to be
made. The notice shall also state that in the event of non-payment at or before the time and at the place
appointed the shares in respect of which such call or instalment is payable will be liable to forfeiture.

Forfeiture if notice not complied with

22,

If the requirements of any such notice are not complied with, any shares in respect of which such notice
has been given may, at any time thereafter before the payment required by the notice has been made,
be forfeited by a resolution of the Directors to that effect, and any such forfeiture shall extend to all
dividends declared and other moneys payable in respect of the shares so forfeited but not actually paid
before such forfeiture. The Directors may accept surrender of any share liable to be forfeited hereunder.

Forfeited shares the property of the Company

23.

When any share has been forfeited notice of the forfeiture shall be served upon the person who was
before forfeiture the holder of the share; but no forfeiture shall be in any manner invalidated by any
omission or neglect to give such notice. Subject to the provisions of the Statutes, any share so forfeited
shall be deemed to be the property of the Company, no voting rights shall be exercised in respect
thereof and the Directors may within three years of such forfeiture sell, re-atlot or otherwise dispose of
the same in such manner as they think fit either to the person who was before the forfeiture the holder
thereof, or to any other person, and either with or without any past or accruing dividends, and, in the
case of re-allotment, with or without any money paid thereon by the former holder being credited as
paid up thereon. Any share not disposed of in accordance with the foregoing within a period of three
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years from the date of its forfeiture shall thereupon be cancellad in accordance with the provisions of
the Statutes.

Liability to pay calls after forfeiture

24,

Any person whose shares have been forfeited shall cease to be a Member in respect of the forfeited
shares, but shall, notwithstanding, remain liable to pay to the Company all moneys which at the date of
the forfeiture were presently payable by him to the Company in respect of the shares, together with
interest thereon at such rate, not exceeding 20 per cent. per annum or such lower rate as the Directors
shall appoint, down to the date of payment, but his liability shall cease if and when the Company
receives payment in full of all such moneys in respect of the shares, together with interest as aforesaid.
The Directors may, if they think fit, remit the payment of such money andfor the interest or any part
thereof.

Statutory declaration of forfeiture

25.

A statutory declaration in Writing that the declarant is a Director of the Company or the Secretary and
that a share has been duly forfeited on a date stated in the declaration shall be conclusive evidence of
the facts stated as against all persons claiming to be entitled to the share, and such declaration and the
receipt of the Company for the consideration (if any) given for the share on the sale, re-allotment or
disposal thereof shall constitute a good title to the share, and the person to whom the share is sold, re-
allotted or disposed of shall be registered as the holder thereof, and his title to the share shall not be
affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in reference to the forfeiture, re-allotment or
disposal of such share. The Directors may authorise some person to transfer a forfeited share to any
other person as aforesaid.

Lien on partly paid shares

26,

The Company shail have a first and paramount lien upon all the shares, other than fully paid-up shares,
registered in the name of each Member (whether solely or jointly with other persons} for any amount
payable in respect of such shares, whether presently payable or not, and such lien shall apply to all
dividends from time to time declared or other moneys payable in respect of such shares. Unless
otherwise agreed, the registration of a transfer of a share shall operate as a waiver of the Company's
lien, if any, on such share.

Sale for lien

27.

For the purpose of enforcing such lien the Directors may sell the shares subject thereto, in such manner
as they think fit, but no such sale shall be made until all or any part of the sum outstanding on the
shares shall have become payable and until notice in Writing stating, and demanding payment of, the
sum payable and giving notice of the intention to sell in default of such payment shall have been served
on such Member and default shail have been made by him in the payment of the sum payable for
fourteen days after such notice.

Proceeds how applied

28,

The net proceeds of any such sale, after payment of the costs thereof, shall be applied in or towards
satisfaction of such part of the amount in respect of which the lien exists as is presently payable. The
residue, if any, shall (upon surrender to the Company for canceltation of the certificate for the shares
sold and subject to a like lien for sums not presently payable as existed upon the shares before the
sale) be paid to the Member or as he shall in Wiiting direct or the person (if any) Entitled by
Transmission to the shares immediately before the sale.

What necessary to give title to purchaser

29,

An entry in the Directors' minute book of the forfeiture of any shares, or that any shares have been sold
to satisfy a lien of the Company, shall be sufficient evidence, as against all persons claiming to be
entitied to such shares, that the said shares were propenly forfeited or sold; and such entry, the receipt
of the Company for the price of such shares, and the appropriate share certificate, shall constitute a
good title to such shares, and the name of the purchaser or other person entitled shall be entered in the
register as a Member, and he shall be entitled to a certificate of title to the shares and shall not be
bound to see to the application of the purchase money, nor shall his title to the shares be affected by
any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in reference to the forfeiture or sale. For giving effect to
any such sale, the Directors may authorise some person to transfer any such shares sold to the
purchaser thereof. The remedy (if any) of the former holder of such shares, and of any person claiming
under or through him, shall be against the Company and in damages only.

Transfer and Transmission of Shares

Form of instrument of transfer etc.
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30. Al transfers of Certificated Shares shall be in Writing in the usual common form or in any other form
permitted by the Statutes or approved by the Directors. The instrument of transfer of a Certificated
Share shall he signed by or on behalf of the transferor and, if the shares transferred are not fully paid,
by or on behalf of the transferee. The transferor shall be deemed to remain the holder of such shares
until the name of the transferee is entered in the register in respect thereof.

Uncertified Shares

31.1 Uncertificated Shares may be transferred by means of a relevant system in such manner
provided for, and subject as provided in, the Uncertificated Securities Regutations and the rules
of any relevant system, and accordingly no provision of these Articles except where expressly
stated otherwise shall apply in respect of an Uncertificated Share to the extent that it requires or
contemplates the effecting of a transfer by an instrument in Writing or the production of a
certificate for the share to be transferred.

31.2 The Company shall be entitied to assume that the entries on any record of securities maintained
by it in accordance with the Uncertificated Securities Regulations and regularly reconciled with
the relevant Operator register of securities are a complete and accurate repraduction of the
particulars entered in the Operator register of securities and shall accordingly not be liable in
respect of any act or thing done or omitted to be done by or on behalf of the Company in
reliance on such assumption, in particular, any provision of these Articles which requires or
envisages that action will be taken in reliance on information contained in the register shall be
construed to permit that action to be taken in reliance on information contained in any relevant
record of securities (as so maintained and reconciled).

Renunciation of Allotments

32. The Directors may at any time after the allotment of any share but before any person has been entered
in the Register as the holder thereof recognise a renunciation thereof by the allottee in favour of some
other person and may accord to any allottee of a share a right to effect such renunciation upen and
subject to such terms and conditions as the Directors may think fit.

Power to refuse registration of transfers of shares

33. The Directors may refuse to register any transfer of shares of any class (not being fully paid shares),
and may also decline to register any transfer of shares of any class on which the Company has a lien.
Registration of a transfer of an Uncertificated Share may be refused in the circumstances set out in the
Uncertificated Securities Regulations.

34. The Directors may also refuse to recognise any instrument of transfer of a share, unless:-

34,1 the instrument of transfer, duly stamped, is deposited at the Office or such other place as the
Directors may appoint, accompanied (save in the case of a transfer by a person to whom the
Company is not required by law to issue a certificate and to whom a certificate has not been
issued) by the certificate for the shares to which it relates if it has been issued, and such other
evidence as the Directors may reasonably require to show the right of the transferor to make the
transfer;

34.2 the instrument of transfer is in respect of only one class of share; and
34.3 itis in respect of not more than four transferees.

Register may be closed

35.  Subject to compliance with the Statutes the Register may be closed at such times and for such periods
as the Directors may in their absolute discretion from time to time determine, provided that it shall not
be closed for more than thirty days in any year.

No fee for registration

36. No fee shall be charged in respect of the registration of any transfer, probate, letters of administration,
certificate of marriage or death, power of attorney or other document relating to or affecting the title to
any shares.

Transfer instruments to be retained by the Company
37.1 Al instruments of transfer which shall be registerad shall, subject to Article 37.2, be retained by

the Company, but any instrument of transfer which the Directors may refuse to register shall

{except in any case of fraud) be retumed to the persons depositing the same.
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37.2 The Company shall be entitled to destroy the foliowing documents at the following times:-

37.2.1 Registered instruments of transfer or Operator instruction for the transfer of shares: at
any time after the expiration of six years from the date of registration thereof,

37.2.2 Allotment letters: at any time after the expiration of six years from the date of issue
thereof.

37.2.3 Dividend mandates, powers of attorney, grants of probate and letters of administration: at
any time after the account to which the retevant mandate, power of attorney, grant of probate or
letters of administration related has been closed.

37.2.4 Notifications of change of address: at any time after the expiration of two years from the
date of recording thereof.

37.2.5 Cancelled share certificates: at any time after the expiration of one year from the date of
the cancellation thereof.

37.3 It shall conclusively be presumed in favour of the Company:-

37.3.1 that every entry in the Register purporting to be made on the basis of any such
decuments so destroyed was duly and properly made; and

37.3.2 that every such document so destroyed was valid and effective and had been duly and
properly registered, cancelied, or recorded, as the case may be, in the books or records of the
Company.

37.4 The provisions in Articles 37.2 and 37.3 above shall apply to the destruction of a document in
good faith and without notice of any claim (regardless of the parties thereto) to which the
document might be relevant.

37.5 Nothing herein contained shall be construed as imposing upon the Company any liability in
respect of the destruction of any such document eariier than as aforesaid or in any other
circumstances, which would not attach to the Company in the absence of this Article.

37.6 References in this Article to the destruction of any document include the disposal thereof in any
manner.

Persons recognised on death of shareholder

38.

On the death of any Member (not being one of two or more joint holders of a share) the legal
personal representatives of such deceased Member shall be the only persons recognised by the
Company as having any title to the share or shares registered in his name but nothing contained in
these Articles shall release the estate of a deceased holder from any liability in respect of any share
held by him solely or jointly with other persons.

Transmission

39.

Any person becoming Entitled by Transmission to a Certificated Share or Shares may, upon such
evidence being produced as may from time to time be required by the Directors, elect either to be
registered as a Member in respect of such share or shares, or to make such transfer of the share or
shares as the deceased or bankrupt persen could have made. If the person so becoming entitled shall
elect to be registered himself he shall give to the Company a notice in Writing signed by him to that
effect. The Directors sha!l in either case have the same right to refuse or suspend registration as they
would have had if the death or bankruptcy of the Member or of any other event giving rise to its
transmission by operation of law had not occurred and the notice of election or transfer were a transfer
executed by that Member.

Limitation of rights before registration

40.

Any person becoming Entitlied by Transmission to a Certificated Share shall be entitled to the same
dividends and other advantages to which he would be entitled if he were the registered holder of the
Certificated Share, except that he shall not, unless and until he is registered as a Member in respect of
the Certificated Share or unless the Directors otherwise determine, be entitled in respect of it to receive
notice of, or to exercise any right confarred by membership in relation to, meetings of the Company:
Provided always that the Directors may at any time give notice requiring any such person to elect either
to be registered himself or to transfer such Certificated Share to some other person, and if such notice
is not complied with within ninety days after service the Directors may thereafter withhold payment of all
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dividends and other moneys payable in respect of such share until the requirements of the notice have
been complied with.

Untraced Shareholders

41.1

41.2

The Company shall be entitled to sell at the best price reasonably obtainable any share or stock
of a Member or any share or stock to which a person is Entitied by Transmission if and provided
that:-

41.1.1 the shares have been in issue, either in certificated or uncertificated form, for a period of
twelve years and no cheque or warrant sent by the Company through the post in a pre-paid letter
addressed to the Member or to the person Entitled by Transmission to the share or stock at his
address on the Register or other last known address given by the Member or the person Entitled
by Transmission to which cheques and warrants are to be sent has been cashed or been
satisfied by the transfer of fund to a bank account designated by the holder and no
communication has been received by the Company from the Member or the person Entitled by
Transmission provided that in any such period of twelve years the Company has paid at least
three dividends whether interim or final and no such dividend has been cfaimed; and

41.1.2 the Company has at the expiration of the said period of twelve years by advertisement in
one national daily newspaper and one newspaper circulating in the area in which the last known
address of the Member, or the address at which service of nolices may be effected pursuant to
the provisions of these Articles, is situated, given notice of its intention to sell such share or
stock; and

41.1.3 the Company has not during the further period of three months after the date of the
advertisement and prior to the exercise of the power of sale received any communication from
the Member or person Entitled by Transmission.

To give effect to any such sale, the Company may appoint any person to execute as transferor
an instrument of transfer of such share or stock and such instrument of transfer shall be as
effective as if it had been executed by the registered holder of, or person Entitled by
Transmission to, such share or stock. The purchaser shall not be bound to see to the application
of the purchase moneys nor shall his title to the shares be affected by any irregularity or invalidity
in the proceedings relating to the sale. The Company shall account to the Member or other
person entitied to such share or stock for the net proceeds of such sale by carrying all moneys in
respect thereof to a separate account which shall be a permanent debt of the Company and the
Company shall be deemed to be a debtor and not a trustee in respect thereof for such Member
or other person. Moneys carried to such separate account may either be employed in the
business of the Company or invested in such investments {other than shares of the Company or
its holding company (if any)) as the Directors may from time to time think fit. The Company shall
not be required to pay interest on the said moneys or to account for any amounts eamed
thereon.

Alteration of Share Capital

Capital, how increased

42,

The Company may from time fo time by ordinary resolution increase its capital by the creation of new
shares, such increase to be of such aggregate amount and to be divided into shares of such respective
amounts as the resolution shall prescribe.

New capital is to be considered part of original unless otherwise provided

43.

Any capital raised by the creation of new shares shall, unless otherwise provided by the conditions of

issue, be considered as part of the original capital, and shall be subject to the same provisions with
reference to the payment of calls and the forfeiture of shares on non-payment of calls, transfer and

transmission of shares, lien or otherwise, as if it had been part of the original capital.

Alteration of capital

44.1

The Company may by ordinary resoclution:-

44 1.1 sub-divide its existing shares or any of them into shares of smaller amount than is fixed
by the Memorandum of Association of the Company: Provided that in the sub-division of an
existing share the proporticn between the amount paid and the amount (if any) unpaid on each
reduced share shall be the same as it was in the case of the share from which the reduced
share is derived;




44.2

44.1.2 determine that, as between the Shares resulting from such a sub-division, any of them
may have any preference or advantage compared with the others;

44.1.3 consolidate, or consolidate and divide its capital or any part thereof into shares of larger
amount than its existing shares; and

44.1.4 cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have not been
taken or agreed to be taken by any person and diminish the amount of its capital by the
amount of the shares so cancelled.

The Company may by special resolution reduce its share capital, any capital redemption reserve
and any share premium account or any other undistributable reserve in any way in any manner
authorised by law.

Fractions of shares

451

45.2

Anything done in pursuance of Article 44 shall be done in the manner therein provided and
subject to any conditions imposed by the Statutes so far as they shall be applicable and, so far
as they shall not be applicable, in accordance with the terms of the resolution authorising the
same and be otherwise in such manner as the Directors deem most expedient, with power for
the Directors on any consolidation of shares to deal with fractions of shares in any manner they
think fit. In particular, whenever on any consolidation Members shall be entitled to any fractions
of shares the Directors may sell all or any of such fractions and shall distribute the net proceeds
thereof amongst the Members entitled to such fractions in due proportions. In giving effect to any
such sales, the Directors may authorise some person to transfer the shares sold to the purchaser
thereof and the purchaser shali be registered as the holder of the shares comprised in any such
transfer and he shall not be bound to see to the application of the purchase maney nor shall his
title to the shares be affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings relating to the
transfer.

Subject to the Statutes, when the Directors consolidate or sub-divide shares, they may treat
Certificated and Uncertificated Shares which a Member holds as separate shareholdings.

Modification of Rights

Rights of various classes may be altered

46.1

46.2

46.3

46.4

If at any time the capital is divided into different classes of shares, the rights attached to any
class or any of such rights (unless otherwise provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that
class} may, subject to the Statutes, whether or not the Company is being wound up, modified,
abrogated or varied in such manner (if any) as may be provided by those rights, or with the
consent in Writing of the holders of three fourths of the issued shares of that class (excluding any
shares of that class held as treasury shares), or with the sanction of a special resolution passed
at a separate general meeting of the holders of the shares of the class, but not otherwise.

To every such separate general meeting the provisions of these Articles relating to general
meetings shall, mutatis mutandis, apply, but so that:-

46.2.1 at every such separate general meeting the guarum shall be two persons entitled to vote
at least holding or representing by proxy one third of the issued shares of the class (excluding
any shares of that class held as treasury shares). Provided that if at any adjourned meeting of
the holders of any class a quorum as defined is not present those holders who are present in
person or by proxy and entitled to vote shall form a quorum;

46.2.2 any holder of shares of the class in question present in person or by proxy may demand a
poll; and

46.2.3 the holders of the shares of the class in question shall, on a poll, have one vote in respect
of every share of the class held by them respectively.

This Article shall apply to the modification, varation or abrogation of the special rights attached to
some only of the shares of any class as if each group of shares of the class differently treated
formed a separate class the special rights whereof are to be modified, varied or abrogated.

For the avoidance of doubt, the provisions of these Articles relating to general meetings shall
apply, with necessary modifications, to any separate meeting of the holders of shares of a class
held otherwise than in connection with the variation or abrogation or modification of the rights
attached to shares of that class.
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Creation or issue of further shares of special class

47.  The rights attached to any class of shares shall not {unless otherwise provided by the terms of issue of
the shares of that class or by the terms upon which such shares are for the time being held) be
deemed to be modified or varied by the creation or issue of further shares ranking in some or all
respects pan passu therewith but in no respect in priority thereto,

General Meetings

48.  The Directors may from time to time make such arrangements as thaey shall in their absolute discretion
consider to be appropriate for the purpose of controlling or regulating attendance at any general
meeting, and the entitiement of any Member or proxy to attend any general meeting shall be subject to
any such arrangements as aforesaid which may from time to time have been notified to Members. In
any case where such arrangements apply or are to apply, the Directors may specify that the meeting
shall be held at the place at which the Chairman of the meeting will preside ("the Principal Venue") and
may make arrangements for simultaneous attendance and participation by Members and their proxies
at another venue or venues in such manner as the Directors may determine, provided atways that all
persons attending at each such venue (including the Principal Venue) shall be able to see and hear
and be seen and heard by the persons attending at all other such venues. Such arrangements for
simultaneous attendance and participation may include arrangements for controlling or regulating the
level of attendance at any particular venuge (whether by selection, the issue of admission cards or
otherwise) provided that they shall operate so that all Members and their proxies wishing to attend the
relevant meeting are able to attend at one or other of such venues. For the purposes of all ather
provisions of these Articles, any such meeting shall be treated as being held and taking place at the
Principal Venue.

Conteants of notice

49. The notice shall specify the place, the day and the time of meeting, and, in case of special business,
the general nature of the business. The notice shall be given in manner hereinafter mentioned or in
such other manner {if any} as may be prescribed by the Company in general meeting to such persons
as are under these Articles entitled to receive such notices from the Company. Every notice calling an
Annual General Meeting shall specify the meeting as such.

Statement as to proxies in notice

50. In every notice calling a meeting of the Company or of any class of Members of the Company there
shall appear with reasonable prominence a statement that a Member entitied to attend and vote is
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of him, and that a proxy need not be a Member,

Omission to give notice

51.  The accidental omission to give nofice to any person entitled under these Articles to receive notice of a
general meeting, or the non-receipt by any such person of such notice, shall not invalidate the
proceedings at that meeting.

Proceedings at General Meetings
Business of meeting

82. The ordinary business of an Annual General Meeting shall be to receive and consider the accounts and
balance sheets, the reports of the Directors and Auditors, and any other documents required by law to
be attached or annexed to the balance sheets, to elect Directors in place of those refiring by rotation or
otherwise, to elect Auditors where no special notice of such election is required by the Statutes and fix
their remuneration, or determine the method by which it may be fixed, to declare dividends and to
confer, vary or renew any authority under the Statutes or any power pursuant to Statutes. All other
business transacted at an Annual General Meeting, and all business transacted at any other general
meeting, shall be deemed special.

Quorum

53.  No business shali be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum of Members is present; and
such quorum shall consist of not less than two Members {(entitled to vote) present in person, by
representative (in the case of a corporate Member) or by proxy and entitied to vote.

Chairman

54. The Chairman (if any) of the Board or in his absence the deputy chairman (if any) shall preside as
Chairman at every general meeting of the Company. If more than one deputy chairman is present they

shall agree amongst themselves who is to take the chair or, if they cannot agree, the deputy chairman
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who has been in office as a Director longest shall take the chair. if there is no Chairman or deputy
chairman, or if at any meeting neither the Chairman nor any deputy chairman is present within fifteen
minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, or if they are unwilling to act as Chairman, the
Members present shall choose one of the Directors present to be Chairman; or if no Director is present
and willing to take the chair the Members present shall choose one of their number to be Chairman.

Adjournment for want of quorum

55.  If within fifteen minutes from the time appointed for a general meeting or such longer interval as the
Chairman may think fit to allow a quorum is not present the meeting, if convened by or on the
requisition of Members, shall be dissolved. In any other case it shall stand adjourned to such day and
to such time and place (not being less than three nor more than thirty days thereafter) as shall have
been specified for the purpose in the notice convening the meeting. Where no such arrangements have
been so specified, the meeting shall stand adjourned to such other day (being not less than seven nor
more than thirty days later) and at such other time or place as the Chairman of the Meeting may
determine. In default of such determination it shall be adjoumed to the same day in the next week or, if
that day is not a business day, the following business day at the same time and place. If at such an
adjourned meeting a quorum is not present within half an hour from the time appointed for the meeting,
the meeting shall be dissolved.

Adjournment with consent of meeting/by the Chairman

56.1 The Chairman may, with the consent of any general meeting at which a quorum is present (and
shall if so directed by the mesting) (or in the circumstances set out in Article 56.2 below), adjourn
the meeting from time to time and from place to place; but no business shall be transacted at any
adjourned meeting other than the business which might lawfully have been transacted at the
meeting from which the adjournment took place. When a meeting is adjourned for thirty days or
more or sing die, seven days’ notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given in the like manner
as in the case of an original meeting. Save as aforesaid, it shall not be necessary to give any
notice of an adjourned meeting or of the business to be transacted thereat.

56.2 The Chairman may at any time without the consent of the meeting adjourn any meeting (whether
or not it has commenced or a quorum is present) either sine die or to such other ime and place
as the Board or the Chairman of the meeting may decide if it appears to him that:-

56.2.1 the number of persons wishing to attend cannot be conveniently accommodated in the
place(s) appointed for the meeting; or

56.2.2 the unruly conduct of persons attending the meeting prevents or is likely to prevent the
orderly continuation of the business of the meeting; or

56.2.3 an adjournment is otherwise necessary so that the business of the meeting may be
properly conducted; or

56.2.4 a proposal of importance is made for the consideration of which a larger attendance of
Members is desirable.

Voting

57.1 At any general meeting every question shall be decided by a show of hands unless a poll is {on
or before the declaration of the result of the show of hands) directed by the Chairman or
demanded by:-

57.1.1 at least three Members present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote; or

57.1.2 one or more Members representing not less than one-tenth of the total voting rights of all
the Members having the right to vote at the meeting; or

57.1.3 one or more Members holding shares in the Company conferring a right to vote at the
meeting, being shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up equal to not less than ane-
tenth of the total sum paid up on ali the shares conferring that right.

The demand for a poll may be withdrawn. If a demand for a poll is withdrawn, the result of a
show of hands declared before the demand was made shall remain valid.,

57.2 A declaration by the Chairman that a resolution has been carried or not carried, or carried or
not carried by a particular majority, and an entry to that effect in the minute book of the
Company, shall be conclusive evidence of the facts, without proof of the number or proportion
of the votes recorded in favour of or against such resolution.



Poll

58. If a pollis duly directed or demanded it may be taken immediately or (subject to the provisions of Article
60) at such other time (bul not more than thirty days after such direction or demand) and in such
manner as the Chairman may appoint (such appointment to be made at the meeting at which the poll is
directed or demanded), and the result of such poll shali be deemed to be the resolution of the meeting
at which the poll was directed or demanded. No notice need be given of a poll not taken immediately.

Casting Vote

59. In the case of an equality of votes at any general meeting, whether upon a show of hands or on a poll,
the Chairman shall be entitled to a second or casting vote.

When poll taken without adjournment

60. A poll demanded upon the election of a Chairman or upon a question of adjpumment shall be taken
forthwith. Any business other than that upon which a poli has been demanded may be proceeded with
pending the taking of the poll.

Security Arrangements

61. The Board may direct that persons wishing to attend any general meeting should submit to such
searches or other security amangements or restrictions as the Board shall consider appropriate in the
circumstances and shall be entitled in its absolute discretion to, or to authorise some one or more
persons who shall include a Director or the Secretary or the Chairman of the meeting to, refuse entry
to, or to eject from, such general meeting any person who fails to submit to such searches or otherwise
to comply with such security arrangements or restrictions.

Entitlement to Attend and Speak

62. Each Director shall be entitled to attend and speak at any general meeting of the Company. The
Chairman may invite any person to attend and speak at any general meeting of the Company where he
considers that this will assist in the deliberations of the meeting.

Votes of Members
Votes

63. Subject to any special terms as to voting upon which any shares may for the time being be held and to
any other provision of these Articles, upon a show of hands every Member present in persoen or by
representative (in the case of a corporate Member) at a general meeting of the Company shall have
one vote and every proxy present who has been duly appointed by a Member shall have one vote, and
upon a poll every Member present in person or by representative (in the case of a corporate Member)
or by proxy shalt have one vote for every share held by him.

63.1 The 5 per cent. Cumulative Preference Shares shall not entitle the holders (2) to vote upon any
resolution (other than a resolution for winding up the Company or reducing its share capital or
sanctioning the sale of the undertaking of the Company or a resolution varying or abrogating any
of the special rights attached to such shares) unless at the date of the notice convening the
meeting at which such resolution is to be proposed the preferential dividend shall have remained
unpaid for six Months after any half-yearly day fixed for payment thereof (and so that for this
purpose the dividend shall be deemed to be payable half-yearly on the dates and in respect of
the periods hereinbefore mentioned), or (b} to receive notice of or to attend at any general
meeting unless the business of the meeting includes the consideration of a resolution upon
which such holders are entitled to vote.

By committee or curator

64. A Member incapable by reason of mental disorder or otherwise of managing and administering his
property and affairs may vote whether on a show of hands or on a poll by his receiver or other person
appointed by any Court of competent jurisdiction to act on his behalf and any such person may on a
poll vote by proxy provided that such evidence as the Directors may require of the authority of the
person claiming to vote shall have been deposited at the Office, or at such other place as is specified in
accordance with these Articles for the deposit of instruments of proxy not less than forty-eight hours
before the time: of holding the meeting or adjoumed meeting at which such person claims to vote.

Persons whosa calls are unpaid not entitled to vote
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65.  No Member (either personally or by proxy) unless the Board otherwise decides shall be entitled to vote
at any general meeting or to exercise any other rights conferred by membership in relation to general
meetings unless ali calls or other sums presently payable by him in respect of the shares held by him
in the Company have been paid.

Disenfranchisement of Members

66.1

66.2

66.3

66.4

For the purposes of this Article, unless the context otherwise requires:-

66.1.1 "disclosure notice” means a notice issued by or on behalf of the Company requiring
disclosure of interests in specified shares or of the identity of persons interested in shares
pursuant to the Statutes;

66.1.2 "restrictions” means one or more, as the case may be, of the restrictions referred to in
paragraph 66.3 of this Article;

66.1.3 "specified shares" means all or, as the case may be, some of the shares specified in a
disclosure notice;

66.1.4 a persaon other than the Member holding a share shall be treated as appearing to be
interested in the share if the Member has informed the Company that the person is, or may be,
so interested, or if the Directors (after taking account of any information obtained from the
Member or, pursuant to a disclosure notice, from any other person) know or have reasonable
cause to believe that the person is, or may be, so interested; and

66.1.5 “interested” shali be construed as it is for the purpose of sections 820-824 of the
Companies Act 2006.

Notwithstanding anything in these Articles to the contrary, if-

66.2.1 a disclosure notice has been served on a Member or any other person appearing to be
interested in the specified shares; and

66.2.2 the Company has not received (in accordance with the terms of such disclosure notice)
the information required therein in respect of the relevant specified shares not later than fourteen
days (subject as provided in Article 66.7 below) after the service of such disclosure notice then
the Directors may (subject to Aricle 66.3 below) determine that the Member in respect of the
relevant specified shares shall, upon the issue of a restriction notice {(as referred to below), be
subject to the restrictions referred to in such restriction notice {and upon the issue of such
restriction notice such Member shall be so subject). A "restriction notice” shall be a notice issued
by the Company stating, or substantially to the effect, that {until such time as the Directors
determine otherwise pursuant to Article 66.4) the specified shares referred to therein shall be
subject to one or more of the restrictions stated therein.

The restrictions which the Directors may determine shall apply to specified shares pursuant to
this Article shall be one or more, as determined by the Directors, of the following (save that.
where the holder of specified shares is the holder of less than 0.25 per cent. {in nominal value) of
the shares of the same class (calculated exclusive of any shares held as treasury shares) as the
specified shares in issue at the time of service of the disclosure notice in respect of such
specified shares, only the restriction referred to in Article 66.3.1 below may be determined by the
Directors to apply):-

66.3.1 that the Member registered in respect of such specified shares shall not be entitled, in
respect of those specified shares, to be present or to vote either personally or by representative
or by proxy or otherwise at any general meeting or at any separate general meeting of the
holders of any class of shares or upon any poll or to exercise any other right in relation to any
general meeting or any separate class meeting;

66.3.2 that no transfer of such specified shares by the Member registered in respect of such
specified shares shall be effective or shall be recognised by the Company; and

66.3.3 that no dividend shall be paid to the Member registered in respect of such specified
shares in respect of those specified shares and that in circumstances where an offer of the right
to elect to recelve shares or other securities instead of cash in respect of any dividend is or has
been made, any election made thereunder by such Member in respect of such specified shares
shall not be effective.

The Directors may determine that one or more of the restrictions imposed on specified shares
shall cease to apply (whereupon they shall cease so to apply) at any time, and the Directors shall
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66.5

66.6

66.7

66.8

66.9

determine that all the restrictions imposed on the specified shares shall cease to apply on the
date seven days after the occurrence of any of the following:-

66.4.1 the Company receives (in accordance with the terms of the relevant disclosure notice) the
information required therein in respect of such specified shares; or

66.4.2 the Company receives an executed instrument of transfer in respect of such specified
shares, which would otherwise be given effect to, pursuant to a sale of such specified shares on
a recognised investment exchange as defined in or any instrument made under the Financial
Services and Markets Act 2000 or on any stock exchange on which the Company's shares are
normally dealt in or pursuant to an acceptance of a take-over offer for the Company; or

66.4.3 the Company receives any other executed instrument of transfer in respect of such
specified shares which would otherwise be given effect to and the Directors have not determined,
within ten days after such receipt, not to give effect thereto on the grounds that they have
reasonable cause to believe that the change in the registered holder of such specified shares
would not be as a resuit of an anm's length sale resulting in a material change in the heneficial
interests in such specified shares.

Where dividends are not paid as a result of restrictions having been imposed on specified
shares, such dividends shall accrue and shall be payable (without interest) upon the relevant
restriction ceasing to apply.

Where the Directors make a determination under Article 66.4.3 above they shall notify the
purported transferee as soon as practicable thereof and any person may make representations
in Writing to the Directors concerning any such determination. The Directors shall not be liable to
any person as a result of having imposed restrictions or having failed to determine that such
restrictions shall cease to apply if the Diractors acted in good faith.

Where the holder of the specified shares is the holder of less than 0.25 per cent. (in nominal
value) of the shares of the same class as the specified shares in issue at the time of service of
the disclosure notice in respect of such specified shares, the period of fourteen days referred to
in Article 66.2.2 above shall be deemed to be replaced by a peried of twenty-eight days.

Shares issued in right of specified shares in respect of which a Member is for the time being
subject to restrictions under this Article shall on issue become subject to the same restrictions
whilst held by that Member as the specified shares in right of which they are issued. For this
purpose, shares which the Company procures to be offered to shareholders pro rata (or pro rata
ignoring fractional entittements and shares not offered to certain Members by reason of legal or
practical problems associated with offering shares outside the United Kingdom} shall be treated
as shares issued in right of specified shares.

The Directors shall at all times have the right, at their discretion, to suspend, in whale or in part,
any restriction notice given pursuant to this Article either permanently or for any given period and
to pay to a trustee any dividend payable in respect of any specified shares or in respect of any
shares issued in right of specified shares which are referred to in such restriction notice. Notice
of suspension, specifying the sanctions suspended and the pericd of suspension shall be given
to the relevant Member in Writing within seven days after any decision to implement such a
suspension.

66.10 The provisions of this Article are without prejudice to, and shall not affect, the right of the

Company to apply any of the provisions relating to disclosure notices under the Statutes. For the
purpose of this Article a disclosure notice may require information to be given before a period of
fourteen days following service of the disclosure notice.

Objection to the qualification of a vote

67.

If any objection shall be raised as to the qualification of any voter or it is alleged that any votes have
been counted which should not have been counted or that any votes are not counted which ought to
have been counted, the objection or allegation shall not vitiate the decision on any resolution unless it is
raised at the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the vote objected to is given or tendered or at

which the alleged error occurs. Any objection or allegation made in due time shall be referred to the

Chairman of the meeting, whose decision shall be final and conclusive.

Voting by proxy

68.

Upon a poll votes may be given either personally or by proxy. A Member may appoint more than one
proxy to attend on the same occasion and if he does he shall specify the number of shares in respect
of which each proxy is entitled to exercise the related votes and shall ensure that no proxy is appointed
to exercise the votes which any other proxy has been appointed by that Member to exercise.
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How signed

69,

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in the usual common form or such other form as may be
approved by the Directors from time to time (provided that it shall be so worded as to enable the proxy
to vote either for or against the resolutions to be proposed at the meeting at which the proxy is to be
used) and shall be in Writing under the hand of the appointor, or of his attormey duly authorised in
Writing, or if such appointor is a corporation either under its common seal or under the hand of an
officer or attorney duly authorised. A Member may appoint two or more persons as proxies to attend on
the same occasion and if he does he shall specify the number of shares in respect of which each proxy
is entitled o exercise the related votes and shall ensure that no proxy is appointed to exercise the votes
which any other proxy has been appointed hy that Member to exercise. When two or more valid but
differing appointments of a proxy are received in respect of the same share for use at the same
meeting, the one which is last received (regardless of its date or of the date of its signature) shall be
treated as replacing or revoking the others as regards that share; if the Company is unable to
determine which was last received, none of them shall be treated as valid in respect of that share. The
appointment of a proxy shalt not prevent a Member from attending and voting in person at the meeting
or poll concemed. References in this Article to notice in Writing include the use of communications by
electronic means subject to such terms and conditions as the Board may decide.

Any person may act as proxy

70.

Any persan may be appointed to act as proxy. A proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

Depaosit of proxy

71.1  The appointment of a proxy must:

71.1.1 In the case of an appointment of a proxy made in hard copy form, be deposited at the
Office (or such ather place in the United Kingdom as may be specified for that purpose
in or by way of note to the notice convening the meeting) not less than forty-eight hours
{or such shorter time as the Board may determine) before the time fixed for holding the
meeting or adjourned meeting at which the person named in such instrument is
authorised to vote together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under
which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy of such power or authority;

71.1.2 In the case of an appointment of a proxy made by electronic means, where an address
has been specified for the purpose of receiving appointments of proxy by electronic
means in the notice convening the meeting or in any notice of any adjournment or, in
either case, in any accompanying document, be received at such address not less than
forty-eight hours {or such shorter time as the Board may determine) before the time
fixed for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the person named in such
instrument is authorised to vote. The power of attomey or other authority (if any) under
which such an appointment is made, or a notarially certified copy of such power or
authority, shall be deposited at the Office (or such other place in the United Kingdom as
may be specified for that purpese in or by way of note to the notice convening the
meeting) not less than forty-eight hours (or such shorter time as the Board may
determine} before the time fixed for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which
the person named in the appointment is authorised to vote;

71.1.3 In the case of a poll taken more than forty-eight hours after it was demanded, be
received as aforesaid not less than twenty-four hours (or such shorter time as the
Board may determine) before the time appointed for the taking of the poll;

71.1.4 In the case of a poll taken following the conclusion of a meeting or adjourned meeting
but forty-eight hours or less after it was demanded, be received as aforesaid before the
end of the meeting at which it was demanded (or at such later time as the Board may
determine),

and an appointment of a proxy which is not, or in respect of which the authority or copy thereof
is not, received in a manner so permitted shall be invalid.

71.2  An instrument of proxy relating to more than one meeting (including any adjournment thereof)
having once been delivered, in accordance with Article 71.1 above, for the purposes of any
meeting shall not be required to be delivered again for the purposes of any subsequent meeting
to which it relates. The deposit or delivery of an instrument of proxy shall not preclude a Member
from attending and voting at the meeting or at any adjourned meeting. The proceedings at a
general meeting shall not be invalidated where appointment of a proxy in respect of that meeting
is sent in electronic form as provided in these Articles, but because of a technical problem it

cannot be read by the recipient.
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71.3 The Board may at its discretion determine that in calculating the periods mentioned in this Article
no account shall be taken of any part of a day that is not a working day.

A proxy may demand poll

72.  The instrument appointing a proxy shall be deemed to confer authority to demand or join in demanding
a poll.

When vote by proxy valid, though authority revoked

73. A vote given or act done in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy shall be valid
notwithstanding the previous death or insanity of the appointor, or revocation of the proxy, or of the
authority under which the proxy was executed, or the transfer of the share in respect of which the proxy
is given, unless notice in Writing of such death, insanity, revocation or transfer as aforesaid shall have
been received by the Company at the Office (or such other place in the United Kingdom as may be
specified for depositing the instrument of proxy in or by way of the note to the notice convening the
meeting) at least one hour before the commencement of the meeting or adjoumed meeting or poll at
which the vote was given or the act was done. References in this Article to Writing include the use of
communications by electronic means subject to such terms and conditions as the Board may decide.

Votes by corporations

74.  Any corporation which is a Member may, by resolution of its directors or their governing body, authorise
such person as it thinks fit to act as its representative at any mesting of the Company, or at any meeting
of any class of Members, and the person so authorised shall be entitled to exercise the same powers
on behalf of the corporation which he represents as that corporation could exercise if it were an
individual Member attending the meeting in person,

Directors
Numbers of Directors

75. Unless and until the Company in general meeting shall otherwise determine, the number of Directors
shall be not less than two nor more than ten.

Director's share qualification

76. A Director shall not require a share qualification. A Director shall be entitled to receive notice of and
attend and speak at all general meetings of the Company and at all separate general meetings of the
holders of any class of shares in the capital of the Company.

Remuneration of Directors

77.  The ordinary remuneration of the Directors shall from time to time be determined by an ordinary
resolution of the Company and shall (unless such resolution otherwise provides) be divided amongst
the Directors as they shall agree or in default of agreement equally. The Directors may also be paid by
way of additional fees such further sums as the Company in general meeting may from time to time
determine, and any such additional fees shall be divided among the Directors as they shall agree or in
default of agreement equally.

Repayment of expenses

78. The Company may repay to any Director all such reasonable expenses as he may incur in attending
and returning from meetings of the Directors, or of any committee of the Directors, or general meetings,
or otherwise in or about the business of the Company. The Company may also fund a Director's
expenditure on defending proceedings or in connection with any application under the Statutes and
may do anything to enable a director to avoid incurring such expenditure ali as provided in the Statutes,

Payment for duties outside scope of ordinary duties

79.  Any Director who is appointed to any executive office or who serves on any committee or who
otherwise performs services which in the opinion of the Directors are outside the scope of the ordinary
duties of a Director may be paid in addition to any Directors' fees to which he may be entitled under
Article 77 such remuneration by way of salary, percentage of profits or otherwise as the Directors may
determine.
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Powers and Duties of Directors

Powers

80.

The business of the Company shall be managed by the Directors who may exercise all such powers of
the Company as are not required to be exercised by the Company in general meeting, subject, to the
provisions of these Articles and of the Statutes, and to such regulations as may be prescribed by the
Company in general meeting; but no regulation made by the Company in general meeting shall
invalidate any prior act of the Directors which would have been valid if such regulation had not been
made. The general powers conferred upon the Directors by this Aricle shall not be deemed to be
abridged or restricted by any specific power conferred upon the Directors by any other Article.

Pensions, etc.

81.

Without prejudice to the generality of the last preceding Article, the Directors may give or award
pensions, annuities, gratuities and superannuation or other allowances or benefits to any persons who
are or have at any time been employed by or in the service of the Company (including Directors who
have held any executive office under the Company) and to the wives, husbands, widows, widowers,
children and other relatives and dependants of any such persons, and may set up, establish, join with
other companies (being Subsidiaries or companies with which it is associated in business}, support and
maintain pension, superannuation or other funds or schemes (whether contributory or non-contributory)
for the benefit of such persons or any of them or any class of them. Any Director shall be entitled to
receive and retain for his own benefit any such pension, annuity, gratuity, allowance or other benefit.
Any such pension, or participation in any such funds or schemes may, as the Directors consider
desirable, be granted to an employee either before and in anticipation of or upon or at any time after his
actual retirement.

Subsidiaries

82.

The Directors may arrange that any branch of the business carried on by the Company or any other
business in which the Company may be interested shall be carred on as or through one or more
Subsidiares, and they may, on behalf of the Company, make such arrangements as they think
advisable for taking the profits or bearing the losses of any branch or business so carried on or for
financing, assisting or subsidising any such Subsidiary or guaranteeing its contracts, obligations or
liabilities, and they may appeint, remove and re-appoint any persons {(whether Members of their own
body or not} to act as Directors, Managing Directers or Managers of any such Subsidiary or any other
company in which the Company may be interested and may determine the remuneration (whether by
way of salary, commission on profits or otherwise) of any persons so appointed, and any Directors of
the Company may retain any remuneration so payable to them.

Attorneys

83.

The Directors may from time to time and at any time by power of attorney executed under the Seal or
otherwise by the Company as its deed appoint any company, firm or person or body of persons,
whether nominated directly or indirectly by the Directors, to be the attorney or attorneys of the Company
for such purposes and with such powers, authorities and discretions (not exceeding those vested in or
exercisable by the Directors under these Articles) and for such period and subject to such conditions as
they may think fit, and any such powers of attorney may contain such provisions for the protection and
convenience of persons dealing with any such attorney as the Directors may decide and may also
authorise any such attorney to delegate all or any of the powers, authorities and discretions vested in
him.

Seal for use abroad

84,

The Company may exercise the powers conferred by the Statutes with regard to having an official seal
for use abroad, and such powers shall be vested in the Directors.

Overseas Branch Register

85.

Subject to the Statues the Company may exercise the powers conferred upon the Company with regard
to the keeping of an overseas branch register or local or other register, and the Directors may (subject
to the Statutes) make and vary such regulations as they may think fit respecting the keeping of any
such register.

Authorisation of signatures and acceptances

86.

All cheques, promissory notes, drafts, bills of exchange and other negotiable or transferable
instruments, and all receipts for moneys paid to the Company, shall be signed, drawn, accepted,
endorsed, or otherwise executed, as the case may be, in such manner as the Directors shall from time

to time determine.
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Borrowing Powers and Debentures

87.1 Subject to the provisions of this Article the Directors may exercise all the powers of the
Company to borrow or raise money and to mortgage or charge all or any part of its undertaking,
property and uncalted capital and to issue debentures and other securities whether outright or
as security (principal or collateral) for any debt, liability or obligation of the Company or any third

party.

87.2 The Board shall restrict the borrowings of the Company and exercise all voting and other rights
or powers of control exercisable by the Company in relation to its subsidiary undertakings (if
any) so as to secure (but as regards subsidiary undertakings only in so far as by the exercise of
the rights or powers of control the Board can secure) that the aggregate principal amount from
time to time outstanding of all borrowings by the group (exclusive of borrowings owing by one
member of the group to another member of the group) shall not at any time without the previous
sanction of an ordinary resolution of the Company exceed an amount equal to three times the
adjusted capital and reserves.

87.3 For the purposes of this Article:

87.3.1 “the adjusted capital and reserves” means the aggregate from time to time of:

(a)

(b)

{c)

(d)

the amount paid up on the issued share capital of the Company {including any
shares held as treasury shares); and

the amount standing to the credit of the reserves of the Company including {without
limitation) any share premium account, capital redemption reserve and credit
balance on profit and loss account or retained earnings, all as shown by the then
latest audited balance sheet but after:

deducting from the aggregate any debit bafance on profit and loss account or
retained earnings subsisting at the date of that audited balance sheet except to the
axtent that a deduction has already been made on that account, and

making such adjustment as may be appropriate to reflect any variation in the
amount of the paid up share capital, share premium account, capital redemption
reserve or other reserve since the date of the audited balance sheet;

87.3.2 “borrowings” include the following except insofar as otherwise taken into account:

(a)

(b

{c)

(d)

{e)

{f)

the principal amount (together with any fixed or minimum premium payable on final
repayment) owing by a member of the group under any debenture, debenture
stock or bond or other security whether constituting a charge over the assets of
such company or not, and whether issued for cash or otherwise;

the principal amount owing by any member of the group under any acceptance
credit opened on its behalf by any bank, acceptance house or finance company
other than acceptances relating to the purchase or sale of goods in the usual
course of trading;

the principal amount owing by a member of the group in respect of any loan or
advance from, or overdraft facility with, any bank, acceptance house or finance
company;

the principal amount owing by a member of the group under or in respect of any
hire purchase agreement, finance lease (as defined in international Accounting
Standard 17), conditional sale agreement, credit sale agreement or other
agreement of a similar nature;

the nominal amount of any issued share capital and the principal amount of any
borrowings (together, in each case, with any fixed or minimum premium payable on
final repayment) the repayment of which is guaranteed or secured or is the subject
of an indemnity given by a member of the group and the beneficial interest in which
is not owned by a member of the group;

the nominal amount (including any fixed or minimum premium payable on final
repayment) of any issued share capital, other than equity share capital, of any
subsidiary undertaking the beneficial interest in which Is not owned by a member of
the group;
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()  the minority proportion of moneys borrowed by @ member of the group and owing
to a partly-owned subsidiary undertaking;

but shall not include:-

(h)  borrowings incurred by any member of the group for the purpose of repaying within
one month of the borrowing the whole or any part of any borrowings of that or any
other member of the group outstanding at the relevant time, pending their
application for that purpose within that period;

(i) the minority proportion of moneys borrowed by a partly-owned subsidiary
undertaking and not owing to another member of the group;

)] borrowings incurred by any member of the group for the purpose of financing any
contract for the sale of goods to the extent that the purchase price receivable under
such contract is guaranteed or insured;

87.3.3 outstanding borrowings in a currency other than sterling shall be converted into sterling

at the London spot buying rate for such currency as quoted at about 11 a.m. on the day
in question by Barclays Bank PLC;

87.3.4 if the amount of adjusted capital and reserves is being calculated in connection with a

transaction involving a company becoming or ceasing to be a member of the group, the
amount is to be calculated as if the transaction had already occurred;

87.3.5 a certificate or report by the Auditors as to the amount of the adjusted capital and

reserves or the amount of any borrowings or to the effect that the limit imposed by this
Article has not been or will not be exceeded at any particular time or times shall be
conclusive evidence of that amount or of that fact;

87.3.6 “audited balance sheet” means the audited balance sheet of the Company prepared for

the purposes of the Statutes for a financial year unless an audited consolidated balance
sheet dealing with the state of affairs of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings
required to be dealt with in group accounts has been prepared for those purposes for
the same financial year, in which case it means that audited consolidated balance
sheet, and in that case all references to reserves shall be deemed to be references to
consolidated reserves;

87.3.7 "the group™ means the Company and its subsidiary undertakings (if any); and

87.3.8 “the minority proportion™ means a proportion equal to the proportion of the issued share

capital of a partly-owned subsidiary undertaking which is not attributable to a member of
the group.

Bonds, debentures, etc., to be subject to control of Directors

88.  Subject to the provisions of the Statutes, any debentures or other securities issued or to be issued by
the Company shall be under the control of the Directors, who may issue them upon such terms and
conditions and in such manner and for such consideration as they shall consider to be for the benefit of
the Company.

Directors’ Interests

Conflicts of interest requiring authorisation by Directors

89.1

89.2

89.3

The Directors may, subject to the quorum and voting requirements set out in this Article,
authorise any matter which would otherwise involve a Director breaching his duty under the
Statutes to avoid conflicts of interest (*Conflict™).

A Director seeking authorisation in respect of a Conflict must tell the Directors of the nature
and extent of his interest in a Confiict as scon as possible. The Director must give the Board
sufficient details of the relevant matter to enable them to decide how to address the Conflict
together with any additional information as may be requested by the Board.

Any Director (including the relevant Director) may propose that the relevant Director be

authorised in relation to any matter the subject of a Conflict. Such proposal and any authority

given by the Directors shall be effected in the same way that any other matter may be

{a':oposed to and resolved upon by the Directors under the provisions of these Aricles save
at:
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894

89.3.1 the relevant Director and any other Director with a similar interest will not count in the
quorum and will not vote on a resolution giving such authority; and

89.3.2 the retevant Director and any other Director with a similar interest may, if the other
Directors so decide, be excluded from any meeting of the Board while the Conflict is
under consideration.

Where the Board gives authority in relation to a Conflict:

89.4.1 the Board may (whether at the time of giving the authority or subsequently) (a)
require that the relevant Director is excluded from the receipt of information, the
participation in discussion and/or the making of decisions (whether at meetings of the
Board or otherwise) related to the Conflict; and (b) impose upon the relevant Director
such other terms for the purpose of dealing with the Conflict as they think fit;

89.4.2 the relevant Director will be obliged to conduct himself in accordance with any terms
imposed by the Board in relation to the Conflict;

89.4.3 the Board may also provide that where the relevant Director obtains (otherwise than
through his position as a Director of the Company) information that is confidential to a
third party, the Director will not be obliged to disclose that information to the
Company, or to use or apply the information in relation to the Company's affairs,
where to do so would amount to a breach of that confidence;

89.4.4 the terms of the authority shall be recorded in Writing (but the authority shall be
effective whether or not the terms are so recorded); and

89.4.5 the Board may revoke or vary such authority at any time but this will not affect
anything done by the relevant Director prior to such revocation in accordance with the
terms of such authority.

Other confiicts of interest

80.1

90.2

Benefits

91.

If a Director knows that he is in any way directly or indirectly interested in a proposed contract
with the Company or a contract that has been entered into by the Company, he must tell the
other Directors of the nature and extent of that interest in accordance with the Statutes.

If he has disclosed the nature and extent of his interest in accordance with Aricle 90.1, a
Director can do any one or more of the following:

90.2.1 have any kind of interest in a contract with or involving the Company or another
company in which the Company has an interest;

90.2.2 hold any other office or place of profit with the Company {except that of auditor) in
conjunction with his office of Director for such period and upon such terms, including
as to remuneration, as the Board may decide;

90.2.3 alone, or through a firm with which he is associated do paid professional work for the
Company or ancther company in which the Company has an interest (other than as
auditor);

90.2.4 be or become a director or other officer of or employed by or otherwise be interested
in any holding company or subsidiary company of the Company or any other
company in which the Company has an interest; and

90.2.5 be or become a director of any other company in which the Company does not have
an interest and which cannot reasonably be regarded as giving rise to a conflict of
interest at the time of his appointment as a director of that other company.

A Director shall not, by reascn of his office or of the fiduciary relationship thereby established,
be liable to account to the Company for any remuneration, profit or other benefit realised by
reason of his having any type of interest authorised under Article 89.1 or permitted under
Articia 80.2 and no contract shall be liable to be avoided on the grounds of a director having
any type of interest authorised under Article 89,1 or permitted under Article 90.2.
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Quorum and voting requirements

92.1

922

92.3

A Director shall not vote or be counted in the quorum on a resolution of the Board conceming
his own appointment, or the settlement or variation of the terms or the termination of his own
appointment as the hotder of any office or place of profit with the Company or any other
company in which the Company is interested.

Where proposals are under consideration concerning the appointment, or the settlement or
variation of the terms or the termination of the appointment, of two or more Directors to offices
or places of profit with the Company or any other company in which the Company is
interested, a separate resolution may be put in relation to each Director and in that case each
of the Directors concerned shall be entitled to vote and be counted in the quorum in respect of
each resolution unless it concerns his own appointment or the settlement or variation of the
terms or the termination of his own appointment or the appointment of another Director to an
office or place of profit with a company in which the Company is interested and the Director
seeking to vote or be counted in the quorum has a Relevant Interest (as defined in Article 92.4
below) in it.

A Director shall not vote or be counted in the quorum in refation to any resolution of the Board
about a contract in which he has an interest and, if he does vote, his vote will not be counted,
but this prohibition will not apply to any resolution where that interest cannot reasonably be
regarded as likely to give rise to a conflict of interest or where that interest arises only from
one or mere of the following matters:-

92.3.1 the giving to him of any guarantee, indemnity or security for money which he or any
other person has lent or obligations he or any other person has undertaken at the
request of or for the benefit of the Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings;

92.3.2 the giving to a third party of any guarantee, indemnity or security in respect of a debt
or obligation of the Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings for which he
himself has assumed responsibility in whole or in part under a guarantee, indemnity
or by the giving of security ;

92,33 the giving to him of any other indemnity where all other Directors are also being
offered indemnities on substantially the same terms;

92.3.4 the funding by the Company of his expenditure on defending proceedings or the
Company doing something to enable him to avoid incurring such expenditure where
all other Directors are being offered substantially the same arrangements;

82.3.5 where the Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings is offering securities in
which offer the Director is or may be entitled to participate as a holder of securities or
in the underwriting or sub-underwriting of which the Director is to participate;

92.3.6 any contract in which he has an interest by virtue of his interest in shares or
debentures or other securities of the Company or by reason of any other interest in or
through the Company;

§92.3.7 any contract concemning any other company {(not being a company in which the
Director has a Relevant interest) in which he is interested directly or indirectly
whether as an officer, shareholder, creditor or otherwise howsoever;

82.3.8 any contract concerning the adoption, modification, or operation of a pensions fund,
superannuation or similar scheme or retirement, death or disability benefits scheme
or employees’ share scheme which relates both to Directors and employees of the
Company or of any of its subsidiary undertakings and does not provide in respect of
any Director as such any privilege or advantage not accorded to the employees to
which the fund or scheme relates;

92.3.9 any contract for the benefit of employees of the Company or of any of its subsidiary
undertakings under which he benefits in a similar manner to the employees and
which does not accord to any Director as such any privilege or advantage not
accorded to the employees to whom the contract relates; and

92.3.10 any contract for the purchase or maintenance of insurance against any liability for, or
for the benefit of, any Director or Directors or for, or for the benefit of, persons who
include Directors,
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92.4 A company shall be deemed to be one in which a Director has a Relevant Interest if and so
long as (but only if and so long as) he is to his knowledge (either direclly or indirectly) the
holder of or beneficially interested in one per cent. or more of any class of the equity share
capital of that company (calculated exclusive of any shares of that class in that company held
as treasury shares) or of the voting rights available to members of that company. In relation to
an alternate Director, an interest of his appointor shall be treated as an interest of the alternate
Director without prejudice to any interest which the alternate director has otherwise.

92.5 Where a company in which a Director has a Relevant Interest is interested in a contract, he
also shall be deemed interested in that contract.

926 If any question shall arise at any meeting of the Board as to the interest of a Director (other
than the Chairman of the meeting) in a contract and whether it is likely to give rise to a conflict
of interest or as to the entitlement of any Director {other than the chairman of the meeting) to
vote or be counted in the quorum and the question is not resolved by his voluntarily agreeing
to abstain from voting or not to be counted in the quorum, the question shall be referred to the
Chairman of the meeting and his ruling in relation to the Director concerned shall be
conclusive except in a case where the nature or extent of the Director's interest (so far as it is
known to him} has not been fairly disclosed to the Board. If any question shall arise in respect
of the Chairman of the meeting, the question shall be decided by a resolution of the Board (for
which purpose the Chairman of the meeting shall be counted in the quorum but shall not vote
on the matter) and the resolution shall be conclusive except in a case where the nature or
extent of the interest of the Chairman of the meeting (so far as it is known to him) has not
been fairly disclosed to the Board.

927 Subject to these Articles, the Board may also cause any voting power conferred by the shares
in any other company held or owned by the Company or any power of appointment to be
exercised in such manner in all respects as it thinks fit, including the exercise of the voting
power or power of appointment in favour of the appointment of the Directors or any of them as
directors or officers of the other company, or in favour of the payment of remuneration to the
directors or officers of the other company. Subject to these Articles, a Director may also vote
on and be counted in the quorum in relation to any of such matters.

General
93.1 References in Articles 89-92 to
93.1.1 a contract include references to an existing or proposed contract and to any
transaction or arrangement or proposed transaction or arrangement whether or not
constituting a contract; and
93.1.2 a conflict of interest include a conflict of interest and duty and a conflict of duties.
93.2 The Company may by ordinary resolution suspend or relax the provisions of Articles §9-92 to

any extent or ratify any contract which has not been proparly authorised by reason of a
contravention of these Articles.

Disqualification of Directors

Disqualification

94.

The office of a Director shall be vacated if the Director:-
94.1 Becomes bankrupt or insolvent or compounds with his creditors generally;
94.2 is, or may be, suffering from mental disorder and either:-

94.2.1 he is admitted to hospital in pursuance of an application for admission for treatment under
any statute relating to mental heatth; or

94.2.2 an order is made hy a court having jurisdiction (whether in the United Kingdom or
elsewhere) in matters conceming mental disorder for his detention or for the appointment of a
receiver, curator bonis or other persen to exercise powers with respect to his property or affairs;

94.3 becomes prohibited from being a Director by law;

94.4 is convicted of an indictable offence {not being an offence which, in the opinion of the Directors,
does not affect his character or position as a Director of the Company);
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94.5 is absent from meetings of the Directors for a period of six Months without leave expressed by a
resolution of the Directors and the Directors resolve that his office be vacated;

94.6 (not being an executive Director whose contract of employment precludes resignation} he resigns
his office by notice in Writing left at the Office;

94.7 is requested in Writing by all of the other Directors to resign his office.

94.8 he ceases to be a Director by virtue of the Statutes or is removed from office pursuant to these
Articles.

But any act done in good faith by a Director whose office is so vacated shall be valid unless, prior to
the doing of such act, written notice shall have been served upon the Company or an entry shall have
been made in the Directors' minute book stating that such Director has ceased to be a Director of the
Company. In this Article references to in Writing include the use of communications by electronic
means subject to such terms and conditions as the Board may decide.

Rotation of Directors

Directors to retire by rotation

95.

At every Annual General Meeting any Director:
95.1 who has been appointed by the Board since the last Annual General Meeting, or

85.2 who held office at the time of the two preceding Annual General Meetings and who did not retire at
either of them, or

95.3 who has held office with the Company, other than employment or executive office, for a
continuous period of nine years or more at the date of the meeting,

shall retire from office and may offer himself for re-appointment by the Members,

Filling vacancies

98.

The Company at the Annual General Meeting at which any Director so retires in the manner aforesaid
may appeint a person to the vacated office, and appoint persons to any other offices which may then be
vacant. The Company may also at any general meeting of the Company, on notice duly given, fill any
vacancies in the office of Director, or appoint additional Directors, provided that the maximum number
fixed as hereinbefore mentioned be not exceeded.

Notice of intention to propose a Director

97.

No person other than a Director retiring at the meeting or a person who is recommended by the
Directors for election shall be eligible for election to the office of Director at any general meeting unless,
not less than seven nor more than twenty-one days before the day appointed for the meeting, there
shall have been left at the Office notice in Writing, signed by a Member duly qualified to attend and vote
at such meeting, of his intention to propose such person for election, and also notice in Writing signed
by that person of his willingness to be elected.

If vacancies not filled

98.

If at any general meeting at which an eleclion of Directors should take place the place of any retiring
Director is not filled up, such retiring Director shall (unless a resolution for his re-election shall have
been put to the meeting and lost) continue in office until the Annual General Meeting in the next year,
and so on from time to time until his place has been filled, unfess at any such meeting it shall be
determined to reduce the number of Directors in office.

Power te fill casual vacancy

99.

The Directors shall have power at any time and from time to time to appoint any other person to be a
Director of the Company, either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board of Directors, but
so that the total number of Directors shall not at any lime exceed the maximum. Any Director so
appointed shall hold office only until the next following Annual General Meeting, when he shall retire,
but shall be eligible for re-election.
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Remaoval of a Director by the Company in general meeting

160. The Company may in accordance with and subject to the provisions of the Statutes by ordinary
resolution, of which special notice has been given in accordance with the Statutes, remove any
Director (including a managing or other executive Director) before the expiration of his period of office
(notwithstanding anything in these Articles or in any agreement between the Company and such
Director but without prejudice to any claim for damages in respect of the breach of any such
agreement), and may by ordinary resolution appoint another person in his stead. Any Director so
appointed shall hold office only until the next following Annual General Meeting, when he shall retire,
but shall be eligible for re-election.

Alternate Directors
Directors may appoint an alternate Director

101. Any Director may at any lime appoint another Director or any other person approved by the Directors to
be an alternate Director of the Company and may at any time remove any alternate Director appointed
by him from office. An alternate Director so appeinted shall not be entitled to receive any remuneration
from the Company. However, an altemate Director may be paid expenses and shall be entitled to be
indemnified by the Company to the same extent as if he were a Director and the Company shall, if so
requested in Writing by the appointer, pay to the altemate Director any part of the fees or remuneration
due to the appointer. An alternate Director so appointed shall not be required to hold any share
qualification, nor be counted in reckoning the maximum and minimum number of Directors allowed or
required by these Articles, but shall otherwise be subject to the provisions of these Articles with regard
to Directors. An alternate Director shall (subject to his giving to the Company an address within the
United Kingdom at which notices may be served upon him) be entitled to receive notices of all
meetings of the Directors and to attend and vote as a Director at any such meetings at which the
Director appointing him is not personally present, and generally to perform all the functions of such
appointor as a Director. An alternate Director shall ipso facto cease to be an alternate Director if his
appointor ceases for any reason to be a Director, provided that if any Director retires by rotation but is
re-elected by the meeting at which such retirement took effect, any appointment made by him pursuant
to this Article which was in force immediately prior to his retirement shall continue to operate after his
re-election as if he had not so retired. The appointment of an alternate Director shall automatically
determine on the happening of any event which if he were a Director would cause him to vacate such
office. All appointments and removals of alternate Directors shall be effected by Writing under the hand
of the Director making or revoking such appointment delivered to or left at the Office. An alternate
Director may represent more than one Director. An alternate Director shall have one vote for each
Director for whom he acts as alternate in addition to his own vote if he is also a Director but he shall
count as only one for the purposes of determining whether a quorum is present. Signature of an
alternate Director of any resolution in Writing of the Board or a committee of the Board shall, unless the
notice of his appointment provides to the contrary, be as effeclive as signature by his appointer.

In this Article references to Writing include the use of communications by electronic means subject to
such terms and conditicns as the Board may decide.

Responsibility of alternate Director

102. Every alternate Director shall be an officer of the Company, and shall alone be responsible to the
Company for his own acts and defaults, and he shall not be deemed to be the agent of or for the
Director appointing him.

Local and Other Directors
Power to appoint local Directors

103. The Directors may from time to time pursuant to this Aricle appoint any other persons to any post with
such descriptive title including that of Director (whether as local, associate, executive, group, divisional,
departmental, deputy, assistant, advisory director or otherwise) as the Directors may determine and
may define, limit, vary and restrict the powers, authorities and discretions of persons so appointed and
may fix and determine their remuneration and duties, and subject to any contract between him and the
Company may remove from such post any person so appointed. A person so appointed shall not be a
Director of the Company for any of the purposes of these Articles or of the Statutes.




Proceedings of Directors
Meetings and quorum

104.1 The Directors may meet together for the despatch of business, adjourn and otherwise regulate
their meetings as they think fit, and determine the querum necessary for the transaction of business.
Until otherwise determined two Directors shall constitute a quorum.

104.2 Any Director may participate in 2 meeting of the Directors by means of conference telephone or
similar communications equipment whereby all the Directors participating in the meeting can hear each
other and the Directors participating in this manner shall be deemed to be present in person at such
meeting and shall accordingly be counted in the quorum and entitied to vote, Subject to the Statutes, ali
business transacted in such manner by the Board or a committee of the Board shall for the purpose of
these Articles be deemed to be validly and effectively transacted at a meeling of the Board or a
committee of the Board notwithstanding that fewer than two Directors or alternate Directors are
physically present at the same place. Such a meeting shall be deemed to take place where the largest
group of those participating is assembled or, if there is no such group, where the Chairman of the
meeting then is.

Voting

105. Questions arising at any meeting shall be decided by a majarity of votes. In case of an equality of
votes the Chairman shall have a second or casting vote. A meeting of the Directors at which a quorum
is present shall be competent to exercise all powers and discretions for the time being exercisable by
the Directors.

Summoning Meetings

106. Notice of a Beard Meeting shall be deemed to be duly given to a Director if it is given to him personally
ot by word of mouth or sent in Writing to him at his last known address or any other address given by
him to the Company for this purpose. In this Aricle references to Writing include the use of
communications by electronic means subject to such terms and conditions as the Board may decide.

Directors may act notwithstanding vacancy

107. The continuing Directors or a sole continuing Director may act notwithstanding any vacancy in their
body, but if and so long as the number of Directors is reduced below the number fixed by or pursuant
to these Articles as the necessary quorum of Directors, the continuing Directors may act for the
purpose of increasing the number of Directors to that number, or of summoning a general meeting of
the Company, but for no other purpose. If there are no Directors or Director willing to act, then any two
Members may summon a general meeting for the purpose of appointing Directors.

Chairman

108. The Directors may elect a Chairman and a deputy chairman of their meetings, and determine the
period for which each is to hold office; but if no such Chaimrman or deputy chairman be elected, or if at
any meeting the Chairman or deputy chaiman is not present within five minutes after the time
appointed for holding the same, the Directors present shall choose one of their number to be
Chairman of such meeting.

Memorandum signed by all the Directors

109. A memorandum in Writing signed by all the Directors for the time being entitled to receive notice of a
meeting of Directors and annexed or attached to the Directors’ minute book shall be as effective for alf
purposes as a resolution of the Directors passed at a meeting duly convened, held and constituted.
Any such memorandum may consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or more of
such Directors. Such a resolution need not be signed by an alternate Director if it is signed by the
Director who appointed him, and need not be signed by the appointing Director if signed by his
alternate. In this Article references to Writing include the use of communications by electronic means
subject to such terms and conditions as the Board may decide.

Delegation to committees

110. The Directors may delegate any of their powers (including the power to sub-delegate) to committees,
consisting of such one or more of their body as they think fit. Such committees may also consist of
persons who are not Directors. No resolution of any such committee or sub committee shall be
effective untess the majority of the Members of the committee present at such meeting are Directors.
Any committee or sub committee so formed shall, in the exercise of the powers so delegated and iny its
conduct of its meetings, conform to any regulations that may be imposed on it by the Directors. The

regulations herein contained for the meetings and proceedings of Directors shall, so far as not altered
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by any regulations made by the Directors, apply also to the meetings and proceedings of any
commitiee or sub committee.

Acts valid although defective appointment

111.

All acts done by any meeting of the Directors or of 2 committee of Directors, or by any persons acting
as Directors or alternate Directors, shali as regards all persons dealing in good faith with the Company
notwithstanding that it is afterwards discovered that there was some defect in the appointment of any
such Directors or persons acting as aforesaid, or that they or any of them were disqualified or had
vacated office or were not entitled to vote, be as valid as if every such person had been duly appointed
and was qualified to be a Director of the Company and had continued to be a Director or alternate
Birector and had been entitled to vote.

Executive Directors

Power to appoint Executive Directors

112.

The Directors may from time to time appoint one or more of their number to an executive office
including the offices of Chairman, vice-chairman, chief executive, managing Director, joint managing
Director, assistant managing Director or manager or any other salaried office for such period and on
such terms as they think fit. Without prejudice to any claim a Director may have for damages for breach
of any contract of service between him and the Company the appointment of any Director hereunder
shall be subject to determination ipso facto if he ceases from any cause to be a Director, or (subject to
the terms of any contract between him and the Company) if the Directors resclve that his term of office
as an executive Director be determined.

Remuneration of Executive Directors

113.

A Director holding office pursuant to Article 112 shall receive such remuneration (whether by way of
salary, commission or participation in profits, or partly in one way and partly in another) as the Directors
may determine and such remuneration shall, unless otherwise agreed, be additional to such
remuneration (if any) as is from time to time payable to him as a Director and such Oirector shall be a
Director for the purposes of and subject to the provisions of the Statutes.

Powers may be delegated

4.

The Directors may entrust to and confer upon a Director holding such executive office as aforesaid any
of the powers exercisable by them as Directors upon such terms and conditions and with such
restrictions as they think fit, and either collaterally with or to the exclusion of their own powers, and may
from time to time revoke, withdraw, alter or vary all or any of such powers but no person dealing in
good faith and without notice of the revocation or variation shall be affected by it. The power to
delegate contained in this Article shall be effective in relation to powers, authorities and discretions of
the Board generally and shall not be [imited by the fact that in certain Articles, but not in others,
express reference is made to particular powers, authorities or discretions being exercised by the Board
or by a committee authorised by the Board.

President

115.

The Directors may, from time to time, appoint any person who, in their opinion, has rendered
outstanding services to the Company to be President of the Company. The President shall not, by
virtue of his office, be deemed to be a Director but nevertheless, by invitation of the Directors, he may
attend meetings of the Directors for the purpose of giving advice and the Directors may remunerate the
President in respect of advice and assistance from time to time.

Secretary

Secretary

116.

The Directors shall appoint, and may remove at their discretion, a Secretary, and shall fix his
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment. Anything required or authorised to be done by
or to the Secretary by the Statutes or these Articles may, if the office is vacant or there is for any other
reason no Secretary capable of acting, be dene by or to any assistant or deputy Secretary, or, if there
is none, by or to any officer of the Company authorised in that behalf by the Directors.
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Disqualification

117.

No person shall be Secretary who is either:
117.1 The sole Director of the Company; or
117.2 A corporation the sole director of which is the sole Director of the Company; or

117.3 The sole director of a corporation which is the sole Director of the Company.

Restriction on powers of Director who holds office as Secretary

118.

A provision of the Statutes or these Articles requiring or authorising a thing to be done by or to a
Director and the Secretary shall nat be satisfied by its being done by or to the same person acting both
as Director and as, or in place of, the Secretary.

Authentication of Documents

119.1 Any Director or the Secretary or any person appointed by the Directors for the purpose shall
have power to authenticate any documents affecting the constitution of the Company and any
resolutions passed by the Company or the Directors and any books, records, documents and accounts
relating to the business of the Company, and to certify copies thereof or extracts therefrom as true
copies or extracts; and where any books, records, documents or accounts are elsewhere than at the
Office, the manager or other officer of the Company having the custody thereof shall be deemed to be
a person appointed by the Directors as aforesaid.

119.2 A document purporting to be a copy of a resolution of the Directors or an extract from the
minutes of a meeting of the Directors which is certified as such shall be conclusive evidence in favour
of all persons dealing with the Company that such resclution has been duly passed or, as the case
may be, that such extract is a true and accurate record of a duly constituted meeting of the Directors.

The Seal

Seal and sealing

120.1 The Directors shall provide for the safe custody of the Seal. The Seal shall not be affixed to any
instrument except by the express authority of a resolution of the Directors or of a committee of the
Directors and in the presence of at least one Director and of the Secretary, or of such other person as
the Directors may appoint for the purpose, and that Director and Secretary, or other person as
aforesaid, shall (subject to the provisions of Article 9) sign every instrument to which the Seal is so
affixed in their presence.

120.2 Without prejudice to Article 9.1, provided that certificates for stock and shares of the Company
and (subject to the terms or conditions of issue thereof) debenture stock or other forms of security may
at the discretion of the Directors be issued without any such signature or counter-signature if the
system of controlling the affixing of the Seal thereto and (where appropriate) the mechanical signature
or signatures thereon is approved by the Auditors, Transfer Agents or Bankers of the Company.

120.3 Any instrument expressed to be executed by the Company and signed by two Directors or one
Director and the Secretary by the authority of the Directors or of a committee authorised by the
Directors shall {to the extent permitted by the Statutes) have effect as if executed under the Seal.

Dividends

Dividends how payable

121,

Subject to the Statutes and the rights of the holders of any shares entitled to any priority, preference or
special privileges, and to the terms of issue of any shares, all dividends shall be declared and paid to
the Members in proportion to the amounts paid up or credited as paid up on the shares held by them
respectively. No amount paid on a share in advance of calls shall be treated for the purposes of this
Article as paid on the share. All dividends shall, subject as aforesaid, be apportioned and paid
proportionately to the amounts paid up or credited as paid up on the shares during any portion or
porticns of the period in respect of which the dividend is paid: but if any share is issued on terms
providing that it shall rank for dividend from a particular date or pari passu as regards dividends with a
share already issued it shall rank accordingly. Dividends may be declared or paid in any currency. The
Board may decide the basis of conversion for any currency conversions that may be required and how
any costs involved are to be met.
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Directors to recommend Company to declare dividend

122. The Directors shall lay before the Company in general meeting a recommendation as to the amount (if
any} which they consider should be paid by way of dividend, and the Company in general meeting may
declare the dividend to be paid, but such dividend shall not exceed the amount recommended by the
Directors.

Dividends only out of profits

123. No dividend or interim dividend shall be paid otherwise than out of profits available for distribution in
accordance with the provisions of the Statutes.

Interim dividends

124. The Directors may from time to time pay to the Members, or any class of Members, such interim
dividends as appear to the Directors to be justified by the profits of the Company. If at any time the
capital of the Company is divided into different classes of shares the Directors may pay such interim
dividends in respect of those shares in the capital of the Company which confer on the holders thereof
deferred or non-preferred rights as well as in respect of those shares which confer on the holders
thereof preferential or special rights with regard to dividends and provided that the Directors act bona
fide they shall not incur any responsibility to the holders of any shares for any damage that they may
suffer by reason of the payment of an interim dividend on any shares. The Directors may also pay haif
yearly or at other suitable intervals to be settled by them any dividend which may be payable at a fixed
rate if they are of the opinion that the profits justify the payment.

Lien

125.1 The Directors may retain any dividend or other moneys payable on or in respect of a share on
which the Company has a lien and may apply the same in or towards satisfaction of the debts, liabilities
or engagements in respect of which the lien exists.

125.2 The Directors may retain the dividends payable upon shares in respect of which any person
is under the provisions as to the transmission of shares contained in these Ardicles entitled to
become a Member, or which any person is under those provisions entitled to transfer, until such
person shall become a Member in respect of such shares or shall transfer the same.

Dividends may be sent by post

126. The Company may transmit any dividend or bonus payable in respect of any share by ordinary post to
the registered address of the holder or, in the case of joint holders, of one of the holders of such share
or to such person and address as the holder or joint holders may direct; and shall not be responsible for
any loss arising in respect of such transmission. If cheques or warrants in respect of dividends are
returned undelivered or are left uncashed on two consecutive occasions the Directors may cause the
Company to cease sending such cheques or warrants by post to the Member or Members or person or
persons concerned.

Dividends not to bear interest

127. Subject to the rights attaching to, or the terms of issue of, any shares no dividend or other moneys
payable on or in respect of a share shall bear interest as against the Company.,

Distribution of assets in kind

128. The Directors may, with the sanction of the Company in general meeting, distribute in kind among the
Members by way of dividend any of the assets of the Company, and in particular any shares or
securities of other companies to which the Company is entited and where any difficulty arises in
respect to the distribution the Board may settle it as it thinks expedient, and in particular may authorise
any person to sell and transfer any fractions or may ignore fractions altogether, and may fix the value
for distribution purposes of any assets or any part thereof to be distributed and may determine that
cash shall be paid to any Members upon the footing of the value so fixed in order to secure equality of
distribution and may vest any assets to be distributed in trustees as may seem expedient to the Board:
provided always that no distribution shall be made which would amount to a reduction of capital except
in the manner appointed by law.

Purchase of assets from a past date

129. Subject to the provisions of the Statutes, where any asset, business or property is bought by the
Company as from a past date at a price fixed wholly by reference to the value of such asset, business
or property at the past date and without any addition or reduction in respect of subsequent transactions
upeon the terms that the Company shall as from that date take the profits and bear the losses thereof,
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the actual profit or loss as the case may be so accruing to the Company may at the discretion of the
Directors be credited or debited wholly or in part to revenue account and in that case the amount so
credited or debited shall, for the purpose of ascerlaining the fund available for dividend, be treated as a
profit or loss arising from the business of the Company and available for dividend accordingly.

Unclaimed dividends

130. Payment by the Directors of any unclaimed dividend or other moneys payable on or in respect of a
share into a separate account shall not constitute the Company a trustee in respect thereof and any
dividend unclaimed after a period of 12 years from the date when such dividend became due for
payment shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Company. All dividends or other sums payable on or
in respect of any shares which remain unclaimed may be invested or otherwise made use of by the
Directors for the benefit of the Company until claimed.

Power to choose any Record Date

131. Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles, the Company or the Board may fix any date as
the record date for any dividend, distribution, allotment or issue and such record date may be on or at
any time before or after any date on which the dividend, distribution, allotment or issue is declared, paid
or made. The power to fix any such record date shall include the power to fix a time on the chosen
date.

Reserve Fund
Reserve Fund

132. Before recommending a dividend the Directors may set aside any part of the net profits of the Company
to a reserve fund, and may apply the same either by employing it in the business of the Company or by
investing it in such manner as they think fit, and the income arising from such reserve fund shall be
treated as part of the gross profits of the Company. Such reserve fund may, subject to the Statutes, be
applied for the purpose of maintaining the property of the Company, replacing wasting assets, meeting
contingencies, forming an insurance fund, equalising dividends, paying special dividends or bonuses,
or for any other purpose for which the profits of the Company may lawfully be used, and until the same
shall be so applied it shall be deemed to remain undivided profit. The Directors may also carry forward
to the accounts of the succeeding vear or years any profit or balance of profits which they shall not
think fit to divide or to place to reserve.

Capitalisation of Reserves
Capitalisation of Reserves

133. Subject to the provisions of the Statutes, the Company in general meeting may upon the
recommendation of the Directors resolve that it is desirable to capitalise all or any part of the amount
for the time being standing to the credit of any of the Company's reserve funds or reserve accounts
(including any undistributable reserves) or to the credit of the profit and loss account (not being
required for the payment of or provision for any fixed preferential dividend), and accordingly that such
sum bhe applied on behalf of the Members who would have been entitled thereto if distibuted by way of
dividend and in the same proportion either in or towards paying up any amounts for the time being
unpaid on any shares held by such Members respectively or paying up in full unissued shares or
debentures of the Company to be allotted and issued credited as fully paid up to and among such
Members in the proportion aforesaid or partly in the one way and partly in the other, and the Directors
shall give effect to such resolution: provided that (i} a share premium account and a capital redemption
reserve may, for the purposes of this Article, only be applied in the paying up of unissued shares to be
allotted to Members as fully paid shares; and (i) where the amount capitalised is applied in paying up
in full unissued shares, the Company will also be entitled to participate in the relevant distribution in
relation to any shares of the relevant class held by it as treasury shares and the proportionate
entitlement of the relevant class of members to the distribution will be calculated accordingly.

Appropriations by Directors

134. Whenever such a resolution shall have been passed the Directors shall make all appropriations and
applications of the amount resolved to be capitalised, and all allotments and issues of fully paid shares
or debentures, if any, and generally shall do all acts and things required to give effect thereto with full
power to the Directors to make such provision by the issue of fractional certificates or by payment in
cash or otherwise as they think fit for the case of shares or debentures which would otherwise be
issued in fractions, and also to authorise any person to enter on behalf of all the Members entitled
thereto into an agreement with the Company providing for the allotment to them respectively, credited
as fully paid up, of any further shares or debentures to which they may be entitled upon such
capitalisation, or (as the case may require) for the payment up by the Company on their behalf, by the
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application thereto of their respective proportions of the amount resolved to be capitalised, of the
amournts or any part of the amounts remaining unpaid on their existing shares, and any agreement
made under such authority shall be effective and binding on all such Members.

Scrip Dividends

135. Subject to approval by the Company in general meeting and subject as hereinafter provided, the
Directors may at their discretion resolve that the holders of fully paid Ordinary Shares (excluding any
member holding shares or treasury shares) shall have the option to elect to receive in iieu of cash in
respect of all or any part of such dividend or dividends as are specified by the Company in general
meeting an allotment of additional Ordinary Shares in the capital of the Company credited as fully paid
provided that:.-

1351

135.2

135.3

135.4

135.5

135.6

an adequate number of unissued Ordinary Shares in the capital of the Company is available for
this purpose and sufficient reserves or funds that may be capitalised to give effect to it after the
basis of allotment is determined;

the approval by the Company in general meeting may only be given in respect of a specified
dividend or of any dividends declared or to be declared or paid in respect of a specified period,
provided such period shall expire not later than the date of the fifth Annual General Mesting
following the date of the Meeting at which such resolution is passed or five years after the date
on which such resclulion is passed, whichever is the earlier;

the number of Ordinary Shares in the capital of the Company to be allotted in lieu of any
amount of dividend as aforesaid shall be determined by the Directors so that the value of such
shares shall (as nearly as possible) equal and may, if the Directors consider it appropriate, be
greater than such amount and for this purpose the value of an Ordinary Share shall be deemed
to be the average of the middle market quotations of such shares as shown in the Daily Official
List of the London Stock Exchange (adjusted as below) on the ex-dividend date and on the next
four business days and each such middle market quotation as is not "ex-dividend" shall be
adjusted by deducting therefrom the cash amount of such dividend per share. A certificate and
report by the Auditors as to the amount of the relevant value in respect of any dividend shall be
conclusive evidence of that amount and in giving such a certificate or report the Auditors may
rely on advice or information from brokers or other sources of information as they think fit;

the Directors, after determining the number of Ordinary Shares in the capital of the Company to
be allotted as aforgsaid, shall give notice in Writing to the Ordinary Shareholders of the option
to elect accorded to them and shall send with such notice forms of election which specify the
procedure to be followed and the place at which and the latest date and time by which duly
completed forms of election must be lodged in order to be effective. No such notice need be
given to holders of Crdinary Shares who have previously given election mandates in
accerdance with these Articles and whose mandates have not been revoked; the accidental
omission to give notice of any right of election to, or the non receipt of any such notice by any
holder of Ordinary Shares entitfed to the same shall neither invalidate any offer of an election
nor give rise to any claim, suit or action;

following the receipt of a notice or notices of election pursuant to Article 135.4 the Directors
shall allot to the holders of those shares in respect of which the share election has been or is
duly exercised in lieu of the dividend (or that part of the dividend in respect of which the right of
election has been accorded) such number of additional Ordinary Shares in the capital of the
Company determined as aforesaid and for such purpose the Directors shall appropriate and
capitalise out of any reserve or fund (including any share premium account or capital
redemption reserve or profit and loss account) as they shall determine an amount equal to the
aggregate nominal amount of the additional Ordinary Shares so to be allotted and apply the
same in paying up in full the appropriate number of unissued Crdinary Shares for allotment and
distribution to and amongst those Members who have given notices of etection as aforesaid,
such additional Ordinary Shares to rank pari passu in all respects with the fully paid Ordinary
Shares in the capital of the Company then in issue save only as regards participation in the
relevant dividend;

the Directors may do all acts and things considered necessary or expedient to give effect to any
such capitalisation, with full power to the Directors to make such provisions as they think fit for
the case of shares becoming distributable in fractions (including provisions whereby, in whote
or in part, fractional entitements are disregarded or the benefit of fractional enfittements
accrues to the Company rather than to the Members concerned) or fractional entitlements are
accrued andfor retained and accumulated on behalf of the Members concemed and such
accruals and/or retentions are applied to the allotment by way of bonus or cash subscription of
fully paid Ordinary Shares on behalf of the Members concemed upon and subject to such terms
and conditions as the Directors may determine). The Directors may authorise any person to
enter, on behalf of all the Members interested, into an agreement with the Company providing
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for such capitalisation and matters incidental thereto and any agreement made under such
authority shall be effective and binding on all concerned;

135.7 unless the Board otherwise determines, or unless the Uncerlificated Securiies Regulations
and/or the rules of the relevant system concemed otherwise require, the new Ordinary Share or
Shares which a Member has elected to receive instead of cash in respect of the whole {or some
part) of the specified dividend declared or paid in respect of his etected Ordinary Shares shall
be in uncertificated form (in respect of the Member's elected Ordinary Shares which were in
uncertificated form on the date of the Member's election) and in certificated form (in respect of
the Member's elected Ordinary Shares which were in certificated form on the date of the
Member's election);

135.8 the Directors may from time to time establish or vary a procedure for election mandates, which
for the avoidance of doubt, may include an election by means of a relevant system under which
holders of Ordinary Shares may elect to receive additional Ordinary Shares credited as fully
paid in lieu of cash in respect of all future rights offered to that holder under this Article until the
election mandate is revoked or deemed to be revoked in accordance with the procedure;

135.9 notwithstanding the foregoing the Directors may at any time prior to payment of the relevant
dividend determine, if it appears to them desirable to do so because of a change in
circumstances or otherwise, that the dividend shall be payable wholly in cash and if they so
determine then all elections shall be disregarded. The relevant dividend shall be payable wholly
in cash if the Ordinary Shares of the Company cease to ba listed on the Official List of the UK
Listing Authority at any time prior to the due date of issue of the additional Ordinary Shares or if
such listing is suspended and not reinstated by the date immediately preceding the due date of
such issue; and

135.10 the Directors may on any occasion determine that rights of election shall not be made available
to any Members with registered addresses in any territory where the Directors believe that such
restriction is necessary or expedient in relation to legal or practical problems under the laws of,
or the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any territory or
the Directors believe that for any other reason the offer should not be made to them.

Accounts

Limitation of right to inspect

136. The books of account shall be kept at the Office, or (subject to the provisions of the Statutes) at such

other place or places as the Directors may determine, and shall always be open to the inspection of the
Directors. The Directors may from time to time determine whether and to what extent and at what times
and places, and on what conditions, the books and accounts of the Company, or any of them, shall be
open to the inspection of the Members {not being Directors), and the Members shall have only such
rights of inspection as are given to them by the Statutes or by such resclution as aforesaid.

Production of accounts

137. The Directors shall from time to time in accordance with the provisions of the Statutes cause to be
prepared and to be laid before the Company in general meeting such profit and loss accounts, balance
sheets, group accounts (if any) and reports as are referred to in the Statutes.

Copies

138. A copy of every balance sheet, Directors' report and profit and loss account, including every document

required by law to be annexed thereto, which is to be laid before the Company in general meeting,
together with a copy of the Auditors’ report, shall, not less than twenty-one clear days before the date
of the meeting, be sent to every Member {whether he is or is not entitled to receive notices of general
meetings of the Company), every holder of debentures of the Company (whether he is or is not so
entitled), and all other persons so entitled. Provided always that if and to the extent permitted by the
Statutes the Company need not despatch copies of these documents to Members, but may instead
send to them (or certain of them) summaries of such financiat statements or other documents. In
addition this Article shall not require a copy of such documents to be sent to any person to whom, by
virtue of the Statutes, the Company is not required to send the same. There shall also be sent to each
stock exchange on which the shares of the Company are dealt in or listed the number of copies of the
aforesaid documents required by such exchange. For the purposes of this Article sending includes
using communications by electronic means and publication on a web site in accordance with the
Statutes.
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Audit

Auditors to be appointed

139.

Auditors shall be appointed and their duties regulated in the manner provided by the provisions of the
Statutes.

All acts to be valid

140.

Subject to the provisions of the Statutes, all acts done by any person acting as an Auditor shall, as
regards all persons dealing in good faith with the Company, be valid, notwithstanding that there was
some defect in his appointment or that he was at the time of his appointment not qualified for
appointment.

Power to attend certain general meetings

141. The Auditor shall be entitled to attend any general meeting and to receive all notices of and other
communications relating to any general meeting which any Member is entitled to receive, and to be
heard at any general meeting on any part of the business of the meeting which concems him as
Auditor.

Notices

Service of Notices and other documents and information

142. Any notice, document or information may be served on or sent, supplied or delivered to any Member by

the Company either personally or by sending it through the post in a prepaid letter addressed to such
Member at his registered address or by means of a relevant system or, where appropriate by sending it
using electronic means to an address notified by the Member concemed to the Company for that
purpose or by publication on a web site in accordance with the Statutes or by any other means
authorised in Writing by the Member concerned. In the case of joint holders of a share, service, sending
or delivering of any notice or document on or to one of the joint holders shall for all purposes be
deemed a sufficient service on or sending or delivering to all the joint holders.

Members out of United Kingdom

143.

No Member shall be enliied to have a notice served on him at any address not within the United
Kingdom but any Member whose registered address is not within the United Kingdom may by notice in
Writing require the Company to register an address within the United Kingdom which, for the purpose of
the service of notices, shall be deemed to be his registered address. Any Member whose registered
address is not within the United Kingdom and who gives to the Company an address for the purposes
of communications by electronic means, may have notices or documents sent to him at that address. A
Member who has no registered address within the United Kingdom and has not given notice as
aforesaid shall not be entitled to receive any notices from the Company. Any notice may be given by a
Member by reference to the register of Members as it stands at any time within fifteen days before the
notice is given, and no change in the register after that time shall invalidate the notice. For a Member
registered on a branch register, notices or documents can be posted or despatched in the United
Kingdom or in the country where the branch register is kept.

Time of service of notice

144.

Any notice sent by first class post shall be deemed to have been served on the day after the same shall
have been posted and if sent by second class post on the second day thereafter; and in proving such
service it shall be sufficient to prove that the envelope containing the notice was properly addressed,
stamped and posted. Any notice or document not sent by post but left at a registered address or at an
address (other than an address for the purposes of communications by electronic means) notified to the
Company in accordance with these Articles by a person who is Entitled by Transmission to a share
shall be deemed to have been served or delivered on the day it was so left. Any notice served or
delivered by the Company by means of a relevant system shall be deemed to have been served or
delivered when the Company or any sponsoring system participant acting on its behalf sends the
issuer-instruction relating to the notice. Any notice or document sent by the Company using electronic
means shall be deemed to have been received on the day following that on which it was sent. A notice
or other document placed on the Company's website or websites shall be deemed to have been
received on the day following that on which a notice of availability was sent. In proving that a notice or
document served, sent or delivered by electronic means was served, sent or delivered, it shall be
sufficient to prove that it was properly addressed. Any notice or document served, sent or delivered by
the Company by any other means authorised in Writing by the Member concerned shall be deemed to
have been served, received or delivered when the Company has carried out the action it has been
authorised to take for that purpose.
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Notices to be given in case of death or bankruptey of a Member

145.

A notice may be given by the Company to the person Entitled by Transmission by delivering or sending
it through the post in a prepaid letter addressed to him by name, or by the title of the representative or
representatives of the deceased, or trustee of the bankrupt, or by any like description, at the address, if
any, within the United Kingdom supplied for the purpose by the person claiming to be so entitled, or
{until such an address has been so supplied) by giving the notice in any manner in which the same
might have been given if the death or bankruptcy or any other event giving rise to its transmission by
operation of law had not occurred. A person who is Entitled by Transmission, may upon supplying the
Company with an address for the purposes of communications by electronic means for the service of
notices, at the absolute discretion of the Board, have sent to him at such address any notice or
decument to which he would have been entitled if he were the holder of that share.

Suspended or Curtailed Postal Services

146.

If at any time by reason of the suspension or curtailment of postal services within the United Kingdom
or some part of the United Kingdom or the relevant communication system the Company s unable
effectively to convene a general meeting by notices sent through the post or by electronic means or by
making it available on a website, a general meeting may be convened by notice advertised on the
same date in at least two leading daily newspapers, at least one of which shall be a national daily
newspaper, with appropriate circulation and such notice shall be deemed to have been duly served on
all Members entitled thereto at noon on the day when the advertisement appears. fn any such case the
Company shall send confirmatory copies of the notice by post or by electronic means if at least seven
days prior to the meeting the posting of notices to addresses throughout the United Kingdom or by
electronic means again becomes practicable.

Provision for Employees

147,

The power conferred upon the Company by the Statutes to make provision for the benefit of persons
employed or formerly employed by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in connection with the
cessation or the transfer to any person of the whole or part of the undertaking of the Company or any
Subsidiary shall only be exercised by the Company with the prior sanction of a special resolution. If at
any time the capital of the Company is divided into different classes of shares, the exercise of such
power as aforesaid shall be deemed to be a variation of the rights attached to each class of shares and
shall accordingly require either:-

147.1 the prior consent in Writing of the holders of three fourths of the issued shares; or

147.2 the prior sanction of a special resolulion passed at a separate general meeting of the
holders of the shares, of each class in accordance with the provisions of these Adicles.

Indemnity

148,

Subject to the provisions of the Statutes, the Company may indemnify any director of the Company or
of any associated company against any liability and may purchase and maintain for any director of the
Company or of any associated company insurance against any liability. [n this Article references to a
“director” shall include any former director of the Company.

Winding Up

Distribution of assets in winding up

149.

If the Company shall be wound up the assets remaining after payment of the debts and liabilities of
the Company and the costs of the liquidation shall be applied, first, in repaying to the Members the
amounts paid up on the shares held by them respectively, and the balance (if any) shali be distributed
among the Members in proportion to the number of shares held by them respectively: Provided
always that the provisions hereof shall be subject to the rights of the holders of shares

{if any) issued upon special conditions.
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Special Resolutions




The Companies Act 1985 to 1989 No. 53638

Special Resolution
Passed 30 April 2008

At the Annual General Meeting of BBA Aviation plc held on 30 Aprii 2008 the following resolution was passed
as a Special Resolution:

THAT the Articles of Association produced to the meeting and initialled by the chairman of the meeting for
the purpose of identification be adopted as the Articles of Association of the Company in substitution for, and
to the exclusion of, the existing Articles of Association.

Andrew Wood
Group Finance Oirector
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CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
ON CHANGE OF NAME

Company No. 53688

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales hereby certifies that
BBA GROUP PLC

having by special resolution changed its name, is now incorporated
under the name of

BBA AVIATION PLC

Given at Companies House, London, the 17th November 2006

Companies House
—— fortherecod —-



No. 53688

ertificate of Incorporation

ON RE-REGISTRATION AS A PUBLIC COMPANY

| HEREBY CERTIFY that BBA GROUP PLC has this day been
re-registered under the Companies Acts 1948 to 1980 as a public
company, and that the company is limited.-

Dated at Cardiff the 3rd November 1981,

B. HAYWARD,
Assistant Registrar of Companies.




No. 53688

@ertificate nf Iucorporation
on change of name

WHEREAS BRITISH BELTING & ASBESTOS LIMITED was
incorporated as a limited company under the Companies Acts,
1862 to 1893, on the Tenth day of August, 1897.

AND WHEREAS by special resolution of the Company and
with the approval of the Board of Trade it has changed its
name.

NOW THEREFORE | hereby certify that the Company is a

"limited company incorporated under the name of BBA GROUP

LIMITED.

GIVEN under my hand at London, this Second day of
January, One Thousand Nine Hundred and Sixty Seven.

L.S. WHITFIELD,
Assistant Registrar of Companies.




No. 53688

| HEREBY CERTIFY that BRITISH BELTING & ASBESTOS
LIMITED (originally called W. WILLSON COBBETT, LIMITED;
which name was changed on the nineteenth day of April One
thousand nine hundred and eleven to ‘SCANDINAVIA' BELTING
LIMITED; which name was changed on the twenty-first day of
May one thousand nine hundred and twenty-five to BRITISH
BELTING & ASBESTOS LIMITED; each change having been made.
by Special Resolution and with the Authority of the Board of
Trade) was INCORPORATED as a Limited Company under the
Companies Acts, 1862 to 1893, on the tenth day of August One
thousand eight hundred and ninety-seven.

GIVEN under my hand at London this fourteenth day of
October One thousand nine hundred and forty-nine.

W. A, STUART,
for Registrar of Companies.




RESOLUTIONS OF T

BBA AVIATION PLC
TN -] P i

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LISTING RULES LR 8.6:25., [ ifT i~ ilonis

'i
n .CE

At the Annual General Meeting of BBA Aviation plc, (the “Company”) duly convened and held at No. 4
Hamilton Place, London W1J 7BQ on Wednesday 30 April 2008 at 11.30am, the following resolutions
were passed:

As an Ordinary Resolution:

THAT the directors be and are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised pursuant to
section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 to exercise for the period ending on the date of the next
annual general meeting or on 30 June 2009, whichever is the earlier, all the powers of the
Company to allot relevant securities up to the aggregate nominal amount of £40,877,018
provided that the authority hereby conferred shall allow the directors to make an offer or
agreement before the expiry of such authority which would or might require relevant securities
to be allotted after such expiry as if the power conferred hereby had not expired.

As a Special Resolution:

THAT the directors be and are hereby empowered pursuant to section 95 of the Companies Act
1985 for the period commencing on and with effect from the date of adoption of this resolution
and expiring on the date of the next annual general meeting or on 30 June 2009, whichever is
the earlier, to allot equity securities (within the meaning of section 94 of the Companies Act
1985) for cash as if section 89(1) of that Act did not apply to any such allotment provided that
the power hereby conferred shall be limited to:

(a) the allotment of equity securities in connection with or pursuant to an offer by way of rights
to the holders of shares in the Company (excluding any holder holding shares as treasury
shares) and ather persons entitled to participate therein in the proportion {(as nearly as may
be) to such holders' holdings of such shares (or, as appropriate, to the number of shares
which such other persons are for these purposes deemed to hold) subject to such
exclusions or other arrangements as the directors may deem necessary or expedient in
relation to fractional entitlernents or legal problems under the laws of any territory or the
requirements of any recognised regulatory body or stock exchange; and

(b) the allotment of equity securities (otherwise than pursuant to paragraph (a} hereof) up to a
maximum nomina! value of £6,137,690.

The foregoing power shall allow and enable the directors to make an offer or agreement

before the expiry of that power which would or might require securities to be allotted after
such expiry as if the power conferred hereby had not expired.

As a Special Resolution:

THAT the Company is hereby generally and unconditionaliy authorised for the purposes of
section 166 of the Companies Act 1985 to make market purchases (within the meanlng of
section 163 of such Act) on the London Stock Exchange of ordinary shares of 28'%“'p each in
the capital of the Company ("ordinary shares") provided that:

(a) the maximum aggregate number of ardinary shares authorised to be purchased is
61,826,684 (represenling approximately 14.99 per cent of the present issued ordinary
share capital of the Company);

(b) the minimum price (excludmg stamp duty and expenses) which may be paid for an ordinary
share so purchased is 29’

Registered Office:
20 Balderton Street
London

WIK 6TL




{c) the maximum price (excluding stamp duty and expenses) which may be paid for an ordinary
share so purchased is an amount equal to 5 per cent above the average of the middle
market quotations shown for an ordinary share in the London Stock Exchange Daily Official
List on the five business days immediately preceding the day on which that ordinary share is
contracted to be purchased;

(d) the authority hereby conferred shall expire at the conclusion of the annual general meeting
to be held in 2009, unless such authority is renewed, varied or revoked prior to such time;

(e) the Company may prior to the expiry of such authority make a contract to purchase ordinary
shares under the authority hereby conferred which will or may be executed wholly or partly
after the expiry of such authority, and may make a purchase of ordinary shares in pursuance
of any such contract; and

(fy all ordinary shares purchased pursuant to the said authority shall either:
(i} be cancelled immediately upon completion of the purchase; or
(i) be held, sold, transferred or otherwise dealt with as treasury shares in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 1985.

As an Ordinary Resolution

THAT the authorised share capital representing the 95,000,000 6.75 per cent Cumulative
Redeemable Convertible Preference Shares of the Company which have not been issued or
agreed to be issued to any person be and are hereby cancelled and that accordinly the
authorised share capital of the Company be diminished by £95,000,000.

As a Special Resolution:

THAT the Articles of Association produced to the meeting and initialled by the chairman of the
meeting for the purpose of identification be adopted as the Articles of Association of the
Company in substitution for, and to the exclusion of, the existing Articles of Association™

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

AWOO0D
DIRECTOR

Registered Office:
20 Balderton Street
London

W1K 6TL
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BBA Aviation

26 March 2008

Dear Shareholder

Notice of Availability of BBA Aviation plc 2007 Annual Report and Notice of Annual General Meeting

| have pleasure in confirming that the 2007 Annual Report and Notice of Annual General Meeting of BBA Aviation plc are
now available for you to access from the website of BBA Aviation plc at www.bbaaviation.com. From our home page click
Qur Performance,

Proxy Voting
Whether or not you are able to attend the Annual General Meeting, please send us your vote by completing and submitting
your form of proxy by post or online to be received at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting.

To vote online through the website of our registrar, Capita Registrars at www.capitasharepartal.com you will need to log in to
your share portal account or register for the share portal if you have not already done so. To register for the share paortal you
will need your investor cade set out on the enclosed form of proxy. Once registered you will be able to vote immediately.

Voting by proxy prior to the meeting does not affect your right to attend the meeting and vote in person, should you so
wish.

Future Notifications

If you would like to receive future notifications of documents being available on BBA's website by email please let BBA'S
registrars know your email address. The simplest way to do this is to register through the registrars’ share portal at
www.capitashareportal.com.

Future Documents

If you would like a hard copy of this or future reports please contact our registrars: Capita Registrars, Northern House,
Woodsome Park, Fenay Bridge, Huddersfield HD8 OLA, telephone number: 0871 664 0300 (calls cost 10p per minute plus
network charges) (from outside the UK: +44 208 639 3399), fax: +44 (0)1484 601512, email:
shareholder.services@capitaragistrars.com,

Yours sincerely

-

Zillah Stone
Interim Company Secretary

Note: Please note that this Notice of Availabllity is not a summary of the proposals and information set out in the
Company’s Notice of Annual General Meeting dated 26 March 2008 (the ‘Notice of AGM’) and should not be
regarded as a substitute for reading the Notice of AGM. It Is therefore recommended that shareholders read the
Notice of AGM.

Registered in England No, 53688 Registered Office 20 Balderton Street, London W1K 6TL
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UK Listing Authority/L ondon Stock Exchange Disclosures

The Financial Services Authority (“FSA”), acting in its capacity as the UK Listing Authority,
requires the publication of annual reports, which are also sent to shareholders and filed with the
Registrar of Companies, and the publication of half-yearly financial reports and either quarterly
financial reports or interim management statements. The UK Listing Authority also requires
notification of important occurrences, such as changes in directors, the issuance and
redemption of securities, dividend announcements and any other information that the UK Listing
Authority considers appropriate to protect investors or ensure the smooth operation of the
market. There is also a general obligation imposed by the UK Listing Autharity requiring
notification of inside information concerning the issuer which if made public would be likely to
have a significant effect on the price of the listed securities. The London Stock Exchange
{"Exchange”) alsc imposes ohligations in relation to notifications and the provision of
information on issuers with securities admitted to trading on the Exchange.

The following is a summary of the UK Listing Authority’s requirements, as set out in the Listing
Rules, Disclosure Rules and Transparency Rules, and Prospectus Rules, and the requirements
under the Admission and Disclosure Standards of the Exchange, as to the notification and
publication of material information and the period within which publication or release of such
information is required:

Listing Rules . Applicable Period

Chapter 1 “Preliminary”

1.3.1 An issuer must provide to the FSA (i} any information and explanations that the  As soon as possible
FSA may reasonably require to decide whether to grant an application for
admission, {ii} any information that the FSA considers appropriate to protect
investors or ensure the smooth operation of the market and (i) any other
information or explanation that the FSA may reasonably require to verify
whether the listing rules are being and have been complied with.

1.3.2 The FSA may require an issuer to publish such information as it considers At any time and within
appropriate for the purpose of protecting investors or ensuring the smooth such time fimits as the
operation of the market. FSA considers

appropriate

1.3.4 If an issuer is required to notify inforration to a Regulatory Information Service  As soon as possible

{"RIS") at a time when a RIS is not open for business it must distribute the
information to not less than 2 national newspapers in the UK, 2 newswire
services in the UK and a RIS for release as soon as it opens.




Listing Rules

Chapter 3 “Listing Applications”

3.3.2

3.3.2A

When an issuer applies for a primary or secondary listing of its securities, a
prospectusilisting particulars approved by the FSA must be submitted as well
as certain other documents including a completed Application for Admission
of Securities to the Official List, any circular that has been published in
connection with the application, any approved supplementary
prospectus/listing particulars, written confirmation of the number of securities
to be allotted {pursuant to a board resolution) and if a prospectus has not
been produced, a copy of the RIS announcement detailing the number and
type of securities that are the subject of the application and the
circumstances of issue.

If a prospectus or listing particulars have not been produced then the
Application for Admission of Securities to the Official List must contain
confirmation that a prospectus or listing particulars are not required and

details of the reasons why they are not required.

Applicable Period

Lodged with the FSA by
midday two business
days prior to
consideration of the
application for
admission to listing

Lodged with the FSA by
midday two business
days prior to
consideration of the
application for

admission to listing

Note: The prospectus must be approved and published in accerdance with the Prospectus Rules (see below).

333

334

3.3.4A

335

When an issuer applies for a primary or secondary listing of its securities a
completed Shareholder Statement (in the case of an applicant that is applying
for a listing of equity securities or preference shares for the first time} or a
completed Pricing Statement (in the case of a placing, offer for subscription of
equity shares or an issue out of treasury of equity shares of a class already
listed) must be submitted.

tf a copy of the written confirmation of the nurmber of securities to be allotted
pursuant to a board resolution cannot be submitted to the FSA by the
deadline set out in Listing Rule 3.3.2 or, the number of securities to be
admitted is lower than the number notified under LR 3.3.2, written
confirmation of the number of securities to be allotted or admitted must be
subrmnitted to the FSA at a later stage.

If securities the subject of the application are not all allotted and admitted
following the initial allotment of securities, further allotments of securities may
be admitted if the FSA is provided with written confirmation of the number of
securities allotted pursuant to a board resolution and a copy of the RIS
announcement detailing the number and type of securities and the
circumstances of issue.

Written confirmation of the number of securities that were allotted pursuant to
a board resolution allotling the securities must be submitted if the number is

Lodged with the FSA
before 9.00 a.m. on the
day of consideration of
the application for
admission to listing

At least one hour
before admission to
listing becomes
effective

Before 4pm on the day
before admission is
sought

As soon as practicable
after the FSA has
considered the
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3.3.6/3.3.7

lower that that which was announced as being admitted to listing.

An applicant must provide to the FSA the foliowing documents relating to
admission: any acquisition agreement where the consideration relates to the
company’s securities which are being Issued; any letter, report, valuation or
other documents referred to in the prospectus/listing particulars/circular; the
applicant's constitution as at the date of admission; the annual report and
accounts of the applicant/guarantor for each period that forms part of the
applicant’s financial record contained in the prospectus/listing particulars; any
interim accounts made up since the date to which the last annual report and
accounts were made up prior to the date of admission; any temporary and
definitive documents of title; any employees’ share scheme document in the
case of an application in respect of securities issued pursuant to that
scheme; any court order and cerificate of registration issued by the Registrar
of Companies in relation to any scherme requiring court approval; and copies
of board resolutions of the applicant allotting or issuing the securities.

Applicable Period

application for
admission

If requested to do so by
the FSA in the period of
six years after
admission

Note: Listing Rule 3.4 provides for the subrission of similar docurments in relation to debt and other specialist securities.

3.54

3.55

3.5.6

Where an applicant applies for admission {o listing by way of a block listing it
must submit to the FSA a completed Application for Admission of Securities
to the Cfficial List. An application in respect of multipte schemes must
identify the schemes but need not set out separate block listing amcunts for
each scheme.

An applicant applying for admission to listing by way of a block listing must
notify a RIS of the number and type of securities subject to the block listing or
formal application and the circumstances of their issue.

A block listing/formal application applicant must notify a RIS of the number of
securities covered by the block listing or formal application which have been
allotted in the previous 6 months. A copy of the notification must also be
lodged with the FSA,

Chapter 5 “Suspending, cancelling and restoring listing”

5.2.5

When an issuer wishes to cancel the listing of any of its equity shares with a
primary listing, the issuer must send a circular to the holders of the securities
which must be submitted to the FSA for approval prior to publication and
obtain at a general meeting the prior approval of a resclution for the
cancellation from a majority of not less than 75% of the holders of securities
as vote in person or by proxy (unless the issuer is in severe financial difficulty
and meets the criteria set out at Listing Rule 5.2.7), The issuer must also
notify a RIS at the same time as the circular is despatched of the intended

Lodged with the FSA at
least two business days
prior to consideration of
the application for
admission

By 9.00 a.m. on the day
the FSA s to consider
the application for

admission

Every 6 months

At least 20 business
days’ notice of intended
cancellation
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528

5.3

cancellation and of the notice period and meeting and also of the passing of
the resolution in accordance with Listing Rule 9.6.18.

An issuer that wishes to cancel the fisting of listed securities other than
ordinary equity shares with a primary listing must notify a RIS.

An issuer must submit its request for suspension or cancellation of the listing
of its securities in writing to the FSA. Listing Rule 5.3.1 specifies the
information to be included in a request to suspend or cancel.

An issuer must inform the FSAf its listing has been suspended, cancelled or
restored by an overseas exchange or overseas authority.

Chapter 7 “Listing Principles”

7.2.1

Principle 4: A listed company must communicate information to holders and
potential holders of its listed equity securities in such a way as to avoid the
creation or continuation of a false market in such listed equity securilies.

Principle 6: A listed company must deal with the FSAin an open and ¢co-
operalive manner.

Chapter 9 “Continuing Obligations”

9.2.2

9.2.10

A listed company must inform the FSA in writing if it has requested a
Recognised Investment Exchange (“RIE”) to admit or re-admit to trading,
cancel or suspend trading of any of its listed equity securities or preference
shares or has been informed by a RIE that trading of its securities will be
cancelled or suspended.

Where dearance is given to a person to deal in exceptional circumstances
(pursuant to paragraph 9 of the Model Code) in a close period, the
notification to a RIS required by DTR 3.1.4 {see below) must also include a
statement of the exceptional circumstances.

Applicable Period

At feast 20 business
days' notice of intended
cancellation

Not less than 24 hours
before cancellation is
expected to take effect.
Accompanying
information should be
provided well before
the date on which the
issuer wishes the
cancellation to take
effect and at the very
latest by 3pm on the
business day before it
is to take effect.

No time period
prescribed

As soon as possible

See DTR 3.1.4 below
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9.2.11

9.2.16

9.2.18

9.5.5

9.5.10

9.5.11

9.5.14

A listed company must provide the FSA with up to date contact details of a
person nominated by it to act as the first point of contact with the FSAin
relation to the company’s compliance with the Listing Rules and Disclosure
Rules.

A listed company must notify the FSA if it becomes aware that the proportion
of any dass of listed equity shares in the hands of the public has fallen below
25% of the shares for which application for admission has been made or,
where applicable such lower percentage as the FSA may have agreed.

The first time a listed company publishes financial information as required by
paragraphs 9.7 to 9.9 of the Listing Rules after the publication of the
unaudited financial information, profit forecast or profit estimate, it must;

{a) reproduce that financial information, profit forecast or profit
estimate in its next annual report and accounts;

{ preduce and disclose in the annual report and accounts the actual
figures for the same period covered by the information reproduced
under paragraph {(a); and

(c) provide an explanation of the difference, if there is a difference of
10% or more between the figures required by paragraph (b) and
those reproduced under paragraph (a).

A listed company must ensure that for a rights issue (i) the issue price and
principal terms of the issue, and (i) the results of the issue and, if any rights
nol taken up are sold, details of the sale, including the date and price per
share, are nolified to a RIS.

A listed company must notify a RIS of the terms of an open offer or placing.

Alistad company must ensure that for an offer for sale or subseription of
equity securities, letters of allotment or acceptance are issued simuftaneously
and letters of regret posted at the same time or not later than 3 business
days after the letters of allotment or acceptance,

If a letter of regret is not posted at the same time as letters of allotment or
acceptance, a notice to that effect must be inserted in a nationat newspaper
to appear the morning after letters of allotment or acceptance are posted.

When shares of the same class as shares that are listed are allotted, an
application for admission to listing of such shares must be made.

Applicable Period

Between 7.00 a.m. to
7.00 p.m. on business
days

As soon as possible
following non-

compliance

As so0n as possible

As soon as possible
after terms are agreed

Simultaneous issue. Or
for letters of regret,
within 3 days after the
letters of allotment or
acceptance and a
notice in national
newspaper on the
morning after letters of
allotment posted.

As s00n as possible
and in any event within
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9.6.1/9.6.2 The listed company must forward to the FSA for publication through the
docurnent viewing facllity two copies of all circulars, notices, reports or other
documents to which the listing rules apply and all resolutions passed by the
listed company other than resolutions conceming ordinary business at an
annual general meeting.

9.6.3 A listed company must notify a RIS when a document has been forwarded to
the FSA under paragraph 9.6.1/9.6.2 unless the fuli text of the document is
provided to a RIS,

964 A listed company must notify a RIS of the following information relating to its
capital:
{1) Any proposed change in its capital structure including the structure

of its listed debt securities;

{3) Any redemption of listed shares including details of the number of
shares redeemed and the number of shares of that class
outstanding following redemption;

4 Any extension of time granted for the currency of temporary
documents of title; and

(6} The results of any new issue of equity securities or preference

shares or of a public offering of existing shares or other equity
securities.

9.6.11 Alisted company must notify a RIS of any change to its board of directors

Applicable Period
one month of allotment

At time of issue or as
s00n as possible after
the relevant general
meeting, as applicable

As soon as possible

As soon as possible
{unless otherwise
indicated)

An announcement of a
new issue may be
delayed while
marketing or
underwriting is in
progress

As soon as possible

As soon as possible

As soon as possible
unless the securities
are subject to an
underwriting agreement
in which case
notification may be
delayed for up to two
business days until an
obligation by the
underwriter to take or
procure offers to take
securities is finally
determined or lapses

As soon as possible
and in any event by the
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including:

(i) the appointment of a new director;

{ii) the resignation, removal or retirement of a director;

(iil} important changes to the role, functions cr responsibilities of a

director; and

{iv) the effective date of the change if it is not with immediate effect.

9.6.12 If the effective date of the board change is not yet known, the notification

9.6.13

9.6.14

9.6.16

9.6.17

9.6.18

9.6.19

should state this fact and the listed company should notify a RIS as soon as
the effective date has been decided.

A listed company must notify a RIS of certain information in respect of any
new director appointed to the board including detalls of all directorships held
by the director in any other publicly quoted company n the previous 5 years
indicating whether or not he is still a director, unspent convictions in relation
to indictable offences, details of the insolvency of any company or partnership
where the director was an executive director or partner at the time of, or
within the 12 months preceding such events and detalls of any public
criticisms of the director by any statutery or regulatory authorities and
whether the director has ever been disqualified.

A listed company must, in respect of any current director, notify a RIS of any
charges in the information set out in 9.6.13, and any new directorships held

by the director in any other publicly quoted company.

A listed company must notify a RIS of information relating to the disposal of
equity shares under an exemption allowed in the lock-up arrangements
disclosed in accordance with the PD Regulations.

Alisted company must notify a RIS of the details of any variation in the lock-
up arrangements disclosed in accordance with the PD Regulations or any
subsequent announcement.

A listed company must notify a RIS of all resolutions passed by the company
other than resolutions concerning ordinary business passed at an annual
general meeting.

A listed company which changes its name must notify a RIS of the change,
stating the date on which it has taken effect, Inform the FSA in writing of the
change and if incorporated in the UK, send the FSA a copy of the revised
certificate of incorporation.

Applicable Period

end of the business day
following the decision
or receipt of notice
about the change by
the company

As soon as the effective
date has heen decided

As soon as possible
following the decision
to appoint the director
and in any event within
5 husiness days of the
deciston

As soon as possible

As soon as possible

As soon as possible

As soon as possible

after a general meeting

As soon as possible
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9.6.20 A listed company must notify a RIS of any change in its accounting reference
date and the new accounting reference date.

9.6.21 A listed company must prepare and publish a second interim report if the
effect of the change in its accounting reference date is to extend the
accounting period to more than 14 months.

9.7A1 A listed company must publish its preliminary statement of annual results, if
any.
9.7A2 Alisted company must notify a RIS of any decision to pay or make any

dividend or other distributions on listed equity or to withhold any dividend or
interest payment on listed securities giving detzils of the exact net amount
payable per share, the payment date, the record date and any foreign income
dividend election together with any income tax treated as paid at the lower
rate and not repayable.

Chapter 10 “Significant Transactions”

Details of significant transactions are required to be disclosed pursuant to Chapter 10 of the
Listing Rules as follows:

10.3.1 Class 3 - for a Class 3 transaction which is an acquisition in respect of which
the consideration includes the issue of securities for which listing will be
sought, the company must make notification to a RIS including:

(a) the amount of the securities being issued;

{b) particulars of the transaction, including the name of the other party
to the transaction; and

(c) either the value of the consideration, and how this is being
satisfied, or the value of the gress assets acquired, whichever is
the greater.

10.3.2 In the case of other Class 3 transactions, if the company releases details to
the public they must also be notified to a RIS. The notification must include:

(&) particutars of the transaction, including the name of the other party
to the transaction; and

(b) either the value of the consideration, and how this is being
satisfied, or the value of the gross assets acquired or disposed of.

Applicable Period

As soon as possible

No time period
prescribed

As soon as possible
after it has been
approved by the beard

As soon as possible
after the board has
approved the matter

As soon as possible
after the terms of the

acquisition are agreed

No iater than release of
details to the public
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10.4.1

10.4.2

Class 2 - the company must make a notification to a RIS, including:

(a)

(b)

(c}

{d)

(e)

{9

(h)

U]

@

details of the transaction, including the name of the other party to
the transaction;

a description of the business carried on by, or using, the net assets
the subject of the transaction;

the consideration, and how it is being satisfied (including the terms
of any arrangements for deferred consideration);

the value of the gross assets the subject of the transaction;

the profits attributable to the assets the subject of the transaction;
the effect of the transaction on the listed company including any
benefits which are expected to accrue to the company as a result of

the transaction;

details of any service contracts of proposed directors of the listed
company;

in the case of a disposal, the application of the sale proceeds;
in the case of a disposal, if securities are to form a part of the
consideration received, a statement whether such securities are to

be sold or retained; and

details of key individuals important {o the business or company the
subject of the transaction.

Class 2 - a supplermentary notification must be made to a RIS if, at any time
after the notification referred to in 10.4.1, the listed company becomes aware

that:

{a)

(o)

there has been a significant change affecting any matter contained
in that earlier notification; or

a significant new matter has arisen which would have been
required to be mentioned in that earier notification if it had arisen at
the time of preparation of that notification,

The supplementary notification must give details of the change or new matter
and also contain a statement that, except as disclosed, there has been no

significant change affecting any matter contained in the earlier notification

and no other significant new matter has arisen which would have been

Applicable Period
As s00n as possible

after the terms of the
transaction are agreed

As soon as possible
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10.5.1

10.5.2

10.6

required to be mentioned in that earlier notification if it had arisen at the time
of the preparation of that notification,

Class 1 - the company must comply with the class 2 requirements (LR 10.4).
In addition, an explanatory circular must be dispatched to the company’s
shareholders (containing the information required by Chapter 13 of the Listing
Rules} and the company must obtain the prior approval of its shareholders in
general meeting, and any agreement effecting the transaction must be
conditional upon such approval being obtained.

The FSA may modify the requirements in Listing Rule 10.5 to prepare a
circular and obtain shareholder approval for a company in severe financial
difficulty (Listing Rule 10.8).

If, after the production of a circular and before the completion of a class 1
transaction or a reverse takeover, there is a material change to the terms of
the transaction, the company must comply separatety with LR 10.5.1.

Reverse takeovers — the company must comply with the class 1 requirements
(LR10.5) if the company wishes to be listed following completion of the
transaction, the company will be required to re-apply for listing as if it was a
new applicant.

Chapter 11 “Related Party Transactions”

1.1.7

11.1.10

If a listed company enters into a transaction with a related party then the
company must make a notification in accordance with Listing Rule 10.4
(Nofification of class 2 transactions), send a circular to its shareholders
containing the information required by LR 13.3 and LR 13.6, obtain the
approval of its shareholders either prior to the transaction being entered into
or, if itis expressed to be conditional on such approval, prior to the
completion of the transaction and where applicable ensure that the related
party and its associates abstain from voting on the relevant resolution.

If the listed company enters into a smaller transaction or arrangement with a
related party {i.e. if each of the percentage ratios is less than 5% but one or
more exceeds 0.25%), Listing Rule 11,1.7 does not apply but instead the
listed company must:

{a) inform the FSA in writing of the details of the proposed transaction
or arrangement;
(b} provide the FSA with written confirmation from an independent

adviser that the terms of the proposed transactien or amangement
are fair and reasonabte as far as the shareholders of the listed

Applicable Period

See Class 2
requirements above

See Class 1

requirements above

See Class 2

requirements above

Before entering in the
transaction or
arrangement




Listing Rules

company are concemned; and

{c) undertake in writing to the FSA to include details of the transaction
or arrangement in the listed company’s next published annual
accounts.

Chapter 12 “Dealing in own securities and treasury shares”

1244

12.4.5

12.4.6

12.5.1

Any board decision to submit to shareholders a proposal for the iisted
company to be authorised to purchase its own equity shares other than the
renewal of an existing authority must be notified to a RIS.

A listed company must notify a RIS of the outcome of the shareholders'
meeting to decide the proposal described in Listing Rule 12.4.4.

Any purchase of the listed company’s own equity shares by or on behalf of
the company or any other member of its group must be notified to a RIS. The
notification must include the date of the purchase, the number of equity
shares purchased, the purchase price for each of the highest and lowest
price paid, the number of equity shares purchased for cancellation and the
number of equity shares purchased to be held as treasury shares and, where
equity shares are to be held as treasury shares, a statement of the total
number of treasury shares of each class held by the company following the
purchase and non-cancellation of such equity shares and the number of
equity shares of each class that the company has in issue less the totat
number of treasury shares of each class held by the company following the
purchase and non-cancellation of such equity shares.

Where a listed company intends to purchase any of its equity securities
(other than equity shares) or preference shares it must notify a RIS of its
decision to purchase unless such purchases will consist of individual
transactions made in accordance with the terms of issue of the securities.

Applicable Period

As soon as possible

As soon as possible

As soon as possible,
and in any event by
7:30 a.m. on the
business day following
the calendar day of
transaction

No time limit specified,
but dealings in the
relevant securities
cannot be undertaken
until a RIS has been
notified or proposal has
been abandoned
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12.5.2/
12.5.3

12.5.7

12.6.3

12.6.4

A RIS must be notified of any purchases, early redemptions or cancellations
of the company’s own listed equity securities (other than equity shares) or
preference shares by or on behalf of the company or any other member of
the company’s group when an aggregate of 10% of the initial amount of the
relevant ciass of securities has been purchased, redeemed or cancelled and
for each 5% in aggregate of the initial nominal amount of that dlass acquired
thereafter. The notification must state the amount of securities acquired,
redeemed or cancelled since the last notification, the amount of the class of
securities remaining outstanding and whether or not the securities are to be

cancelled.

Where within a period of 12 months a company purchases warrants or
options to subscribe or purchase its own equity shares which on exercise
convey the entitement to equity shares representing 15% or more of the
company's existing issued shares, the company must send to its
shareholders a circular containing the following information:

(a) a staterment of the directors’ intentions regarding future purchases
of the company's warrants and options;

) the number and terms of the warrants or options acquired and to

be acquired and the methed of acquisition;

{©) where warrants or options have been, or are to be, acquired from
specific parties, a statement of the names of those parties and all
material terms of the acquisition; and

{d) details of the prices to be paid.

The company must notify a RIS, if by virtue of its holding treasury shares, a
listed company is allotted shares as part of a capitalisation issue, of the
information set out at Listing Rule 12.6.3 (1} to (4) including the date of
allotment, number of shares allotted, a statement as to what number of
shares allotted have been cancelled and what number are being held as
treasury shares, and where shares allotted are being held as treasury shares,
a statement of the total number of treasury shares of each class held by the
company following the allotment, and the number of shares of each class that
the company has in issue less the total number of treasury shares of each
class held by the company following the allotment.

Any sale for cash, transfer for the purposes of or pursuant to an employees’
share scheme or cancellation of treasury shares by a listed company must be

notified to a RIS. The notification must include:

(1) the date of the sale, transfer or cancellation;

Applicable Period

As soon as possible
and in any event by
7:30 a.m. on the
business day following
the calendar day when
limit is reached/
exceeded

Nao time period
prescribed

As soon as possible
and no later than 7:30
a.m. on the business
day following the
calendar day on which
the allotment occurred

As soon as possible
and no later than 7:30
a.m. on the business
day following the
calendar day on which
sale, transfer or
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(2) the number of shares sold, transferred or cancelled;

(3) the sale or transfer price for each of the highest and lowest prices
paid, where relevant; and

{4) a statement of:

(a) the lotal number of treasury shares of each class held by
the company following the sale, transfer or cancellation;
and

(b} the number of shares of each class that the company has

in issue less the total number of treasury shares of each
class held by the company following the sale, transfer or
cancellation.

Chapter 13 “Contents of Circulars™

13.2.1 Circulation and publication of a circular,
Note: Lisling Rule 13 sets out the contents of circulars as well as setting out
those circulars which do not require approval by the FSA,

13.2.5 Two copies of the circular must be submitted to the FSA along with the letters
and documents referred to in Listing Rule 13.2.4(1) and (2}.

13.2.6 The sponsor's Confirmation of Independence in final form must be submitted

to the FSA.

Applicable Period

cancellation occurred

Following approval by
FSA

At least 10 clear
business days before
the date of intended
publication

Al least 10 clear
business days before
the date of intended
publication of the
circular

Note: Listing Rule 9.6.1 requires a company to forward to the FSA two copies of all circulars issued for publication on

the document viewing facility whether or not they require approval.

13.2.7

i a circular submitted for approval is amended two copies of the amended
drafis must be resubmitted, marked to show changes made to conform with
FSA comments and to indicate other changes.

In relation to a circular to shareholders about proposed amendments to a
company's constitution, a proposed amendment to the company’s
constitution must be included in full in a circular to shareholders or be made

No time period
prescribed




Listing Rules

13.8.11

available for inspection at a place in or near the City of London or such other
place as the FSA may determine from the date of the sending of the circular
until the close of the relevant general meeting and at the place of the general
meeting for at least 15 minutes before and during the meeting.

In relation to a circutar to shareholders about the approval of an employee's
share scheme or long term inventive scheme, if the scheme is not circulated
to shareholders, it must be made available for inspection at a place in or near
the City of London or such other place as the FSA may determine from the
date of the sending of the circular until the close of the relevant general
meeting and at the place of the general meeting for at least 15 minutes

before and during the meeting.

Disclosure Rules and Transparency Rules

Chapter 1 “introduction”

1.31

1.3.3/1A.31

An issuer, person discharging managerial responsibilities or connected
person must provide to the FSA any information that the FSA considers
appropriate to protect investors or ensure the smooth operation of the market
and any cther information or explanation that the FSA may require to verify
whether the disclosure rules are being and have been complied with.

The FSA may at any time require an issuer to publish such information in
such form as the FSA considers appropriate to protect investors or to ensure

the smoath operation of the market.

Chapter 2 “Disclosure and centrol of inside information by issuers”

2.2.1/2.51

An issuer must notify a RIS of any inside information which directly concerns
the Issuer unless it is entifled to delay such disclosure in accordance with
DTR 2.5.1 so as not to prejudice its legitimale interests provided that such
omission would not be likely to mislead the public, any person receiving the
information owes the issuer a duty of confidentiality and the issuer is able to
ensure the confidentiality of that information.

Applicable Period

Applicable Period

As soon as possible
following a request by
the FSA

Within such time limits
as the FSA considers
appropriate

As soon as possible

Note: Inside information is of a precise nature which is not generally available, relates directly or indirectly to one or
more issuers and would, if generally available, be likely to have a significant effect on the price of the securities or on

the price of related investiments.

2.3.12.3.2
233

Inside information announced via a RIS must be available on the issuer's
internet site. The RIS must be notifled before, or simultaneously with,
publication of such information on the issuer’s internet site.

By close of business
following the day of the
RIS announcement and
in any event no earlier



Disclosure Rules and Transparency Rules

2.35

2.4.1

256

2.8.2/28.3

An issuer must post on its internet sites all inside information that it is
required to disclose via a RIS.

An issuer must take reasonable care to ensure that disclosure of inside
information to the public is synchronised as closely as possible in all
jurisdictions in which it has financial instruments admitted to trading on a
regulated market, requested admission to trading of its financial instruments
on a regulated market or financial instruments on any other overseas stock

exchange.

Whenever an issuer ar a person acting on his behalf or for his account
discloses any inside information to any third party in the normat exercise of
his employment, profession or duties, the issuer must make complete and
effective disclosure of that information via a RIS.

An issuer must provide to the FSA a list of persons who have access to
inside information that has been drawn up in accordance with DTR 2.8.1.

The insider list must contain the following information:

{1) the identity of each person having access to inside information;
(2) the reason why such person is on the insider list; and
3) the date on which the insider list was created and updated.

Chapter 3 “Transactions by persons discharging managerial responsibilities and their

connected persons”

312

3.14/315

Persons discharging managerial responsibilities and their connected persons
must notify the issuer in writing of the occurrence of all transactions
conducted on their own account in the shares of the issuer or derivatives or
any other financial instruments relating to those shares.

An issuer must notify a RIS of any information natified to it in accordance
with DTR 3.1.2 above and section 793 of the Companies Act 2006.

Applicable Period

than the notification of
the information to a RIS

For a pericd of one year
following publication

Synchronised
disclosure

Simuttaneously in the
case of an intentional
disclosure and as soon
as possible in the case
of a non-intentional
disclosure

As soon as possible if
s0 requested by the
FSA

Within four business
days of the day on
which the transaction
occurred

As soon as possible
and in any event no
later than the end of the
business day following
receipt of information by
the issuer




Disclosure Rules and Transparency Rules

Chapter 4 “Periodic Financial Reporting”

4.1.3/4.1.4 An issuer must make public its annual financial report.

422 An issuer must make public a half-yearly financial report covering the first six
months of the financial year,

4.3.2/4.3.3 An issuer must make public & statement by its management during the first
six month period of the financial year and another statement by its
management during the second six month period of the financial year. An
issuer which publishes quarterly financial reports will be taken as satisfying
this requirement.

Chapter 5 “Vote Holder and Issuer Notification Rules”

5.51 An issuer of shares must, if it acquires or disposes of its own shares either
itself or through a person acting in his own name but on the issuer's behalf,
make public the percentage of voting rights attributable to those shares it
holds as a result of the transaction as a whole, where that percentage
reaches, exceeds or falls below the thresholds of 5% or 10% of the voting

rights.
5.6.1 An issuer must disclose to the public:
(1} the total number of voting rights and capital in respect of each
class of share which it issues; and
(2) the total number of voting rights attaching to the shares of the

issuer which are held by it in treasury.

Applicable Period

At the latest four
months after the end of
each financial year and
must remain publicly
avallable for at least five

years

As soon as possible,
but not later than two
months, after the end of
the peried to which the
report refates. The
report must remain
publicly available for at
least five years

In the period between
10 weeks after the
beginning and six
weeks before, the end
of the relevant six
maonth period

As soon as possible,
but not later than four
trading days following
such acquisition or
disposal

At the end of each
calendar month during
which an increase or
decrease has occurred



Disclosure Rules and Transparency Rules

5.8.12

An issuer must, on receipt, notify a RIS of any information disclosed to it in
accordance with DTR 5 (relating to the obligation to discicse certain major
interests in the share capital of a listed company).

Chapter 6 “Continuing abligations and access to information”

6.1.2

6.1.12

6.1.13

6.2.2/6.3.3

6.3.10

If an issuer of transferable securities proposes to amend its constitution it
must communicate the draft amendment to:

(a) the FSA: and
(b} the regulated market on which its securities have been admitted to
trading.

An Issuer must make available a proxy form to each person entitled to vote
at a meetling of its shareholders/debt holders.

An issuer of shares must disclose 1o the public any change in the rights
attaching to its various classes of shares, including changes in the rights
attaching to derivative securities issued by the issuer giving access to the
shares of that issuer.

An issuer of shares must provide information to holders on:

(1} the place, ime and agenda of meetings;
(2) the total number of shares and voting rights; and
{3) the rights of holders to participate in meetings.

An issuer of shares must publish notices or distribute circulars concerning
the allocation and payment of dividends and the issue of new shares,
including information on any arrangements for aliotment, subscription,
cancelfation or conversion,

An issuer or person that discloses regulated information must file that
information with the FSA, When disseminating regulated information an
issuer or other person must ensure that the minimumn standards contained in
DTR 6.3.4 to DTR 6.3.8 are met.

Information that is disclosed in a non-EEA State which may be of importance
to the public in the EEA must be disclosed in accordance with the provisions

Applicable Period

As soon as possible
and in any event by the
end of the trading day
following receipt of the
notification

Without delay but at the
latest on the date of
calling the general
meeting which is to vote
on, or be Informed of,
the amendment

To be sent together with
notice of meeting or
after announcement of
the meeting

Without delay

Not specified

Not specified

At the same time as the
regulated information is
disclosed

As close as possible to




Disclosure Rules and Transparency Rules

setoutin DTR 6.2 and OTR 6.3.

Applicable Period

simultaneously




Prospectus Rules

Chapter 1 “Preliminary”

1.2.1 A prospectus approved by the FSA s required when transferable securities
are offered to the public in the UK and/or transferable securities are admitted
to trading on a regutated market in the UK (unless an exemption applies).

Chapter 3 “Approval and Publication of Prospectus”

3.1.3(1)and  The applicant must submit the prospectus, Form A, fee and accompanying
(2) information specified in Prospectus Rule 3.1.1 in draft form to the FSA.

3.1.3(3) The applicant must submit to the FSA the informaltion specified in Prospectus
Rule 3.1.1in final form,

3.1.10 Publication of prospectus,
3.1.14/ A person who wishes the FSA to vel an equivalent document {e.g. where a
3.1.15 prospectus is not required in connection with a merger or takeover but where

the offering document must be equivalent to a prospectus) must submit to
the FSA a copy of the document and the other information specified in
Prospectus Rule 3.1.14.

Applicable Period

Approval required prior
to prospectus being
made available to the
public

At least 10 working
days before the
intended approval date
or at least 20 working
days before the
intended approval date
if the applicant does not
have transferable
securities admitted to
trading and has not
previously made an
offer

As soon as practicable
in the case of a
supplementary
prospectus

Before midday on the
day on which approval
is required to be
granted

Fallowing approval by
the FSA

At least 10 working
days before the date on
which it wishes vetting
to be completed




Prospectus Rules Applicable Period

3.21/322 A prospectus must be filed with the FSA and made avaitable to the public As soon as practicable
following FSA approval
but in any eventata
reasonable time in
advance of, and at the
latest at the beginning
of the offer or admission
to trading (except as

provided by 3.2.3
helow)
323 In the case of an Initial public offering of a class of shares not already At least six working
admitted to trading that is to be admitted to trading for the first time, the days before the end of
prospectus must be made available to the public the offer

Note: A prospectus is deemed to be made available to the public when published (i) by insertion in one or more
newspapers circulated throughout, or widely circulated in, the EEA States in which the offer is made or the admission to
trading is sought or (ii) in a printed form to be made available free of charge to the public at the offices of the regulated
market on which the transferable securities are being admitted to trading, or at the registered office of the issuer and at
the offices of the financial intermediaries or {iii) in an electronic form on the issuer's website and, if applicable, on the
website of the financial intermediaries placing or selling the transferable securities or (iv) in an electronic form on the
website of the regulated market where the admission to trading is sought (Prospectus Rule 3.2.4),

341 If a significant new factor, material mistake or inaccuracy relating to the As soon as practicable
information included in a prospectus approved by the FSA arises prior to the
closure of the offer or admission to trading, a supplementary prospectus
containing details of the new factor must be submitted to the FSA for its
approval.

Chapter 5 “Other provisions”

5.2.1 An issuer whose transferable securities are admitted to trading and in At least annually
relation to whom the UK is the home member state must publish an annual
information update that refers to or contains all information that has been
published or made avaitable to the public over the previous 12 months in one
or more EEA state and in third countries in compliance with its obligations
under Community and national laws and rules dealing with the regulation of
securities, issuers of securities and securities markets.

Publication maybe by any means permitted under Prospectus Rule 3.2.4
(see above).



Prospectus Ruies

5.2.8/5.2.9  Anissuer must file its annual information update with the FSA by notifying it

5.6.1

to a RIS.

Where, in relation to an offer in the UK, no prospectus is required, the issuer
and offeror must ensure that material information they provide to qualified
investors or special categories of investars is disclosed to all qualified
investors or special categories of investors to whom the offer is exclusively
addressed.

Applicable Period

At least 20 working
days after the
publication of the
annual financial
statements in the home
member state




Admission and Disclosure Standards

1.91.10

2.1

23

2.4

24

25

An issuer proposing to admit securities that will be the subject of an
application for admission to trading must agree the timetable for admission to
trading of those securities with the Exchange.

New issuers must submit a provisional Form 1 to the Exchange,

New issuers wishing to be considered for “when issued” dealing must submit
a provisional “when issued dealing application forrn” with the provisional
Form 1. Afinal “when issued dealing application form” must also be
submitted.

New issuers must submit to the Exchange a Form 1 signed by a duly
authorised officer of the issuer, an electronic copy of any prospectus..!isting
particulars, passport, circular, announcerment or other document relating to
the issuer together with copies of any notice of meeting referred to in such
documents and a copy of the RIS announcement relating to the admission.

New issuers must submit to the Exchange a wiitten confirmation of the
number of securities to be allotted or issued pursuant to the board resolution.

After admission, a statement of the number of securities which were in fact
issued and, where different from the number which were the subject of the
application, the aggregate number of securities of that class in issue must be
lodged with the Exchange,

Applicable Period

Issuer must contact the
Exchange no later than
10 business days before
the application is to be
considered

No later than 12:00 at
least 10 business days
prior to the day on which
the issuer is requesting
the Exchange consider
the application for
admission to trading

At least two business
days prior to the day on
which the issuer is
requesting that the
Exchange consider the
application for when
issued dealing

No later than 12:00 at
least two business days
prior to the day on which
the issuer is requesting
that the Exchange
consider the application
for admission to trading

No later than 07:30 on
the day that admission
is expected to become

effective

After admission, as soon
as it becomes available.




Admission and Disclosure Standards

2.8

3.4

3.5

317

Where debt securities or certificates representing shares are issued under
an issuance programme, the issuer must submit to the Exchange a
subsequent application for admission to trading in the case of an increase in
the maximum number of securities which may be in issue and listed at any
one fime under an issuance programme. The Exchange must also receive
advice of the final terms of each issue, electronic copies of any
supplementary prospectus or listing particulars and confirmation that the
securities in question have been issued.

Issuers and their nominated representatives must provide to the Exchange
any information or expfanation that the Exchange may reasonably require for
the purpose of verifying whether the Admission and Disclosure Standards are
being complied with or which relates to the integrity or orderly operation of
the Exchange's markets.

An issuer must contact the Exchange in advance of any announcement of
the timetable for any proposed action affecting the rights of existing holders
of its securities traded on the Exchange.

An Issuer that wishes the Exchange to cancel the right of any of its securities
to be traded must advise the Exchange in writing.

Applicable Period

Final terms of each
issue must be submitted
as soon as possible
after they have been
agreed, and in any
event no later than
1400 on the day before
admission is required to
become effective

No later than 9:00 on
the day before the
proposed
announcement

Not later than 20
business days before
the date it intends
trading in its securities to
be discontinued



Information to be provided pursuant to the Companies Acts

A company is also required to fite information with the Registrar of Companies pursuant to the
Companies Act 1985 and Companies Act 2006, as applicable. The Companies Act 1985 and
the Companies Act 2006 also impose requirements on companies to distribute certain
information to shareholders. The following table is a summary of material information that is
required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies or distributed to shareholders and the time

limits applicable for such filing or distribution.

Certain information is required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies on the forms
specified by The Companies (Forms) Regulations 1985 (as amended) and the Companies
{Registers and Other Records) Regulations 1985 (as amended). Alist of these forms, with a
brief description of each (other than those which would not be applicable to BBA Aviation plc), is
attached as Appendix 1 to this Annex B.

Companies Act information

Information to he filed at the Registrar of Companies

Applicable Period

(a) annual Report and Accounts, together with auditors' report. Within 7 months of year
end
(b) where the memorandum or articles of association of the company have been At the time of filing of
altered, a copy of the memorandum or articles of association as altered. the resotution effecting
the alteration.
{c) copies of special resolutions. Within 15 days of the
passing of the resolution
(d) resolutions or agreements which have been agreed to by all members of the Within 15 days of the
company, which would otherwise have been required to be passed as a special  passing of the resolution
resolution. or the making of the
agreement
(e) resolutions or agreements agreed to by all the members of a class of Within 15 days of the
shareholders, which would otherwise have required a particular majority or passing of the resolution
have been passed in some particular manner; and all resolutions or or the making of the
agreements which are not agreed to by all holders, but which are nonetheless agreement
binding on all holders of a particular class of shares.
() a resolution to give, vary or revoke the authority of directors to allot relevant Within 15 days of the

securities pursuant to the Companies Act 1985, section 80.

passing of the resolution




Companies Act Infarmation

(@

(h)

@i

0

(k)

{

(m)

(n)

(0)

a resolution to reduce share capital and Court order and minute relating

thereto.

a resolution of the directors under the Companies Act 1985, section 147(2) to
alter the memorandum of association of a public company, when it ceases to be
a public company through the acquisition of its own shares.

a resolution to give, vary, revoke or renew a company's authority under the
Companies Act 1985, section 166 to make market purchases of its own shares.

a resolution for the voluntary winding-up of the company passed pursuant to
section 84(1){a) of the Insolvency Act 19886,

a resolution passed by the directors under regulation 16(2) of the Uncertificated
Securities Regultations 2001 {which allows title to a company’s shares to be

evidenced and transferred without writien instrument),

a resolution passed by the directors under regulation 16(6) of the Uncertificated
Securities Regulations 2001 (which prevents or reverses a resolution of the
directors under regulation 16(2) of those Regulations).

the procedure for an increase in the share capital of a company requires the
company to send a copy of the resolution authorising the increase to the
Registrar of Companies together with the notice of the increase (Form 123).

Where a company enters into a compromise or arrangement with its members
or creditors (or any class of them) {a “Scheme of Amangement™), the Scheme of
Arrangement will not become effective until the order of the Court sanctioning
the Scheme of Arrangement is delivered to the Registrar of Companies.

a shareholder resolution providing that the company can send or supply
documents or information to its members by publishing them on its website.

Information to be distributed to shareholders

(a)

Notices of general meetings with explanatory circulars, copies of resotutions
and proxy forms to be sent to shareholders,

Applicable Period

Resolution within 15
days of resolution being
passed or made; Court
order and minute

promptly after receipt

Within 15 days of the
passing of the resolution

Within 15 days of the
passing of the resolution

Within 15 days of the
passing of the resolution

Within 15 days of the
passing of the resolution

Within 15 days of the
passing of the resolution

Within 15 days after the
passing of the resolution

No prescribed time

Within 15 days of the
passing of the resolution

To be received not less
than 21 clear days in the
case of an AGM, in
other cases, at least 14
days




Companies Act Information

{b)

{c)

(d)

(e)

Copies of the company's annuat report and accounts need to be sent to
shareholders.,

A company is required to circulate to shareholders a statement with respect to
matters referred to in a proposed resolution to be dealt with at a general
meeling or other business to be dealt with at the meeting, if requested to do so
by at least 5% of shareholders with voting rights or at least 100 shareholders
with voting rights and who hold shares on which an average of at least £100
per member has been paid up.

A company is required to give notice fo all shareholders entitled to receive
notice of the next AGM, of a resolution that has baen requested by at least 5%
of shareholders with voting rights or at least 100 shareholders with vating rights
and who hold shares on which an average of at least £100 per member has
been paid up.

Results of poll taken at a general mesting of the company need to be made
available on the company's website,

Applicable Period

Not less than 21 days
before the date of the
shareholder meeting at
which copies of the
accounts are to be (aid

At the same time as, or
as soon as reasonably
practicable after, it gives

notice of the meeting.

Al the same time as, or
as soon as reasonably
practicable after, it gives
notice of the meeting.

As soon as reasonably
practicable and must be
kept available for two
years



Form No.

10

12

30(5)(a)

30(5)(b)

30{5)(c)

49(1})

49(B)A)

51

53

54

88(2)

Appendix 1 to Annex B

Details of Circumstances When Used

Notice of application to the Court for cancellation of
alteration to the objects of a company.

First directors and secretary and intended situation of
registered office.

Declaration on application for registration.

Declaration on application for registration of a company
exempt from the requirement to use the word “limited” or

“cyfyngedig”

Declaration on application for registration under s680 of the
Companies Act 1985 (companies not formed under
cormnpanies legislation but authorised to register) of a
company exempt from the requirement to use the word
“limited” or “cyfyngedig”

Change of name omilting “limited” or “cyfyngedig”

Application by a limited company to be re-registered as
unfimited (to be accompanied by the documents set out in
section 48(8) of the Compantes Act 1985).

Members' assent to company being re-registered as
unlimited.

Application by an unlimited company to be re-registered as
limited {to be accompanied by the documents set outin
section 51(5) of the Companies Act 1985).

Application by a public company for re-registration as a
private company (to be accompanied by the documents set

out in section 53(1)(b) of the Companies Act 1985).

Notice of application made to the Court for the cancellation
of a special resolution regarding re-registration,

Return of allotment(s) of shares

List of Forms for Filing with the Registrar of Companies

Time Limit for Filing

Forthwith on the making of the
application and deliver a copy of arder
and (if applicable) the memorandum
as altered within 15 days

On application

On application

On application

On application

On application

On application

On application

Not earlier than the date on which the
special resolution approving the re-
registration is filed.

On application

Forthwith on the making of the
application

Within one month after the allotment



Form No.

88(3)

a7

"7

122

123

128(1})

128(3)

128(4)

139

147

155(6)a

155(6)b

157

Details of Circumstances When Used

Particulars of a contract relating to shares allotted as fully or
partly paid up otherwise than in cash.

Statement of the amount or rate per cent of any commission
payable in connection with the subscription of shares.

Application by a public company for a certificate to

commence business.

Notice of consolidation, division, sub-division, redemption or
cancelation of shares, or conversion or re-conversion of

stock into shares.

Notice of increase in nominal capital.

Statement of rights attached to allotted shares.

Statement of particulars of variation of rights attached to

shares.

Notice of assignment of name or new name to any class of

shares.

Application by a public company for re-registration as a
wrivate company following a Court order reducing capital.

Application by a public company for re-registration as a
private company following cancellation of shares and
reduction of nominal value of issued capital.

Declaration in refation to assistance for the acquisition of

shares.

Declaration by the directors of a holding company in relation
to assistance for the acquisition of shares.

Notice of application made to the Court for the cancellation
of a special resolution regarding financial assistance for the

acquisition of shares.

Time Limit for Filing

Within one month after the allotment

Before commissicn is paid

On application

Within one month of the event

Within 15 days after the passing of the
resofution authorizing the increase

Within one month from allotting the
shares

Within one month from the date the

variation is made

Within one month of the change

On application

On application

Together with the special resolution
approving the assistance or, if no such
resolution is required, within 15 days
after the date of the declaration

Together with the special resolution
approving the assistance or, if no such
resolution is required, within 15 days
after the date of the declaration

Forthwith on the making of the
application



Form No.

169

168(1B)

169A(2)

173

176

180

225

266(1)

266(3)

287

288a

288b

288¢

318

353

362

Details of Circumstances When Used

Return by a company purchasing its own shares,

Return by a company purchasing its own shares for holding
in treasury

Return by a company cancelling or selling or transferring

shares from treasury

Declaration in relation to the redemption or purchase of
shares out of capital.

Notice of application to the Court for the cancellation of a
resolution for the redemption or purchase of shares out of
capital.

Notice of place where a register of holders of debentures or
a duplicate is kept or of any change in that place.

Notice of change in accounting reference date,

Notice of intention to carry on business as an investment

company.

Notice that company no longer wishes to be an investment
company,

Netice of change in situation or address of registered office.
Appointment of director or secretary.

Terminating appointment of director or secretary.

Change of particulars for director or secretary,

Notice of place where copies of directors’ service contracts
and any memoranda are kept or any change in that place.

Notice of place where register of members is kept or of any
change in that place.

Netice of place where an overseas branch register is kept,
of any change in that place, or of discontinuance of any
such register.

Time Limit for Filin

Within 28 days after the date on which
any shares purchased are delivered to
the company

Within 28 days after the date on which
any shares purchased are delivered to
the company

Within 28 days after the date on which
such shares are cancelled or disposed

of.

Not later than the date of the first
notice of the redemption or repurchase

Forthwith on the making of the

application

On change occurring

On application

On application

On application

Cn application

Within 14 days of appointment

Within 14 days of termination

Within 14 days of the change

On change

On change

Within 14 days of the opening of the
branch office or the change or
discontinuance




Form No.

363A

363s

391

395

397

357a

398

400

403a

403b

405(1)

405(2)

600, 600a

652a

652c

Details of Circumstances When Used

Annual Retum containing company details and details of
officers,

Annual return declaration,

Notice of passing of resolution removing an auditor,

Particutars of a mortgage or charge.

Particulars for the registration of a charge to secure a series
of debentures.

Particulars of an issue of secured debentures in a series.

Certificate of registration in Scotland or Northern Ireland of
a charge comprising property situate there.

Particulars of a mortgage or charge subject to which
property has been acquired.

Declaration of satisfaction in full or in part of morigage or
charge.

Declaration that part of the property or undertaking charged
(a) has been released from the charge; or (b} no longer
forms part of the company's property or undertaking.

Notice of appointment of receiver or manager,

Notice of ceasing to act as receiver or manager.

Notice of appointment of liquidator - voluntary winding-up
(members' or creditors’} {(Insolvency Act 1986, section 109).

Application for striking off.

Withdrawal of application for striking off (Companies Act
1989, section 652D}

Time Limit for Filing

Retum to be made up to the
anniversary of the date of
incorporation or the date of the last
return. To be delivered to the
Registrar of Companies within 28 days
after the date to which it is made up.

To be filed at the time of filing of the
annual retumn (Form 363a)

Within 14 days after passing of

resolution removing auditor

Within 21 days after the creation of the
charge

Within 21 days after the execution of
the deed containing the charge

On issue

On application

21 days after the date on which the

acquisition is completed

On application

On application

Within 7 days of the order or of the
appointment

On so ceasing

Within 14 days after appointment

On application

Forthwith on the occurrence of events
set out in section 652C of the
Companies Act 1985




Form No. Details of Circumstances When Used

980(1) Notice to non-assenting shareholders for compulsory
acquisition of shares.

980{dec} Statutory declaration relating to notice to non-assenting
shareholders.

984 Notice to non-assenting shareholders for offeror to acquire
shares,

CA080710013

Time Limit for Filing

When the first notice is given

When the first notice is given

Within one month of the time specified
in subsection (2}, {3) or (4) (as the
case may be) of section 983 of the
Companies Act 2006



U NOlLICE U CUTNISONTAalofn, aivision,
sub-division, redemption or .
ion, redemption NECEIVED
cancellation of shares, or
conversion, re-conversion of stock i iy -7 P |: 19

CHFP055 _
Please do not into shares FICE OF DITERHATIC.L
write in this margin CORPORATE FLIA 0L

Pursuant to section 122 of the Companies Act 1985

To the Registrar of Companies
Please complete

legibly, farably i -
black troe or boyt | (Address overleaf) For official use Company Number
53688

block lettering

Name of Company

* insert full name * BBA Aviation plC
of company

gives notice that:

In accordance with an ordinary resolution passed on 30 April 2008, the authorised
share capital representing the 95,000,000 6.75% Cumulative Redeemable
Convertible Preference Shares of the Company which have not been issued or
agreed to be issued were cancelled and the authorised share capital of the
Company was reduced by £95,000,000.

1 Insert Director,
Secretary,

Adrninistrator,
Administrative
Receiver or
Receiver {(Scotland)
as appropriate
Signed Designation 1  Director Date 3 g\ Yo 5
Presentor's name, address teTephone .
N 1) [
% number and reference (if any): For official use
Mrs A Hammond General Section Post room
C S A BBA Aviation plc
g 20 Balderton Street
SOFTWARE London W1K 6TL
BLUEPRINT
Company Secretary




